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Item 1.

Business.

A. Description of the Registrant’s Business

We were incorporated in the State of California in 1994 as Main Street Athletic Clubs, Inc. and operated a small chain of
athletic clubs, a trucking company, and food companies, among other things. In 1996 our registration under Section 1-A
of the securities act was declared effective and we began to trade publicly. In 1997 we merged with a group of
approximately fifteen oil and gas partnerships which proved to be unsuccessful. In 1998 we entered a Chapter 11
bankruptcy reorganization in the Northern District of California, due mostly to a need to decrease oil and gas related debt
in excess of asset value.

As we emerged from bankruptcy the court allowed the original issuance of approximately $145 Million in warrants to the
claimants and creditors. The warrants were in (4) four classes, have been reset to lower prices, and have been principally
exercised at $0.09, $0.11, $0.65, $1.00 $1.60 and $7.00 per share. At $1.60 per share, we may receive as much as $23
Million in warrant proceeds. The bankruptcy court order allows all the warrants and shares that are issued upon exercise
of the warrants to trade freely under an exemption provided by Section 1145 USC. We received an SEC “No Comment”
letter and our Reorganization Plan was confirmed January 11, 2000. We exited the reorganization owning a small ATM
business with fifty installed ATM machines.

In 2009 we began examining cancer treatment-related companies, and created a proprietary Cancer Immunotherapy
Index but worked with only one or two cancer therapy companies. In June 2013 we were approached to invest in a cancer
related medical marijuana project and in August 2013 made the decision to start focusing on the medical marijuana
space. The goal was to pursue an alternative approach to assisting in the fight against cancer and the effects of the
disease.

We now have the following residual cancer related private holdings: $55,942 in Brighter Day Health and $8,850 in Shaw
Capital (Medical Devices).

We maintain a medical bias toward the application of cannabis to cancer wasting, calming seizures, smoothing the effects
of Parkinson’s disease, reducing ocular pressures from glaucoma and blunting chronic pain.

Our CEO, Chester Billingsley became a founding director and officer of the board of directors of the Nevada Cannabis
Industry Association in November 2013. The Company now intends to partner with, and invest solely in medical and
social use cannabis companies.

Our goal is to partner with interesting or leading companies in the cannabis space. We seek to identify leaders in several
vertical sectors of the marijuana market and acquire or invest in those leaders. The Company intends to use its resources
to help its portfolios and operating subsidiaries and hopes that existing managers can continue to operate the partner
business. We see retaining operating control and having some access to funding as two key advantages to cannabis
founders working with us.

Currently the Company has the following cannabis-related investments in place: $1,500,000 receivable from Bhang
Chocolate Company, Inc. [please see the section entitled “Legal Proceedings” for additional information]; $200,000
MicroCannabiz, LLC (51%) (“MCB”) ($68,000 of which was funded at September 30, 2014); $100,000 into Nevada
Cannabis Ventures (100%), for the formation of a yet to be named cannabis fund run by managers to be selected; a legacy
investment of $242,545 in Waste Consolidators, Inc. (“WCI”) (a 51% ownership which is eliminated in the consolidated
financial statements for the nine months ended September 30, 2014); a $90,000 investment in a purchased receivable;
and a $19,650 investment across the Cannabis Index for aggregate 2014 investments of $1,758,000.

We believe that we have an adequate acquisition and investment pipeline that arose starting in January 17, 2014 with the
onset of active cannabis trading.



Item 1A.

Currently there are 22 states and the District of Columbia that have laws and/or regulation that recognize in one form or
another legitimate medical uses for cannabis and consumer use of cannabis in connection with medical treatment. Fifteen
other states are considering legislation to similar effect. In addition, as of September 30, 2014, voters in the states of
Colorado and Washington have legalized cannabis for adult use. The state laws are in conflict with the federal Controlled
Substances Act, which makes marijuana use and possession illegal on a national level. Under the policy and regulations
of the Federal government marijuana is a Schedule I controlled substance and is illegal under federal law. Even in states
where the use of marijuana has been legalized, its use remains a violation of federal law.

The Obama administration has indicated that it is not an efficient use of resources to direct federal law enforcement
agencies to prosecute those lawfully abiding by state laws allowing the use and distribution of medical marijuana.
However, there is no guarantee that the administration or a subsequent administration will not change the stated policy
regarding the low-priority enforcement of federal laws.

Mentor Capital has 5 full time employees and 1 part time employee in its corporate office in Ramona, California. WCI
has 29 employees in Tempe, Arizona and MCB has 10 full time employees and 1 part time employee in St. Petersburg,
Florida.

B. Description of the Registrant’s Facilities and Equipment.

The Company leases on a month to month basis approximately 2,000 square feet of office space for $2,050 per month in
California, and approximately 3,000 square feet of office and warehouse space for $2,211 per month in Arizona. MCB is
provided office space by the 49% owner in Florida with rent of only $715 being charged during the initial startup of
operation.

WCI leases vehicles under an operating fleet lease with initial lease terms of 48 months. Total lease payments are $9,084
per month.

C. Additional Information About Registrant.

We are voluntarily disclosing the information required by Form 10 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. We have
not previously filed any quarterly or annual reports with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”).

The public may read and copy any materials filed by the Registrant with the SEC at the SEC's Public Reference Room
located at 100 F Street, NE., Washington, DC 20549. The public may obtain information on the operation of the Public
Reference Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. The SEC maintains an Internet site containing reports, proxy
and information statements, and other information regarding electronic filers at Attp./www.sec.gov.

We intend to make available our periodic reports and other required disclosures at our company website located at:
www.MentorCapital.com.

Risk Factors.

In addition to other information in this Form 10, the following risk factors should be carefully considered in evaluating
our business since it operates in a highly changing and complex business environment that involves numerous risks,
some of which are beyond our control. The following discussion highlights a few of these risk factors, any one of which
may have a significant adverse impact on our business, operating results and financial condition. As a result of the risk
factors set forth below and elsewhere in this Form 10, and the risk discussed in our Rule 15¢2-11 submissions, actual
results could differ materially from those projected in any forward-looking statements.

We face significant risks, and the risks described below may not be the only risks we face. Additional risks that we do
not know of or that we currently consider immaterial may also impair our business operations. If any of the events or
circumstances described in the following risks actually occurs, our business, financial condition or results of operations
could be harmed and the trading price of our common stock could decline.



We operate in a turbulent market populated by businesses that are highly volatile.

The US market for cannabis products is highly volatile. While we believe that it is an exciting and growing market, many
companies involved in cannabis products and services used to be involved in illegal activities, some still are, and many of
them operate in unconventional ways. Some of these differences which represent challenges to us include not keeping
appropriate financial records, not having access to customary business banking relationships, not having quality
manufacturing relationships, and not having customary distribution arrangements. Any one of these challenges, if not
managed well, could materially adversely impact our business.

Many cannabis activities, products, and services still violate law.

The legal patchwork to which cannabis companies are subject is still evolving and frequently uncertain. While we believe
that anti-cannabis laws are softening and that the trend is toward legalization of cannabis products, many states and the
US government still view all cannabis activity as illegal. Notwithstanding this uncertainty we intend to always engage in
strictly legal activities but we may not have control over those companies with whom we do business.

QOur business model is to partner with or acquire other companies.

We do not manufacture or sell cannabis products or services. Rather we try to find cannabis businesses whose products,
managers, technology or other factors we like and invest in or acquire those businesses. There is no certainty that we will
find suitable partners or that we will be able to engage in transactions on advantageous terms with partners we identify.
There is also no certainty that our partners will be able to navigate the maze of cannabis laws that may affect them. To
date one of our acquisitions/investments (in Bhang Chocolate Company) has not turned out well for us, and an effort to
secure a $35 million loan has resulted in a $621,250 loss.

Our actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in our forward-looking statements.

This Form 10 contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of the federal securities laws that relate to future
events or future financial performance. When used in this report, you can identify forward-looking statements by
terminology such as “believes,” “anticipates,” “plans,” “predicts,” “expects,” “estimates,” “intends,” “will,” “continue,”
“may,” “potential,” “should” and similar expressions. These statements are only expressions of expectation. Our actual
results could, and likely will, differ materially from those anticipated in such forward-looking statements as a result of
many factors, including those set forth above and elsewhere in this report and including factors unanticipated by us and
not included herein. Although we believe that the expectations reflected in our forward-looking statements are
reasonable, we cannot guarantee future results, levels of activity, performance or achievements. Neither we nor any other
person assumes responsibility for the accuracy and completeness of these statements. We assume no duty to update any
of the forward-looking statements after the date of this filing or to conform these statements to actual results.
Accordingly, we caution readers not to place undue reliance on these statements.
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A failure to obtain financing could prevent us from executing our business plan or operate as a going concern.

We anticipate that current cash resources will be sufficient for us to execute our business plan for the foreseeable future.
However, it is possible that if future financing is not obtained we will not be able to continue to operate as a going
concern. We believe that securing additional sources of financing will be difficult and there is no assurance of our ability
to secure such financing. A failure to obtain additional financing could prevent us from making necessary expenditures
for advancement and growth, allow us to partner with more cannabis businesses, and allow us to hire additional
personnel. If we raise additional financing by selling equity or convertible debt securities, the relative equity ownership
of our existing investors could be diluted or the new investors could obtain terms more favorable than previous investors.
If we raise additional funds through debt financing, we could incur significant borrowing costs and be subject to adverse
consequences in the event of a default.



If'we are unable to protect our intellectual property, our competitive position would be adversely affected

We, and our partners and subsidiaries, intend to rely on patent protection, trademark and copyright law, trade secret

protection and confidentiality agreements with our employees and others to protect our intellectual property. Despite our
precautions, unauthorized third parties may copy our products and services or reverse engineer or obtain and use
information that we regard as proprietary. In addition, the laws of some foreign countries do not protect proprietary rights
to the same extent as do the laws of the United States. Our means of protecting our proprietary rights may not be
adequate and third parties may infringe or misappropriate our patents, copyrights, trademarks and similar proprietary
rights. If we fail to protect our intellectual property and proprietary rights, our business, financial condition and results of
operations would suffer. We believe that we do not infringe upon the proprietary rights of any third party, and no third

party has asserted an infringement claim against us. It is possible, however, that such a claim might be asserted
successfully against us in the future. We may be forced to suspend our operations to pay significant amounts to defend

our rights, and a substantial amount of the attention of our management may be diverted from our ongoing business, all of
which would materially adversely affect our business.

We are engaged in litigation.

In the past several months we have initiated two lawsuits; one against Bhang Chocolate Company and its affiliates to
recover a $1,500,000 investment following Bhang’s refusal to perform its obligations, and one against the owner of a
bank account into which we wired $621,250 as part of an effort to secure a $35 million loan. There is no surety that we
will prevail in either of these lawsuits.

We depend on our key personnel and may have difficulty attracting and retaining the skilled staff we need to execute
our growth plans.

Our success will be dependent largely upon the personal efforts of our Chief Executive Officer, Chester Billingsley and
other senior managers. The loss of key staff could have a material adverse effect on our business and prospects. To
execute our plans, we will have to retain current employees. Competition for recruiting and retaining highly skilled
employees with technical, management, marketing, sales, product development and other specialized training is intense.
We may not be successful in retaining such qualified personnel. Specifically, we may experience increased costs in order
to retain skilled employees. If we are unable to retain experienced employees as needed, we would be unable to execute
our business plan.

We face rapid change.

The market for our partners’ and subsidiaries’ products and services is characterized by rapidly changing law and
technologies, marketing efforts, and extensive research and the introduction of new products and services. We believe
that our future success will depend in part upon our ability to continue to develop and enhance products and services
offered in the cannabis market. As a result, we expect to continue to make investments in engineering and research and
development. There can be no assurance that we will be able to develop and introduce new products and services or
enhance initial products in a timely manner to satisfy customer needs, achieve market acceptance or address
technological changes in our target markets. Failure to develop products and services and introduce them successfully
and in a timely manner could adversely affect our competitive position, financial condition and results of operations.

If we experience rapid growth, we will need to manage such growth well.

We may experience substantial growth in the size of our staff and the scope of our operations, resulting in increased
responsibilities for management. To manage this possible growth effectively, we will need to continue to improve our
operational, financial and management information systems, will possibly need to create departments that do not now
exist, and hire, train, motivate and manage a growing number of staff. Due to a competitive employment environment for
qualified technical, marketing and sales personnel, we expect to experience difficulty in filling our needs for qualified
personnel. There can be no assurance that we will be able to effectively achieve or manage any future growth, and our
failure to do so could delay product development cycles and market penetration or otherwise have a material adverse
effect on our financial condition and results of operations.



We could face product liability risks and may not have adequate insurance.

Our partners’ and affiliates’ products may be used for medical purposes. We may become the subject of litigation
alleging that our products were ineffective or unsafe. Thus, we may become the target of lawsuits from injured or
disgruntled customers or other users. We intend to carry product and liability insurance, but in the event that we are
required to defend more than a few such actions, or in the event our products are found liable in connection with such an
action, our business and operations may be severely and materially adversely affected.

There is a limited market for our common stock.

Our common stock is not listed on any exchange and trades on the Over The Counter Pink Sheets. As such, the market
for our common stock is limited and is not regulated by the rules and regulations of any exchange. Further, the price of
our common stock and its volume in the market may be subject to wide fluctuations. Our stock price could decline
regardless of our actual operating performance, and stockholders could lose a substantial part of their investment as a
result of industry or market-based fluctuations. Our stock trades relatively thinly. If a more active public market for our
stock is not sustained, it may be difficult for stockholders to sell shares of our common stock. Because we do not
anticipate paying cash dividends on our common stock for the foreseeable future, stockholders will not be able to receive
a return on their shares unless they are able to sell them. The market price of our common stock will likely fluctuate in
response to a number of factors, including but not limited to, the following:

sales, sales cycle and market acceptance or rejection of our affiliates’ products;

our ability to engage with partners who are successful in selling products;

economic conditions within the cannabis industry;

development of law related to cannabis products and services;

the timing of announcements by us or our competitors of significant products, contracts or acquisitions or
publicity regarding actual or potential results or performance thereof; and

domestic and international economic, business and political conditions.

We have a long corporate existence.

We were formed as the Main Street Athletic Clubs, Inc. in California in 1994. We were privately owned until September
1996, at which time our common stock began trading on the Over The Counter Pink Sheets. We have pursued many
different business activities and have been through a bankruptcy reorganization.

Failure to maintain effective internal controls in accordance with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
could have a material adverse effect on our stock price.

Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and the related rules and regulations of the SEC require annual
management assessments of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting and a report by our
independent registered public accounting firm on these internal controls. If we fail to adequately maintain compliance
with, or maintain the adequacy of, our internal control over financial reporting, as such standards are modified,
supplemented or amended from time to time, we may not be able to ensure that we can conclude on an ongoing basis that
we have effective internal control over financial reporting in accordance with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002 and the related rules and regulations of the SEC. If we cannot favorably assess, or our independent registered public
accounting firm is unable to provide an unqualified attestation report on the effectiveness of our internal controls over
financial reporting, investor confidence in the reliability of our financial reports may be adversely affected, which could
have a material adverse effect on our stock price.

We have indemnified our officers and directors.

We have indemnified our Officers and Directors against possible monetary liability to the maximum extent permitted
under California law.



Item 2.

The fragile state of the worldwide economy could impact the company in numerous ways.

The effects of the worldwide economic crisis has caused disruptions and extreme volatility in global financial markets,
increased rates of default and bankruptcy, has impacted levels of consumer spending, and may impact our business,
operating results, or financial condition. The ongoing worldwide economic crisis, weakness in the credit markets and
significant liquidity problems for the financial services industry may also impact our financial condition in a number of
ways. For example, current or potential customers may delay or decrease spending with us or may not pay us or may
delay paying us for previously purchased products and services. Also, we may have difficulties in securing additional
financing.

Financial Information.
Audited financial statements for years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 - see attached financial statements.

Unaudited reviewed financial statements for three and nine months ended September 30, 2014 - see attached financial
statements.

Overview

Since the August 2008, name change back to Mentor Capital, Inc., the Company’s common stock has traded publicly
under the trading symbol OTC Markets: MNTR.

In 2009 the Company began focusing its investing activities in leading edge cancer companies. In response to
government limitations on reimbursement for highly technical and expensive cancer treatments and a resulting business
decline in the cancer development sector, the Company decided to exit that space. In the summer of 2013 the Company
was asked to consider investing in a cancer related project with a medical marijuana focus. On August 29, 2013, the
Company made a decision to begin to divest of its cancer assets and focus on becoming a pure play in the cannabis and
medical marijuana sector.

Waste Consolidators, Inc. (WCI)

WCI is a legacy investment of which the Company owned 50% in 2012 and 2013 and purchased an additional 1%
effective January 1, 2014 for a 51% interest. WCI is included in the consolidated financial statements for the nine months
ended September 30, 2014.

MicroCannaBiz (MCB)

On February 18, 2014, the Company signed an agreement to purchase 51% of MCB, a development stage company
which began operations in June 2014. MCB provides cannabis and marijuana related private companies, investors and
microcap issuers with information resources including client company specific publications, directories, and continuing
education courses.

Bhang Chocolate Company, Inc.

On February 28, 2014, the Company acquired a 60% ownership in Bhang Corporation, also known as Bhang Chocolate
Company, Inc., (“Bhang”), see Item 9 regarding subsequent Mentor lawsuit seeking rescission of the agreement.
Amounts invested in Bhang are reported as Receivable from Bhang Chocolate Company and shareholders in the
consolidated balance sheet at September 30, 2014.

Results of Operations for the quarter ended September 30, 2014 compared to the quarter ended September 30,
2013:

Total revenue for the quarter ended September 30, 2014 was $546,215 which includes service fee revenue of $544,615
from WCI compared to revenue for the quarter ended September 30, 2013 of $8,000 which did not include WCI revenue
as the Company owned only 50% of WCI and accounted for its investment in WCI under the equity method. Pro forma
revenues for the quarter ended September 30, 2013, including WCI service fees, was $433,300. The increase in service
fee revenue experienced by WCI in 2014 was due to efforts to increase its customer base. Publication revenue from MCB
was $1,600 for the quarter ended September 30, 2014.



At this stage in the Company’s development, revenues are not yet sufficient to cover ongoing operating expenses.

Gross profits for the quarter ended September 30, 2014 amounted to $164,439 (30% gross margin) compared to $8,000
for the quarter ended September 30, 2013. Pro forma gross profits for the quarter ended September 30, 2013 had WCI
been consolidated for the quarter were $108,845 (25%). The increase in 2014 third quarter gross margin compared to
2013 third quarter pro forma gross margin was due to the fact that WCI had newer vehicles under lease in 2014 which
lowered gas cost and vehicle repairs and maintenance.

Selling, general and administrative expenses for the quarter ended September 30, 2014 were $334,567 (61%) compared
to $70,436 for the quarter ended September 30, 2013 and pro forma of $174,164 (15%) for the quarter ended September
30, 2013. The increase in selling, general and administrative expense is due to increased activity in the Company relating
to its transition into the Cannabis space.

The net result attributable to controlling interest for the quarter ended September 30, 2014 was a loss of $186,066 or
$0.013 per common share compared to a loss of $57,747 or $0.009 per common share for the quarter ended September
30, 2014. Pro forma loss for the quarter ended September 30, 2013 was $63,431 or $0.010 per common share.

Management will continue in its effort to increase revenues through acquisition, investment and organic growth. This is
to be funded by raising additional capital through the sale of equity securities and debt.

Results of Operations for the nine months ended September 30, 2014 compared to the nine months ended
September 30, 2013:

Total revenue for the nine months ended September 30, 2014 was $1,546,128 which includes service fee revenue of
$1,543,578 from WCI compared to revenue for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 of $24,000 which did not
include WCI revenue as the Company owned only 50% of WCI at that time. Pro forma revenues for the nine months
ended September 30, 2013, including WCI service fees, was $1,258,118. The increase in service fee revenue experienced
by WCT in 2014 was due to efforts to increase its customer base. Publication revenue from MCB was $2,550 for the nine
months ended September 30, 2014.

Gross profits for the nine months ended September 30, 2014 amounted to $488,773 (32% gross margin) compared to
$24,000 for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 (100% gross margin). Pro forma gross profits for the nine
months ended September 30, 2013 had WCI been consolidated for the period were $325,863 (26%). The increase in 2014
nine month gross margin compared to 2013 nine month pro forma gross margin was due to the fact that in 2014 WCI had
newer vehicles under lease which lowered gas cost and vehicle repairs and maintenance as a percent of sales.

Selling, general and administrative expenses for the nine months ended September 30, 2014 were $1,069,861 (69%)
compared to $207,298 for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 and pro forma of $524,197 (42%) for the nine
months ended September 30, 2013. The increase in selling, general and administrative is due to increased activity in the
Company relating to its transition into the Cannabis space.

Effective January 1, 2014, Mentor purchased an additional 1% interest in WCI for $25,000 which resulted in a 51%
ownership in WCI. In 2013 and 2012 Mentor’s investment in WCI was recorded under the equity method as it did not
have significant influence over operating and financial policies at that time. In accordance with Accounting Standard
Codification 810-10, Consolidation — Overall, Mentor remeasured its previously held equity interest at the acquisition-
date fair value and recognized the resulting gain of $1,250,964 on investment in subsidiary which is included in other
income and expense in the consolidated statement of operations for the nine months ended September 30, 2014.

In March 2013, the Company paid $621,250 for loan default insurance to a third party as required by the lender on an
international loan facility. The lender was unable to fund the loan and a cooperative exit from the loan commitment was
agreed to by the parties on June 12, 2014. The lender has released the requirement for credit default insurance and the
insurance company has agreed to return the fee, however the refund has not yet been received. On September 5, 2014,
the Company filed suit in San Mateo County Superior Court against Wm. E. Fielding and Associates, Inc. for conversion
and fraud seeking return of the $621,250 in fees. The $621,250 in fees was expensed as loan costs in the nine months
ended September 30, 2014, pending the outcome of the suit.



The net result attributable to controlling interest for the nine months ended September 30, 2014 was a loss of $11,268 or
$0.001 per common share compared to a loss of $181,183 or $0.033 per common share for the nine months ended
September 30, 2014. Pro forma loss for the quarter ended September 30, 2013 was $180,151 or $0.033 per common
share.

Management will continue in its effort to increase revenues through acquisition, investment and organic growth. This is
to be funded by raising additional capital through the sale of equity securities and debt.

Financial Condition at December 31, 2013 compared to December 31, 2012:

The Company’s current assets at December 31, 2013 were $403,912 compared to $489,628 at December 31, 2012. The
decrease of $85,716 is due to a decrease in prepaid costs of $131,963 offset by an increase in investments in securities of
$21,320 and an increase in cash of $24,927.

Other assets at December 31, 2013 were $1,281,943 compared to $10,813,067 at December 31, 2012. The decrease was
due to primarily to two funding agreements which were recorded at December 31, 2012 and no longer held at December
31, 2013. A funding agreement with AGI Biopharmaceutical (AGI) for $4,700,000 was terminated in 2013 and one with
Brighter Day Health (“BDH”) for $5,023,067 which was released in 2013. The descriptions of these transactions follow:

The Company entered into a long-term equity funding agreement with AGI on November 25, 2011 to provide
$4,700,000 in long term funding for up to 3,000,000 AGI shares of AGI common shares at $1.57 per common share,
or 30% of AGI shares outstanding. The purchase price was to be paid from cash generated from the sale of Mentor
warrants on a pro rata basis to AGI and other cancer companies where Mentor had taken an equity position under
similar terms. At December 31, 2012 the long term investment in AGI was $4,700,000 and the corresponding
investment payable was $4,700,000. AGI failed to provide shares for the escrow agent and on February 13, 2013, the
Company gave notice to AGI that the agreement was being terminated based on non-performance.

The Company entered into a long-term equity funding agreement with Brighter Day Health (“BDH”) on December
31, 2011, to provide $5,000,000 in long term funding for up to 50,000 shares of BDH common stock at $100 per
common share, or 50% of BDH common shares outstanding. The BDH common shares were delivered to an escrow
agent. The purchase price was to be paid from cash generated from the sale of Mentor warrants on a pro rata basis to
BDH and other cancer companies where Mentor had taken an equity position under similar terms. At December 31,
2012, the long term investment in BDH was $5,022,610, representing the long-term investment of $5,000,000 plus
the increase in fair value of amounts already invested of $22,500. The investment payable at 2012 was $4,966,667.
In May 2013, the Company instructed the escrow agent to process the release of BDH shares from escrow and gave
notice to BDH as provided under the agreement. In accordance with the funding agreement, Mentor received 1,000
shares of BDH common stock and the remaining stock was returned to BDH.

Current liabilities at December 31, 2013 were $59,366 compared to $118,912 at December 31, 2012. The decrease in
2013 is due to a decrease in income taxes payable of $51,265 and a decrease in accrued expenses of $9,173.

Long-term liabilities at December 31, 2013 were $1,924,658 compared to $11,472,861 at December 31, 2012, a decrease
of $9,548,203. Of this decrease $9,670,000 is attributable to the decrease in investments payable to AGI and BDH
described under other assets above and a decrease in deferred fees of $32,000 which is offset by an increase in accrued
salary and benefits to the CEO of $145,131 and an increase in accrued retirement and other benefits to the CEO of
$8,666.

Results of Operations for the year ended December 31, 2013 compared to the year ended December 31, 2012:

Note that during 2013 and 2012, the Company’s did not have subsidiaries subject to consolidation. The Company
accounted for the investment in WCI using the equity method based on the ownership interest and the Company’s
inability to exercise significant influence at December 31, 2013 and 2012. Accordingly, the investment was initially
recorded at cost with adjustments to the carrying amount of the investment to recognize our share of the earnings or
losses of the investee each reporting period. Mentor ceased to recognize losses when our investment basis was zero. At
December 31, 2013 and 2012, the WCI investment was $0. On January 1, 2014, the Company purchased an additional
1% interest in WCI for a 51% interest.



Item 3.

Item 4.

Total revenue for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 was $32,000 and $32,000 representing administrative
fees earned from WCI.

Selling, general and administrative expenses for the year ended December 31, 2013 was $292,899 compared to $294,734
for the year ended December 31, 2012.

The net result for the year ended December 31, 2013 was a loss of $258,784 or $0.045 per common share compared to a
loss of $236,711 or $0.071 per common share for the year ended December 31, 2012. This increased loss in 2013 was
due primarily to a decrease in other revenue of $24,608 offset by a decrease in selling, general and administrative
expenses of $1,835 and a decrease in the provision for income taxes of $700.

Disclosure About Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not have any transactions, agreements or other contractual arrangements that constitute off-balance sheet
arrangements.

Properties.

We lease office facilities used in our business. Mentor corporate offices are in Ramona, California and we lease
approximately 2,000 square feet of office space on a month to month basis for $2,050 per month. WCI is located in
Tempe, Arizona and leases approximately 3,000 square feet of office and warehouse space for $2,211 per month under an
operating lease expiring in January 2015. MCB is in St. Petersburg, Florida and has been provided office space by the
49% shareholder during the startup phase of operations for $715.

Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management.

As of September 30, 2014 shares of the Registrant’s stock are owned by the following beneficial owners [persons
owning more than 5% of the outstanding shares]:

Amount and

Nature of
Name and Address of Beneficial Beneficial Percentage of
Title of Security Owner Ownership Class
Common Stock Chester Billingsley 5,000,486(1 34%
Common Stock Robert B. Meyer 764,538 5%

(1) 5,000,485 of Mr. Billingsley’s shares of Common Stock are voluntarily held by The Corporate Law Group under a
safekeeping receipt pursuant to which Mr. Billingsley has represented that his intention in delivering the shares is to
give assurance to Mentor Capital shareholders that he will not be selling or trading the shares as long as this Safe
Keeping Receipt is effective. Under the Safekeeping Receipt Mr. Billingsley has certified to The Corporate Law
Group that the shares represent over 99% of the Mentor Capital shares beneficially owned or controlled by him.
Prior to the shares being returned to Mr. Billingsley, Mr. Billingsley will be required to make a public
announcement through a press release and a website posting that he has requested return of the shares and so certify
that he has done so.
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Item 5.

As of September 30, 2014 shares of the Registrant’s stock are owned by Registrant’s management, executive officers,
and directors as follows:

Amount and

Nature of

Name and Address of Beneficial Beneficial Percentage of
Title of Security Owner Ownership Class
Common Stock Chester Billingsley 5,000,486() 34.53%
Common Stock Stan Shaul 40,043 0.28%
Common Stock James Blazeck 47,500 0.33%
Common Stock Robert B. Meyer 764,537 5.28%
Common Stock Earl Kornbrekke 21,000 0.14%

Directors and Officers as a group 5,873,567 40.55%

(1) 5,000,485 of Mr. Billingsley’s shares of Common Stock are held in escrow with The Corporate Law Group under
safekeeping receipts.

If an individual or entity tried to take control of the Company, Mr. Billingsley is authorized to obtain a loan from the
Company to pay for the exercise of his unexercised D warrants.

Directors and Executive Officers.
Officers:

Chet Billingsley, 61 years old, has been our Chief Executive Officer since 1994. He received his undergraduate
education at West Point, and a Master’s Degree in Applied Physics from Harvard, with concurrent study at Harvard
Business School and at MIT. Mr. Billingsley worked at General Electric from January 1979 to June 1985.

Lori J. Stansfield, CPA, 55 years old, has been our acting Chief Financial Officer since May 27, 2014. Prior to joining
Mentor, Lori was Director of Audit Services for Robert R. Redwitz & Co., in San Diego, California. She graduated
Magna cum Laude in accounting from the University of Colorado in Denver and also received a Masters Degree in
marketing there. She is certified as a public accountant in both Colorado and California.

Stan Shaul, 49 years old, has been our Treasurer since November 24, 1998. Stan is the president of SportsClix, Inc. that
he founded and incorporated on November 15, 1999. He graduated with a Bachelor's degree in Mathematics and
Computer Science from UCLA.

James Blazeck, P.E., 62 years old, is our Secretary, and has been in engineering and programs management positions in
nuclear aerospace and telecommunications companies since 1998. He was the founder and president of Quest Process
Management Systems, Inc. which he formed in November 1990. He received his Bachelor’s Degree in electrical
engineering from the University of Pittsburgh and a Masters Degree in computers and systems from Rensselaer
Polytechnic Institute.

Directors:

Chet Billingsley, 61 (see bio above)

Stan Shaul, 49 (see bio above)

James Blazeck, P.E., 62 (see bio above)

Robert B. Meyer, 75 years old, has been the founder, publisher and editor of Barter News since 1979, and of the
monthly newsletter, The Competitive Edge, since 2003. More recently, he authored the 532-page Barter News FastStart

Barter Program. Mr. Meyer is a former professional baseball player, playing in the major leagues with New York
Yankees, Kansas City Athletics, Los Angeles Angels, Seattle Pilots and Milwaukee Brewers from 1960 - 1971.
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Earl Kornbrekke, 71 years old, was a computer engineer for Tandem computers, now a division of Hewlett Packard,
from 1982 to 1994 in charge of international installations of systems related to ATM networks, banks, stock exchanges,
and similar commercial transaction processing applications. Mr. Kornbrekke founded and operated a regional vending
business, called Main Street Vending which he sold in the 1990s. He was the largest investor in the Company before its
bankruptcy.

Item 6. Executive Compensation.
Executive compensation for the year ended December 31, 2013 was:
Bonus or Stock/Options Total
Name and Title Base Salary Incentive Granted Compensation
Chester Billingsley, Chairman of the Board
and Chief Executive Officer $ 120,000 8 -8 -8 120,000
$ - 3 - 3 - 3 -
Lori Stansfield, acting Chief Financial
Officer $ $120,000 § - 5 - 8 120,000

(1) Base annual salary for the Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of $104,000 per year plus $12,000 vacation

Item 7.

Item 8.

pay and $4,000 sick pay has not changed from the amount set by the court in the 1998 Chapter 11 bankruptcy document.

The executive compensation has not changed in 14 years. At the time a change in executive pay is considered the
Company plans to create an executive compensation committee.

Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence.

In January, 2014 the Company agreed to loan Chester Billingsley, our CEO approximately 70.9% of amounts owed to
him, or $944,000, so that he could exercise warrants to be used as collateral in order to secure a loan to the Company of
$35 million. After the warrants were exercised, CEO Billingsley placed 100% of his shares, 5,000,485 shares, into an
escrow which was to guarantee repayment of the loan. The loan was mutually rescinded on June 12, 2014, and the shares
remain in escrow as of the filing date.

In March 2014, the Chester Billingsley, our CEO received $258,396 as partial payment of amounts due him for accrued
salary and benefits.

During the nine months ended September 30, 2014, the Company accrued an incentive liability for Chester Billingsley,
our CEO of $190,581. The incentive was specified in the 1998 Chapter 11 bankruptcy document which provides for an
incentive for success in raising the share price, 1% rising on a sliding scale to 4% (at $8 per share) of the increase of the
market capitalization of the Company beyond the book value upon confirmation of the bankruptcy plan. The Company
uses the lowest stock price during the quarter for the calculation. If the stock price decreases in the subsequent quarter
the accrual is not decreased. The incentive was accrued in the 2nd quarter of 2014 using the lowest stock price during the
quarter of $1.33 per share and a bonus rate of 1%.

All directors are not officers except Mr. Billingsley. The directors are all shareholders of the company.
Legal Proceedings.

On August 11, 2014, the Registrant filed a complaint in Federal District Court for the Northern District of California for
rescission against Bhang Chocolate Company, Inc., Bhang Corporation, Scott Van Rixel, and William Waggoner.
Registrant alleges that Defendants have failed to perform their obligations under that certain Bhang Chocolate — Mentor
Capital Cannabis Brands Cooperative Funding Agreement entered into by and between Bhang Chocolate Company, Inc.
(“Bhang”) and Registrant (the “Bhang Agreement”), which anticipated Scott Van Rixel, William Waggoner, and other
affiliates of Bhang as intended third party beneficiaries. Registrant has rescinded the Agreement and seeks return of
$1,500,000 paid to Bhang as consideration under the Agreement. The Cooperative Funding Agreement is included in
exhibit 11.
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Item 9.

Item 10.

On September 5, 2014, Registrant filed a complaint in California Superior Court, County of San Mateo against WM. E.
Fielding and Associates and several Doe defendants alleging causes of action for fraud and conversion associated with a
wire transfer of $621,250 ostensibly to cover the purchase price of a refundable loan insurance premium for a loan
Registrant was seeking. When the loan was not funded Registrant sought a return of the wired amounts but, as of yet, the
funds have not been returned.

Market Price of and Dividends on the Registrant’s Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters.
Registrant’s shares of common stock are traded on the Over The Counter Pink Sheets under the symbol “MNTR”.
The following is the range of high and low closing bid prices of Registrant’s stock, for the periods indicated below:
High Low
Quarter Ended September 30, 2014 $ 1.69 § 0.78
Quarter Ended June 30, 2014 $ 390 $ 1.33
Quarter Ended March 31, 2014 $ 829 § 0.22
Quarter Ended December 31, 2013 $ 036 $ 0.17
Quarter Ended September 30, 2013 $ 049 $ 0.17
Quarter Ended June 30, 2013 $ 032 $ 0.10
Quarter Ended March 31, 2013 $ 033 § 0.11
Quarter Ended December 31, 2012 $ 029 § 0.16
The quotations reflect inter-dealer prices, without retail mark-up, markdown or commission and may not represent actual
transactions.
As of September 30, 2014, there were 14,483,373 shares of common stock issued and outstanding. As of September 30,
2014, there were approximately 4,256 registered holders of Registrant’s common stock.
No dividends were declared on the common stock in the last two years.
Equity Compensation Plan
The Registrant had the following equity compensation plans as of December 31, 2013:
Number of securities
remaining available for
Number of Securities to be ~ Weighted-average exercise future issuance under
issued upon exercise of price of outstanding equity compensation plans
outstanding options, options, warrants, and (excluding securities
Plan Category warrants, and rights rights reflected in column (a))
(a) (b)
Equity compensation plans 0.00 0.00 0.00
approved by security
holders
Equity compensation plans 0.00 0.00 0.00
not approved by security
holders
TOTAL 0.00 0.00 0.00
Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities.

A. Issuances of Stock

The Company has had no offering of securities in the past two fiscal years or year to date. All issuances of securities have
been pursuant to the exercise of outstanding Warrants by existing securities holders.
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B. Exercise of Warrants

Number of . Total Dollar
Type of Security Shares Price per Amount
Date Received Exercised Share(! Exercised
Quarter Ended September 30, 2014 Common 2,832 § 1.60 $ 4,531
Quarter Ended June 30, 2014 Common 343,888 §$ 1.60 $ 550,221
Quarter Ended March 31, 2014 Common 7,672,258 0.5320) ¢ 4,076,499
Quarter Ended December 31, 2013 Common 80,094 §$ 0.11 $ 8,810
Quarter Ended September 30, 2013 Common 10,464 § 0.11 § 1,151
Quarter Ended June 30, 2014 Common 2,104,970 $ 0.11 $ 221,649
Quarter Ended March 31, 2013 Common 423804 $ 0.11 $ 46,618
Fiscal Year 2012 Common 1,651,156  $ 017 $ 275,540
(1) Average price of warrants exercised during the quarter
(2) The Series D warrants were reduced in price to $1.60 per share on June 18, 2014 to remain in compliance with the
contingent payoff provision of the Bhang Corporation contract, which is triggered by the reduction of the warrant
strike price. At no time after that date was the theoretical net proceeds of exercise and sale more than the standard
10 cent redemption proceeds and no warrants were exercised in the normal course by anybody. At the end of June it
was calculated that approximately $36,788 more in Series B warrants were exercised by assorted shareholders than
were authorized. The entirety of that $36,788 was credited against Billingsley’s account and he agreed to instead pay
$535,101 or $1.60 per share for the 334,438 shares he had previously purchased for $0.11 per share or $36,788. No
other adjustment was asked of any other shareholder.
Registrant relies upon an exemption from registration of the sale of the above securities through 11 USC Section
1145 and the Bankruptcy Court’s Plan of Reorganization and Court Order. Accordingly, the shares issued under such
Plan and Order are all freely tradable, the warrants issued are all freely tradable, and the shares that spring from the
warrants are all immediately freely tradable.
(3) Average price per share includes effect of cashless exercise of 565,547 consultant warrants for 354,410 shares of
common stock.
Registrant relies upon an exemption from registration of the sale of the above cashless exercise securities under
Section 144 for warrants issued and held since 2009.
Item 11. Description of Registrant’s Securities to be Registered.

We are authorized to issue 400,000,000 shares of Common Stock, no par value. As of September 30, 2014 there were
14,483,373 shares of our Common Stock outstanding, held by 4,256 shareholders. Holders of our Common Stock are
entitled to one vote each per share and may exercise cumulative voting rights under California Law. Holders of Common
Stock are entitled to receive pro rata such dividends, if any, as may be declared by our Board of Directors, out of funds
legally available therefore, subject to any preferential dividend rights of outstanding preferred stock. To date, no
dividends have been paid by us nor do we anticipate declaring any dividends in the near future.

We have the following warrants outstanding: 4,500 B Warrants giving holders thereof the right to buy one share of
common stock at an exercise price of $0.11 and 14,504,766 D Warrants giving holders thereof the right to buy one share
of common stock at an exercise price of $1.60. The Company’s Plan of Reorganization provided for the creditors and
claimants to receive new warrants in settlement of their claims. The Plan provides the right for the Company to call, and
the Company or its designee to redeem warrants that are not exercised timely, as specified in the Plan, by transferring a
$0.10 redemption fee to the former holders. Certain individuals desiring to become a Company designee to redeem
warrants have deposited redemption fees with the Company that, when warrants are redeemed, will be forwarded to the
former warrant holders at their last known address 30 days after the last warrant of a class are exercised, or earlier at the
discretion of the Company.
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Item 12.

Item 13.

Item 14.

There are also 689,159 H warrants outstanding that were issued for investment banking and advisory services during
2009. The H warrants have a cashless exercise provision.

Upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up, the holders of our Common Stock are entitled to receive pro rata the net
assets of the Company available after the payment of all creditors and liquidation preferences, if any, of any outstanding
Preferred Stock. Holders of Common Stock have no preemptive subscription, conversion or redemption rights. The
outstanding shares of Common Stock are fully paid and non-assessable.

Indemnification of Directors and Officers.

Article V, Section 7, of our Amended and Restated Bylaws provides that we shall indemnify each of our agents against

expenses, judgments, fines, settlements and other amounts, actually and reasonably incurred by such person by reason of
such person’s having been made or having threatened to be made a party to a proceeding in accordance with the
provisions of the Articles of Incorporation and in excess of the provisions of Section 317 of the California Corporate

Code.

Article V(A) of our Articles of Incorporation, as amended to date, provides that, “The liability of the directors of this
corporation for monetary damages shall be eliminated to the fullest extent permissible under California law.”

Article V(B) of our Articles of Incorporation, as amended to date, provides that, “This corporation is authorized to
indemnify agents of this corporation, including without limitation, officers and directors, whether by bylaw, agreement or
otherwise, and shall indemnify such agents, to the fullest extent permissible under California law, and in excess of that
expressly permitted by Section 317 of the California General Corporation Law.”

We have Indemnification Agreements with some of our directors, officers, and agents including our Chief Executive
Officer, Chester Billingsley.

Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.

Audited financial statements for fiscal years ending December 31, 2012 and 2013 are attached.
Unaudited consolidated financial statements for the nine months ending September 30, 2014 are attached.
Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.

There have been no disagreements with accountants on accounting and financial disclosures. Until the attached 2012 and
2013 financial statement audit, the Company has not been audited since 2008.

Item 15. Financial Statements and Exhibits.

(a) Financial Statements Filed with Form 10

Audited Financial Statements for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

1)
2)
3)
4)

Audited Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2013 and 2012

Audited Income Statement for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

Audited Statement of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

Audited Statement of Changes in Shareholder Equity for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

Unaudited Financial Statements for the nine months ended September 30, 2014

5)
6)
7)
8)

Unaudited Balance Sheet as of September 30, 2014

Unaudited Income Statement for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013
Unaudited Statement of Cash Flows for the nine months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013
Unaudited Statement of Changes in Shareholder Equity for the nine months ended September 30, 2014
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(b) Exhibits

3(1) Articles of Incorporation

3(ii) Bylaws

4 Instrument defining the rights of security holders: Chapter 11 Plan of Reorganization, Disclosure Statement and
associated SEC no comment letter

10 Material Agreements
10(a) WCI Long-Term Liquidity & Funding Agreement (May 31, 2005)
10(b) WCI Addendum October 28, 2007
10(c) WCI Addendum September 13,2011 and Promissory Note
10(d) WCI Addendum May 14, 2014
10(e) MicroCannaBiz — Mentor Capital Cannabis Brands Cooperative Funding Agreement (February 18, 2014)
10(f) Bhang Chocolate — Mentor Capital Cannabis Brands Cooperative Funding Agreement (February 28, 2014)
10(g) Indemnification Agreement (July 29, 1994)

11 Statement re: computation of per share earnings

21 Subsidiaries
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 12 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this registration
statement to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Mentor Capital, Inc.

Date: November 15,2014 By: /s/ Chester Billingsley
Chester Billingsley, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To: The Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Mentor Capital Inc.

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Mentor Capital, Inc. (the “Company”) as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, and
the related statements of operations, shareholders' deficit and cash flows for each of the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012.
These financial statements and schedule are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audits in accordance with standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free of material misstatement. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Our audits included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as
a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.

An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Company as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the results of its operations loss, shareholders’ deficit, and its cash flows for each
of the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going concern. As
discussed in Note 2 to the financial statements, the Company has suffered recurring losses from operations and has a significant
accumulated deficit. In addition, the Company continues to experience negative cash flows from operations. These factors raise
substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. Management's plans in regard to these matters are also
described in Note 2. The financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty.

/s/ Albert Wong & Co., LLP.
Albert Wong & Co., LLP.
Certified Public Accountants
New York, New York
November 17, 2014
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Mentor Capital, Inc.
Balance Sheets
December 31, 2013 and 2012

ASSETS

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Investments in securities (at fair value)

Total current assets

Property and equipment
Property and equipment
Accumulated depreciation

Property and equipment, net

Other assets
Note receivable
Shareholder loans receivable
Long term investments

Total other assets
Total assets

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' DEFICIT

Current liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Deferred fees - related party, current portion
Income taxes payable

Total current liabilities

Long-term liabilities
Accrued salary and benefits - related party
Deferred fees - related party, net of current portion
Investments payable
Accrued retirement and other benefits - related party

Total long-term liabilities

Shareholders' deficit

Preferred stock, no par value, 100,000,000 shares authorized; no shares issued and outstanding

Common stock, no par value, 400,000,000 shares authorized; 6,688,503, and 4,149,021 shares
issued and outstanding at December 31, 2013 and 2012

Additional paid in capital

Accumulated deficit

Total shareholders' deficit

Total liabilities and shareholders' deficit

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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2013 2012
(Audited) (Audited)

$ 40,184 15,257

342,408 474371

21,320 -

403,912 489,628

31,032 28,600

(26,732) (24,501)

4,300 4,099

1,080,000 1,080,000

136,000 -

65,943 9,733,067

1,281,943 10,813,067

$ 1,690,155 11,306,794

$ 20,892 $ 20,000

6,474 15,647

32,000 32,000

- 51,265

59,366 118,912

900,238 755,107

593,333 625,333

. 9,670,000

431,087 422,421

1,924,658 11,472,861

2,389,801 2,139,907

495,509 495,509

(3,179,179) (2,920,395)

(293,869) (284,979)

$ 1,690,155 $ 11,306,794




Mentor Capital, Inc.
Statements of Operations

For the Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

Revenue
Service fees

Cost of sales
Gross profit
Selling, general and administrative expenses
Operating income (loss)
Other income and (expense)
Interest income (expense)
Gain on investments

Other income (expense)

Total other income and (expense)

Income (loss) before provision for income taxes

Provision for income taxes

Net income (loss)

Basic and diluted net loss per common share:

Basic
Diluted*

Weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding:

Basic
Diluted*

2013 2012
(Audited) (Audited)

32,000 32,000

32,000 32,000

292,899 294,734

(260,899) (262,734)

2,745 5,349

170 20,174

- 2,000

2,915 27,523

(257,984) (235.211)

800 1,500

(258,784) (236,711)

(0.045) (0.071)

N/A N/A

5,741,161 3,326,285

N/A N/A

*The company recorded operating loss and so the diluted EPS will not be calculated for the diluted EPS effect is anti-dilutive.

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements



Mentor Capital, Inc.

Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Deficit
For the Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

Balance at December 31, 2011

Conversion of warrants to common stock,
net of conversion costs

Shares retired
Net income (loss)
Balance at December 31, 2012

Conversion of warrants to common stock,
net of conversion costs

Shares retired
Net income (loss)

Balance at December 31, 2013

Common Stock Additional Accumulated

Shares No Par Paid In Capital Deficit Totals
2,503,549 § 1,867,754 § 495509 $ (2,683,684) § (320,421)
1,651,156 275,540 - - 275,540
(5,684) (3,387) - - (3,387)
- - - (236,711) (236,711)
4,149,021 2,139,907 495,509 (2,920,395) (284,979)
2,619,332 278,228 - - 278,228
(79,850) (28,334) - - (28,334)
- - - (258,784) (258,784)
6,688,503 $ 2,389,801 § 495509 $ (3,179,179) $ (293,869)

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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Mentor Capital, Inc.
Statements of Cash Flows
For the Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by (used by) operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization
Investment (gain) loss
Loss on sale/disposal of furniture and equipment
Decrease (increase) in operating assets
Prepaid warranty liability
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Deferred fees
Income tax payable
Accrued salary and benefits - related party
Accrued retirement and benefits - related party

Net cash provided by (used by) operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Purchases of property and equipment

Investment in securities

Purchase of long term investments

Shareholder loans

Net cash provided by (used by) investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Shares retired
Warrants converted to common stock, net of costs

Net cash provided by (used by) financing activities
Net change in cash
Beginning cash
Ending cash
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:
Cash paid for interest
Cash paid for income taxes

NON-CASH INVESTING AND FINANCING TRANSACTION:
Remove 30% investment in AGI via reduction in investment payable

Remove 48.04% investment in BDH via reduction in investment payable

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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2013 2012
(Audited) (Audited)

$ (258,784) (236,711)

2,231 3,842

280 (5,772)

- 2,495

131,963 (92,004)

892 15,225

(9,173) 1,881

(32,000) (32,000)

(51,265) (1,209)

145,131 120,477

8,666 8,667

(62,059) (215,109)

(2,432) (1,977)

(20,923) -

(3,553) (40,567)

(136,000) -

(162,908) (42,544)

(28,334) (3,387)

278,228 275,540

249,894 272,153

24,927 14,500

15,257 757

$ 40,184 15,257

$ 1,852 4,187

$ 52,065 2,709

$ (4,700,000)

$ (4,966,667)




Mentor Capital, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2013 and 2012

Note 1 — Nature of operations

History (1985 — 2008)

Mentor Capital, Inc. (“Mentor” or “the Company’’) was founded as an investment partnership by the current CEO in 1985 and
incorporated July 29, 1994, under the laws of the State of California. On September 12, 1996, the Company’s offering
statement was qualified pursuant to Regulation A of the Securities Act, and the Company began to trade its shares publicly.
On August 21, 1998, the Company filed voluntary reorganization with the bankruptcy court and, on January 11, 2000, the
Company emerged from Chapter 11. The Company contracted to provide financial assistance and investment into small
businesses following its reorganization.

Current Business (2008 - 2013)

Since the August 2008, name change back to Mentor Capital, Inc., the Company’s common stock has traded publicly under
the trading symbol OTC Markets: MNTR.

In 2009, the Company began focusing its investing activities in leading edge cancer companies. In 2012, in response to
government limitations on reimbursement for highly technical and expensive cancer treatments and a resulting business
decline in the cancer development sector, the Company decided to exit that space. In the summer of 2013 the Company was
asked to consider investing in a cancer related project with a medical marijuana focus. On August 29, 2013, the Company
made a decision to divest of its cancer assets and focus on becoming a pure play in the cannabis and medical marijuana sector.

On January 1, 2014, Mentor purchased an additional 1% of Waste Consolidators, Inc. (WCTI) for $25,000, see Note 13.

On February 28, 2014, the Company acquired a 60% ownership in Bhang Chocolate Company, Inc. (“Bhang”), see Note 13
for purchase and subsequent lawsuit.

On March 27, 2014, the Company signed an agreement to purchase up to a 51% interest in MicroCannaBiz (“MCB”), a
development stage company, see Note 13.

Note 2 — Summary of significant accounting policies

Basis of presentation

The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

As shown in the accompanying financial statements, the Company has a significant accumulated deficit of $3,179,179 as of
December 31, 2013. The Company also continues to experience negative cash flows from operations. The Company will be
required to raise additional capital to fund its operations, and will continue to attempt to raise capital resources from both
related and unrelated parties until such time as the Company is able to generate revenues sufficient to maintain itself as a
viable entity. These factors have raised substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. There
can be no assurances that the Company will be able to raise additional capital or achieve profitability. However, the
Company has 14.5 million warrants outstanding in which the Company can reset the exercise price substantially below the
current market price, see Note 9. These financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the
outcome of this uncertainty.

From January 1, 2014 through the audit date, the Company raised approximately $3,821,000 from the exercise of warrants
into common stock. The Company estimates it has adequate cash reserves to support one to three years of operation.
Management's plans include increasing revenues through acquisition, investment, and organic growth. This is to be funded by
raising additional capital through the sale of preferred and common equity securities and debt.
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Mentor Capital, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2013 and 2012

Note 2 — Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Concentrations of cash

The Company maintains its cash and cash equivalents in bank deposit accounts which at times may exceed federally insured
limits. The Company has not experienced any losses in such accounts nor does the Company believe it is exposed to any
significant credit risk on cash and cash equivalents.

Cash and cash equivalents

The Company considers all short-term debt securities purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be cash
equivalents. The Company had no short-term debt securities as of December 31, 2013 and 2012.

Investment in unconsolidated entity

Mentor accounted for the investment in WCI using the equity method based on the ownership interest and the Company’s
limited ability to exercise significant influence at December 31, 2013 and 2012. Accordingly, the investment was initially
recorded at cost with adjustments to the carrying amount of the investment to recognize our share of the earnings or losses of
the investee each reporting period. Mentor ceased to recognize losses when our investment basis was zero. At December 31,
2013 and 2012, the WCI investment was $0. On January 1, 2014, the Company purchased an additional 1% interest in WCI
for a 51% interest, see Note 13.

Long term investments

The Company’s investments in entities where it is a minority owner and does not have the ability to exercise significant
influence are recorded at fair value if readily determinable. If the fair market value is not readily determinable, the
investment is recorded under the cost-method Under this method, the Company’s share of the earnings or losses of such
investee company is not included in the Company’s financial statements. The Company reviews the carrying value of its long
term investments for impairment each reporting period.

Property, equipment and machinery

Property, equipment and machinery are recorded at cost. Depreciation is computed on the straight-line and declining balance
methods over the estimated useful lives of various classes of property ranging from 3 to 7 years.

Expenditures for renewals and betterments are capitalized and maintenance and repairs are charged to expense. Upon
retirement or sale, the cost of assets disposed and the accumulated depreciation is removed from the accounts. The resulting

gain or loss is credited or charged to income.

Revenue recognition

The Company recognizes revenue in accordance with ASC 605 “Revenue Recognition”. The Company records revenue under
each contract once persuasive evidence of an agreement exists, delivery has occurred or services have been rendered, the fee
is fixed or determinable and collectability is reasonably assured.
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Mentor Capital, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2013 and 2012

Note 2 — Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Basic and diluted income (loss) per common share

Basic net income (loss) per common share (EPS) is computed by dividing net income (loss) available to common
shareholders (numerator) by the weighted average number of shares outstanding (denominator) during the period. Diluted
EPS adjusts basic net income (loss) per common share, computed using the treasury stock method, for the effects of
potentially dilutive common shares, if the effect is not antidilutive. In computing diluted EPS, the average stock price for the
period is used in determining the number of shares assumed to be purchased from the exercise of stock warrants. Diluted EPS
excludes all dilutive potential shares if their effect is antidilutive. Outstanding warrants that had no effect on the computation
of dilutive weighted average number of shares outstanding as their effect would be antidilutive were approximately
23,220,000 and 25,839,000 as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. There were 6,650,070 and 9,141,222 potentially
dilutive shares outstanding at December 31, 2013 and 2012.

Income taxes

We utilize the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes. Under this method, deferred tax assets and liabilities
are determined based on the difference between the financial statement carrying amounts and tax basis of assets and
liabilities using enacted tax rates in effect for years in which the temporary differences are expected to reverse. A valuation is
provided when it is more likely than not that some portion or all of a deferred tax asset will not be realized.

Generally accepted accounting principles provide accounting and disclosure guidance about positions taken by an
organization in its tax returns that might be uncertain. Management considers the likelihood of changes by taxing authorities
in its filed income tax returns and recognizes a liability for or discloses potential changes that management believes are more
likely than not to occur upon examination by tax authorities.

Management has not identified any uncertain tax positions in filed income tax returns that require recognition or disclosure in
the accompanying financial statements. The Company’s income tax returns for the past three years are subject to examination
by tax authorities, and may change upon examination. The Company recognizes interest and penalties, if any, related to
unrecognized tax benefits in interest expense.

Advertising and promotion

The Company expenses advertising and promotion costs as incurred. Advertising and promotion costs were $553 and $24,070
for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying disclosures.
Although these estimates are based on management’s best knowledge of current events and actions the Company may

undertake in the future, actual results ultimately may differ from these estimates.

Fair value measurements

The Fair Value Measurements and Disclosure Topic defines fair value as the exchange price that would be received for an
asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) in the principal, or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement date. The valuation techniques maximize the use of
observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs.
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Mentor Capital, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2013 and 2012

Note 2 — Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Fair value measurements (continued)

The Fair Value Measurements and Disclosure Topic establish a fair value hierarchy, which prioritizes the valuation inputs
into three broad levels. These three general valuation techniques that may be used to measure fair value are as follows:
Market approach (Level 1) — which uses prices and other relevant information generated by market transactions involving
identical or comparable assets or liabilities. Prices may be indicated by pricing guides, sale transactions, market trades, or
other sources. Cost approach (Level 2) — which is based on the amount that currently would be required to replace the service
capacity of an asset (replacement cost); and the Income approach (Level 3) — which uses valuation techniques to convert
future amounts to a single present amount based on current market expectations about the future amounts (including present
value techniques, and option-pricing models). Net present value is an income approach where a stream of expected cash flows
is discounted at an appropriate market interest rate.

The carrying amounts of cash, accounts receivable, prepaid expenses and other current assets, accounts payable, customer
deposits and other accrued liabilities approximate their fair value due to the short-term nature of these instruments.

The fair value of the note receivable is based on the net present value of calculated interest and principle payments. The
carrying value approximates fair value as interest rates charged are comparable to market rates for similar notes.

The fair value of long-term notes payable is based on the net present value of calculated interest and principle payments. The
carrying value of long-term debt approximates fair value due to the fact that the interest rate on the debt is based on market

rates.

Recent Accounting Standards

The Company has implemented all new accounting pronouncements that are in effect. These pronouncements did not have
any material impact on the financial statements and the Company does not believe that there are any other new accounting
pronouncements that have been issued that might have a material impact on its financial position or results of operations.

Note 3 — Prepaid expenses and other assets

Prepaid expenses and other assets consist of the following:

2013 2012
Prepaid advertising costs $ 140,610 $ 72,210
Prepaid legal fees 8,387 -
Prepaid warrant liability 192,411 400,161
Investment receivable 1,000 2,000
$ 342,408 $ 474,371

The prepaid warrant liability relates to the warrant redemption liability described in Note 10.
Note 4 — Note receivable (related party)

At December 31, 2013 and 2012, the note receivable consists of a note for $1,080,000 from WCI. The note is payable on
demand and the other WCI stockholder may utilize any of his remaining Mentor warrants as currency to partially repay the
loan at a rate of $0.45 per warrant. The note accrues interest at 0.42% per annum with annual interest only payments due. For
the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Company recorded interest income of $4,536 from the associated
company. The note originated on September 13, 2011 as payment for past amounts owed of $380,000 and for future
administrative fees that will become due over time under a Liquidity Agreement between the Company and the associated
company. At December 31, 2013 and 2012, deferred fees relating to the note were $625,333 and $657,333, see Note 8.
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Mentor Capital, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2013 and 2012

Note 5 — Shareholder loan receivable

The shareholder loan receivable of $136,000 at December 31, 2013 is receivable from the Company’s Chief Executive
Officer (“CEO”). The loan amount is approximately ten percent of amounts due the CEO at December 31, 2013 for accrued
salary and accrued retirement, as described in Note 14, therefore, no interest is being accrued on the amounts due the CEO
and no interest is charged on the loan receivable . The loan is payable on demand and may be offset against the accrued
amounts due the CEO.

Note 6 — Property and equipment

Property and equipment is comprised of the following at December 31, 2013 and 2012:

2013 2012
Computers $ 12,120 $ 9,688
Furniture and fixtures 18,912 18,912
Machinery and vehicles - -
31,032 28,600
Accumulated depreciation (26,732) (24,501)
Net Property and equipment $ 4,300 § 4,099

Depreciation expense was $2,230 and $3,842 for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.
Note 7 — Long term investments and fair value

The Company’s financial assets contained investments that have quoted market prices in active markets, the Company uses
the quoted market prices as fair value and includes these prices in the amounts disclosed in Level 1 of the hierarchy. The
Company receives the quoted market prices from a third party, nationally recognized pricing service (“pricing service”).
When quoted market prices are unavailable, the Company utilizes a pricing service to determine a single estimate of fair
value, which is mainly for its fixed maturity investments. The fair value estimates provided from this pricing service are
included in the amount disclosed in Level 2 of the hierarchy. The Company bases all of its estimates of fair value for assets
on the bid price as it represents what a third party market participant would be willing to pay in an arm’s length transaction.

The Company entered into a long-term equity funding agreement with AGI Biopharmaceutical (AGI) on November 25, 2011
to provide $4,700,000 in long term funding for up to 3,000,000 AGI shares of AGI common shares at $1.57 per common
share, or 30% of AGI shares outstanding. The purchase price was to be paid from cash generated from the sale of Mentor
warrants on a pro rata basis to AGI and other cancer companies where Mentor had taken an equity position under similar
terms. At December 31, 2012 the long term investment in AGI was $4,700,000 and the corresponding investment payable
was $4,700,000. AGI failed to provide shares for the escrow agent and on February 13, 2013, the Company gave notice to
AGI that the agreement was being terminated based on non-performance.

The Company entered into a long-term equity funding agreement with Brighter Day Health (“BDH”) on December 31, 2011,
to provide $5,000,000 in long term funding for up to 50,000 shares of BDH common stock at $100 per common share, or 50%
of BDH common shares outstanding. The BDH common shares were delivered to an escrow agent. The purchase price was to
be paid from cash generated from the sale of Mentor warrants on a pro rata basis to BDH and other cancer companies where
Mentor had taken an equity position under similar terms. At December 31, 2012, the long term investment in BDH was
$5,022,610, representing the long-term investment of $5,000,000 plus the increase in fair value of amounts already invested
of $22,500. The investment payable at 2012 was $4,966,667. In May 2013, the Company instructed the escrow agent to
process the release of BDH shares from escrow and gave notice to BDH as provided under the agreement. In accordance with
the funding agreement, Mentor received 1,000 shares of BDH common stock and the remaining stock was returned to BDH.
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Mentor Capital, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2013 and 2012

The hierarchy of Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 Assets are listed as following:

Fair Value
Measurements
Fair Value Using Quoted Fair Value
Measurements Prices for Measurements
Using Identical or Using
Unadjusted Similar Assets Significant
Quoted Market in Active Unobservable
Prices Markets Inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Long-Term
Equity Funding
Equity Securities Agreements
Balance at December 31, 2011 $ 16,728  $ $ 9,700,000
Total gains or losses
Included in earnings (or changes in net assets) €)) 22,500
Purchases, issuances, sales, and settlements
Purchases 10,000 -
Issuances - -
Sales (16,160) -
Settlements - -
Balance at December 31, 2012 $ 10,567 $ $ 9,722,500
Transfers to investments in securities (at fair value) (567) -
Total gains or losses
Included in earnings (or changes in net assets) - 110
Purchases, issuances, sales, and settlements
Purchases - -
Issuances - -
Sales - -
Settlements - (9,666,667)
Balance at December 31, 2013 $ 10,000 $ $ 55,943
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Mentor Capital, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2013 and 2012

Note 8 — Deferred fees (related party)

The deferred fees represent deferred administrative fees relating to the note receivable (related party) described in Note 4.
The deferred balances at December 31, 2013 and 2012 were:

2013 2012
Deferred fees $ 625,333  $ 657,333
Less: Current portion 32,000 32,000
Non-current portion $ 593,333  $ 625,333

Note 9 — Common stock warrants

The Company's Plan of Reorganization provided for the creditors and claimants to receive new warrants in settlement of their
claims. The term of the warrants, initially sixteen months, has been extended by the Company until May 11, 2038.
Management believes that identification of a specific expiration date was merely a formality and that this was not a material
change from the automatic extensions which were initially provided for by vote of the board of directors and which were
being performed annually since issuance, and also because the shareholders and warrant holders are primarily the same. The
Company recorded no accounting impact as a result of the extension.

Each warrant is callable by the Company if the share price exceeds the exercise price by the lesser of $1 or 100%. The
warrant holders have a minimum of 30 calendar days during which to exercise their warrants once they are called. The
Company may lower the exercise price of the warrants at any time. Similarly, the Company could, but does not anticipate,
reverse splitting the stock to raise the stock price above the warrant exercise price. The warrants are specifically not affected
and do not split with the shares in the event of a reverse split. If the warrants are not exercised, the Company has the right to
designate the warrants to a new holder in return for a $0.10 per share redemption fee payable to the original warrant holder as
discussed further in Note 7. All such changes in the exercise price of series A, B, C and D warrants were provided for by the
court in the Plan of Reorganization in order to provide a mechanism for debtors to receive value. Therefore, Management
believes that the act of lowering the exercise price is not a change from the original warrant grants and the Company has not
recorded an accounting impact as the result of such change in exercise prices.

Exercise prices at December 31, 2011 and subsequent lower prices for the A, B, C and D warrants are as follow:

Series A Series B Series C Series D
December 31, 2011 $ 1.00 $ 300 $ 0.65 $ 7.00
March 21, 2012 $ 0.09 $ 3.00 $ 065 $ 7.00
August 21,2012 $ 0.09 $ 0.11 $ 0.65 $ 7.00
April 1, 2013 $ 0.01 $ 0.11 $ 0.09 $ 7.00

At November 8, 2009, the Company entered into an Investment Banking agreement with Network One Securities, LLC and a
related Strategic Advisory Agreement with Lenox Hill Partners, LP with regard to a potential merger with a cancer
development company. In conjunction with those related agreements, the Company issued 81,699 Series E ($1) Warrants,
369,037 Series F ($3) Warrants, 85,579 Series G ($0.65) Warrants and 689,159 Series H ($7) Warrants, all with a 30 year
life. The warrants are subject to cashless exercise based upon the ten day trailing closing bid price preceding the exercise as
interpreted by the Company. The fair value of the warrants issued under the agreements was estimated on the date of the
issuance using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. The use of a valuation model requires the Company to make certain
assumptions with respect to selected model inputs. Expected volatility was calculated based on the historical volatility of the
Company’s stock price. The average expected life is based on the contractual term of the warrant and expected exercise
behavior. The risk-free interest rate is based on U.S. Treasury zero-coupon issues with a remaining term equal to the
expected life assumed at the date of grant.
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The following table provides the assumptions used to value the options granted and warrants issued using the Black-Scholes
option pricing model:

Series E Series F
and G and H
Stock price volatility 111.60% 111.60%
Risk-free rate of return 4.26% 4.26%
Annual dividend yield 0.00% 0.00%
Expected life (in years) 0.5 3.0

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012 the weighted average contractual life for all Mentor warrants was 24.5 years and 25.5
years, respectively, and the weighted average outstanding warrant exercise price was $4.92 and $4.43 per share, respectively.

During the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, a total of 2,619,332 and 1,645,472 warrants were exercised,
respectively. There were no warrants issued during the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012. The intrinsic value of
outstanding warrants at December 31, 2013 and 2012 was $1,553,055 and $755,076, respectively.

The following table summarizes common stock warrants as of each period:

A,B,C,D Total

Series A Series B Series C Series D Warrants

Outstanding at

December 31, 2011 2,244.916 8,199,330 470,628 15,312,627 26,227,501
Issued - - - - -
Exercised (1,056,007) (247,017) (342,448) - (1,645,472)
Outstanding at

December 31, 2012 1,188,909 7,952,313 128,180 15,312,627 24,582,029
Issued - - - - -
Exercised - (2,619,332) - - (2,619,332)
Outstanding at

December 31, 2013 1,188,909 5,332,981 128,180 15,312,627 21,962,697

Series E, F, G and H warrants were issued for investment banking and advisory services during 2009. The warrants, none of
which have been exercised, are as follows:

E,F,G,H
Series E 1.00 Series F $3.00  Series G $0.65  Series H $7.00 Total
exercise price exercise price exercise price exercise price Warrants
Outstanding at
December 31, 2011,
2012 and 2013 107,931 369,037 88,579 689,159 1,254,706
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Note 10 — Warrant redemption liability

The Plan of Reorganization provides the right for the Company to call, and the Company or its designee to redeem warrants
that are not exercised timely, as specified in the Plan, by transferring a $0.10 redemption fee to the former holders. Certain
individuals desiring to become a Company designee to redeem warrants have deposited redemption fees with the Company
that, when warrants are redeemed, will be forwarded to the former warrant holders at their last known address 30 days after
the last warrant of a class is exercised, or earlier at the discretion of the Company. The Company has arranged for a service to
process the redemption fees in offset to an equal amount of liability. Included in prepaid expenses at December 31, 2013 and
2012 was $192,411 and $400,161 of prepaid warrant redemption fees, respectively.

Note 11 — Stockholders’ equity

Common Stock

The Company has a total of 400,000,000 shares of Common Stock, no par value authorized at December 31, 2013 and 2012.
The holders of Common Stock are entitled to one vote per share on all matters submitted to a vote of the stockholders and
may accumulate their votes for the election of directors. During 2007, the Company effected a 1,000 to 1 reverse stock split
on its outstanding common stock, under the authority of the Plan, and subsequent to receiving 84% shareholder approval and
Board of Directors approval. During September 2008, the Company announced a stock repurchase plan which allowed for a
total of 12.5% of the Company’s shares outstanding at that time to be repurchased during future periods. All shares under the
2008 repurchase plan were repurchased prior to December 31, 2013.

Note 12 — Income tax

The Company is taxed as a C-Corporation for federal income tax purposes.

The provision (benefit) for income taxes for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 consist of the following:

2013 2012
Current:
Federal $ - 9 -
State 800 1,500
800 1,500
Deferred:
Federal 68,700 67,300
State 17,800 17,300
Change in valuation (86,500) (84,600)
Total provision (benefit) $ 800 $ 1,500

The Company has net deferred tax assets resulting from a timing difference in recognition of deferred revenue and from net
operating loss carryforwards.

At December 31, 2013, the Company had approximately $488,800 of federal net operating loss carryforwards that begin
expiring in 2030 and $854,000 of California net operating loss carryforwards that begin expiring in 2022.
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Note 12 — Income tax (continued)

The income tax provision (benefit) differs from the amount computed by applying the US federal income tax rate of 34% to
net income (loss) before income taxes for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 as a result of the following:

2013 2012
Net income (loss) before taxes $ (258,784) % (236,711)
US federal income tax rate 34% 34%
Computed expected tax provision (benefit) (87,987) (80,482)
Permanent differences and other 1,487 (4,118)
Change in valuation 86,500 84,600
Federal income tax provision $ - 8 -

The significant components of deferred income tax assets as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 after applying enacted corporate
income tax rates are as follows:

2013 2012
Net Operating Losses carried forward $ 241,300 $ 130,600
Deferred revenue and other 267,600 281,600
Valuation allowance (508,900) (412,200)
$ - 3 -

Note 13 — Lease commitments

Operating [ eases

Mentor currently rents approximately 2,000 square feet of office space on a month-to-month basis in Ramona, California in
San Diego County. Rent expense for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 were $22,435 and $26,628, respectively.

Note 14 — Accrued salary, accrued retirement and related party transactions

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Company had an outstanding liability to its Chief Executive Officer ("CEO") for
accrued salaries and benefits in the amount of $900,238 and $755,107, respectively, and accrued retirement and other benefits
of $431,087, $422,421, respectively, that have accrued variably over the preceding 28 years.

Note 15 — Commitments and contingencies

During the normal course of business, the Company may be exposed to litigation. When the Company becomes aware of
potential litigation, it evaluates the merits of the case in accordance with FASB ASC 450-20-50, Contingencies. The
Company evaluates its exposure to the matter, possible legal or settlement strategies and the likelihood of an unfavorable
outcome. If the Company determines than an unfavorable outcome is probable and can be reasonably estimated, it establishes
the necessary accruals. As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Company is not aware of any contingent liabilities that
should be reflected in the accompanying financial statements.
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Note 16 — Segment Information

Currently, the Company is operating an acquisition and investment business and has only one location. Therefore, no
operating units or geographic segment information will be provided.

Note 17 — Subsequent events

Purchase of majority interest in WCI

Effective January 1, 2014, Mentor purchased an additional 1% interest in WCI for $25,000 which resulted in a 51%
ownership in WCIL.

In 2013 and 2012 Mentor’s investment in WCI was recorded as an associated company under the equity method. The
Company did not have any control in the Board of Directors of WCI and did not have any obligation to provide financing or
absorb any residual gain of WCI,

In accordance with Accounting Standard Codification 810-10, Consolidation — Overall, on January 1, 2014 Mentor
remeasured its previously held equity interest at the acquisition-date fair value and recognized the resulting gain on
investment in subsidiary. From then on, the Company will consolidate WCI as a subsidiary and calculate the 49% non-
controlled interest equity as required by ASC 810.

Loan to CEO for exercise of warrants required for loan escrow

The Company agreed to loan the CEO approximately 70.9% of amounts owed to him, or $944,000, in January 2014, to
exercise additional warrants into shares to be used as collateral for a potential loan to the Company. After the warrants were
exercised, CEO Billingsley has 100% of his shares owned, 5 million shares, in an escrow which was to guarantee the
potential loan. The loan was mutually rescinded on June 12, 2014, and the shares remain in escrow as of the audit date.

Acquisition of interest in Bhang Chocolate Company. Inc. and suit seeking rescission

On January 17, 2014, the Company transitioned out of its cancer related trading dormancy by announcing its first cannabis
sector letter of intent amidst significantly increased share volume and price. The Company entered into a co-operative
funding agreement with Bhang Chocolate Company, Inc. on February 28, 2014, that provided for the purchase from original
owners of a 60% ownership in Bhang. Unrelated debt funding for Mentor Capital had been announced by a private equity
group. Bhang original owners were to receive $9,000,000 in consideration in the first 90 days. During the first 90 days,
$1,500,000 was provided to Bhang original owners from proceeds of warrant exercise. The lending equity group was unable
to fund the loan they announced.

As provided in the funding agreement, in the event of any shortfall in cash payment, the Bhang owners may elect to
immediately receive free trading Mentor shares to the extent not otherwise covered by cash available for payment, or
alternatively, they may elect to receive cash from ongoing warrant exercise plus a 10% late payment penalty. The owners
asked for immediate payment and $7,500,000 in freely trading shares were delivered to them.

An additional $30,000,000 million in expansion funding was to be gradually invested into the Bhang Chocolate Company as
it was received from warrant exercise over approximately the next 36 months. In response to the unexpected inability of the
private equity group to fund the loan, Mentor triggered the “contingent payoff” provision in the contract by decreasing the
strike price on its already called outstanding D warrants to $1.60 per share. In connection with the contingent payoff, if there
is a future shortfall in delivering the $39,000,000 total after all MNTR warrants were exercised, the Company can fully
satisfy its obligation by issuing 200% of the shortfall in common stock to Bhang owners. The Company has complied with
the contract obligations to date. The Company paid Bhang owners $1,500,000 within the first 90 days and the shortfall was
paid by assigning Mentor shares to Bhang minority owners or in the alternative could have been satisfied from ongoing
warrant exercise.
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Note 17 — Subsequent events (continued)

On June 24, 2014, Bhang owners unilaterally announced that Bhang was no longer doing any business with Mentor and
Bhang was terminating all remaining details of its relationship with Mentor. Bhang failed to provide share certificates as
evidence of ownership or provide other promised consideration to Mentor, effectively rescinding the contract by their
actions. In addition, Bhang owners have declined to return any of the $1,500,000 they were paid from Mentor. On August 11,
2014, Mentor filed suit against Bhang and its owners, in the United States District Court for the Northern District of
California for rescission seeking return of the $1,500,000 investment the Company made to Bhang.

Acquisition in MicroCannaBiz and related funding agreement

The Company entered into a co-operative funding agreement with MicroCannaBiz (“MCB”), that closed on February 18,
2014, to purchase up to a 51% interest in MCB, a development stage company. MCB provides cannabis and marijuana related
private companies, investors and microcap issuers with information resources including client company specific publications,
directories, and continuing education courses. MCB is to receive up to $200,000 in funding as Mentor receives proceeds from
warrant exercise. Allocation of funding to MCB is discretionary and may be reduced to $100,000 with no change in Mentor’s
ownership if Mentor is dissatisfied with MCB performance. The Company has the right, in its sole discretion, to convert the
paid portion of the $200,000 equity investment in MCB to a six percent (6%) ten-year note payable to Mentor by the majority
owner of MCB in 120 equal payments of principal and interest at any time. If triggered, this provision would truncate further
funding. Alternatively, if Mentor’s allocation of funds to MCB is less than the pro rata share MCB would normally receive
from warrant exercise under the agreement, then MCB may elect to convert the equity investment to a loan.

Loan commitment fee receivable

In March 2013, the Company paid $621,200, which represented 1.75% of the potential loan amount, in refundable fees paid
for credit default insurance to a third party as required by the lender on an international loan facility. The lender was unable
to fund the loan and a cooperative exit from the loan commitment was agreed to by the parties on June 12, 2014. The lender
has released the requirement for credit default insurance and the insurance company has agreed to return the fee, however the
refund has not yet been received. On September 5, 2014, the Company filed suit in San Mateo County Superior Court against
Wm. E. Fielding and Associates, Inc. for conversion and fraud seeking return of the $621,200 in fees.
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Mentor Capital, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets

ASSETS

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable - trade
Receivable - Bhang Corporation and shareholders
Prepaid expenses
Investment in account receivable, net of discount
Investments in securities, at fair value
Employee advances
Other assets

Total current assets

Property and equipment
Property and equipment
Accumulated depreciation

Property and equipment, net

Other assets
Subsidiary note receivable
Shareholder loans receivable
Deposits
Convertible note receivable
Long term investments
Goodwill

Total other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' DEFICIT

Current liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Deferred fees - related party, current portion
Line of credit
Current portion of long term debt

Total current liabilities

Long-term liabilities
Accrued salary and benefits - related party
Long term debt, net of current portion

Deferred fees - related party, net of current portion
Accrued retirement and other benefits - related party

Total long-term liabilities
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September 30, December 31,
2014 2013
(Unaudited) (Audited)
$ 553,467 40,184
295,822 -
1,500,000 -
183,632 342,408
101,250 -
8,248 21,320
16,997 -
4,725 -
2,664,141 403,912
236,523 31,032
(175,857) (26,732)
60,666 4,300
- 1,080,000
1,213,410 136,000
9,575 -
100,000 -
64,793 65,943
1,426,183 -
2,813,961 1,281,943
$ 5,538,768 $ 1,690,155
$ 21,239 § 20,892
119,076 6,474
- 32,000
60,000 -
11,665 -
211,980 59,366
888,605 900,238
2,993 -
- 593,333
437,587 431,087
1,329,245 1,924,658




Mentor Capital, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets (continued)

Shareholders' deficit

Preferred stock, no par value, 100,000,000 shares authorized; no shares issued and
outstanding

Common stock, no par value, 400,000,000 shares authorized; 14,483,373 and
6,688,503 shares issued and outstanding at September 30, 2014 and December 31,
2013

Additional paid in capital

Accumulated deficit

Non-controlling interest

Total shareholders' deficit

Total liabilities and shareholders' deficit
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September 30, December 31,
2014 2013
(Unaudited) (Audited)

7,002,016 2,389,801

234,731 495,509

(3,190,447) (3,179,179)

(48,757) -

3,997,543 (293,869)

3 5,538,768 $ 1,690,155




Mentor Capital, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Condensed Consolidated Statement of Operations (Unaudited)

Revenue
Service fees
Publication revenue
Other revenue
Total revenue

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Selling, general and administrative expenses

Operating income (loss)

Other income and (expense)

Gain recognized on purchase of majority

Interest in WCI

Interest income

Interest expense

Loan costs

Gain (loss) on investments

Gain (loss) on equipment disposals
Other income (expense)

Total other income and (expense)

Income (loss) before provision for
income taxes

Provision for income taxes
Net income (loss)

Gain attributable to non-controlling
interest

Net income (loss) attributable to
controlling
interest
Basic and diluted net loss per common
share:

Basic

Diluted*

Weighted average number of shares of
common stock outstanding:

Basic

Diluted*

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30, September 30, September 30,
2014 2013 2014 2013
$ 544,615 - 8 1,543,578 -

1,600 - 2,550 -

- 8,000 - 24,000

546,215 8,000 1,546,128 24,000

381,776 - 1,057,355 -

164,439 8,000 488,773 24,000

334,567 70,436 1,069,861 207,298
(170,128) (62,436) (581,088) (183,298)

- - 1,250,964 -

12,453 4,473 15,982 2,699

(7,043) - (13,550) -

- - (635,851) -

(7,782) 170 (5,590) 170

(4,925) - (1,886) -

- 46 167 46

(7,297) 4,689 610,236 2,915

(177,425) (57,747) 29,148 (180,383)

- 2,525 800

(177,425) (57,747) 26,623 (181,183)

8,641 - 37,891 -

$ (186,066) (57,757)  § (11,268) (181,183)
$ (0.013) (0.009) $§ (0.001) (0.024)
$ N/A N/A § N/A N/A
14,492,602 6,650,277 12,539,342 6,650,277

N/A N/A N/A N/A

*The company recorded operating loss and so the diluted EPS will not be calculated for the diluted EPS effect is anti-dilutive
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Mentor Capital, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Condensed Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity

For the Nine Months ended September 30, 2014 (Unaudited)

Balance at December
31,2013

Effect of consolidating
interest in WCI
previously accounted
for at cost, effective
January 1, 2014

Conversion of warrants
to common stock, net

of conversion costs

Cashless exercise of
advisor warrants

Shares retired

Minority contributed
capital

Minority shareholder
distribution

Net income (loss)

Balance at September
30,2014

Additional Non-
Common stock paid Accumulated controlling

Shares no par in capital deficit deficit Totals
6,688,503 2,389,801 495,509 § (3,179,179) - (293,869)
- - - - (48,179) (48,179)
7,462,150 4,370,474 - - - 4,370,474
354,410 260,778 (260,778) - - -
(21,690) (19,037) - - - (19,037)
- - - - 10,300 10,300
- - - - (48,769) (48,769)
- - - (11,268) 37,891 26,623
14,483,373 7,002,016 234,731 $ (3,190,447) (48,757) 3,997,543
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Mentor Capital, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Unaudited)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by (used by) operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization
Investment (gain) loss
Loss on sale/disposal of furniture and equipment
Gain recognized on purchase of majority interest in WCI
Receivable discount amortization
Decrease (increase) in operating assets
Accounts receivable - trade
Receivable - Bhang Chocolate Company shareholders
Prepaid expenses
Other assets
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Deferred fees
Accrued salary and benefits - related party
Accrued retirement and benefits - related party

Net cash provided by (used by) operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of property and equipment
Sale of property and equipment
Sale of investment in securities
Investment in receivable
Purchase of convertible note receivable
Proceeds from long term investment
Purchase of additional interest in WCI
Employee advances
Shareholder loans

Net cash provided by (used by) investing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Payments on long term debt
Borrowing on line of credit
Shares retired
Warrants converted to common stock, net of costs
Net cash provided by (used by) financing activities
Net change in cash

Beginning cash

Ending cash
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Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,

2014 2013
$ (11,268) S (181,183)
19,314 615
5,590 -
1,886 -
(1,250,964) -
(11,250) -
(35,637) -
(1,500,000) -
(31,976) 1,240
(3,725) (5,581)
(12,274) (3,892)
(25,386) (2,045)
- 8,000
(11,573) (36,283)
6,500 (2,166)
(2,860,763) (221,295)
(33,826) -
7,499 1,432
7,482 20,753
(90,000) -
(100,000) -
1,150 -
(25,000) -
254 -
(72,875) 33,000
(305,316) 55,185
$ (46,479) S -
60,000 -
(19,037) (10,464)
3,637,505 275,209
3,631,989 264,745
465,910 98,635
87,557 40,184
$ 553,467 $ 138,819




SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:
Cash paid for interest
Cash paid for income taxes

NON-CASH INVESTING AND FINANCING TRANSACTION:
CEO exercise of warrants via increase in shareholder loans receivable

CEO assumption of warrant liability via decrease in shareholder loans receivable
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Nine Months Ended

September 30, September 30,
2014 2013
$ 13,550 70
$ 2,525 800
$ 944,231 -
$ (19,700) -




Mentor Capital, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)

Note 1 — Nature of operations

History (1985 — 2008)

Mentor Capital, Inc. (“Mentor” or “the Company”’) was founded as an investment partnership by the current CEO in 1985 and
incorporated July 29, 1994, under the laws of the State of California. On September 12, 1996, the Company’s offering
statement was qualified pursuant to Regulation A of the Securities Act, and the Company began to trade its shares publicly.
On August 21, 1998, the Company filed voluntary reorganization with the bankruptcy court and, on January 11, 2000, the
Company emerged from Chapter 11. The Company contracted to provide financial assistance and investment into small
businesses following its reorganization.

Current Business (2008 - 2014)

Since the August 2008, name change back to Mentor Capital, Inc., the Company’s common stock has traded publicly under
the trading symbol OTC Markets: MNTR.

In 2009 the Company began focusing its investing activities in leading edge cancer companies. In response to government
limitations on reimbursement for highly technical and expensive cancer treatments and a resulting business decline in the
cancer development sector, the Company decided to exit that space. In the summer of 2013 the Company was asked to
consider investing in a cancer related project with a medical marijuana focus. On August 29, 2013, the Company made a
decision to divest of its cancer assets and focus on becoming a pure play in the cannabis and medical marijuana sector.

Effective January 1, 2014, Mentor purchased an additional 1% interest in WCI for $25,000 which resulted in a 51%
ownership in WCI. At December 31, 2013, Mentor’s investment in WCI was recorded under the equity method. In
accordance with Accounting Standard Codification 810-10, Consolidation — Overall, on January 1, 2014 Mentor remeasured
its previously held equity interest at the acquisition-date fair value and recognized the resulting gain on investment in
subsidiary, see Note 14. WClI is a legacy investment that is included in the consolidated financial statements for the three and
nine months ended September 30, 2014 and is reported as an investment under the equity method at December 31, 2013 and
the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013.

On February 18, 2014, the Company signed an agreement to purchase a 51% interest in MicroCannaBiz (“MCB”), a
development stage company, for $200,000. MCB provides cannabis and marijuana related private companies, investors and
microcap issuers with information resources including client company specific publications, directories, and continuing
education courses. See Note 8. MCB operations are included in the consolidated financial statements for the three and nine
months ended September 30, 2014.

On February 28, 2014, the Company acquired a 60% ownership in Bhang Chocolate Company, Inc. (“Bhang”), see Note 5
regarding the purchase and subsequent Mentor lawsuit seeking rescission of the agreement. Amounts invested in Bhang are
reported as Receivable from Bhang Chocolate Company shareholders in the consolidated balance sheet at September 30,
2014.
Note 2 — Summary of significant accounting policies

Condensed consolidated financial statements

Certain information and footnote disclosures normally included in financial statements prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America have been condensed or omitted. The results of

operations for the periods ended September 30, 2014 are not necessarily indicative of the operating results for the full years.

Basis of presentation

The Company’s condensed consolidated financial statements include majority owned subsidiaries of 51% or more. The
condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. All material intercompany balances and
transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.
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Mentor Capital, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)

Note 2 — Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Basis of presentation (continued)

As shown in the accompanying consolidated financial statements, the Company has a significant accumulated deficit of
$3,190,447 as of September 30, 2014. The Company also continues to experience negative cash flows from operations. The
Company will be required to raise additional capital to fund its operations, and will continue to attempt to raise capital
resources from both related and unrelated parties until such time as the Company is able to generate revenues sufficient to
maintain itself as a viable entity. These factors have raised substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a
going concern. There can be no assurances that the Company will be able to raise additional capital or achieve profitability.
However, the Company has 14.5 million warrants outstanding in which the Company can reset the exercise price
substantially below the current market price, see Note 6. These consolidated financial statements do not include any
adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty.

From January 1, 2014 through the date of this report, the Company raised approximately $3,637,500 from the exercise of
warrants into common stock. The Company estimates it has adequate cash reserves to support one to three years of operation.
Management's plans include increasing revenues through acquisition, investment, and organic growth. This is to be funded by
raising additional capital through the sale of equity securities and debt.

Concentrations of cash

The Company maintains its cash and cash equivalents in bank deposit accounts which at times may exceed federally insured
limits. The Company has not experienced any losses in such accounts nor does the Company believe it is exposed to any
significant credit risk on cash and cash equivalents.

Cash and cash equivalents

The Company considers all short-term debt securities purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be cash
equivalents. The Company had no short-term debt securities as of September 30, 2014.

Accounts receivable

Customer accounts receivable are classified as current assets and are carried at original invoice amounts less an estimate for
doubtful receivables based on a review of all outstanding amounts on a monthly basis. The estimate of allowance for doubtful
accounts is based on the Company's bad debt experience, market conditions, collateral available, and aging of accounts
receivable, among other factors. If the financial condition of the Company's customers deteriorates resulting in the customer's
inability to pay the Company's receivables as they come due, additional allowances for doubtful accounts will be required. At
September 30, 2014, the Company considers its accounts receivable to be fully collectible and no allowance has been
included in the accompanying financial statements.

Investment in unconsolidated entities

Prior to acquiring a controlling interest in WCI on January 1, 2014, Mentor accounted for the investment in WCI using the
equity method based on the ownership interest and the Company’s limited ability to exercise significant influence at
December 31, 2013. Accordingly, the investment was initially recorded at cost with adjustments to the carrying amount of the
investment to recognize our share of the earnings or losses of the investee each reporting period. Mentor ceased to recognize
losses when our investment basis was zero. At December 31, 2013, the WCI investment was $0. On January 1, 2014, the
Company purchased an additional 1% interest in WCI for a 51% interest, see Note 14.
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Mentor Capital, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)

Note 2 — Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Long term investments

The Company’s investments in entities where it is a minority owner and does not have the ability to exercise significant
influence are recorded at fair value if readily determinable. If the fair market value is not readily determinable, the
investment is recorded under the cost-method. Under this method, the Company’s share of the earnings or losses of such
investee company is not included in the Company’s financial statements. The Company reviews the carrying value of its long
term investments for impairment each reporting period.

Investment in account receivable, net of discount

The Company invested in an account receivable and promissory note on July 8, 2014 which is due on or before January 15,
2014. The investment was recorded at face value with an offsetting discount at the time purchased. The discount is being
amortized to interest over the term of the note.

Property and equipment

Property, equipment and vehicles are recorded at cost. Depreciation is computed on the straight-line and declining balance
methods over the estimated useful lives of various classes of property ranging from 3 to 7 years.

Software development costs relate to development of MCB’s website and cannabis directory. Software research and
development costs are expensed as incurred. Software development costs are subject to capitalization beginning when a
product’s technological feasibility has been established and ending when a product is available for general release. The
Company capitalized website software costs incurred during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2014, however,
the website and directory launch was subsequent to September 30, 2014. Therefore, the Company has not recorded
amortization for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2014. Software development costs will be amortized over 3
years.

Expenditures for renewals and betterments are capitalized and maintenance and repairs are charged to expense. Upon
retirement or sale, the cost of assets disposed and the accumulated depreciation is removed from the accounts. The resulting
gain or loss is credited or charged to income.

Goodwill

Goodwill of $1,324,143 was derived from consolidating WCI effective January 1, 2014, see Note 14. The remaining
$102,040 of goodwill relates to the 1999 acquisition of a 50% interest in WCI. The Company accounts for its goodwill in
accordance with FASB Accounting Standards Codification 350, Intangibles — Goodwill and Other, which requires the
Company to test goodwill for impairment annually or whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
value of an asset may not be recoverable, rather than amortize. Goodwill impairment tests consist of a comparison of each
reporting unit’s fair value with its carrying value. Impairment exists when the carrying amount of goodwill exceeds the
implied fair value for each reporting unit. To estimate the fair value, management used valuation techniques which included
the discounted value of estimated future cash flows. The evaluation of impairment requires the Company to make
assumptions about future cash flows over the life of the asset being evaluated. These assumptions require significant
judgment and are subject to change as future events and circumstances change. Actual results may differ from assumed and
estimated amounts. Management determined that no impairment write-downs were required as of September 30, 2014 and
December 31, 2013.
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Mentor Capital, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)

Note 2 — Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue recognition

The Company recognizes revenue in accordance with ASC 605 , “Revenue Recognition”. The Company records revenue
under each contract once persuasive evidence of an agreement exists, delivery has occurred or services have been rendered,
the fee is fixed or determinable and collectability is reasonably assured.

Cost of services

Cost of services consists of direct costs to service customers under the service contracts.

Basic and diluted income (loss) per common share

Basic net income (loss) per common share (EPS) is computed by dividing net income (loss) available to common
shareholders (numerator) by the weighted average number of shares outstanding (denominator) during the period. Diluted
EPS adjusts basic net income (loss) per common share, computed using the treasury stock method, for the effects of
potentially dilutive common shares, if the effect is not antidilutive. In computing diluted EPS, the average stock price for the
period is used in determining the number of shares assumed to be purchased from the exercise of stock warrants. Diluted EPS
excludes all dilutive potential shares if their effect is antidilutive. Outstanding warrants that had no effect on the computation
of dilutive weighted average number of shares outstanding as their effect would be antidilutive were approximately
15,198,000 and 23,220,000 as of September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively. The Company had 4,500 and
6,650,070 potentially dilutive shares outstanding at September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013.

Income taxes

Generally accepted accounting principles provide accounting and disclosure guidance about positions taken by an
organization in its tax returns that might be uncertain. Management considers the likelihood of changes by taxing authorities
in its filed income tax returns and recognizes a liability for or discloses potential changes that management believes are more
likely than not to occur upon examination by tax authorities.

Management has not identified any uncertain tax positions in filed income tax returns that require recognition or disclosure in
the accompanying financial statements. The Company’s income tax returns for the past three years are subject to examination
by tax authorities, and may change upon examination. The Company recognizes interest and penalties, if any, related to
unrecognized tax benefits in interest expense. No interest expense or penalties were recognized during the nine months ended
September 30, 2014.

Use of estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying disclosures.

Although these estimates are based on management’s best knowledge of current events and actions the Company may
undertake in the future, actual results ultimately may differ from these estimates.
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Mentor Capital, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)

Note 2 — Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Fair value measurements

The Fair Value Measurements and Disclosure Topic defines fair value as the exchange price that would be received for an
asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) in the principal, or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement date. The valuation techniques maximize the use of
observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs.

The Fair Value Measurements and Disclosure Topic establish a fair value hierarchy, which prioritizes the valuation inputs
into three broad levels. These three general valuation techniques that may be used to measure fair value are as follows:
Market approach (Level 1) — which uses prices and other relevant information generated by market transactions involving
identical or comparable assets or liabilities. Prices may be indicated by pricing guides, sale transactions, market trades, or
other sources. Cost approach (Level 2) — which is based on the amount that currently would be required to replace the service
capacity of an asset (replacement cost); and the Income approach (Level 3) — which uses valuation techniques to convert
future amounts to a single present amount based on current market expectations about the future amounts (including present
value techniques, and option-pricing models). Net present value is an income approach where a stream of expected cash flows
is discounted at an appropriate market interest rate.

The carrying amounts of cash, accounts receivable, prepaid expenses and other current assets, accounts payable, customer
deposits and other accrued liabilities approximate their fair value due to the short-term nature of these instruments.

The fair value of the note receivable is based on the net present value of calculated interest and principle payments. The
carrying value approximates fair value as interest rates charged are comparable to market rates for similar notes.

The fair value of long-term notes payable is based on the net present value of calculated interest and principle payments. The
carrying value of long-term debt approximates fair value due to the fact that the interest rate on the debt is based on market

rates.

Recent Accounting Standards

The Company has implemented all new accounting pronouncements that are in effect. These pronouncements did not have
any material impact on the financial statements and the Company does not believe that there are any other new accounting
pronouncements that have been issued that might have a material impact on its financial position or results of operations.

Note 3 — Investments

The investment in account receivable is supported by a promissory note which matures January 15, 2015 and consists of the
following at September 30, 2014:

Face value $ 117,000
Unamortized discount (15,750)
Net balance $ 101,250

During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2014, $11,250 of discount amortization is included in interest income.
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Mentor Capital, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)

Note 4 — Property and equipment

Property and equipment is comprised of the following:

September 30, December 31,
2014 2013
Computers $ 18,644 $ 12,120
Furniture and fixtures 19,491 18,912
Machinery and vehicles 174,308 -
Capitalized software 24,080 -
236,523 31,032
Accumulated depreciation (175,857) (26,732)
Net Property and equipment $ 60,666 $ 4,300

Depreciation expense for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013 were:

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30, September 30, September 30,
2014 2013 2014 2013
5,864 615 19,314 1,846

Note 5 — Acquisition of interest in Bhang Chocolate Company, Inc. and suit seeking rescission

On January 17, 2014, the Company transitioned out of its cancer related trading dormancy by announcing its first cannabis
sector letter of intent amidst significantly increased share volume and price. The Company entered into a co-operative
funding agreement with Bhang Chocolate Company, Inc. on February 28, 2014, that provided for the purchase from owners
of a 60% ownership in Bhang. Unrelated debt funding for Mentor Capital had been announced by a private equity group.
Bhang owners were to receive $9,000,000 in consideration in the first 90 days. During the first 90 days, $1,500,000 was
provided to Bhang owners from proceeds of warrant exercise. The lending equity group was unable to fund the loan they
announced.

As provided in the funding agreement, in the event of any shortfall in cash payment, the Bhang owners may elect to
immediately receive free trading Mentor shares to the extent not otherwise covered by cash available for payment, or
alternatively, they may elect to receive cash from ongoing warrant exercise plus a 10% late payment penalty. The owners
asked for immediate payment and $7,500,000 in freely trading shares were delivered to them.

An additional $30,000,000 million in expansion funding was to be gradually invested into the Bhang Chocolate Company as
it was received from warrant exercise over approximately the next 36 months. In response to the unexpected inability of the
private equity group to fund the loan, Mentor triggered the “contingent payoff” provision in the contract by decreasing the
strike price on its already called outstanding D warrants to $1.60 per share. In connection with the contingent payoff, if there
is a future shortfall in delivering the $39,000,000 total after all MNTR warrants were exercised, the Company can fully
satisfy its obligation by issuing 200% of the shortfall in common stock to Bhang owners. The Company has complied with
the contract obligations to date. The Company paid Bhang owners $1,500,000 within the first 90 days and the shortfall was
paid by assigning Mentor shares to Bhang minority owners or in the alternative could have been satisfied from ongoing
warrant exercise.
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Mentor Capital, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)

Note 5 — Acquisition of interest in Bhang Chocolate Company, Inc. and suit seeking rescission (continued)

On June 24, 2014, Bhang owners unilaterally announced that Bhang was no longer doing any business with Mentor and
Bhang was terminating all remaining details of its relationship with Mentor. Bhang failed to provide share certificates as
evidence of ownership or provide other promised consideration to Mentor, effectively rescinding the contract by their
actions. In addition, Bhang owners have declined to return any of the $1,500,000 they were paid from Mentor. On August 11,
2014, Mentor filed suit against Bhang and its owners, in the United States District Court for the Northern District of
California for rescission seeking return of the $1,500,000 investment the Company made in Bhang.

Note 6 — Common stock warrants

The Company's Plan of Reorganization provided for the creditors and claimants to receive new warrants in settlement of their
claims. The term of the warrants, initially sixteen months, has been extended by the Company until May 11, 2038.

Each warrant is callable by the Company if the share price exceeds the exercise price by the lesser of $1 or 100%. The
warrant holders have a minimum of 30 calendar days during which to exercise their warrants once they are called. The
Company may lower the exercise price of the warrants at any time. Similarly, the Company could, but does not anticipate,
reverse splitting the stock to raise the stock price above the warrant exercise price. The warrants are specifically not affected
and do not split with the shares in the event of a reverse split. If the warrants are not exercised, the Company has the right to
designate the warrants to a new holder in return for a $0.10 per share redemption fee payable to the original warrant holder as
discussed further in Note 7. Exercise prices at December 31, 2011 and subsequent lower prices for the A, B, C and D
warrants are as follow:

Series A Series B Series C Series D
April 1, 2013 $ 0.01 $ 0.11 $ 0.09 $ 7.00
June 18, 2014 $ -3 0.11 $ -3 1.60

At November 8, 2009, the Company entered into an Investment Banking agreement with Network One Securities, LLC and a
related Strategic Advisory Agreement with Lenox Hill Partners, LP with regard to a potential merger with a cancer
development company. In conjunction with those related agreements, the Company issued 81,699 Series E ($1) Warrants,
369,037 Series F ($3) Warrants, 85,579 Series G ($0.65) Warrants and 689,159 Series H (§7) Warrants, all with a 30 year
life. The warrants are subject to cashless exercise based upon the ten day trailing closing bid price preceding the exercise as
interpreted by the Company. The fair value of the warrants issued under the agreements was estimated on the date of the
issuance using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. The use of a valuation model requires the Company to make certain
assumptions with respect to selected model inputs. Expected volatility was calculated based on the historical volatility of the
Company’s stock price. The average expected life is based on the contractual term of the warrant and expected exercise
behavior. The risk-free interest rate is based on U.S. Treasury zero-coupon issues with a remaining term equal to the expected
life assumed at the date of grant.

The following table provides the assumptions used to value the options granted and warrants issued using the Black-Scholes
option pricing model:

Series E Series F
and G and H
Stock price volatility 111.60% 111.60%
Risk-free rate of return 4.26% 4.26%
Annual dividend yield 0.00% 0.00%
Expected life (in years) 0.5 3.0
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Mentor Capital, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)

Note 6 — Common stock warrants (continued)

As of September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013 the weighted average contractual life for all Mentor warrants was 23.7

years and 24.5 years, respectively, and the weighted average outstanding warrant exercise price was $1.84 and $4.91 per
share, respectively.

During the nine month period ended September 30, 2014 and the year ended December 31, 2013, a total of 8,018,978 and
2,619,332 warrants were exercised, respectively. There were no warrants issued during the nine month period ended
September 30, 2014 and the year ended December 31, 2013. At September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, the total

intrinsic value of outstanding warrants was $3,263 and $1,583,805, respectively.

The following table summarizes common stock warrants as of each period:

Series D $1.60

Series A $0.09  Series B $0.11 Series C $0.09 * exercise A,B,C,D Total
exercise price exercise price exercise price price Warrants
Outstanding at
December 31, 2012 1,188,909 7,952,313 128,180 15,312,627 24,582,029
Issued - - - - -
Exercised - (2,619,332) - - (2,619,332)
Outstanding at
December 31, 2013 1,188,909 5,332,981 128,180 15,312,627 21,962,697
“Issued in 2014 - . - - -
Exercised in 2014 (1,188,909) (5,328,481) (128,180) (807,861) (7,453,431)
_Outstanding at
September 30, 2014 - 4,500 - 14,504,766 14,509,266

* Exercise price at September 30, 2014. Until June 18, 2014, the exercise price was $7.00.
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Note 6 — Common stock warrants (continued)

Series E, F, G and H warrants were issued for investment banking and advisory services during 2009. Warrants were
exercised under the cashless provision allowed for these warrants as follows:

Series E $1.00  Series F $3.00  Series G $0.65 Series H $7.00 E,F,G,H Total

exercise price exercise price exercise price exercise price Warrants

Outstanding at

December 31, 2013 107,931 369,037 88,579 689,159 1,254,706
Issued in 2014 - - - - -
Exercised in 2014 (107,931) (369,037) (88,579) - (565,547)
Outstanding at

September 30, 2014 - - - 689,159 689,159
Shares issued as a

result of cashless

exercise 73,388 210,870 70,152 - 354,410

Note 7 — Warrant redemption liability

The Plan of Reorganization provides the right for the Company to call, and the Company or its designee to redeem warrants
that are not exercised timely, as specified in the Plan, by transferring a $0.10 redemption fee to the former holders. Certain
individuals desiring to become a Company designee to redeem warrants have deposited redemption fees with the Company
that, when warrants are redeemed, will be forwarded to the former warrant holders at their last known address 30 days after
the last warrant of a class is exercised, or earlier at the discretion of the Company. The Company has arranged for a service to
process the redemption fees in offset to an equal amount of liability. Included in prepaid expenses at September 30, 2014 and
December 31, 2013 was $0 and $192,411 of prepaid warrant redemption fees, respectively.

Note 8 — Funding agreement

The Company entered into a co-operative funding agreement with MCB that closed on February 18, 2014, to purchase up to a
51% interest in MCB, a development stage company. MCB provides cannabis and marijuana related private companies,
investors and microcap issuers with information resources including client company specific publications, directories, and
continuing education courses. MCB is to receive up to $200,000 in funding as Mentor receives proceeds from warrant
exercise. Allocation of funding to MCB is discretionary and may be reduced to $100,000 with no change in Mentor’s
ownership if Mentor is dissatisfied with MCB performance. The Company has the right, in its sole discretion, to convert the
paid portion of the $200,000 equity investment in MCB to a six percent (6%) ten-year note payable to Mentor by the
majority owner of MCB in 120 equal payments of principal and interest at any time. If triggered, this provision would
truncate further funding. Alternatively, if Mentor’s allocation of funds to MCB is less than the pro rata share MCB would
normally receive from warrant exercise under the agreement, then MCB may elect to convert the equity investment to a loan,
under the same terms.

F-34



Mentor Capital, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)

Note 9 — Stockholders’ equity

Common Stock

The Company has a total of 400,000,000 shares of Common Stock, no par value authorized at September 30, 2014 and
December 31, 2013. The holders of Common Stock are entitled to one vote per share on all matters submitted to a vote of the
stockholders and may accumulate their votes for the election of directors. During 2007, the Company effected a 1,000 to 1
reverse stock split on its outstanding common stock, under the authority of the Plan, and subsequent to receiving 84%
shareholder approval and Board of Directors approval. During September 2008, the Company announced a stock repurchase
plan which allowed for a total of 12.5% of the Company’s shares outstanding at that time to be repurchased during future
periods. All shares under the 2008 repurchase plan were repurchased prior to December 31, 2013.

On August 8, 2014, the Company announced that it was initiating the repurchase of approximately 2% of the Company’s
shares outstanding at that time.

Note 10 — Income tax

The Company and its subsidiaries are taxed as C-Corporations for federal income tax purposes. The Company does not file
consolidated income tax returns for federal or state purposes.

The provision (benefit) for income taxes for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013 consist of the
following:

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30, September 30, September 30,
2014 2013 2014 2013
Current:
Federal $ - 3 -3 1,725 $ -
State - - 800 800
- - 2,525 800
Deferred:
Federal 40,500 16,900 601,000 53,500
State 7,500 4,400 123,900 13,900
Change in valuation (48,000) (21,300) (724,900) (67,400)
Total expense $ - $ - $ 2,525 § 800

The Company has net deferred tax assets resulting from a timing difference in recognition of deferred revenue and from net
operating loss carryforwards.

At September 30, 2014, the Company had approximately $2,256,000 of federal net operating loss carryforwards that begins
expiring in 2030, $888,000 of California net operating loss carryforwards that begin expiring in 2022, $1,695,000 of Arizona
net operating loss carryforwards that begin expiring in 2027, and $37,000 of Florida net operating loss carryforwards that
begin expiring in 2034.
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Note 10 — Income tax (continued)

The income tax provision (benefit) differs from the amount computed by applying the US federal income tax rate of 34% to
net income (loss) before income taxes for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013 as a result of the

following:
Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30, September 30, September 30,
2014 2013 2014 2013

Net income (loss) before taxes $ (177,425) $ (57,747) $ 26,623 $ (181,183)
US federal income tax rate 34% 34% 34% 34%
Computed expected tax

provision (benefit) (60,320) (19,630) 9,050 (61,600)
Deferred from WCI - - (743,478) -
Permanent differences and other 12,320 (1,670) 9,528 (5,800)
Change in valuation 48,000 21,300 724,900 67,400
Federal income tax provision $ - 3§ - § - 3 -

The significant components of deferred income tax assets as of September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013 after applying
enacted corporate income tax rates are as follows:

September 30, December 31,
2014 2013
Net Operating Losses carried forward $ 996,500 $ 231,300
Deferred revenue and other 227,300 267,600
Valuation allowance (1,223,800) (498,900)
$ - $ -
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Note 11 — Lease commitments

Operating [ eases

Mentor currently rents approximately 2,000 square feet of office space on a month-to-month basis in Ramona, California in
San Diego County. Rent expense for the nine months ended September 31, 2014 and 2013 were $17,370 and $14,625,
respectively.

WCI rents approximately 3,000 of office and warehouse space in Tempte, Arizona under an operating lease expiring in
January 2015. Rent expense for the nine months ended September 31, 2014 was $6,633.

WCI leases vehicles under a master fleet management agreement with initial terms of 4 years expiring through April 2018.
Vehicle lease expense of $27,098 and $81,234 for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2014 is included in cost of
sales in the consolidated income statements.

The approximate remaining annual minimum lease payments under the non-cancelable operating leases existing as of with
original or remaining terms over one year were as follows:

Years ending Rental
December 31, expense
2014 $ 99,282
2015 74,961
2016 53,091
2017 14,680
$ 242,014

Note 12 — Long term debt and revolving line of credit

Long term debt
WCI has four vehicle notes payable with a total balance due of $14,658 at September 30, 2014 of which $11,665 is due in the
twelve months ended September 30, 2015 and the remainder is due in the twelve months ended September 30, 2016. Interest

rates range from 6.64% to 7.99%. The notes are secured by the respective vehicles.

Revolving line of credit

On September 4, 2014, WCI obtained an unsecured revolving line of credit with Bank of America, with interest at the bank’s
prime rate plus 3% due monthly. The line of credit matures on September 4, 2015. At September 30, 2014, WCI had $60,000
outstanding on the line of credit.

Note 13 — Related party transactions
As of September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, the Company had an outstanding liability to its Chief Executive Officer

("CEQ") for accrued salaries and benefits in the amount of $888,665 and $900,238, respectively, and accrued retirement and
other benefits of $437,587 and $431,087, respectively that have accrued variably over the preceding 28 years.
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Note 13 — Related party transactions (continued)

The Company agreed to loan the CEO $944,000, in January 2014, to exercise additional warrants into shares to be used as
collateral for a potential loan to the Company. The amount loaned equals approximately 70.9% of amounts owed to the CEO
by Mentor (provides 141% coverage). After the warrants were exercised, CEO Billingsley has 100% of his shares owned, 5
million shares, in an escrow which was to guarantee the potential loan. The loan was mutually rescinded on June 12, 2014,
and the shares remain in escrow as of the audit date. The CEO must make a public press release and post a notice on the
Mentor website before he removes the shares from escrow.

Included in the consolidated balance sheet at September 30, 2014 is an advance to an officer of WCI in the amount of
$140,004.

Note 14 — Purchase of additional equity in WCI
Effective January 1, 2014, Mentor purchased an additional 1% interest in WCI for $25,000 which resulted in a 51%
ownership in WCI. In 2013 and 2012 Mentor’s investment in WCI was recorded under the equity method. In accordance with
Accounting Standard Codification 810-10, Consolidation — Overall, Mentor remeasured its previously held equity interest at
the acquisition-date fair value and recognized the resulting gain of $1,250,964 on investment in subsidiary which is included
in other income and expense in the consolidated statement of operations.
Cash to acquire additional 1% equity interest in WCI $ 25,000

Fair value of 50% interest (Notel) 1,250,000
Investment under equity method -

Total purchase price to be allocated $ 1,275,000

(Note 1) Estimated fair value of Mentor’s previously-held equity interest in WCI is valued at 1.25 times WCI’s projected
2014 revenue.

Purchase price allocation at 51% of WCI assets and liabilities:

WCI assets and liabilities:

Current assets $ 327,238
Property and equipment 51,239
Other assets 816,952
Current liabilities (112,810)
Long-term debt (1,178,977)
Net deficit (96,358)
Mentor equity rate 51%
Mentor portion of liabilities in excess of assets (49,143)
Goodwill 1,324,143
Net assets acquired $ 1,275,000
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Note 15 — Pro forma financial information

The following unaudited pro forma consolidated results of operations assume that the WCI majority interest was acquired as
of January 1, 2013 for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013:

Three months Nine months
ended ended
September 30, September 30,
2013 2013
Net operating revenues $ 433,300 $ 1,258,118
Net loss attributable to controlling interest ~ $ (6343 § (180,151)
Basic loss per common share $ (0.001) $ (0.024)

Note 16 — Commitments and contingencies

During the normal course of business, the Company may be exposed to litigation. When the Company becomes aware of
potential litigation, it evaluates the merits of the case in accordance with FASB ASC 450-20-50, Contingencies. The
Company evaluates its exposure to the matter, possible legal or settlement strategies and the likelihood of an unfavorable
outcome. If the Company determines than an unfavorable outcome is probable and can be reasonably estimated, it establishes
the necessary accruals. As of September 30, 2014, the Company is not aware of any contingent liabilities that should be
reflected in the accompanying financial statements.

Mentor lawsuit seeking rescission of co-operative funding agreement with Bhang
On August 11, 2014, Mentor filed suit against Bhang and its owners, in the United States District Court for the Northern
District of California for rescission of the February 28, 2014 co-operative funding agreement with Bhang, seeking return of

the $1,500,000 investment the Company made in Bhang. See Note 5.

Loans commitment fee receivable

In March 2013, the Company paid $621,200, which represented 1.75% of the loans’ amount, in refundable fees paid for credit
default insurance to a third party as required by the lender on an international loan facility. The lender was unable to fund the
loan and a cooperative exit from the loan commitment was agreed to by the parties on June 12, 2014. The lender has released
the requirement for credit default insurance and the insurance company has agreed to return the fee, however the refund has
not yet been received. On September 5, 2014, the Company filed suit in San Mateo County Superior Court against Wm. E.
Fielding and Associates, Inc. for conversion and fraud seeking return of the $621,200 in fees. The $621,200 in fees was
expensed as loan costs in the consolidated statement of operations, pending the outcome of the suit.
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EXHIBIT 3i

CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT
OF ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION

U ) ==

OF ary of State
N G orma
Mentor Capital, Inc. AR 9 1 2008
(tka Main Street AC. Inc.) WAR L § £

The undersigned certity that

1. They are the president and the secretary. respectively . of Mentor Capital. Ine. a
California corporation,

20 A new section A( ) is hereby added to Article Fourth of the Articles of Incorporation of
this corporation. as follows:

At The outstanding common shares of the company (CUSIP # 539903 10 9)
bearing the old legend “Main Street AC. Ine.”™ will be consolidated into new shares (CUSIP #
SR7I83 10 4) bearing the new company name “Mentor Capital. ine.™ - The ratio for this reverse
stock splitis setat 1000 o 1. Fractional shares will be rounded up to the next full share. The
consolidation ¢ffects all 14323227 outstanding and issucd common shares. After the reverse splic
and adjusting for the affect of rounding. the outstanding shaves will be 15.033. The (otal number
ol authorized common shares is unchanged at 400.000.000. As provided for in the reorganization
court order, the warrants are unaftected by the reverse split. so that one pre-split warrant will
entitle the holder (o purchiase one post-split share.

3. The foregoing amendment of Articles of Incorporation has been duly approved by the
board of directors.

4. The foregoing amendment of Articles of Incorporation has been duly approved by the
required vote of sharcholders in accordance with Section Y02, California Corporations Code. The
total number of outstanding shares of the corporation is 14323227, The number of shares voting
in favor of the amendment was 87144 and equaled or exceeded the vote required. The percentage
vote required was more than 504%

We further declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the
matters set forth in this certificate are true and correct ol our own knowledge.

Chet Billingsley. President Date

K -

James Blazeck. Secretary Date
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ENDORSED - FILED

in the office of the Secretary of State
of the State of California

CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT DEC 10 2007
OF ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION
OF
Main Street AC, Inc

The undersigned certify that:
1. They are the president and the secretary, respectively. of Main Street AC.

Inc, a California corporation.

2 Article First of the Articles of Incorporation of this corporation is
amended to read as follows:

First. The name of the corporation is Mentor Capital, Inc.

3. The foregoing amendment of Articles of Incorporation has been duly
approved by the board of directors.

4. The foregoing amendment of Articles of Incorporation has been duly
approved by the required vote of shareholders in accordance with Section 902, California
Corporations Code. The total number of outstanding shares of the corporation is
14.323,227. The number of shares voting in favor of the amendment was 87.14% and
equaled or exceeded the vote required. The percentage vote required was more than 50%.

We further declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that
the matters set forth in this certificate are true and correct of our own knowledge.

Date: November 26, 2007

=

Chet Billingsley, President

James Blazeck, Secretary
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October 11, 1997
CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT
OF
ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION

THE UNDERSIGNED CERTIFY THAT:

1) THEY ARE THE PRESIDENT AND SECRETARY, RESPECTIVELY, OF MAIN STREET
ATHLETIC CLUBS, INC., A CALIFORNIA CORPORATION.

2) ARTICLE I OF THE ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION IS AMENDED TO READ AS
FOLLOWS:

"THE NAME OF THE CORPORATION IS MAIN STREET AC, INC."

3) THE FOREGOING AMENDMENT OF THE ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION HAS BEEN
DULY APPROVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS.

4) THE FOREGOING AMENDMENT HAS BEEN DULY APPROVED BY THE REQUIRED
VOTE OF SHAREHOLDERS IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 902, CALIFORNIA
CORPORATIONS CODE. THE TOTAL NUMBER OF OUTSTANDING SHARES OF THE
CORPORATION IS 965,084. THE NUMBER OF SHARES VOTING IN FAVOR OF THE
AMENDMENT EQUALED OR EXCEEDED THE VOTE REQUIRED. THE VOTE REQUIRED
WAS MORE THAN 50%.

WE FURTHER DECLARE UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY UNDER THE LAWS OF THE
STATE OF CALIFORNIA THAT THE MATTERS SET FORTH IN THIS CERTIFICATE
ARE TRUE AND CORRECT OF OUR OWN KNOWLEDGE.

CHESTER BILL;N@SLEY, PRESIDENT

/gﬁNNIFER BOALS, ‘SECRETARY
4 f




1482183 ENpoRSED
17 the office of the Secretary of State
of the State of California

CERTIFICATE OF DETERMINATION SEP 2 6 1996
OF RIGHTS, PREFERENCES,
PRIVILEGES AND RESTRICTIONS 7;(7 : g\ﬂi\
OF SERIES A PREFERRED STOCK R ke gL

OF MAIN STREET ATHLETIC CLUBS, INC. "1t {0UES, Seay of Stae
The undersigned, Chester Billingsley and Jennifer Boals hereby certify that:

ONE: They are the duly elected and acting President and Secretary,
respectively, of MAIN STREET ATHLETIC CLUBS, INC. (the "corporation").

TWO: Pursuant to the authority given by Article IV of the Corporation's
Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation and Section 401 of the California General
Corporation Law, the Board of Directors of the Corporation has duly adopted the following recitals
and resolutions:

WHEREAS, the Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of this Corporation
provide for a class of authorized but unissued shares of stock known as Preferred Stock and
compromising 10,000,000 shares; and

WHEREAS, the Board of directors is authon'zed‘to determine or alter the rights,
preferences, privileges and restrictions granted to or imposed upon any wholly unissued series of
Preferred Stock and the number of shares constituting any such series and the designation thereof;
and ' ;

WHEREAS, the Board of directors desires, pursuant to its authority as aforesaid, to
determine the rights, preferences, privileges and restrictions granted to or imposed upon series of
wholly unissued Preferred Stock, the number of shares constituting such series and the designation
of such series of Preferred Stock:

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of directors hereby
designates a series of Preferred Stock as "Series A Preferred Stock" and fixes and determines the
number of shares of such Series A Preferred Stock at Five Hundred Thousand (500,000) shares.

FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Board of directors hereby defermincs the rights,
preferences, privileges and restrictions of the Series A Preferred Stock as follows:

y ¥ Designation, Par Value and Number. Five Hundred Thousand (500,000)
shares of the Ten Million (10,000,000) authorized shares of Preferred Stock of the Corporation are

hereby designated as a series of Preferred Stock to be called “Series A Preferred Stock,” such series
having no par value.

2. Dividend Provisions. Subject to the rights of series of Preferred Stock which
may from time to time come into existence, the holders of shares of Series A Preferred Stock shall
be entitled to receive dividends, out of any assets legally available therefor, prior and in preference




to any declaration or payment of any dividend (payable other than in Common Stock or other
securities or rights convertible into or entitling the holder thereof to receive, directly or indirectly,
additional shares of Common Stock of this corporation) on each share of Series A Preferred Stock
at the rate of $0.60 per share per annum payable quarterly at a rate of $0.15 per calendar quarter
when, as and if declared by the Board or Directors. Such dividends shall be cumulative.

, 3. Liquidation Preference.

(8  Inthe event of any liquidation, dissolution or winding up of this corporation,
either voluntary or involuntary, subject to the rights of series of Preferred Stock which may from time
to time come into existence, the holders of Series A Preferred Stock shall be entitled to receive, prior
and in preference to any distribution of any of the assets of this corporation to the holders of
Commaon Stock by reason of their ownership thereof, an amount per share equal to the sum of (i)
$6.00 for each outstanding share of Series A Preferred Stock (the "Original Series A Issue Price")
and (ii) an amount equal to accumulated but unpaid dividends on such share (such amount of
accumulated but unpaid dividends being referred to herein as the “Premium”). If upon the occurrence
of such event, the assets and funds thus distributed among the holders of the Series A Preferred Stock
shall be insufficient to permit the payment to such holders of the full aforesaid preferential amounts,
then, subject to the rights of series of Preferred Stock which may from time to time come into
existence, the entire assets and funds of the corporation legally available for distribution shall be
distributed ratably among the holders of the Series A Preferred Stock in proportion to the product
of the liquidation preference of each such share and the number of shares owned by each such holder.

(b)  AfRter the distribution described in subsection (&) above has been paid, subject
to the rights of series of Preferred Stock which may from time to time come into existence, the
remaining assets of the corporation available for distribution to sharcholders shall be distributed
among the holders of Common Stock pro rata based on the number of shares of Common Stock held
by each.

() A consolidation or merger of this corporation with or into any other
corporation or corporations, or a sale, conveyance or disposition of all or substantially all of the
assets of this corporation or the effectuation by the corporation of & transaction or series of related
transactions in which more than 50% of the voting power of the corporation is disposed of, shall be
deemed to be a liquidation, dissolution or winding up within the meaning of this Section 3.

4, Conversion. The holders of the Series A Preferred Stock shall have
conversion rights as follows (the "Conversion Rights"):

(a) Right to.Convert.
@ Each share of Series A Preferred Stock shall be convertible, at the

option of the holder thereof, at any time after the date of issuance of such share, into such number
of fully paid and nonassessable shares of Common Stock as is determined by dividing the Original
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Series A Issue Price by the Conversion Price at the time in effect for such share. The initial
Conversion Price per share for shares of Series A Preferred Stock shall be the Original Series A Issue
Price.

(i)  Each share of Series A Preferred Stock shall automatically be
converted into shares of Common Stock at the Conversion Price at the time in effect immediately
upon the earlier of (i) October 1, 2001, and (ii) in the event that (a) shares of the Corporation’s
Common Stock are traded on a securities exchange and have closed at a per share price not less than
$20.00 for three consecutive trading days, adjusted for stock splits, reverse splits, combinations and
other recapitalizations, or (b) shares of the Corporation’s Common Stock are traded over-the-counter
and the closing bid or sale prices (whichever are applicable) have been not less than $20.00 for three
consecutive trading days, adjusted for stock splits, reverse splits, combinations and other
recapitalizations.

(b) Mechanics of Conversion. Before any holder of Series A Preferred Stock shall be
entitled to convert the same into shares of Common Stock, he or she shall surrender the certificate
or certificates thereof, duly endorsed, at the office of this corporation or of any transfer agent for the
Series A Preferred Stock, and shall give written notice by mail, postage prepaid, to this corporation
at its principal corporate office, of the election to convert the same and shall state therein the name
or names in which the certificate or certificates for shares of Common Stock are to be issued. This
Corporation shall, as soon as practicable thereafter, issue and deliver at such office to such holder of
Series A Preferred Stock, or to the nominee or nominees of such holder, a certificate or certificates
for the number of shares of Common Stock to which such holder shall be entitled as set forth above.
Such conversion shall be deemed to have been made immediately prior to the close of business on the
date of such surrender of the shares of Series A Preferred Stock to be converted, and the person or
persons entitled to receive the shares of Common Stock issuable upon such conversion shall be
treated for all purposes as the record holder or holders of such shares of Common Stock as of such
date.

(c) Qther Distribution. In the event this corporation shall declare a distribution
payable in securities of other persons, evidences of indebtedness issued by this corporation or other
persons, assets (excluding cash dividends) or options or rights to receive securities, then, in each such
case for the purpose of this subsection 4(c), the holders of the Series A Preferred Stock shall be
entitled to a proportionate share of any such distribution as though they were the holders of the
number of shares of Common Stock of the corporation into which their shares of Series A Preferred
Stock are convertible as of the record date fixed for the determination of the holders of Common
Stock of the corporation entitled to receive such distribution.

(d) Recapitalization. If at any time or from time to time there shall be a
recapitalization of the Common Stock (other than a subdivision, combination or merger or sale of
assets transaction provided for elsewhere in this Section 4) provision shall be made so that the holders
of the Series A Preferred Stock shall thereafter be entitled to receive upon conversion of the Series
A Preferred Stock the number of shares of stock or other securities or property of the Company or
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otherwise, to which a holder of Common Stock deliverable upon conversion would have been entitled
on such recapitalization. In any such case, appropriate adjustment shall be made in the application of
the provisions of this Section 4 with respect to the rights of the holders of the Series A Preferred
Stock after the recapitalization to the end that the provisions of this Section 4 (including adjustment
of the Conversion Price then in effect and the number of shares purchasable upon conversion of the
Series"A Preferred Stock) shall be applicable after that event as nearly equivalent as may be
practicable,

(e) No Impairment. This corporation will not, by amendment of its Articles of
Incorporation or through any reorganization, recapitalization, transfer of assets, consolidation,
merger, dissolution, issue or sale of securities or any other voluntary action, avoid or seek to avoid
the observance or performance of any of the terms to be observed or performed hereunder by this
corporation, but will at all times in good faith assist in the carrying out of all the provisions of this
Section 4 and in the taking of all such action as may be necessary or appropriate in order to protect
the Conversion Rights of the holders of the Series A Preferred Stock against impairment,

(f) No Fractional Shares and Certificate as to Adjustments.

(1) No fractional shares shall be issued upon conversion of the Series A
Preferred Stock, and the number of shares of Common Stock to be issued shall be rounded to the
nearest whole share. Whether or not fractional shares are issuable upon such conversion shall be
determined on the basis of the total number of shares of Series A Preferred Stock the holder is at the
time converting into Common Stock and the number of shares of Common Stock issuable upon such
aggregate conversion, '

(i) Upon the occurrence of each adjustment or readjustment of the Conversion
Price of Series A Preferred Stock pursuant to this Section 4, this corporation, at its expense, shall
promptly compute such adjustment or readjustment in accordance with the terms hereof and prepare
and furnish to each holder of Series A Preferred Stock a certificate setting forth such adjustment or
readjustment and showing in detail the facts upon which such adjustment or readjustment is based.
This corporation shall, upon the written request at any time of any holder of Series A Preferred Stock,
furnish or cause to be furnished to such holder a like certificate setting forth (A) such adjustment and
readjustment, (B) the Conversion Price at the time in effect, and (C) the number of shares of Common
Stock and the amount, if any, of other property which at the time would be received upon the
conversion of a share of Series A Preferred Stock.

Notices of Record Date. In the event of any taking by this corporation of a
record of the holders of any class of securities for the purpose of determining the holders thereof who
are entitled to receive any dividend (other than a cash dividend) or other distribution, any right to
subscribe for, purchase or otherwise acquire any shares of stock of any class or any other securities
or property, or to receive any other right, this corporation shall mail to each holder of Series A
Preferred Stock, at least 20 days prior to the date specified therein, a notice specifying the date on
which any such record is to be taken for the purpose of such dividend, distribution or right, and the
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amount and character of such dividend, distribution or right.

(h)  Reservation of Stock Tssuable Upon Conversion. This corporation shall at all
times reserve and keep available out of its authorized but unissued shares of Common Stock solely
for the purpose of effecting the conversion of the shares of the Series A Preferred Stock such number
of its shares of Common Stock as shall from time to time be sufficient to effect the conversion of all
outstanding shares of the Series A Preferred Stock; and if at any time the number of authorized but
unissued shares of Common Stock shall not be sufficient to effect the conversion of all then
outstanding shares of the Series A Preferred Stock, in addition to such other remedies as shall be
available to the holder of such Preferred Stock, this corporation will take such corporate action as
may, in the opinion of its counsel, be necessary to increase its suthorized but unissued shares of
Common Stock to such number of shares as shall be sufficient for such purposes.

()  Nofices. Any notice required by the provisions of this Section 4 to be given
to the holders of shares of Series A Preferred Stock shall be deemed given if deposited in the United
States mail, postage prepaid, and addressed to each holder of record at his or her address appearing
on the books of this corporation.

s, Yoting Rights. The holder of shares of Series A Preferred Stock shall not
have any voting rights, excopt as provided under California law.

6. Statug of Converted Stock. In the event any shares of Series A Preferred
Stock shall be converted pursuant to Section 4, the shares so converted shall be canceled and shall
not be issuable by the Corporation. The Articles of Incorporation of this corporation shall be
appropriately amended to effect the corresponding reduction in the Corporation's authorized capital
stock,

THREE: The number of shares of Series A Preferred Stock is 500,000, No
shares of Series A Preferred Stock have been issued.




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have executed this certificate on

September 25, 1996.

Chester Billingsley,Zresident
and Chief Executive Officer

2

; - 7 ~ ' DT <: C/
‘\’T/Z. B // 7 I%’/\\)
. Jeénnifer Boal

Secretary

The undersigned certify under penalty of perjury that they have read the foregoing
Certificate of Determination of Rights, Preferences, Privileges and Restrictions of Series A Preferred
Stock and know the contents thereof, and that the statements therein are true.

Executed at San Jose, California, on September 25, 1996

Chester Billingsley, PrEsident
and Chief Executive Officer

>
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Jennifer Boald
“Secretary
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18943 3 ENDORSED

), 3 FILED
= P In the office of the Secrctary of State
ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION of the Stas of Caliarnid
OF JUL 29 1994

MAIN STREET ATHLETIC CLUBS, INC-  youy yuien, actig Secelary of Stt
The undersigned incorporator, for the purpose of forming

a corporation under the General Corporation Law of the State of

California, hereby certifies:

ARTICLE I

The name of the corporation is Main Street Athletic
Clubs, Inc.

ARTICLE II

The name and complete business address in this state of
the Corporation’s initial agent for service of process is:

Mr. Paul David Marotta
c/o The Corporate Law Group
1065 East Hillsdale Boulevard
Suite 108
Foster City, California 94404

ARTICLE III

The purpose of the Corporation is to engage in any lawful
act or activity for which a corporation may be organized under the
General Corporation Law of California other than the banking
business, the trust company business or the practice of a
profession permitted to be incorporated by the California
Corporations Code.

ARTICLE IV

(A) Classes of Stock. This corporation is authorized to
issue two classes of stock to be designated, respectively, '"Common
Stock" and "Preferred Stock." The total number of shares which
the corporation is authorized to issue is Fifty Million (50,000,
000) . Forty Million (40,000,000) shares shall be Common Stock and
Ten Million (10,000,000) shares shall be Preferred Stock.

(B) Rights, Preferences, Privileges and Restrictions of
Preferred Stock. The Preferred Stock authorized by these Articles
of Incorporation may be issued from time to time in series. The
Board of Directors is hereby authorized to fix or alter the rights,
preferences, privileges and restrictions granted to or imposed upon
such series of Preferred Stock, and the number of shares
constituting any such series and the designation thereof, or of any
of them. Subject to compliance with applicable protective voting
rights which may be granted to the Preferred Stock or series
thereof in Certificates of Determination or in the Corporation’s




Articles of Incorporation ("Protective Provisions"), but
notwithstanding any other rights of the Preferred Stock or any
series thereof, the rights, preferences, privileges, and
restrictions of any such series may be subordinated to, pari passu
with (including, without limitation, inclusion in provisions with
respect to liquidation and acquisition preferences, redemption
and/or approval of matters by vote or written consent), or senior
to any of those of any other class of series of Preferred or Common
Stock. Subject to <compliance with applicable Protective
Provisions, the Board of Directors is also authorized to increase
or decrease the number of shares of any series, prior or subsequent
to the issue of that series, but not below the number of shares of
such series then outstanding. In case the number of shares of any
series shall be so decreased, the shares constituting such decrease
shall resume the status which they had prior to the adoption of the
resolution originally fixing the number of shares of such series.

(C) Common Stock. The holder of each share of Common
Stock shall have the right to one vote for each such share of
Common Stock. This corporation reserves to the Common Stock all of
the powers, rights and privileges provided under the laws of the
State of California not otherwise granted hereunder to the
Preferred Stock.

ARTICLE V
(A) Director Liability. The liability of the directors

of this corporation for monetary damages shall be eliminated to the
fullest extent permissible under California law.

(B) Indemnification. This corporation is authorized to
indemnify agents of this corporation, including without limitation,
officers and directors, whether by bylaw, agreement or otherwise,
and shall indemnify such agents, to the fullest extent




permissible under California law, and in excess of that expressly
permitted by Section 317 of the California General Corporation Law.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed these

Articles of Incorporation.
<:::’-W

Paul David Marotta
Incorporator

I declare that I am the person who executed the foregoing
Articles of Incorporation and that this instrument is my act and
deed.

Executed this 6th day of June, 1994 in Foster City,
California.

Paul David Marotta

c:\wp\main\article.doc




EXHIBIT 3ii

Exhibit 3(ii) - Bylaws

AMENDED AND RESTATED BYLAWS
OF

MAIN STREET ATHLETIC CLUBS, INC.




Section Page
ARTICLE I OFFICES' . iospsaonens i naRn 85 Ehs e s e 6 6ien s 1
1 Principal Executive Offices . ................... 1
2 Other Off1CES. .« + v o n v cnw sim s sins simmmsenisss 1
ARTICLE I SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETINGS .. ...........coviunenn.. 1
1 ANNUALMEEHNSS o cow v Tas S HFUDED 6o w®E na6s 1
2 Special Meetings . . . .. .... ... .iiieinea. .y 1
3 PIACE s s w6 i RE Eh e S8R AEFSESE DG S DD & &5 5 52 2
4 NOUCE 316 ws 52 ps PEEBTa 6 o6 6@ €5 E b E &6 & HE s 2
5 Adjourned Meetings . . . . ... ... i i 3
6 QUOTUIN, . s 55w 6 051 500 50 5 6 8 6506, b6, o008 86805 & & & & 8 3

7 Consent to Shareholder
ABHOI 506 o nsms vss e b ssdsesses s b 3
8 Waiver of Notice . . .. ...... ..., 4
9 VORI & 5 5 6 6 6 v st im a6 ia i i im i 2 sm 0 o 0 5 60 4
10 RECOTA DALEY . © w5 w s su s m 28 & 565 P16 5 & 6 hs 2o DB 5

11 Cumulative Voting for
Electionof Directors . . . . .. ... ............ 6
ARTICLE III BOARD OF DIRECTORS . .......... ....c.iuuun... 6
1 POWEES i ais wan miiin o5 6 8 o 0 G b8 o 58 %8 068 o 0§« @ 6
2 Number, Tenure and Qualifications .. .............. 6
3 Regular Meetings . . .. ....... ... ... i
4 Special Meetings . . . . ....... ..., ..., 7
S Placeof Meetings . .............c.0uuuuiuinun.. 8
6 Participation by Telephone . . . . .. ................ 8
T 8170131 1 | T T T I T 8
8 Actionat Meeting & « s v u v v o s sv w05 6566554 5wasas 8
9 Waiver of NOtCe . . . . . v v v it r e it et e e 8
10 Action Without Meeting . . .. .... ............... 9
11 Removal & covvesinnomans sascessanioesssns 9
12 Resignations . . . . ......... ... uuinninn.on.. 10
13 VACHICIEY « 5 simwinmmmams sm s oh s mhomesss s 5 10
14 COMPENSAtON » 555 65 www s b5 ae sos s mo ke mos &oks 10
15 Committees . . . . . vttt i e 10

ele

ABLE OF



ARTICLE IV

ARTICLE V

Page

OFRICERS . ;ovcn s0s 55 4568 856 68 &56 68 ® & 6 85 605 11
1 Number and TEIM. . : v v v s v ao s v mas s sissse 11
2 INabiliby 10 ACE s v s v 56 mw o5 o 5w oo s s & 6w o ow w0 12
3 Removal and Resignation . ...... .............. 12
4 VacanCles ¢ o wisv i avpnasE S04 F9F4d 00N 2005 as 12
5 Chairmanof the Board . ....... .............. 12
6 Chief Executive Officer’ < : « s sasssansssssona 12
7 BIESIAENt o5 sa16 510 # 60 a s YEwe stas oo ke 60 13
8 VICEPIESIACHt - < o5 v s s awins e s us @9 5555 5a oS 13
9 SECTEALY snwon o a0 T8 eF o Fame &6 & smm 06680 58 14
10 Chief Financial Officer ....... ............... 14
11 Salaries < s o s s sv s v s s FesEF e EE A s EE e 15
12 Officers Holding More

Than One Office . «w cw sane =5 s emesnsnns 15
MISCELLANEOUS . . .. ... ... ittt iiieenen 15
I} Record Date and

Closing of Stock Books . ................. 15
2 CertificaleS . s v s s s amc s nas soowsnesssosnsnss 16
3 Representation of Shares in

Other Corporations . ..... .........o0.... 16
4 BiSCAL YCAT  « vuno® a9 i E RSRG 20 20 AEE AR EE @ Es 16
5 ANNUAL REPOTLS .+ o v« s s an v s momn s mms v s eimns soss 16
6 AMENAMENtS o v v s s nas s assas & o bedans oo s s 16
i Indemnification of

Corporate Agents . ....... ....oueeununn.. 17

- i -



AMENDED AND RESTATED BYLAWS
MAIN STREET AH?EETIC CLUBS, INC.
ARTICLE I - OFFI

Section 1. The principal executive offices of MAIN STREET ATHLETIC
CLUBS, INC. (the "Corporation") shall be at such place inside or outside the State of California
as the Board of Directors may determine from time to time.

Section 2. The Corporation may also have offices at such other places as the
Board of Directors may from time to time designate, or as the business of the Corporation may
require.

ARTICLE II - SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETINGS

Section 1. Annual Meetings. The annual meeting of the shareholders of the
Corporation for the election of directors to succeed those whose terms expire and for the
transaction of such other business as may properly come before the meeting shall be held each
year on the third Tuesday in February at the principal office of the Corporation, or at such other
time and place as may be determined by the Board of Directors, if not a legal holiday, and if
a legal holiday, then on the next succeeding business day at the same hour and place. If the
annual meeting of the shareholders be not held as herein prescribed, the election of directors
may be held at any meeting thereafter called pursuant to these Bylaws.

Section 2. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the shareholders, for any
purpose whatsoever, unless otherwise prescribed by statute, may be called at any time by the
Chairman of the Board, the Chief Executive Officer, the President, or by the Board of Directors,

or by one or more shareholders holding not less than ten percent (10%) of the voting power of



the Corporation.

Section 3. Place. All meetings of the shareholders shall be at any place within
or without the State of California designated either by the Board of Directors or by written
consent of the holders of a majority of the shares entitled to vote thereat, given either before or
after the meeting. In the absence of any such designation, shareholders’ meetings shall be held
at the principal executive office of the Corporation.

Section 4. Notice. Notice of meetings of the shareholders of the Corporation
shall be given in writing to each shareholder entitled to vote, either personally or by first-class
mail (unless the Corporation has 500 or more shareholders determined as provided by the
California Corporations Code on the record date for the meeting, in which case notice may be
sent by third-class mail) or other means of written communication, charges prepaid, addressed
to the shareholder at his address appearing on the books of the Corporation or given by the
shareholder to the Corporation for the purpose of notice. Notice of any such meeting of share-
holders shall be sent to each shareholder entitled thereto not less than ten (10) (or, if sent by
third-class mail, 30) nor more than 60 days before the meeting. Said notice shall state the place,
date and hour of the meeting and, (1) in the case of special meetings, the general nature of the
business to be transacted, and no other business may be transacted, or (2) in the case of annual
meetings, those matters which the Board of Directors, at the time of the mailing of the notice,
intends to present for action by the shareholders, but subject to Section 601(f) of the California
Corporations Code any proper matter may be presented at the meeting for shareholder action,
and (3) in the case of any meeting at which directors are to be elected, the names of the

nominees intended at the time of the mailing of the notice to be presented by management for



election.

Section 5. Adjourned Meetings. Any shareholders’ meeting may be adjourned
from time to time by the vote of the holders of a majority of the voting shares present at the
meeting either in person or by proxy. Notice of any adjourned meeting need not be given unless
a meeting is adjourned for forty-five (45) days or more from the date set for the original
meeting.

Section 6. Quorum. The presence in person or by proxy of the persons entitled
to vote a majority of the shares entitled to vote at any meeting constitutes a quorum for the
transaction of business. The shareholders present at a duly called or held meeting at which a
quorum is present may continue to do business until adjournment, notwithstanding the
withdrawal of enough shareholders to leave less than a quorum, if any action taken (dmer than
adjournment) is approved by at least a majority of the shares required to constitute a quorum.

In the absence of a quorum, any meeting of shareholders may be adjourned from
time to time by the vote of a majority of the shares, the holders of which are either present in
person or represented by proxy thereat, but no other business may be transacted, except as
provided above.

Section 7. Consent to Shareholder Action. Any action which may be taken at

any meeting of shareholders may be taken without a meeting and without prior notice, if a
consent in writing, setting forth the action so taken, shall be signed by the holders of outstanding
shares having not less than the minimum number of votes that would be necessary to authorize
or take such action at a meeting at which all shares entitled to vote thereon were present and

voted; provided, however, that (1) unless the consents of all shareholders entitled to vote have



been solicited in writing, notice of any shareholder approval without a meeting by less than
unanimous written consent shall be given as required by the California Corporations Code, and
(2) directors may not be elected by written consent except by unanimous written consent of all
shares entitled to vote for the election of directors.

Any written consent may be revoked by a writing received by the Secretary of the
Corporation prior to the time that written consents of the number of shares required to authorize
the proposed action have been filed with the Secretary.

Section 8. Waiver of Notice. The transactions of any meeting of shareholders,
however called and noticed, and whenever held, shall be as valid as though had at a meeting
duly held after regular call and notice, if a quorum be present either in person or by proxy, and
if, either before or after the meeting, each of the persons entitled to vote, not present in person
or by proxy, signs a written waiver of notice, or a consent to the holding of the meeting, or an
approval of the minutes thereof. All such waivers, consents, or approvals shall be filed with the
corporate records or made a part of the minutes of the meeting.

Section 9. Voting. The voting at all meetings of shareholders need not be by
ballot, but any qualified shareholder before the voting begins may demand a stock vote
whereupon such stock vote shall be taken by ballot, each of which shall state the name of the
shareholder voting and the number of shares voted by such shareholder, and if such ballot be
cast by a proxy, it shall also state the name of such proxy.

At any meeting of the shareholders, every shareholder having th¢ right to vote
shall be entitled to vote in person, or by proxy appointed in a writing subscribed by such

shareholder and bearing a date not more than eleven (11) months prior to said meeting, unless



the writing states that it is irrevocable and satisfies Section 705 (e) of the California Corporations
Code, in which event it is irrevocable for the period specified in said writing and said Section
705(e).

Section 10. Record Dates. In the event the Board of Directors fixes a day for
the determination of shareholders of record entitled to vote as provided in Section 1 of Article
V of these Bylaws, then, subject to the provisions of the General Corporation Law of the State
of California, only persons in whose name shares entitled to vote stand on the stock records of
the Corporation at the close of business on such day shall be entitled to vote.

If no record date is fixed:

The record date for determining shareholders entitled to notice of or to vote at a
meeting of shareholders shall be at the close of business on the business day next preceding the
day notice is given or, if notice is waived, at the close of business on the business day next
preceding the day on which the meeting is held,; The record date for determining
shareholders entitled to give consent to corporate action in writing without a meeting, when no
prior action by the Board of Directors is necessary, shall be the day on which the first written
consent is given; and

The record date for determining shareholders for any other purpose shall be at the
close of business on the day on which the Board of Directors adopts the resolution relating
thereto, or the sixtieth (60th) day prior to the date of such other action, whichever is later.

A determination of shareholders of record entitled to notice of or to vote at a
meeting of shareholders shall apply to any adjournment of the meeting unless the Board of

Directors fixes a new record date for the adjourned meeting, but the Board of Directors shall



fix a new record date if the meeting is adjourned for more than forty-five (45) days.

Section 11. Cumulative Voting for Election of Directors. Provided the
candidate’s name has been placed in nomination prior to the voting and one or more shareholders
has given notice at the meeting prior to the voting of the shareholder’s intent to cumulate the
shareholder’s votes, every shareholder entitled to vote at any election for directors shall have
the right to cumulate such shareholder’s votes and give one candidate a number of votes equal
to the number of directors to be elected multiplied by the number of votes to which the
shareholder’s shares are normally entitled, or distribute the shareholder’s votes on the same
principle among as many candidates as the shareholder shall think fit. The candidates receiving
the highest number of votes of the shares entitled to be voted for them up to the number of
directors to be elected by such shares are elected.

ARTICLE III - BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Section 1. Powers. Subject to any limitations in the Articles of Incorporation

or these Bylaws and to any provision of the California Corporations Code requiring shareholder
authorization or approval for a particular action, the business and affairs of the Corporation shall
be managed and all corporate powers shall be exercised by, or under the direction of, the Board
of Directors. The Board of Directors may delegate the management of the day-to-day operation
of the business of the Corporation to a management company or other person provided that the
business and affairs of the Corporation shall be managed and all corporate powers shall be
exercised, under the ultimate direction of the Board of Directors.

Section 2. Number, Tenure and Qualifications. The authorized number of

directors of this corporation shall be a variable number within the range of not less than three



and not more than five. The initial number of directors of this Corporation following adoption
of these Amended and Restated Bylaws shall be fixed at three. The variable number of directors
may be changed by a duly adopted amendment to the Articles of Incorporation or by an amend-
ment to this bylaw duly adopted by the vote or written consent of the holders of a majority of
the shares issued and outstanding and entitled to vote.

Directors shall hold office until the next annual meeting of shareholders and until
their respective successors are elected. If any such annual meeting is not held, or the directors
are not elected thereat, the directors may be elected at any special meeting of shareholders held
for that purpose. Directors need not be shareholders.

Section 3. Regular Meetings. A regular annual meeting of the Board of
Directors shall be held without other notice than this Bylaw immediately after, and at the same
place as, the annual meeting of shareholders. The Board of Directors may provide for other
regular meetings from time to time by resolution.

Section 4. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Board of Directors may
be called at any time by the Chairman of the Board, or the Chief Executive Officer or the
President or any Vice President, or the Secretary or any director. Written notice of the time and
place of all special meetings of the Board of Directors shall be delivered personally or by
telephone or telegraph to each director at least forty-eight (48) hours before the meeting, or sent
to each director by first-class mail, postage prepaid, at least four (4) days before the meeting.
Such notice need not specify the purpose of the meeting. Notice of any meeting of the Board
of Directors need not be given to any director who signs a waiver of notice, whether before or

after the meeting, or who attends the meeting without protesting prior thereto or at its



commencement, the lack of notice to such director.

Section 5. Place of Meetings. Meetings of the Board of Directors may be held
at any place within or without the State of California, which has been designated in the notice,
or if not stated in the notice or there is no notice, the principal executive office of the
Corporation or as designated by the resolution duly adopted by the Board of Directors.

Section 6. Participation by Telephone. Members of the Board of Directors may
participate in a meeting through use of conference telephone or similar communications
equipment, so long as all members participating in such meeting can hear one another.

Section 7. Quorum. A quorum at all meetings of the Board of Directors shall
be a majority .of the directors on the board at the time of notice for such meeting, or if the
meeting is held without notice, at the time of such meeting. In the absence of a quorum a
majority of the directors present may adjourn any meeting to another time and place. If a
meeting is adjourned for more than twenty-four (24) hours, notice of any adjournment to another
time or place shall be given prior to the time of the reconvened meeting to the directors who
were not present at the time of adjournment.

Section 8. Action at Meeting. Every act or decision done or made by a majority
of the directors present at a meeting duly held at which a quorum is present is the act of the
Board of Directors. A meeting at which a quorum is initially present may continue to transact
business notwithstanding the withdrawal of directors, if any action taken is approved by at least
a majority of the required quorum for such meeting.

Section 9. Waiver of Notice. The transactions of any meeting of the Board of

Directors, however called and noticed or wherever held, are as valid as though had at a meeting



duly held after regular call and notice if a quorum is present and if, either before or after the
meeting, each of the directors not present signs a written waiver of notice, a consent to holding
the meeting, or an approval of the minutes thereof. All such waivers, consents and approvals
shall be filed with the corporate records or made a part of the minutes of the meeting.

| Section 10. Action Without Meeting. Any action required or permitted to be
taken by the Board of Directors may be taken without a meeting, if all members of the Board
individually or collectively consent in writing to such action. Such written consent or consents
shall be filed with the minutes of the proceedings of the Board. Such action by written consent
shall have the same force and effect as a unanimous vote of such directors.

Section 11. Removal. The Board of Directors may declare vacant the office of
a director who has been declared of unsound mind by an order of court or who has been
convicted of a felony.

The entire Board of Directors or any individual director may be removed from
office without cause by a vote of a shareholder holding a majority of the outstanding shares
entitled to vote at an election of directors; provided, however, that unless the entire Board is
removed, no individual director may be removed when the votes cast against removal, or not
consenting in writing to such removal, would be sufficient to elect such director if voted cumula-
tively at an election at which the same total number of vétes cast were cast (or, if such action
is taken by written consent, all shares entitled to vote were voted) and the entire number of
directors authorized at the time of the director’s most recent election were then being elected.

In the event an office of a director is so declared vacant or in case the Board or

any one or more directors be so removed, new directors may be elected at the same meeting.



Section 12. Resignations. Any director may resign effective upon giving written
notice to the Chairman of the Board, the President, the Secretary or the Board of Directors of
the Corporation, unless the notice specifies a later time for the effectiveness of such resignation.
If the resignation is effective at a future time, a successor may be elected to take office when
the resignation becomes effective.

Section 13. Vacancies. Except for a vacancy created by the removal of a
director, all vacancies in the Board of Directors, whether caused by resignation, death or
otherwise, may be filled by a majority of the remaining directors, though less than a quorum,
or by a sole remaining director, and each director so elected shall hold office until his successor
is elected at an annual, regular or special meeting of the shareholders. Vacancies created by the
removal of a director may be filled only by approval of the shareholders. The shareholders may
elect a director at any time to fill any vacancy not filled by the directors. Any such election by
written consent requires the consent of a majority of the outstanding shares entitled to vote.

Section 14. Compensation. No stated salary shall be paid directors, as such,
for their services, but, by resolution of the Board of Directors, a fixed sum and expenses of
attendance, if any, may be allowed for attendance at each regular or special meeting of such
Board; provided tha£ nothing herein contained shall be construed to preclude any director from
serving the Corporation in any other capacity and receiving compensation therefor. Members
of special or standing committees may be allowed like cbmpensation for attending committee
meetings.

Section 15. Committees. The Board of Directors may, by resolution adopted

by a majority of the authorized number of directors, designate one or more committees, each
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consisting of two (2) or more directors, to serve at the pleasure of the Board of Directors. The
Board of Directors may designate one or more directors as alternate members of any committee,
who may replace any absent member at any meeting of the committee. The appoiniment of
members or alternate members of a committee requires the vote of a majority of the authorized
number of directors. Any such committee, to the extent provided in the resolution of the Board
of Directors, shall have all the authority of the Board 6f Directors in the management of the
business and affairs of the Corporation, except with respect to (a) the approval of any action
requiring shareholders’ approval or approval of the outstanding shares, (b) the filling of
vacancies on the Board or any committee, (c) the fixing of compensation of directors for serving
on the Board or a committee, (d) the adoption, amendment or repeal of Bylaws, (e) the
amendment or repeal of any resolution of the Board which by its express terms is not so
amendable or repealable, (f) a distribution to shareholders, except at a rate or in a periodic
amount or within a price range determined by the Board, and (g) the appointment of other
committees of the Board or the members thereof.
ARTICLE IV - OFFICERS

Section 1. Number and Term. The officers of the Corporation shall be a

Chairman of the Board, a Chief Executive Officer, a President, one or more Vice Presidents,
a Secretary, a Chief Financial Officer, and such Assistant Secretaries and Financial Officers as
the Board shali deem reasonable, all of which shall be chosen by the Board of Directors. In
addition, the Board of Directors may appoint such other officers as may be deemed expedient
for the proper conduct of the business of the Corporation, each of whom shall have such

authority and perform such duties as the Board of Directors may from time to time determine.
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The officers to be appointed by the Board of Directors shall be chosen annually at the regular
meeting of the Board of Directors held after the annual meeting of shareholders and shall serve
at the pleasure of the Board of Directors. If officers are not chosen at such meeting of the
Board of Directors, they shall be chosen as soon thereafter as shall be convenient. Each officer
shall hold office until his successor shall have been duly chosen or until his removal or
resignation.

Section 2. Inability' to Act. In the case of absence or inability to act of any
officer of the Corporation and of any person herein authorized to act in his place, the Board of
Directors may from time to time delegate the powers or duties of such officer to any other
officer, or any director or other person whom it may select.

Section 3. Removal and Resignation. Any officer chosen by the Board of
Directors may be removed at any time, with or without cause, by the affirmative vote of a
majority of all the members of the Board of Directors.

Any officer chosen by the Board of Directors may resign at any time by giving
written notice of said resignation to the Corporation. Unless a different time is specified therein,
such resignation shall be effective upon its receipt by the Chairman of the Board, the President,
the Secretary or the Board of Directors.

Section 4. Vacancies. A vacancy in any office because of any cause may be
filled by the Board of Directors for the unexpired portion of the term.

Section 5. Chairman of the Board. The Chairman of the Board shall preside
at all meetings of the Board.

Section 6. Chief Executive Officer. Subject to the supervisory powers of the
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Board of Directors, the Chief Executive Officer of the Corporation shall have 'general
supervision, direction, and control of the business and the officers of the Co@mﬁon. He or
she shall preside at all meetings of the shareholders and, in the absence or nonexistence of a
Chairman of the Board, at all meetings of the Board of Directors. He or she shall have the
general powers and duties of management usually vested in the éhief executive officer of a
corporation and shall have such other powers and duties as may be prescribed by the Board of
Directors or these Bylaws. |

Section 7. President. The President shall be the general manager of the
Corporation, subject to the control of the Chief Executive Officer or the Board of Directors, and
as such shall preside at all meetings of shareholders at which the Chief Executive Officer or
Chairman of the Board are not presiding, shall have general supervision of the affairs of the
Corporation, shall sign or countersign or authorize another officer to sign all certificates,
contracts, and other instruments of the Corporation as authorized by the Board of Directors,
shall make reports to the Board of Directors and shareholders, and shall perform all such other
duties as are incident to such office or are properly required by the Board of Directors.

Section 8. Vice President. In the absence of the President, or in the event of
such officer’s death, disability or refusal to act, the Vice President, or in the event there be more
than one Vice President, the Vice Presidents in the order designated at the time of their
selection, or in the absence of any such designation, then the order of their selection, shall
perform the duties of Presideﬁt, and when so acting, shall have all the powers and be subject
to all restrictions upon the President. Each Vice Presideﬂt shall have such powers and discharge

such duties as may be assigned from time to time by the President or by the Board of Directors.
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Section 9. Secretary. The Secretary shall see that notices for all meetings are
given in accordance with the provisions of these'Bylaws and as required by law, shall keep
minutes of all meetings, shall have charge of the seal and the corporate bé()ks, and shall make
such reports and perform such other duties as are incident to such office, or as are properly
required by the President or by the Board .of Directors.

The Assistant Secretary or the Assistant Secretaries, in the order of their seniority,
shall, in the absence or disability of the Secretary, or in the event of such officer’s refusal to act,
perform the duties and exercise the powers and discharge such duties as may be assigned from
time to time by the President or by the Board of Directors.

Section 10. Chief Financial Officer. The Chief Financial Officer may also be
designated by the alternate title of "Treasurer." The Chief Financial Officer shall have custody
of all moneys and securities of the Corporation and shall keep regular books of account. Such
officer shall disburse the funds of the Corporation in payment of the just demands against the
Corporation, or as may be ordered by the Board of Directors, taking proper vouchers for such
disbursements, and shall render to the Board of Directors from time to time as may be required
of such officer, an account of all transactions as Chief Financial Officer and of the financial
condition of the Corporation. Such officer shall perform all duties incident to such office or
which are properly required by the President or by the Board of Directors.

The Assistant Financial Officer or the Aésistant Financial Officers, in the order
of their seniority, shall, in the absence or disability of the Chief Financial Officer, or in the
event of such officer’s refusal to act, perform the duties and exercise the powers of the Chief

Financial Officer, and shall have such powers and discharge such duties as may be assigned
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from time to time by the President or by the Board of Directors.

Section 11. Salaries. The salaries of the officers shall be fixed from time to
time by the Board of Directors and no officer shall be prevented from receiving such salary by
reason of the fact that such officer is also a director of the Corporation.

Section 12. Officers Holding More than One Office. Any two or more offices
may be held by the same person, but no officer shall execute, acknowledge or verify any
instrument in more than one capacity, unless at the time of such execution, acknowledgement
or verification there is only one person holding such offices.

ARTICLE V - MISCELLANEOUS

Section 1. Record Date and Closing of Stock Books. The Board of Directors
may fix a time in the future as a record date for the determination of the shareholders entitled
to notice of and to vote at any meeting of shareholders or entitled to receive payment of any
dividend or distribution, or any allotment of rights, or to exercise rights in respect to any other
lawful action. The record date so fixed shall not be more than sixty (60) nor less than ten (10)
days prior to the date of the meeting or event for the purposes of which it is fixed. When a
record date is so fixed, only shareholders of record at the close of business on that date are
entitled to notice of and to vote at the meeting or to receive the dividend, distribution, or
allotment of rights, or to exercise the rights, as the case may be, notwithstanding any transfer
of any shares on the books of the Corporation after the record date.

The Board of Directors may close the books of the Corporation against transfers
of shares during the whole or any part of a period of not more than. sixty (60) days prior to the

date of a shareholders’ meeting, the date when the right to any dividend, distribution, or
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allotment of rights vests, or the effective date of any change, conversion or exchange of shares.

Section 2. Certificates. Certificates of stock shall be issued in alphabetical or
numerical order and each shareholder shall be entitled to a certificate signed in the name of the
Corporation by the Chairman of the Board or the President or a Vice President, and the Chief
Financial Officer, the Secretary or an Assistant Secretary, certifying to the number of shares
owned by such shareholder. Any or all of the signatures on the certificate may be facsimile.
Prior to the due presentment for registration of transfer in the stock transfer book of the
Corporation, the registered owner shall be treated as the person exclusively entitled to vote, to
receive notifications and otherwise to exercise all the rights and powers of an owner, except as
expressly provided otherwise by the laws of the State of California.

Section 3. Representation of Shares in Other Corporations. Shares of other
corporations standing in the name of this Corporation may be voted or represented and all
incidents thereto may be exercised on behalf of the Corporation by the Chairman of the Board,
the Chief Executive Officer, the President or any Vice President and the Chief Financial Officer
or the Secretary or an Assistant Secretary.

Section 4. Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of the Corporation shall end on the 31st
day of December.

Section 5. Annual Reports. The Annual Report to shareholders, described in
the California Corporations Code, is expressly waived and dispensed with.

Section 6. Amendments. Bylaws may be adopted, amended, or repealed by the
vote or the written consent of shareholders entitled to exercise a majority of the voting power

of the Corporation. Subject to the right of shareholders to adopt, amend, or repeal Bylaws,
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Bylaws may be adopted, amended, or repealed by the Board of Directors, except that a Bylaw
amendment changing the authorized number of directors may be adopted by the Board of
Directors only if these Bylaws permit a variable number of directors and the Bylaw or
amendment thereof adopted by the Board of Directors changes the authorized number of
directors within the limits specified in these Bylaws.

Section 7. Indemnification of Corporate Agents. The Corporation shall
indemnify each of its agents against expenses, judgments, fines, settlements and other amounts,
actually and reasonably incurred by such person by reason of such person’s having been made
or having threatened to be made a party to a proceeding in accordance with the provisions of
the Articles of Incorporation and in excess of the provisions of Section 317 of the California
Corporations Code and the Corporation shall advance the expenses reasonably expected to be
incurred by such agent in defending any such proceeding upon receipt of the undertaking
required by subdivision (f) of such Section. The terms "agent", "proceeding" and "expenses"
made in this Section 7 shall have the same meaning as such terms in the California Corporations
Code.

I, Chester Billingsley, Secretary of MAIN STREET ATHLETIC CLUBS,
INC., a California corporation, do hereby certify that the foregoing Amended and Restated
Bylaws of MAIN STREET ATHLETIC CLUBS, INC. are the duly adopted Bylaws of the

Corporation as they are in effect on the date hereof.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto subscribed my name this 6th day

Chester Billingsley o
Secretary ’

of January, 1995.

c:\wp51\main\bylaws.amd
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‘Chet Billingsley
President & CEO

EXHIBIT 4

A MENTOR CAPITAL
"P,0.Box 1709 a Ramona, CA 92065
(760) 788 —4700 & (760788 - 2525 Fax

Chet @ MentorCapitai. com
www . MentorCapital. com

Monday, May 7, 2007

Subject: Summary of Key Polnts ix Reorganization Plan & General Information

Attached please find some general corporate informatjon_,

There are two basic reorganization documents: first, the 20 page Plan of Reorganization;
and, second, the 99 page Disclosure Statement., (I see the ¢opy service rearranged someé pages out
of order, sorry). These two documerits together serve as the registration document and prospectus
that weré reviewed by the SEC until they had “No Comment”. In the 120 pages there is much
general reorganization information so I will try to point you toward the securities related

information here.

Section _.Description Page 5
Footnote: 6 Each and every issiied security is exempt Disclosure pg5
New Equity Securitiés  Warrants at $1, $3, $5 & $7 Disclostre pg49
Footnote 48 Warrants can be adjusted down in price Disclosure. pg50

Footnote 49
6.5(a) Termn
New Equily Securities

6.5(c) Redemption

6.5(c) Redemption

8.3 Stale Check

Reéverse split on shares does not affect the warrants Disclosure pg50

Warrants may be extended (and have been) Plan pgl3
Designee may redeem unexercised warrants Bisclosure pgs0
The warrants may be redeemed for $0.10 Plan pgs 13 - 14

when they are $1.00 per share in-the-money
on thirty day written notice.

Unredeemed warrants roll-up to the next higher Plan pgl4
strike price if not exercised.

No $0.10 is paid after 30 days if no contact Plan pgl7
Disclosure pg55



A MENTOR CAPITAL

Market Transfer Agent is MC Transfer Disclesure pg63
Five historic market makers

Compensation Billingsley salary $104,000 Disclosure pg71

I'hope the above information rvakes. it easier to havigate i:he réorganization documents. If I ¢an
answer any particular questions, please feel free to call me at (760) 788 - 4700.

Sincerely,

A MENTOR CAPITAL

Chet Billingsley
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WAYNE H. THOMAS, #84009
KATHRYN M. INFANTE, #64972
55 South Market Street, Suite 1660
San Jose, California 95113
Telephone: (408)295-9555

ATTORNEY'S FOR _
DEBTOR-IN-POSSESSION

inre

Main Street AC, Inc.,

dba  Mentor Capital,

fdba Main Street Athletic Clubs, Inc.,
Foxworthy Athietic Club,
Meridian Athletic Club,
Fremont Athletic Club,
Second Street Athletic Club, and
San Thomas Athletic Club,

| successor to:

Tech Start, and

Mentor Investors-I, L.P.,

Debtor;

‘Emniployer Identification
Number 77-0395098

CAMPEAU & THOMAS, A LAW CORPORATION

UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

Chapter 11

CaseNo. 98-56803-MM-11

DEBTOR'S SIXTH AMENDED
DISCLOSURE STATEMENT

ISSUANCE AND TRANSFER OF NEW EQUITY SECURITIES

Pursuant to the exemption contained in §1145 of the Bankruptcy Code, the New Equity
Securities- being issued to the holders of claims and interests under this Plan wiil not have to be
registered with the Securities & Exchenge Commission or registered or qualified with any state or

local securitiés regulator, nor will any securities issued on exercise of the Warrants issued to such
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INTRODUCTION
Main Street AC, Inc. ("Debtor"), a California corporation, has formulated a Plan of

Reorganization (the "Plan") to implemient a restructuring of its business affairs. The Debtor
Tequests your acceptance of the Plan. The Debtor has prepared this Disclosure Statement to
assist you in making your decision whether or not to accept the Plan.! '

‘A copy of the Plan accompanies this Disclosure Statement.” 'This Disclosure Statement
containg only a summary of the Plag. If confirmed, the Plan will be legally binding upon yoi:. An

understandirig of its provisions is, therefore, important. You are urged to read the Plan in full

Finaricial restrictions have required a reduction in the number of personnél available for
accounting functions. Also, much of the information regarding the history of the Debtor's current
business was received from sources outside the Debtor's.control.

THE DEBTOR IS UNABLE TO WARRANT OR REPRESENT THAT THE
INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN IS WITHOUT ERROR, ALTHOUGH
THE DEBTOR HAS MADE ALL REASONABLE EFFORTS UNDER THE
CIRCUMSTANCES TO BE ACCURATE.

YOTING.ON THE PLAN
The Debtor intends to seek Confirmation of the Plan at a hearing before the Barkuptey

Court at a timg and date to bé provided to parties entitled to notice.

-Parties Entitled. to Vote

Holders of Allawed Claims and Allowed Interests in the following classes are entitled to

| { vote on the Plan’. [See "Description of Claims and Description of Equity Security Interests."]

This Disclosure Statement is intended to provide you with adequate information, in compliance with
§1125(a)(1) of the U.S, Bankiuptcy Code ("Code™). In thisinstance, adeguate infoimiation means information
of a kind, and in sufficient detail, as far as is reasonably praciicable in light of the nature and histofy of the
Debtor and the condition of its books. and records, that would enable a hypothetical reasondble investor typical
of the holders of claims or interests eligible 1o vote to make an informed judgment about the Plan,
3 The terms defined in the "Definidions" section of the Plan have the same meanings in this Disclosure
Statement.

*  The Court has approved settlement agreements with Mr. Blake Wilson and Mr, David Morris [See Debtor's
Dispute with Wilson and Moiris]. The-affect of ong coritrion provision of those séttlemient sgreements is that
Sierra West, Pac West, Goldén West;, Sun West, and. ATM Nevada agree to-vote in acoordance with an

. DEBTOR’S SIXTH AMENDED
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Secured claims

Heller First Capzta[ Class A=1
ATM Nevada* Class A-2
Oil Well Interests Class A-3
Unsecured claims ClassC
Equlty Security Interests ]
Preferred Stock - Class D-1 |
Common Stock Class D-2
Formerly Issued and Trading . D-2(a)
Stock Motion (Restricted) . D-2(b)
$1.00 Options Class D-3
$4.00 Options Class D4
$6.:00 Options Class D=5
$10.00 Options Class D-6
Ilow.to Vote

Creditors and shareholders entitled to vote on the Plan may vote by completing the
enclosed Ballot-and mailing or faxing it to Campeau & Thomas, 55 South Market Street, Suite
1660, San Jose, California 95113, telecopier: (408)255-6606.

IN ORDER TO BE COUNTED, A BALLOT MUST BE RECEIVED
BY CAMPEAU & THOMAS NOT LATER THAN THE DATE

ESTABLISHED BY THE COURT AND SET OUT IN THE
BALLOT.

| | Determination of Regord Date for Voting of Common Stock

THE RECORD DATE FOR VOTING ON THE PLAN BY HOLDERS OF
THE DERTOR'S COMMON STOCK 1S DECEMBER 2, 1999, THE DATE
OF THE QRDER BY THE BANKRUPTCY COURT APPROVING THIS
DISCLOSURE STATEMENT AND WHICH IS SET OUT ON THE
NOTICE OF HEARING FOR CONFIRMATION OF THE PLAN,
THEREFORE, ONLY PERSONS HOLDING SHARES OF THE

unofficial comrmittes of creditors that has been formed by the investors (this commitfee has not been appointed
by the Office of the U.S. Trustees). The committee is currently chaired by Mr. Ernest Williams who will not
-vole on bankrapicy matters. Voting members are Ed Gurmack (ATM), Dallas Ariderson (ATM), Maurice
Morierty (ATM), Anthony Lz Rossa-(CA Wells), Vipin Bhivsar (Oklahoma Wells), Fred Work:(CA Wells)
and Louis Hugar (CA Wells). Sierra West, Pac West, Golden West, Sun West, and ATM Nevada, by virtue of
provisions in theif respective Purchase Agreemenits, have cach authorized Relianice Corporation 10 act as their
respective agent t0 vote .on the acceptance or rejection of the Plan. That agency relationship notwithstanding,
the Debior has obtained acceptance of the approach that the general parther, president or other specified
confrotling principal of each claimant will vote on the Plan directly rather than through an agent.

?  Itisthe entities that hold the security interests thaf comprise Class A-2 and.A-3 (th¢ oil and gas partnerships
4nd joint venifures, and the ATM LLCs) and who wili vote on the Plan, Nonetheless, the Debtor will conduict
ani advisory vote on the Plan by the investors of the entitics to establish that the Plari is in concert with the

desires of these interést holders also.
2 ‘DEBTOR’S SIXTH AMENDED
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DEBTOR'S COMMON STOCK AS OF THAT DATE ARE ENTITLED TO
VOTE ON THE PLAN.

Standard for Acceptance of Plan _
In order for the Plan to be accepted by a class of claims, the holders of two-thirds in

amount and more than one-half in number of Altowed Claims in that class who vote on the Plan
must vote for acceptance. For-the Plan to be accepted by a cluss of interests, the Plan must be

aceepted by the holders of at least two-thirds in amount of Allowed Interests whose holders vote

1 on the Plan.

Cramdown Alternative
Further, if sufficient acceptirnces are not received, the Debtor may elect to request

Confirmation of the Plan under §1129(b) of the Cede. Such a request could resultin

Cortfirmation notwithstanding rejection by many creditors-and/or interest holders.

Biniling Effect of Plan
Even though a creditor or interest holder may choose not to vote or may. vote against the

Plan, the creditor or interest holder will be beund by the terms and treatment set forth in the Plan

if'it is confirmed by the Court. Parties who fail to vote will not be counted'in détermining

acceptance or reéjection of the Plan. Allowance of a.claim or interest for vofing purposes does not

necessarily mean that it will be allowed for purposes. of distribution under the Plan.

SUMMARY OF THE PLAN AND ITS CIRCUMSTANCES

Sinee its formation, the Debtor had oparated several athletic clubs serving the general
public. As aresult of an offéring of its cottimoh stock, the stock became tradable in the public
market, and the Debtor currently has approximately 400 shareholders. [See Description of Equity
Security Interests. ] ‘

The Debtoi’s operations were re-financed, in part, by a _debt consolidation loan from
Heller First Capital Corporation (“Heller™) that paid off equipment leases and other debts at a
discount. As a result, Heller held a secuﬁw imterest in substantiafiy ail of the Debtor's assets. The

3 PEBTOR’S SIXTH AMENDED
DISCLOSURE STATEMENT
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Debtor began experiencing. financial difficulties in late spring of 1997, due to the loss of funds
expended in connection with a failed attempt to merge with another athletié club chain. This
resulted in the need for the Debtor to either obitain new financing, sell its athletic club assets, or
reorganize its affairs. The Debtor made several efforts to obtain financing, renegotiate its credit
arrangements with Heller, and sell its athletic clubs. In mid-1997, the Debtor had almost entered
into a binding agreement to sel the.clubs to a major chain when Heller caused a receiver to be
appointed, who took control of the clubs and sold all of their assets, with the proceeds being '
applied to Heller's claim. As a result, the Debtor became, essentially, an empty shiell. [See
History of the Diebtor's Prior Businigss.] The Debtor was left with no.material assets and
unsecured liabilities now totaling approximately $2.6 million, [See ng;ption of Claims. }
However, the Debtor's common stock tentained eligible for trading in the public market,

After a period of dormancy, shortly prior to commencement of this case; the Debtor
acquired interests in several oil and gas projects and several companies which own automated

teller machines(“ATMSs”). [See "Properties Acquired"” under Debtor's Current Business.] In

|| returts; the Debtor issued promissory notes secured by purchase money security interests in the

assets acquired and their products and proceeds,

At the time of the merger, in August 1998; the Debtor was led to believe the debts owed

| | to the sefling eritities approximately equial the funds originally invested into those entities but the

Debtor has since determined that the Debts far exceed the value of the assets acquired. Until

|| receritly, the financials associated with these assets were not adequate to allow a hypothetical

| reasonable investor to make an investment decision upon’,

The Debtor sought Court authorization to issue freely tradable shares that would be

The Debtor will pay directly or through commissions approximatety $10,000 to have an engineering audit
performed on the California wells. Additionally, the seitlement process and perhaps threat of investor lawsuit
has caused Mr. Morris to be more cocperative in directing information to be readily supptied to the Debtor on
the ATM properties. For the first time, on August 31, 1999, the Debtor was supplied with a detailed list of the
ATM locations to support 2 contemplated sale of these assets. Although 2 CPA firm will still fequire
additional information, the $10,000 engineering audit and newly supplied detailed ATM information make it
possible for the Debitor to now construct valuations on the exit from its reorganization that will pass SEC
financial audit criteria.

4 DEBTOR’S SIXTH AMENDED
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Treatmeént of Claims ang

exempt from normal registratidn requirements, as provided in the Bankruptcy Code, to satisfy
secured claims associated with thé purchased assets, As a result of the opposition of the UST and
SEC thé Court denied this approuch. _

In its Pian, the Debtor is seeking Court permission to return the secured properties or their
proceeds from the oil well interests and to Heller Capital in satisfaction of their secured claims,
and to issve restricted shares, with the standard one year holding period, to the ATM entities it
purchased the ATM assets from in satisfaction of the secured portion of their claim.

These and substantially all the Debtor’s assets are subject to a purchase money security
interest, therefore, if the Debtor were liquidated at this time, all creditors and shareholders, other
than the selling entities who previously held claims secured by the acquired assets, would receive
nothing. [See Liquidation Analysis.}

Under the Plan, [See Means for Implementation of the Plan.} the Debtor will issue

common stock and warrants to its ereditors and warrants to'its current shareholders. [See

Interestsynder the Plan.]

Most (54%) of the Debtor’s securities are restricted® or have already met securities

registration requiremenits. The New Equity Securities issued under the Plari will be publicly

| tradable. On an equivalent share basis these represent 46% of the total équity value issued by the

Each and-every security issued under the Debtor’s Plan is exempt from régistration under the Secutities: Acts
onaccouttt of the exemption provided under Section 1145 of the Bankniptey Code,  The Debtor his. submitied
alengihy memorandum prepared by Debior's Council (See “Supplemental Memoraridur it Support of
Disclosure Statement” attached to “Debtor’s Mémoranduin in Support of Approval of Its Proposed Fifth
Amended Disclosire Statement” November 18, 1999): that is available through the Clerk's office that details
extensive legal suppert of the Disclosure Staiement in general and:the exemptions from registration in
particutar. Although the securities issued are exempt from registration under Section 1145, the Deblor is
contracteally limiting their resale as if they were issned under non-bankrypicy securities fegulations. The
principdl exeifiptions that woiild apply in that case are 4(2), 504D and 144 and the import here is that these
secuities generally need to be held for one year prior {6 resale. Throughout this disclosure: document the
Debtor ¢mphasizes and presents the issuaice of shards under the nommial securitics fegulations to highilight
that the principal purpose of the Plan is-niot the avoidance of the secoritics laws. and holding periods.
However, although the Debtor will act and herein presents the issuance of testricted shares as if only 4(2), 144
and the securities regulations apply, in Tact, the overriding exemption is-under 1145 and the technical
Timitations of 4¢2) and 144 and related regulations are only contractual obligations that.the Debtor has
indicated to the Court that it will impose upon itself to-act as if thes securities regulations were fully applied.
As is more fully detailed in the Supplemental m¢morandum, in the case of technical violatiohs of the securities
laws; in this regard, it is under Section 1145 that the-Debtor is issiing securities under this Plan.
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Debtor with the majority (41%) going to unsecured creditors. The Debtor expects that the ATM

assets will continue as a profitable business. [See Fuhire Business Operations.] The Debtor also
believes that the bustness and future small acquisitions (coupled with the issuance of the additional
shares and warrants) will result in an active trading market, eépecially after the trading restrictions
on most shares are liftéd after one year, that will creaté value and liquidity for all constituencies

angd gefierate a recovery for creditors. [See Market for New Equity Securities. ]

THE DEETOR CANNOT, OF COURSE, ASSURE THAT A VIABLE TRADING

MARKET WILL CONTINUE FOR THE SECURITIES TO BE ISSUED TO

CREDITORS AND SHAREHOLDERS UNDPER THE PLAN OR THAT THE

ASSETS BEING ACQUIRED WILY. GENERATE SIGNIFICANT VALUE FOR

THE REORGANIZED DEBTOR'S’ SHAREHOLDERS.

However, in light of the complete loss that unsecured creditors would -expetience if the
Debtor were to be liquidated, the Debtor believes that the Plan is in creditors” best interests
regardless of the level of success of the future business. Thig.is because the Plan offers a viable

possibility for payment to creditors, while liquidation assuredly prechudes payment.

" HISTORY OF THE DEBTOR'S PRIOR BUSINESS
The Debtor was incorporated in California in July of 1994. In December, 1994, cettain

assets of twio predetessor géneral partnerships and an investmient limited partnership were

contributed to the Debtor in exchange for stock.

Athletic Club Oneraﬁons'
From its formation until mid-1997, the Debtor's primary business was the operation of

athiletic clubs: Meridian Athletic Chub, Second Street Athletic Club, and Foxworthy Athletic Club
in San Jose, and Fremont Athletic Club ifi Fremont.

The Debtor generated revenueés from sale of club memberships. 1ts operations were also
re-financed through a consolidation loan from Heller. Heller's claim was secured by substantially

all of the Debtor's assets, including the assets of the athletic clubs. Heller loaned $1,200,000 to

7 The “Reorganized Debtor” is the Debtor after Confirmation of the Plan of Reorganization. The timing of the
Confirmation is uncertain and not completely within the Debtor’s control. Some actions now expected to be
completed afier Confirmition by the Reorganized Debtor may be completed before Confirmation by the

Debtor, or the reverse may be.true.
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the Debtor in September, 1996; althoigh the Debtor had been secking $1,500,000. While the
amount was sufficient to meet the currént financing needs, it left the Debtor vulnerable due to the
lack of the extra $300,000 working capital cushion.

In an effort to strengthen its financial position, the Debtor. signed a letter of intent and
entered into negotiations to purchase certain additional athletic clubs in Decembelr, 1996. In
anticipation of an impending ¢losing on the purchase, the Debtor incurred substantial expenses
which remain unpaid, When the proposed seller refused to complete the transaction, the Debtor

was left without the means to recover these eéxpensés and, in light of its barely adequate working

| capital structiire, the failute of the transaction resultéd in the Debtor's losing its ability to continue

operating on an independent basis. Accordingly,' the Debtor began a search for a merger ora

| purchaser for the Debtor's business.

Several offers were teceived and, in July, 1997, the Debtor received an offér to purchase
the business which appeared acceptable, The Debtor entered into serious negotiations with the
potential purchaser. Thie original offer for the business was based on projected revenues, with
maximum price of $1.5 million,

Concirrently, the Debtor had been considering the acquisition of several hundred parcels

| of land and their related sub-surface rights in exchange solély for shares of the Debtor's common

stock. The Debtor believed that acquisition of these unencrimbered parcels would significantly

| strengthen its financial position.

Very shortly thereafter, Heller declared the Debtor in default ﬁnder its loan dgroement,
commenced.a suit in California state court against ihie Debtor to collect its note, and obtsined
authority from that court for appeintment of a receiver to take possession of the Debtor's assets.
The receiver, among other actions, immediately chose the proposed purchaser to operate the '
Debtor's athletic clubs pending their sale and granted the proposed purchaser first right of refusal
on any final purchase, The proposed purchaser purchased many of the Debtor's assets from the
receiver, including the largest of the Debtor's ¢lubs and approximately 80% of the Debtor's

regularly paying membership accounts,

7 DEBTOR'S SIXTH AMENDED
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At the point when the receiver took control of the athletic clubs, the Debtor owed Heller
approximately $1,165,000 plus further legal and other expenses alleged to add $35,000. The
Debtor believes that the recanting purchaser paid Heller approximately $335,000, from which the

receiver claimed approximately $195,000 in expenses, netting $140,000 for Heller, The Debtor

| further believes that Heller sold the rest of the Debtor's equipment for approximately $260,000. If
: these figures dre correct, then, after the application of the $635,000 in notes o their proceeds

already received by Heller, the Debtor's outstanding obligation tQ. Heller would be reduced by
$1,035,000 to approximately $165,000. [See "Class A-7 (Heller)" under Description of Claims]
In tate Janiuary 1999, Heller provided the Debtor with records that indicate that the unsccured
balance could range up to $126,000 more than estimated and an amicable seftlement has been
reéached between Heller and the Debtor resulting in an agreed upon unsecured claim of
approximately $250,000.

After Heller's foreclosure, the Debtor had no material asscts untii its acquisition of the

cutrent businesses. [See Debtor's Current Business, ]

Mentor Capital

Sthiortly after the Diebtor was formed,  stall acquisition and developmeiit firm, Méiitor

-Capitai, ‘was merged with the Debtor, and the firm's skills were applied to the Debtor's activities

from time'to time, The Debtor continues to use the Mentor Capital name in connection with its
inivestment and acquisition activities.
1996 Stock Offering

The Debtor's common stock was originally issued to the former partners of the athletic

clabs (Joe Gigantino and Tech Stait) and also to the Mentor Investors- Limited Partnership, who

acquired such shares in cohmection with the Debtor's acquisitioh of their interests or assets. In
late 1995, the Debtor eonducted o private placement of shares of its common stock at a price of
$6.00 per share. In late 1995, the Debtor sold approximately 148,560 shares to approximately 40
sophisticated and accredited investors [as deéfined in Regulation D promulgated by the Securities

and Exchange Commission {"SEC") under the Securities Act of 1933],

8 DEBTOR'’S SIXTH AMENDED
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In early 1996, the Debtor filed a Qualification Statemént on Form 1-A with the SEC to
sell 500,000 $hares of common stock at $10.00 per share. This offering became effective in
. September, 1996. With this offering, the Debtor did not become subject to the reporting
requirements under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 ("Act"). In early 1997, the Debtor
comblied with a provision of SEC Rule 15c2-11 under the Act and lodged public information
about itself with broker-dealers, thus satisfying the public information requirements of SEC Rule
144 and permitting secondary trading to occur. The Debtor and selling shareholders collected
approximately $178,000 from their stock sales.
: Sinice March 10, 1997, thie Debtor's common stock has been quoted and trading 6n the
National Association of Securities Dealers' Over-the-Counter Bulletin Board System, under the
symbal MFIT (MFITQ duting thé pendency of the reorganization). The Debtor beligves that
there ate currently five brokers who act as market makers for the common stock. Currently, the

Debtor's common stock is held of record by approximately 320 persons, and the Debtor believes

1| there may be approxitnately 400 beneficial holders.

The stock was originally quoted on March 21, 1997, at $10.00 per share. In early July,
1997, it was traded at $4.00 pei shiare. Afier the Heller receiver wis dppointed, the stéck price
declined to $0.07 per share in August 1997, Since such time, the price has fuctuated between
$0.07 and $2.25 per share. In Jannary 1999, the Debtor received Court permission and
subsequently did sell 800,000 sharés to a sigrificant investor at a discount to $0.10 per share on
account of their restricted status. Since January 1999, the share price has been relatively flat at
approximately $0.18 per share bid and $0.32 asked.

Since the sppointment of the receiver, public trading volume has been erratic.
Approximately 2,500,000 shares have changed hands during such time, corresponding to an
average of 4,000 shares per day.

Debtor's Pye-acquisition Condition
As a result of the Heller foreclosure; the Debtor existed as a company with no material

| assets or business, The Debfor's curtent business arose from its negotiations with representatives

9 DEBTOR’S SIXTH AMENDED
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of several companies which desired to combine their divergent interests under a single umbrella,
Shortly prior to commencement of this case, the Debtor acquired the assets of several
entities” in exchange for promissory notes secured by the assets acquired. Shorily afier the
commencement of the case, the two main principals of the selling groups, Mr. Blake Wilson for
the California wells and Mr: ]javid Mon‘is for the ATMs, declined to turn over cash and records
of the Debtor, The Debtor filed a complaint (“Adversary Proceeding™) in the Bankruptcy Couﬁ

to cotmpel them to turn over the ¢ash and records. The Adversary Proceeding has been settled by

| all parties and dismissal of the proceeding is expected shortly. The acquisition of the entities has

been processed. Most of the entities operated. oil and/or gas well properties in California, and
Oklahoma. Other éntities owned and operated automated teller machines in Nevada, The entities'
interests in thesé properties were ttansferred to the Debtor, and the Debtor will continue to
operate the ATM assets during this case and the well assets until sold. The major [;ortion of the
well sale proceeds will be turned over to an investor trust and a minority retained in settlement

and used to finance the Plan.

Proposed Sale of Qil Well Assets gid Retuirn of Proceeds t6 Investors
The Court has indicated that the sale of assets and issuance of stock will not result in a

confirmable plan and suggested that the foreclosure on some of the assets perhaps should be
cotisidered. In its Plan, the Debtor proposes to aperate the ATM business and divést itself of the
oil and gas businesses that are tainted by pre-Debtor investment problems and diﬁicﬁlt to obtain a
financial audit on. To sccomplish this divestiture, the Debtor has concluded that it is in the best

business interests of the Debtor to complete the already initiated asset sale program and return the

B As the buyer in these multiple transactions, the Debtor is not privy'to the communication bétween the
principals and investors in-each of the entities it purchased. However, as part of each of the acquisition
agresments, the Debtor requested and received certification from the respective principals of each selling
group that the transactions were validly authorized, submitted to sharcholders, a quorum and affirmative vote
was achieved, the sellers are in compliance with securities Iaws withi regard {o the presentation of sale and full
disclositg of a1l matérial facts riscessary to perinit such shareholders to make informed decisions whether to
vote ini fayor of such transactions has been supplied to them,

10 DEBTOR’S SIXTH AMENDED
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net proceeds to the investors. The Debtor feels this approach should be followed for three
reasons:

1) 22% of the net sales proceeds of the California w;lls {$42,000) would redound to
Wilson or Morris. These proceeds will be retained by the Debtor in partial satisfaction of the
Court approved settlement with these parties. In no other fashion doés it seem reasonably
possible for the Debtor to divest itself of the wells arid still recover the settlement amounts
without resorting to lengthy and expeftsive litigation.

2) By contributing the 1iet sales procéeds to an investot trust the Debtor can fulfil a

-secondary fiduciary responsibility to take reasonable care to protéct the ecotionic interests of the

Californiz well investors. If instead, the assets were surrendered back directly to the entitics.
under the control of Wilson, then their ifitetests would bé uaprotectéd and perhaps the economic
harm already done to the investors would be increased.

3) The Oklshoma wells need. to be sold immediately or they will soon revert to the land

‘owner for non-production. Also, etié California well s & under a “Held By Produstion™ lease

whiich is now in jeopardy. I not sold by the Debtor, then it is unlikely that anothier sale can be

|} cosrdimated by any other eitity in 4 timely fashiors. In that case, the econormic interests of the

Oklahoma investors would be completely lost and the California well investor interest deminished,
As of the submittal of this Disclosure Statement all. of the sales of the various assets are

finalized. In suthmary, the well assets have been sold for the following amounts:

California Wells $205,000
Okighoma Wells $ 18.000
Total $223,000

The Debtor believes the bids leading to the California wells sales price were increased
because of the recent increase it oil prices but reduced because of well capping costs. The Debtor
received Court anthorization fo employ American Encrgy Advisors, Inc. an of! and gas breker to

help market these properties for maximum value, American Energy Advisors contacted 4,000

11 DEBTOR’S SIXTH AMENDED
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potential buyers and mailed se\fenty-two complete bid packages to potential bidders who
expressed an interest in submitting a competifive bid,

Thie Debtor received two bids on the Oklahoma wells from the operator and a related

i vendor and has received an overbid. These three bids are in ti:e $6,000 to $18,000 range, An ad

hiag béen run in the Tulse World which generated eight other potential buyers. It was not
expected that any bid would be much more than $20,000 because of the risk of trying to place the
wells back into production after a lengthy shut in period, coupled with the marginal economics of
today’s spot price for oil.

The-investors it each of the three mdjor investinent groups werénoticed of the impending
sale of thieir respective assets priot to such sale so that their concerns, if any, could be heard
before the Court. All sales were.approved by the Coutt.

The net proceeds from the sale-of the Oklahoma Wells (estimated at $16,000) will be

‘turned over to the Petro Assignee Trust, for the benefit of the investors pro rata to their interests.
| Mr. Jerty Fey, who has appeared before this Court on behalf of thie Oklahoma investors, is and

[ will eotitinue to act as frustee for these funds. In a smmilar fashion, and for ease of adminisfration,

the net proeeeds of the California wells will be segregated but also be remitted to the Petro
Assignee Trust for the economic benefit of those California well investors pro rata to their share
interests as detailed in the Debtor’s Fourth Amended Disclosure Statement. From the overall net.

proceeds of the California wells, 78% will go to the investor trust (estimated $150,000)°; and

| 22%. (estimated $42,000) would go to Wilson, but will be instead retained by the Debtor in partiat

satisfaction of the settlement claim the Diebtor holds against Mr. Wilson.
The Petro Assignee Trust, renamed the MFIT Trust, will receive and hold funds in the
trustor’s nairie until 30 days after an order conﬁrming the Plan will be final. At that time, the

trustee will distribute the proceeds of the trust pro rase to the investors’ holdings in the trust.

®  Qfthe 78% (estimated $150,000) going to investors, 12% (estimated $23,000) is being voluntarily
contributed by Wilson, Wilson would have réceived this from the land owner, geclogist, and engineer on
account of hiis side agreement to fulfill the obligations-of the land ¢wner, geologist, engineer and other non-
investors who had agreed to assign to the Debtor and were to sell all or a portion of their interest. On account

- of this voluntary action no cash will go 10 Wilson.
12 DEBTOR’S SIXTH AMENDED
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The investor holdings in the trust are determined according to the terms of the original sales
document and individually determined according to an equivalent share calculation agréed upon
by the principals of the selling entities and representatives of the informal investor committee,
Based on this formula the selling members of the Oklahoma wells.will receive approximately 2/3.

cent per dollar of their original investment. For the California wells, the Sierra West, Pac West

“and Golden West investors will receive approximately 2 cents per dollar of their investment. Sun

West investors will receive approximately 1/3 cent per dollar for their more limited claim.

regarding a declined purchase option on their wells.

Description of Oil and Gas Business | Sold ]

General Description
The Débtor has purchased certain oil and natural gas wells. The oil and gag well interests
were acquired by the Debtor from certais unit iftvestment trusts and holdérs of joiitt participation
interests in the various sites. In total, the oil and gas sites consist of four natural gas wells and
nine oil wells which the Debtor intends to sell prior to the effectiveness of this Plan,
Three oil wells aré located in California and six additional oil wells are located in

Okiahoma. Only one Oklahoma well is currently producing. Under the terms of the initial

srravigement between the Oklzhoma oil well developer atid thie Debtor, the Debtor agreed to

acquire the interests in all six wells and investigate the rework and production ecanomics or the
salvage sale potential of the five nonproducing wells.
One oil well located in California is a producing well, a second could be im production,

hewever, the liffing or production coests currently exceed the low price being paid for oil in the

| market so it is being held dormant; the third is being developed within a producing field, but

given the low spot price of oil, the Debtor declined its option to acquire this location.
Two of 'the four gas wells located in California are pfoducing, another is under pressure
but inaceessible to the Debtor due to problems involved in obtaining a right of way from the

production site to the nataral gas pipeline, and the fourth.is packaged with the larger oil well
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whose purchase option was declined. Since the Debtor declines to purchase the oil weli, as
expected, thenthe purchase of the smaller gas well is simultarieously declined.
Properties Acquired
The Debtor acquired its inferests in the California oil and gas wells from several unit
investment trusts. The Debtor 'ac,qui'red the interests from. the trusts pursuant to Purchase
Agreements executed by Reliance Corporation, the coordiné.ting developer of the California wells,

who is identified in the Purchase Agreements as the "Serving Agent."™'" The organizational

|| documents for the trusts refer to the manager of the trusts as the "trustee® and the unit holders as

“tiuistors,” but the érganizational dociiments appear to, i fact, treat the pariies as general and
limited partners, respectively. This Digclosure Statement will refer to the parties to the trusts as
"partners.”

The Debtor acquired its inferests in the Oklahoma wells from a business trust which, in

turn, acquired them from individual holders of joint participation interests i the wells.?> Each

e

. Al descripiions herein of the California-oil and gas properties.and the rights and interests doquired were
derived principally from information pravided by Reliance Corposation. In light of the Debtor's limited
resourees, the Debtor has:not engaged independent expéris 10 evaluate the informatioii and has not performed
complete documentary due diligence. However, the Debtor has ingpected:the properiies and reviewed some of
the-sellers' ofganizational documents and other agreemenis defiriing their rights isi the assets transferred. The
docurments revieved appear (o authorize the sale 16 the Debtor and the stock distribitions coniteriplated by the
Plan, Neverthéless, the Serving Agent has assured the Debtor of the natere and transferability of the assets
dcquired, including the underlying léases by which the sellers held the right to exploit the wells, The Debtor
also-relied on information from the Serving Agent regarding the performance. of the properties which
information the Debtor has recently supplemented with the last six tonths of zctual prochiction experience
provided by R&R Resources, It has not engaged indeépendent geclogical éxperts, but has reviewed géological
reports of the wells and discussed their condition and dapasity with-the oil figld operaior or geologist and with
miany of the¢ trust participants. Thius, the Debior has relied principally upon the representations of the sellers'
representatives in entering into the Purchase Agréements and preparing this Disclosure Statement,
In many cases, the selling entities relied-upon *baliots” from their partners as the conisent requited wnder their
organizational documents for the authority to transférmost of the-assets The ballots, on their face, grant the
Serving Agent cerigin custodial powers, including the power to authorize exchange-of the partners' interests
for sharcs of the Debtor's stock and purport to be irrgvocable; However, the Debtor is riot aware of what
information thie séllers havé provided to the partners or whether the partners could withdraw: their consents
prior to consuimmation of the Plan. Nevertheless, the Serving Agetit has assured the Debtor of the entities'
authority 1o-effectuate the iransfers and the Plan.

12 All descriptions herein of the Oklahioma oil and gas properties were derived from information provided by

Sam McClintock, the original developer of the Peiro field. In light.of the Debior's limited resources, it has not
engaged independent cxperts to evalnate the information or performed completé documentary due diligence.
In acquiring the properties and preparing this Disclosure Statement, the Debtor has relied principally on
representations by the scllers® representatives as to the-transferability of the assets acquired, including the
underlying leases by which the sellers hold the right to exploit the wells; as-well as the performanie of the
14 DEBTOR’S SIXTH AMENDED
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such interest represents an undivided tenancy in common ownership in the Oklahoma wells.

Sierra West [Sold 11-4-99 ]

The Debtor acquired 4 66.14% net revenue interest™ in one producing oil well and a 60%,
interest in another well from two unit investment trusts which co-owned the wells, known as
Sierra West '97 Unit Inivestment Trust and Sierra West-A Unit Investment Trust (collectively,
"Sierra West"). Sierra West dn'lied and completed its oil well in 1997. Tﬁe Debtor believes that
the oil well has proven reserves of 180,000 barrels of recoverable oil and that the well has been
producing at rates varying between approximately $200and $300 per day during August through
October 1998 and intermittently between $500 and $700 per day from Noveriber 1998 through
June 1999.

The Debtor also acquired 6ne shut<in natural gas well from Sierra West. The well has

proven reserves.of 650,000,000 cubic feet of natural gas."™ It is located near Sacramento,

California and has been shut-in because the prier owner was unable:to gain rights of way to

deliver the gas to the main pipeling'”.

wells.: Informauon on the pcrformance of these wells has been supplemcmad by the last six months-of actual
production supplied by Moore Investments, the Oklahoma field operator. The Debtor has not inspected the
properties and Has reviewed ofily somg of the seHers” organizational documents ard othier agreements defining
their rights in the assets transferred. Most of such documents are unsigned, but the Debior has been assured
that such documents aré correct and in full force and effect. The Debtor has, however, consulted.an
independent title expert in Oklahoma and discussed the property with the local County Recorder's office. The
Dibitor Has also reviewed a geological reporion the welis and discussed their condition and capacity with the
oil field opeérator and with many of the Petro Participahis.
A "fiet revenue intérest™ is the perceatage interést a person hiolds in the gross revenues regeived fror 4

. transporter/purchiaser of a well's production, less onily governimentzl excise taxes. A "working interést,” h‘y
contrast, is the percentage-of the costs of operating the well that the person has assumed. For example, it is
commeon that $wo co-operators. would each hold a 50% working interest (ie. sharing all of the costs of the
well's operation) and, collectively, haveonly a 70%.net feveniie interest. In such circuimistarices, others {such
as the owner of the land) would have a 30% net revenue interest; L.¢. a right to receive 30% of the gross
reveniués and no obligation to-bear any operating costs. The Débior is obligated for 100% of the working
interests (operating. costs) of the California wells, regardless of its percentage of the net reveniue interests.

The term "proven teserves” is.a-térin of art in the oil and gas industry. Tt means the volume of gas or oil

estimated by a registered geologist after performance of a volumetric analysis according to-standard crileria
established for such estimates. If does not mean that any guarantee has been made that the well will actually

 produce the amount of oil or gas indicated by the geologist.

5 The l¢ase on the shit in well is a Held By Production lease. Because the Debtor has not put the well into
production, the landowner, who was apprised of the Chapter 11 status, has notified the operator that it is
considering términating the lease. )
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Pac West [Sold 11-4-99]

The Debtor acquired a 68.333% net revenue interest ii a producing natural gas well from

two Uit investment trusts which ce-owned the well, known as Pac West Unit Investrment Trust

and Pac West-2 Unit Investment Trust. Pac West drilled.and completed its producing well in

1997. The well has been drilied to a depth of 2700 feet where it intercepts the Starkey Sands

| formation. The well is presenﬂy producing sporadically at approximately 50,000 cubic feet per

day, or $1,000 to $3,000 per month. The well has a proven reserve of 365,000,000 cubic feet ;)f
natural gas. :

Golden West  [Sold 11<4-99 |

The Debtor acquired interests in two wells from Golden West Unit Investment Trust
(“Golden West™); a 67.33% net révemié interest in one California gas well and 4 61.145833% net

reveiue interest in another California oil well. The-prospects were apparently purchused by

|| Golden West in December of 1997, Golden West recently completed drilling the two wells, and

| | they have both been deemed commereially viable by the well operator. However, because of the

recerit very low ptices offered for oil at the refinery, the oil well has been held dotmant, None-the-
less, the projects engineet and geologist have estimated that the wells will kave recoverable oil
reserves in excess of 107,500 barrels and significant natural gas reserves. The gas well is
currently producing at greater than 100,000 cubic feet per day, or $7,500 per month.

Sun West [Option Sold 11-4-95 |

The Debtor also acquired an option t6 purchase a 67.33% net revenue interest in the a gas
drilling prospect and a 61.15% net revenue interest it another oil drilling \prosp'ect from Sun West
Unit Investment Trust {"Sun West"). The prospects were apparently purchased by Sun West in
December of 1997. The Trust is preparing to drill the prospects and anticipates that the first well
will be completed in October of 1995, The geological report anticipates that the prospects will
have recoverable oil reserves of 107,500 barrels upon completion and significant natural gas
reserves. Because the Debtor is divesting rather than building its other California oil and gas

interests, it is almost certair that the Debtor will not exercise thé purchase option for the Sun
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Woest properties.

Petrg Wells  [Sold 10-4-99 ]

The Debitor has also acquired working interésts fro_m the Petro Assighee Trust in six oil
and gas wells located in Oklahoma. Of the Petro wells, two had 'been generating aggregate net
revemues of approximately $21,000 per month for their owners through February 1598,
However, one (Golden Trend) became clogged in March 1998 and rieeds to have paraffin

removed from the well bore, at a cost of approximately $15,000. However, if the paraffin has

solidified back into the formatiori, then the well may not be able to be brought back into

productiori. The second producing well (Wayniette 11}, the only well that has been in production

1 sinice the Diebtor acquired the properties in Angust 1998, had net production of $6,076 in

December 1998, However, through Decernber, the Debtor fiad only recorded a formal assignment

in this well 0f23% ouit of'the 65% of the seller’s interests that ;igr‘eed to assign, and has thus only

received 23% of the net revenue from the well. This well has also experienced pump problems and

the combined result is that through June 1999, the Debtor has received cumulative revenue of

only $9,073 from this well and the Debtor reflects a net loss of ($2,165) for its Oklahoma

operations, THre_e other wells are riot now in pfodu"cti‘on, but these wells still have salvage valge,
The Debtor has afso prirchased interests in an additional Petro well, However, the

interests appears to be without value because of a foreclosure sale which took place on June 10,

11998, A prior operator of the wells had diverted funds earmarked to pay for work on the wells,

and the contractor who performed the work dbtained a judgmenit for ifs unpaid work. The

| eontractor then levied on the well property and it was sold at a foreclosure sale on June 10, 1998

| for $60,000.

The six Peétro Wells were ownéd by approximately 250 individuals who each owned
undivided Joint Participation Interests in specific wells. Varying percentages of Petro Participants
have sold their positions and agreed to formally assign their interests in the wells in which they

participate to the Petro Trust in exchange for notes from the trust. Such percentages range

' between 65% and 84% of particular wells. As of the date of this Disclosure Statement, some of

17 DEBTOR'S SIXTH AMENDED
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the Petro Participants have recérded formal assignments of their interests to the Petro Trust;
others have not yet fulfilled their agreements to do so. The current formally recorded percentages
are- 43%. The Debtor has not made collecting the assignmients a priority because unless the
QOklahoma wells are repaired or reperforated in a second pr_odﬁcfion zone, which entails some
tisk, they have very limited revenue potential. The wells have been sold for equipment salvage
value, or to a Iocal low volume stripper well operator. The recording of assignments is complete.
The Petro Assignee Trust assigned its interests in the Petro wells to the Debtor in -
exchanpe for 4 note secured by the interests acquired. Accordingly, while legal title to the Joint
Participation Interests in some of the Petre wells may not yet have been recorded in the Debtor's

name; the Debtor retains the beneficial interest in such participation interests under the Purchase

Agreement assigning the interests to the Debtor.

Properties Historical Operating Performance ‘
Over the last six months, the well interests deqiired by the Debtor have generated net

reverive after excise taxes of just over $160,000". Howsver, until the Effeciive Date, the Débtor
has agreed to receive only. appro:dmate[y 10% of'the revenues from the California wells (which

acoount for 94% of the well revenue) and has no resporisibility for past iabilities or any expenses

in the California wells prior to the Effective Date. Of critical interest ta the Debtor’s analysis of

historic and continuing operations and revenue levels has been the recent depressed price of vil

which has been much lower than histori¢ fiorms but has tisen somewhat. The low spot price for

-oil makes the divestiture of some of the wells wiore attractive than that action would be in the

normal case.

Description of ATM Business
The Debtor has acquired all of the assets of four limited liability companies organized in

The Debtor now receives 10% of the approxiiiiately 66%net revenue interest int the California wells (i.e.
6.6%) that it will eventually receive, but has no responsibility for their costs. Since the inception of the case
through July 1, 1999, the Debtor has receivéd $15,313 in revenue from the California wells and $9,073 from
the OklIahoma wells.
18 DEBTOR’S SIXTH AMENDED
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Nevada (defined collectively in the Plan as "ATM Nevada”}, 38%"” of the membership interests in
a fifth company (ATM-2 of Nevada, 1.LC), and 57% of the membership interests i 4 sixth
(ATM-3 of Nevada, LLC)."® The companies own;, in the aggregate, 60 automated teller machines
located in northern Nevada. '

The ATMs are installed at casirios, gas stations, McDonalds restaurants, énd convenience
stores. . The machines have been serviced by an independent operating firm named Nevada ATM.
This firm has agreed to continue maintenance and stocking of the machines, including
management of afi inventory of approxinately $240,000 in cash for customers to withdraw (The
Débtor’s portion of this cash inventory is $200,000). Nevada ATM is not bonded. The cash is
owned by the six companies. The oversight of the companies' accounting and.other general
management funictions have been pérformed by Mr. David Motis who will coritinize to' advise and
assist the Debtor ity these areas.” For the active LLCs, Mr. Morris is-responsible for preparation
of tax refurns, making distributions to. shargholders, and other similar fiinétions, Mr. Morris has
resigned his position as president of the five ATM LLCs whiose assets have been purchased by the
Débtor in favor of Mr, Earl Gurnack, an ATM investor and representative on the investor’s

committee,

¥ The Debror has simplified and consolidated its ATM-2 and ATM:3 inierests: solely into ATM-3 of Nevada,
LLC which it now owns 100% of. The:Debfor has no residual interest-in ATM-2 of Nevada, LLC, The Deblor
owns 100%: of 50 ATMs:

1% Substantially all of the information’in this Disclosite Statemerit about the ATM Nevada businiess and the
fights and intefests acqiired was dérived principalty from inforniation provided by David Morris and Reliance
Corporation. Thg inéinbership intéresis were acquired through a Purchiase Agreement enitered-into amang the
Dibtor and the subject:LLC's, Reliancé Corporation, idéntified in the agreément as the Serving Agent for such
LLEs, has represented to-the Debtor that-the LEC's hiave authorization to represent and act on behalfof the
selling members. However, the Deblor has reviewed only some:of the sellers' organizational documents and
other agreements defining their rights in the assels transferred (and which arc unsigned). The Operating
Agrecment for the LLCs provide-for management of the LLCs by the members. They do niol referto a Serving
Agent, Nonetheloss, the Purchase Agresimient was “approved® by David E. Moiris, the President of each of the
LLCs and the-person idéntified in certain offering documents as the "Manager." The Debtor has not beenn
provided any documenis which confirm the LLCs' authority to act for the selling members, but has relied upon
the representations of the Serving Agent and Mr. Morris in acquiring such interests and preparing this
Disclosure Statement with respect. thereto,

¥ The advisory involvement of Mr. Morris will only continie if the Deblor’s Adversary Proceeding with him

pending before the Bankruptcy Court, which has been settled by the parties; is.approved by the Court. If the
Adversary Proceeding is not resolved in & manner that, in the judgment of the Debior, is timely and
satisfactory, hie will have no ongoing rolé and his conteniplated compensation for future advisory sapport will
be eliminated.
19 DEBTOR’S SIXTH AMENDED
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Customers are charged a fee of $2.00 per transaction. Fees for servicing the machines and
bank access are charged on a per-transaction basis, and they total approxifnate]y 30¢ per

transaction. The only other costs of the busiriess include t¢lephone company fees for data

|| transmission and office overhead,

The ATM corporations’ mar;agers have represented tha_t investors received net cash flow
of approximately $5,000 per month'—gt the end of 19'.97; and the operator projécts that such flow
will incredse to approximately $6,000 per month by the end of 1 999 On a monthly basis, the
Dibtor anticipates receipt of net cash flow from the machines ranging between $4,000 and $6,000

-per month.

| | Acquisition of the Propérties

The Debtor acquired the foregoing properties and interests in exchange for promissory
notes secured by the assets acquired and the products and proceeds thereof. The acquisition

prices are shown in the following table;

Sierra West § 2,578,000
Pac West 311,000
Golden West 3,300,000
Sun West 825,000
Petro 4,271,000
ATM Nevada 2370000
Total $13,655.000

Thie acquisition pricés were determined through vigorous negotiations between the Debtor
and representatives of the selling entities. However, in retrospect, it appears the selling parties
misrépresented and overstated the performance and values of the properties sold. Given this and
the current low price of oil, these purchase amounts now are not supported by fair market values
or actual or projected cash flow or income, and the Debtor has determined that they greatly
exceed the current fair market value of the assets acquired. Based on it’s recent exploratory
activity on the sale of these acquired assets, it is estimated by the Debtor that the assets purchased

could only be liquidated for $720,000 total. The Notes to Sierra West, Pac West, Golden West,

and Sun West are payable in monthly instaliments equal to 90% of the revenuss from the property

20 DEBTOR’S SIXTH AMENDED
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securing that note minus all exﬁenses of operating the property. Payments under the Petro and
ATM Nevadd notes have been suspended by mutual agreement until the final balloon instaflment.
The notes bear interest at eight percent per annum. All monthly payments are applied to principal,
with accrued interest payable in a lump sum at the time of the last installment of prineipal.

Until the Confirmation of the Plan, the acquisitions are to provide the Debtor with 10% of
the gross revenues from the Sierra West, Pac West, Golden West, and Sun West properties
acquired and all of the net cash flow from the Petro and ATM intergsts, After the Effective Date,

the well assets will have been sold, the notes surrendered to the Debtor on Confirmation and all

| future ATM cash flow and profits will be freely available to the Debtor.

The intert to sell the well assets to clean up the uncertain financials of'these acquired

| assets stetns from early actions taken by the Debtor. The Debtor made thg conscious decision to

not demand from séllets the information that would allow it to diligéntly evahuate the value of the

1 various businesses and properties which were purchased when it-was involved in the active

acquisition phase, and, i so doiitg, incréased the fecovery to ¢reditors and shareholders. Thig

i approach reflects the Debtor’s comprehensive understanding of the acquisition equation and the

fiduciary role of the Debtar and cart be easily misinterpreted if riot viewed from that perspective.
To illustrate this concept it is important to remember that the Debtor’s expectation was to capture

& percentage (20% - 25%) for the creditors and shareholders, The value of the Debtor’s “license

1o trade” is greater if calculated in this fashion than if it is bargained for at a fixed price™. This

percentage approach is the one Debtor promoted and it was accepted by the selling agents. Once

the con¢ept of a fixed percentage was accepted, then the Debtor had one clear path to maximize

| | recovery to creditors and sharcholders and that was to-increase its 20% “commission” by

increasing the number of businesses that would be acquired. The Debtor was initially offered only
one well which was the asset of two partnerships. By being the easy acquirerthat did net demand

the norinial diligence, even foregoing balance sheets and bank statements when their supply was

¥ Conversely, if the Debtor’s porfion: of the combined entities was instéad determinied based on a fixed price,
then detailed information would be demianded to specifically determine, and minimize, the value placed on the

acquired assets. !
21 DEBTOR’S SIXTH AMENDED

DISCLOSURE STATEMENT



W

-2 N

19
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26

resisted, the Debtor was able to increase the number of entities acquired from two to eighteen.
The Debtor believes if it demanded the normal due diligence that it has requested and received in
past acquisitions, that instead of now having eighteen entities in the reorganization there would
only be four™ and the creditors and shareholders would be receiving far less than they will under
the current Plan. From each of the eighteen entities the creditors and shareholders now stand to
receive 20% or so. Not all of .the eiéht‘een entities are star performers, but as long as they do.not
have lisbilities or negative cash flow they will not subtract from, and will probably slightly add .to,
the benefit delivered to the Debtor’s constituericy: its creditors and shareholders.

Also, the Debtor did attempt to balance the interests of the acquired entities so no

| partnership acquired was treated better than any other on a proportional basis, The net result is an

equitable mix where the benefit or recovery to ereditors. and shareholders is maximized, but the
béckground paperwork is somewhat sacrificed and ineomplete. This tradeoff in the paperwork to
receive real benefit is only a minor irritation to the Debtor who has qualified management with
twenty years of tirnaround experience where faulty records are the norm, not the exception. The
key requiremerits the led to the success of this approach were that; i) no Habilities were assumed
unless specifically accepted by the Debtor (none were), i) that, on Confirmation, the exact

percentage ownership for all wells is readily available from the well operators and will be known

| to-four decimal places, and purchase prices will be adjusted accordingly, and iii) the Debtor will

own fifty ATM machines that it can identify by location and count. These certainties (especially
the prohibition on liabilities) made the poor docurnentation a low risk annoyance that is easily
accepted in light of the multiple acquisitions that were made possible and the resulting increased

recovety to creditors and shareholders.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

#  The Debtor believes the increase from two to four acquired entities would have octurred in any case. However,
at different times during thie acquisition ¢ycle, twelve of the eighteen entities decided to withdraw and were
turned around by management. Two others threatened to withdraw and were convinced not {o.
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Almost immediately upon the filing of this case on August 21, 1998, the Debtor ran into
difficulty in gaining control of its cash and assets from selling parties who refused to comply when
it asked for bank statements sind other financial records. [See Dispute with Wilson and Morris),
The Debtor fell behind in its obligations until the dispute began to be resolved just prior to year
end 1998. The dispute is completely settted artd has been approved by the Court. The Debtor has
received $145,000 from the closing cash balances in the assets it purchased, from operations 6r
through settlement payments. - The Debtor is current in all it obligations and has a modest
positive cash flow from operations of approximately $3,000 per month,

The finances of the Debior have been relatively steady and not complex. Setflement
payments from Mr, Blake Wilson are $10,000 per month through August 1999, ATM revenue is
approxiniately $9,000 per month with expenses of $5,000, and the 10% from the California wells
plus revenue from the unrepaired Oklahomia wells total approximately $3,000 with expenses of

$1,000. Net cash inflow to headquarters Has thus been $16,000 per month and administrative

| expenses there are hield to less than $13,000 for a net $3,000 monthly positive cash flow, After

August 19997, whien the $10,000 monthly settlament payments are completed, the. net positive
cash flow will drop to a ($7,000) 1oss. ,

After the Effective Date and sale of well assets, the Reorganized Debtor will be an ATM
company, trading publicly, with approximately $150,000 cash as reserve. = Management of the

Debtor then expects to proceed to acquire other assets into the portfslio to increase its cash

| flows from investing and operating activity. Because of the cash reserves and $4,000 per month

in ATM opetating income, as compared to the modest headquarters expenses of $16,000
maximuin per month, it iy ariticipated that the Reorganized Debtor will have ample time to search

for portfolio investments without undue financial pressure. The Reorganized Debtor’s future

#  The final August 1999 settlement payment will be approximately $5,000, so ini that transition month the niet
cash flow will be ($2,000).

P Afier the proceeds of the Okizhoma and California Wells have been returned, the Reorganized Delbtor will
have approximately $120,000 cash in its operating accourit and $260,000 cash in its ATM machines, The
expected administrative claims that must be paid in cash ate approximately $170,000, so the residual cash
reserve is approximately $150,000. The Reorganized Debtor will foliow. the usual practice of ATM companies
and barrow the cash to stock the ATMs from the bank that handles the ATM transactions. ]
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operating strategy will focus on mergers with or acquisitions of minority interests in companies
with existing management and positive cash flow. This limited and “go slow™ approdch in the
initial months after confirmation will be well within the Debtor’s capacity and without an increase
in overhead. .

After Confirmation, headquarters expenses could be reduced to $4,000 per month on a
reduced presence basis if financial pressure indicated that extreme action was necessary. The

Reorganized Debtor’s post-confirmation expenses are now forecast to be; $10,000 for salary and

| payroll taxes; $2,000 for rent; $1,000 for tetephones and office expenses; and $3,000 for

accounting and legal. The Debtor believes there are many fine opportunities to expand and
doquire interests in ATM businesses, so the Debtor does niot anticipate much delay or difficulty in
comipleting dcquisitions of ATM companies. Even if there would be a delay, however, the
Reorganized Debtor could reduce its expenses by-management deferring salary and giving up its
ginall office. The Reorganized Debtor could operate for at least awhile with just its telephone and
professional éxpenses, or $4,000 per month, The Reorganized Debtor will have enough cash on

hand on confirmation to cover its-expenses at $16,000 per month for about a year; at $4,000 per

 month it could operate essentially indefinitely, as that is what projected operating incotiie would

be.

From operating assets and cash flow, $15,00.0 has been authorized by the Court and paid
for 1egal expenses on the case to-date. Qutstanding unpaid legal costs total more thari $150,000%
and have been increasing at more than $10,000 per month.

Thig most recent Monthly Opérating Repott, without attachments, filed with the Court,
plus sub-reporis by operating segment, accompanies this Disclosure Document {Sé¢ Attachmenit
A - Monthly Operating Report). The Operating Report contains the following major sections
listed below (1-5). In addition, to clarify the contribution of each operating group, the Statement

of Operations has been éxpanded here froin the normal presen‘tatibn to portray case-to-date

2 This does.not include approximately $37,000 from the Debtor’s former legal counsel, Brooks and Raub, that
is also expected 10 be an admimstrative expense and claim in the case.
24 PEBTOR’S SIXTH AMENDED
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operations by segment™ in (’2a-6). Also, a list of wells and the expected Debtor interest in them on
Confirmation follows. Because thére were de minimus expenditures by the Debtor until the filing
of this case on August 21, 1998, these figures cover the entire period of ownership of the assets,

which began with their acquisition on August 10, 1998, Attachment A contents aré as follows:

1) Summary of Financial Status
2) Statement of Operations
a) Californiz Weils Detail
b) ATM Businesses Detail
(Also: ATM Locations, Monthly Transactions by Machine, Inception to Date
ATM income Staement and Balance Sheet and ATM Cash Flow Report by
Outside Accountants)
¢) Oklahoma Wells Detail
d) Headquarters Expenisé Detail
3) Balance Sheet
4) Schedules to the Balance Sheet
5) Statement of Cash Flows
6) Post Confirmation Pro Forma Balance Sheet

The Monthiy Operating Report differs stightly from normal financial reports prepared

under generally accepted accounting principals; primarily because most assefs are adjusted to

market value instéad of reflecting their cost basis. Tfyou have questions on the presentation, if

#  Although detdiled data and information is received by well and by ATM it would be impractical and of little
valug to report the eleven wells and fifty ATMs separately in this document, Such data (o make these precise
calculations is available at the administrative offices of the Debior for those parties intezested in inspecting
them. At the request of the Office of the U.8. Trustees, each. monthly operating report has been broken down
as California wells, Oklahoma wells, ATMs, and headquarters. These reporis reflect the revenue of the Debtor,
The repotts do not incluide an analysis of the funds from the California wells:that do not redound te the
Debtor, This choice was madg because it appeared that capital items were béing improperly iricluded in the
operating acconnts at those sites. The Debtor has not and will not be reconciling those, perhaps faulty,
financial reports because it has no economic or fiduciary interest i the outcome.
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the report is not attached, or if 'you would like additional financial information, please contact the
Debtor at (408)244-3362.

Ir: support of the above reports, the Debtor receives and relies upon industry standard

| réports it receives from the Oklahoma and California well operators. These reports list oil and gas

production by well in barrels and cubic feet and converts those to revenue in dolflars. This is
recalculated and reported again adjusted to the percentage bwnetship of the Debtor. The net

expenses as 4 total and for the percentage interest are supplied on the same report. The total

| expenses are then documented by well ofi an invoice by invoice basis. The Debtor has reviewed

each report réceived and cross checked them for mternal consistency and reasonableness. In this
manner it determined that some capital items seem to be included in the Californiia well expense
accounts, These misleading entries are fio [onger tracked aiid only the Debtor’s 10% portion of
revenue without any expense is now recorded. The reports do appear to be precise and inclusive,
however the field operators are more interested in operations than in accounting. As a result, the
Debtor often has to remind the operators to forward reports in a timely mianner and include all
schedules even for small items and amounts.

Thie ATM aperatiotis’ curreéiit monthly financizl reports (which are supplied by. an outside

contractor-and outside accountarnt) are being supplied and include LLC inception to. date balance

' sheet information. Transactions by machine are sent monthly and all checks are remitted with

invoice from the Debtor-in-Possession account. Each invoice to be paid is reviewed by the Debtor
and counter-signed by Debtor’s counsel. The Debtor has interviewed the outside accountants and
contraciot and is satisfied that theit financial reporting, which will be made available to any party
of interest so requesting, is accurate. The by-machine reports are reviewed for internal

consistency and, so far, have proven to be so.
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Well Name [ SOLD]
Bennet 2-7
(Pac West)

TVT 1-9
(Sierra West)

Verona
(Sterra West)

Theta 9801
{Golden West)

Stephens 2-28
(Golden West)

Gas Prospect
(Sun West)

Oil Prospect
{Sun West)

Petro 16-1°
(Golden Trend).

Petro 16-2
(Waynette = I}

Petro 16-3
{Waynetts - IT)

Petro 16-4 _
(Waynette - ITI)

Petro 16-5
(Waynette - ['V)

Petro 36-1
(Sotth Prairie)

Net Revenue Interést
at Confirmation

68.3333%
(PRODUCING)

66,1458%
(PRODUCING)

60,0000%
(Isolated from pipeline - ready to
produce)

. 61.1458%
(Not economic to produce at current
lTow oil prices - ready to produce)

_ 67.3333%
(PRODUCING)

67.3333%
{Option to purchase declined)

, c 61.1458%
{Option to purchase deglined)

_ 82,3333%
{Clogped with paraffin)
76.7778%
(Second zone potential)

77.3333%
(Second zone potential)

65.3333%
(PRODUCING)

76.4444%
(Second zone potential)

84.0000%
(Legal claim only)

% The percentages listed are the percentage of the interest that has been sold 1o the Debtor. The Petro Assignes
inferest holders only have the right of rescission and this percentage could decrease by the percentage of
persons who rescind prior to Confirmation, however, the percentage will tiof exceed thie listed number.
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Upon the sale of the well assets, their historic. operating performance will be moot, the
assets will have been converted to cash, most of those funds dep(.)sited in an investor trust account
and the net financial position of the company communicated to the investing public through a
sammary press felease. The findncial summiary of the sale transactions will be included in the
Debtor’s Monthly Operatirig Reports filed with the Court and_‘ all affected investors and those on
the special notice list will be nbt‘icedI of their respective sale transactions.

In total, the Debtor will have cash available to pay its administrative claims on

| Confirmation anid has the flexibility to operate within its cash reserve and cash flow limits as it

' expands its business.

DEBTOR'S DISPUTE WITH WILSON AND MORRIS”
On August 21, 1998, as p;e-pla:med, Debtor filed its voluntary proceeding under Chapter
11 of the Bankruptcy Act along with a Disclosure Staterient and Plan of Reorgax_ﬁmtion: At that
time, the Compatiy cimié under the direct review of the Office of the U.S. Trustees of the

Department of Justice and began to operate unider the Bankruptey guidelines as Debtor-in-

‘Possession, Some of these requirements tnder 28 U.8.C. section 586 and 18 U, 8. C. section 154

are to:
1) Provide copies of all check registers and bank statements for all accounts covering the
90 day peried prior to the commencenient of the case.

2) Close all pre-petition banking accounts and deposit funds and ongoing revenues in,

[ and expend funds from, bonded Debtor-in-Possession accounts at a Court approved banking

institution.
When asked over a two month period to provide the detailed banking information and

accounting that the Court requires, the two controlling parties, Blake Wilson for the California

# Although Mzin Street has indications that multiple dbas and controlled companies are invelved, at this time;
it has not been provided a comprehensive listing and mapping of the names arid controlling parties of those
many entities, None-the-less, over the last year, all release of funds, negotiations, direction and comtrol of the
California wells and ATM business in their relationship to Main Street were closely held by only Mi. Wilson
or Mr. Merzis. Throughout this document, when Mr. Blake Wilson and Mr, David Morris are referred to, it is
defined herein to mean themselves or their directly or indirectly controlled companies, employees or affiliates.
28 DEBTOR’S SIXTH AMENDED
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wells, and Dave Morris for the ATM businesses, refused to comply. The Oklahoma wells
management is fully co-operative, Dave Morris did provide partial information for one petiod.
Blake Wilson provided rio accounting and banking information. This was reported to the Office
of the U.S. Trustees.

In addition to withholding the required financial and banking information, Mr. Wilson and
Mr. Morris refused to close existing banking accounts that became property of the Diebtor and to
turn that money over to be placed in the Court approved Debtor-in-Possession accounts as
required under the Bankruptey Code. Not only did this violate the directives. of the Office of the
U. S. Trustees, it also jeopardized the viability of an otherwise well funded Plan and‘commercial
énterprise. Initially, Mr. Morris turned over approximately 7% of funds, and Mr. Wilson
forwarded only $1,244 from inactive accounts but accounted for nothing nor closed and
forwarded any funds from the presumably larger active accounts. Lastly, there seemed, at least
from the partial financial records available, to be irregularities involving transférs and payments

that gave rise to sighificant claims by the Debtor against Messrs. Wilson and Morris. Estate

{funds in the six figures are involved.

In order to compel Mr, Wilson and Mords, their varisus. controlled bisinesses and
affiliates to comply with buth the requirenténts of the Bankruptcy Court and the terms of the
already concluded asset sales, Debtor has filed an Adversary Proceedirig in the Bankruptcy
Court to cause them fo do 50,

It appears the prosecution of the Adversary Proceeding persuaded all of the named parties

to settle, and most of the proposed initial setflement funds have been delivered to the Debtor. M.

|| Wilson and the “oil and gas defendants” have signed a settlement agreement, the settlement and

mutual release have been noticed 1o all oil and gas investors, approved by the Bankruptey Court

and the Adversary Proceeding is pending disrnissal. In that agreement, to satisfy a clzimed debt of

about $1.08 million, Mr. Wilson has agreed to a) pay $85,000 over nine months to Debtor, b)
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convert 1,000,000% of the shares he was to receive into warrants at $1 per share, and ¢) turn over
1,100,000 shares to be sold to raise afy b‘glance of the $1,000,000 owed if that sum is not
collected by the exercise of warrants in (b).

Mr, Morris has agreed to settle and all ATM defendamé have signed the settlement
agreenent. In that agréement, Mr. Morris agtees to A) Pay the Debtor $10,000 or B) i) Pay
$1,000% , ii) loari Main Street $20,000 under the borrowing motien, if authorized, and iii) convert
50,000 of his shares to Series D Warrants, This settlement has also been noticed to all ATM
investots, approved by the Bankruptcy Court and is pending dismissal. -

Thé resolution of the Adversary Proceeding also clarifies the enforceability of the asset

purchase agreements and the extent of the assets transferred.

DEBTOR'S OPERATIONS DURING THE CHAPTER 11 CASE

The Debtor has cortrol of the assets it purchased under the asset purchase agreements™.

1t is operatinig those assets ds it deems in its best interest. It can {ake any action, in the normal

| course of business and with the Court’s permission other actions, that any owner of those assets
ever could take. The assets can be praduced, repaired, operated, sold, retired, moved or scutiled

| by the Debror as it wishes.

The Debtor has retained the former “hited hands™ that operated the interests in the past

% Asaresult of the California and-Oklahonia wells sale, Wilson will retain only 165,000 shares which will all be
converted to Series A warrants, plus 66,000 Series B and 66,000 Serics D warrants. His 22% portion of the
procecds of sate oni account of his formerly anticipatéd remaining shares will be:applied against the his
seitlément with the Debtor. The Déblor is expected 16 Teceive an estimated $42,000 from Wilson on account
af this application of proceeds.

™ Morris has paid $1,000 atready and will be due another $1,000 under the California well sale. If Mortis does

not voluntaritylend the Debtor $20,000 or pay the remainder of the $10,000 by Confirmation, then the Debitor
will retain the. $1,000-due from the well sale, Thie 50,000 shares will be converted to Serigs D warrants as
provided in (B)(iit), and, additionally, 80,000 of his remaining 159,541 shares will be carceled in satisfaction
of his'claim. At $.0.10 per share, 80,000 shares is $8,000, and when added to the $2,006 cash paid or
recovered will settle the claim.
The Debtor continues to collect the final deed assignments from the Petro: Assignec participanis who have sold
their interests 1o the Debtor. Until repaired, all but one of their smaller wells are generally inactive and non-
producing, so thié Debtor has mot tnade this final step in compléting the transfer a priority, The Debtor feels
ihat its rights and working, relationship with Moore Iftvestiments, the Oklahioima well operator, are uriaffected
by the statis of the paperwork in process. The Debtor does hot anticipate any other trouble it secyiring clear
fitle to any of its propetites. o
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because they seem to have done a good job in operating the assets. These persons are hot
employees of the sellérs, but rather separate contractors. If the Debtor wishes to bring on
someone new to operate-all or part of its assets it can and will do so.

For the California wells only, the Debtor bargained to receive 10% of the revenue, but has

nio responsibility for past liabilities, ongoing costs, or any costs prict to the Effective Date. This

‘agreement in no way limits the Debtor’s operating flexibility or rights. The Debtor’s purpose,

which has been achieved, was to capture 2 fiir portion of the revenue and not be saddled with

atiy, perhiaps questionablé, liabilities, especially those that shiould be more properly charged to

capital accounts.

Any party in interest that wishesto be provided & copy of the six (almiost identical) asset,

| purcliase agreements (approximately 125 pages total) may receive same by asking for them in

writing from the Debtor. Inn summary, the asset purchase agreements describe that the Debfor is
buying the assets of every kind from the sellers and is assuming no liabilities Whatsoever. The
purchase veas in éxchiarige for proniissory notés with associated security agreements. However, if
an acceptable Plan is proposed, then the sellers may accept that Plan, or they may no{ To
facilitate in advance the smooth approval of a poteritial Plan a mix of New Equity Securities that
would be mutually acceptable was memorialized in the Purchase Agreement and those numbers
serve as the underlying basis for the ciirrent Plan. Finally, the asset purchase agreements call for
the Debtor to receive numerous docutierits from the sellers. The settlements for the Adversary
Proceeding call for those documenits to be supplied to the Debtor. The Debtor has received many
of those documents and many of the documents are now not riéeded and of 1o current bersefit to
the Debtor, Nonetheless, the Debitor expests that a§ any additional documierits are needed by the
Debtor they will be supplied to it by the sellers if that is requested of them.

The Debtor intends to manage its properties during the case in a holding company fashion.
The Debtor and its predecessor, Mentor Capital, have operated as a private holding company
since 1985. The Debtor will retain the contracior management utilized by the properties' previous

owners and confine headquarters actions to supervision {and replacement if necessary) of the
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asset operators, plus financial, legal, and strategic review, This decentralized approach is
designed to limit overhead costs.

The Sierra West, Pac West, Gelden West, and Sun West properties will continué to be

‘managed by R&R Resources. The Petro field operations will continue to be managed by Moore

Investments. The ATM Nevada gperations will continue to be managed by Nevada ATM, and
David Metris will continue to assist in the general operatitig advi sory on the A?TMS. Reliance
Corporation, which has extensive oil and gas experience and is affiliated with the géneral partners
of the Investment Trusts, may be asked to advise on certain oil and gas issues. [See

emient and Certin Other Pairties ]
The Debtor has used the proceeds from the Petro wells and ATM Nevada production and

the $10,000 per manth payment from Wilson as its primiary source of operating capital during the:
Casé. The Debtor will also be receiving 10% of the revenues of the Sierra West, Pac West,
Goiden West, and Sun West interests. The Debtor estimates that these sources have generated
average revenue of approximately $16,000 per month. The settlement payments, which continued

through mid-August 1999, and profit genérated from the ATM and California wells were

‘adequate and exceeded headquariers® costs by approximately $3,000 per month, and the Debtor

had a net profit before tax of approximately $3,000 per morth through August before
reorganization costs. This general situation has existed since the settlement with Wilson was.
formulated in December 1998, (Starting in September 1999, the Debtor is tot receiving
settleimént payments from Wilson, and is currently opérating with & (87,000) per month negative
cash flow). During August through November 1998, the Debtor operated at a loss and, through
July 1999, shows a cumulative loss of ($2,383) from core operations and an overall net loss
(including reorganization expensés) of ($§117,946). The Debtor’s interest expense is not and
should not be included in this calculation because the Debtor does not actually receive or pay the
reported income and expense. The Debtor is operating in the normal course of business only, no
funds @re being expended for rework or repairs by any party on the oil and gas wells nor are any

extensive efforis proceeding in the ATM business,
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After Angust 1999, the Debtor will operate at a negative cash flow until it inereases
operating and-investment cash flows in its portfolio by acquiring businesses, assets, securities and
fractional interests in businesses. The Debfor currently has over $100,000 in its operating
checking account and conld operate without utilizing cash from the sale of assers for
approxithately one year in the unlikely event that Confirmation of this Plan took that long to

réach.

FUTURE BUSINESS OPERATIONS

Movinig forward, the Reorganized Debtor’s™ strategy for success is to expand through

smiall acquisitions. The Debtor. under current mariagerent, has concluded forty:-two aé.quisition
or divestiture actions during the past fifteen years'> The “AC” in Main Street AC, Inc, stands for
“Acquisition Corporation” ard thie Debtot is comititted to that biisiness approach. As sich, the
acquisition strategy isicompletely in keeping with the long témi history and ¢apabilitiss of the
Debtor. The management of the Debtor has broad op_erat‘iij‘g; acquisition and divestiture
experienice which will coritiniie to be applied to maximizing investor returns in a fléxible manner.
Creditors and interest holders of the Debtor should consider the acquisition orientated nature of
the Debtor’s business strategy in assessing the merits. of the Plan -
Although the Debtor has had interests in a wide.vatiety of companies in the past, and will
explore all opportunities as they become aveilable, the Debtor believes that “pure play™ conipanies

present a better opportunity. Gengrally; “pure play” companies vommiand a higher narket

valuation than companies involved in niore than one market segment, so the Debior intends to

remain narrowly focused for at least the near term future. Because of this belief in the value of

* Throughout this documént, the term Debior is used when it is uncertain if the action will be taken by the
Debtor or the Reorganized Debtor.

% The Debtor’s flexibility in ifs acquisition approach migy be best underscored by the funilamentals of the
reorganization under consideration. The Debtor facilitated thi& feorganization of an athiletic club business with
tio assets by acquiting il and gas wells and ATM businesses. -Additionally, the predecessors to the Debtor
have included tricking, tottilla chip, salsd, sun tan, compuiter; child care, toy design, pizza equipment, interior
design-and investmient interests. This cycle of acquisition and divestiture is expected to continue because it is
reflective of the investiment banking background and skills of the managemerit of the Debtor and is one of the
tocls that will be applied to maximize recovery for creditors and shareholders.
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remaining focused, the 'Reorgaﬂized Debtor may try initially to maximizg its value by acquiring
interests in other ATM companies, thereby increasing its own value and its leverage for future
expansion. The Debtor’s board has directed management to explore investment opportunities in
the Internet or “e-commerce” areas; that exploration has not yet begun, so the Debtor carinot
predict whether it will bécome involved in2 “.com” business, but that is a very plausible
possibility, If that should becbme a ‘reaiity, the Debtor will quite likely switch its focus from ATM
companies to an area of more perceived promise. .

Prohibition on Shell Meigers

The SEC is much concerned about the possibility of a so-called shell or reverse merger
4nd the associated potential for investor harm. The Debtor is keenly aware of its fiduciary role
and would tiot veluatarily cause such investor harm. Nonetheless, the Debtor wishes to entirely

belay thai SEC concern. To satisfy the SEC objection the Debtor agrees to be prohibited from

| engaging in such otherwise legal merger activity for three years without the prior approval of the

SEC or this Court. Specifically, the Debtor will not adquire more thian 20% of any ;")ﬁvate' entity
unless, post-acquisition, owrers of such entity will hiold less than 30% of the reorganized Debtor’s
common and preferred stock. Imposition of the 20% - 30% thresholds by definition blocks the
possibitity of a reverse merger and limits the Debtor to smaller private acquisitions. Even issuing

stock to acquire a private firm that is approximately haif the size of the Debtor would be

prohibited. Under these constrained conditions the SEC’s coricerti abouf the potential for abuse

should be laid to rest.

Revenue Projections
Detailed financial projectiofis in an open acquisition scenario are usually impractical, prone
to inflation and problematic. Such detailed financial projections are not provided, however the

claimants and investors may note that the Debtor, upon the effectiveness of the Plan, will have

| approximately $150,000 in cash, ATM operating income of $4,000 per month and expenses of
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$16,000% per month that could be reduced, post-Confirmation, to $4,000 per month. It may be
assurned that any acquisition or divestiture activity entered into by the Debtor utilizing the
Debtor’scash and/or stock will be reviewed by the Board which is controlled by the largest
interest holders who are, other than Mr. Billingsley, all outside directors. They will ensure actions
taken will be iri the best interest of the shareholders and such actions will generally iniprove the
economics of the Reorganized Debtor in some manner,

Tt should also be noted that the source of funds for the Reorganized Debtor’s operating

activities for the first sixteen months after the Confirmation of the Plan are from existing cash and

1} Court agproved settlements. In particular, the exercise of Warrants are not critical to-the first

sixteen months of the Reorganized Debtor’s existence. Because the gerieral and administrative
expenses of the Debtor have been kept to: & mimmumi, the capitalization needs of the Reorganized
Debtor are also minimized. In this way, although mere survival is not in the Debtor’s plans,
addressing that issue, the Diebtor piojects it would be able to maintain a presence even by doing
nothing for two years without the inflow of new eapital or the exercise of Warrants. This is riot to
say that the inclusion of Wartants in the Plan is not important. They are part of what was
discusséd and bargained for with the sellers’. representatives. The ptimary purpose of the
Warratits is to provide s source of ready funding for the hoped for future growth of the

Reorganized Debtor and provide a conduit for all claimants and interest holders to more fully

| beriefit from that success if it miaterializes:

DESCRIPTION OF CLAIMS

1| Secared Claims

Class A-1 (Heller): Class A consists of the secured Allowed Claim held by Heller to the

extent that it is secured by its security interest in the Bedbro Notes.

. Afier Confirmation, the Reorganized Debtor will continme to minimize expenses by not taking operational

gontrol of the ATM businesses it will own or acquire. The Reorganized Debtor will retain existing
management at acquired or Mérged comparies and will, at least initially, merely collect its-share of the cash
flow. In that envirohment, the Reorgaiiized Debior’s main expense categories will be salary for one person,

refit and operating costs for 2 small office, telephoné and whatever piofessionl fees it will incur as part of its

acquisition strategy and for market compliance.
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Among the few assets the Debtor had remaining after Heller seized the athletic clubs were
two promissory notes issued by Bedbro, Inc., with original face amourts aggregating $793,941
The Debtor acquired the Bedbro Notes along with other assets acquired when its prédecessor
entities were merged into the Debtor, [See History of the Del;tor's Prior Business.] Thereafter,
the Deébtor incurred a liability to Sumitomo Baik and pledged the Bedbro Notes as collateral
therefor. Heller also held & security interest in the notes. Since Heller's seizure of the athletic
clubs, it paid Sumitomo and took possession of the fiotes. -

Tb the best of the Debtor's knowledge, the priricipal prpceeds recetved and retained by
Heller plus the balance remaining unider the Bedbro Notes total app_mximatlely $635,000*. The
Bedbro Notes bear interest at five percent (5%). The Debter contends that ¢the amount of Heller's

sécured claim is the prinicipal paynients refained and principal balance on thie Bedbro Notes. The

| Debtor also assumes any taxes due on the interest portion of the note payments received and

retained by Heller will be the responsibility of Heller to report. and pay as appropriate.
Because all of the Debtor's material assets (other than the Bedbro Notes) could be secured

by purchase money security interests in such assets, any lien Heller might assert thereon would be

| without value. Therefore, Heller's claim is secured only to the extent of its iriterest in the Bedbro

Notes. For purpoeses of this Disclosure Statement only, the Debtor estimates that Heller will retain
ar approved claim secored claim of approkimately $635,000. The Debtor believes that a global

settlement with Heller that is acceptable to all parties has been reached in concept, is being

|| reduced to writing, and that that settlement fimits the secured claim to the extent of the Bedbro

Notes.

Class A-2 (ATM Nevada): Class A-2 consists of the $310,000 (See Notes to be Retired)

 secured Allowed Claim held by the six ATM entities that held $2,370,000 purchase money

security interests in the promissory notes issued to purchase the ATM assets of the Debtor to the

extent that it is sécured by the assets, products and proceeds of the secured assets. The secured

3 The $635,000 balance on filing has besn paid down to $560,000.as of ihié date of this Disclosure Statement.
The $75,000 in principal proceeds received and retained by Heller and the $560,000 noic balarice. constitute
the entirety of Hellers® $635,000 security inferest.
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portion of this claim is $310,000* and is expected to be setiled by the issuance of 3,100,000

shares of restricted stock at the equivalent $0.10 per share conversion rate at which restricted

stock was earlier approved for sale by the Court. The shares are issued inder fiormal securities

regulations and fall under no special Bankruptcy exemption™™™, The excess claim of $2,060,000

3s:

Thi basis for the $310,000 valuation of the ATM business is that-the Debtor received a purchase offer for the
business in that amount. The figure is also consistent with the conibined cash and machine values. The Debtor
placed an ad in the Wall Streei Journal and received approxinsately 70 résponsés from parties interested in
purchasing the ATM business. The Debtor beliéves it might possibly obtdin an even higher offer after further
marketing and negotiations; but the beat indication of 2 higher price at this time is an ofal offer for $330,000.
Because the certainty of the oral-offer was not assured, the Debtor used the $316,000 offer as the. basis for its
valuation of its ATM hioldings,

The SEC asked the Debeor to identify what exemiption(s) from the Securities Taws would apply to the restricted
shares to be issued under the Plan. ThePlan proposes the issuance of sccurities 1o holdeérs of unsecuréd clatins
and interests-in exchange for their claimg or fiterests. These will be exempt froni-the registration and
prospectus delivery requirements of the Securities Act, and.the holders will be able to resell thie securities
without violation.of the Securities Laws. In addition to these shares, however, and becaunse of the Court's
previously expressed concern aver the motivation behind the original Plan of Reorganization, the Diebtor
proposes issuance of réstricted shares 1o the ATM entities from which the Debtor boughit the ATM assets:
These scéirities, unlike those to. thie holders of unsecuréd claiims, will be festricted from further sale-for 4t Teast
oneyear. The Debtor believes that the shares fo-these ATM entitics would slsa be exeript fram the
registration requirements:under section 1145 , just as would the securities-cxchanged for urisecured claims.
However, to'address the Court’s determijnation that the earlier Plan of Reorganization could nok be cornfirmed
becatise the primary purpose of the earfier Plan was (o.avoid securities laws, the Plin is now predicated upon
cormplying with the restrictions of the Securities laws and without any Code-based exetription. As.set oufin
some detail in the Noventber 18, 1999 supplemental miemorandnm to the Disclosure Staiement, the Securities
lIaws themselves contain exemptions from the registration and prospectus delivery requirements in Section 5 of
the Securities Act. ‘Specifically, the Débtor will issize the securities to the ATM entities with restriciion on'the
tésale so-asto come-under the provisions in either of both of (1) the exermptign under 4(2) of-the Securilies
Act, or (ii) the exemption under Regulation I, 504. The issuance of the shares (0. the ATM investors would be
cxcmpt undér section 4(2) because the issuance would fof be part-of a public offering. The Debter would be
issuing its stock 1o just five Nevada LLCs, tiot'to the investing public as 2 whole or even a wide group.of
investors,

A poinit fo emphasize: the securities to the ATM entities can be éxempt under section. TI45(a); the Debtor's
contractual restriction on thie securities by the Plan miake those secutities also eligible for section 4(2)
exemption, but it is nor essential. The exemption undér Rule 504 may notbe as clear oras strong as the ori¢
under section 4(2), but the Debtor belicves that exemption:should be available because the! offering value is so
low-and the Debtor otherwise falls within the limits of the. riles boundaries.

Thie Debtor believes the securities could be resold under the resale. limitations contained in rule. 144, although
the Debitor warits the shares: to be tradable as soon as permissible, Through the Plan itself; the Debtor is
restricting tesale of the securities for one year to make their marketability comparable to secirities. sold wridet
cithér or both of the Rulés. Even if not required by the Code, this regtriction is deignied to eliminate any
coricern of contentiofn that the securities will b¢ issued s part of 4 plan with the principal purpose of avoiding
the Securities laws. If the shares were to be issued only under the exemption in section 1145(a) rather than
under 4(2) because of the Court’s concerns with the prncipal purpose for the Plan) these ATM LLCs which
would receive securities in exchange for their claims against the Debtor would be able 1o resell them
immediately under the exemption in scction 1145(b), The Debior would not really be responsible for
complidnce with arry restrictions on subisequént distribution of the shares; thal would be:the responsibility of
the recipient, i.e., the ATMLLCs. Iffor any reasch any of the securities could not be tradable under the
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will be treated as a General Unsecured Claim under Class C. The cJaimants are ATM of Nevada,
LLC, ATM-1 of Nevada, LLC, ATM-1A of Nevada, LLC, ATM-2 of Nevada, LLC, ATM-2A
of Nevada, LLC and ATM-3 of Nevada, LL.C.

Class A-3 (Oif Well I'ntérests). [SOLD]: Class A-3 consists of the $11,285,000 {See
Notes to be Beﬁred) secured Allo,w;ed Claim held by the seven entitics that held purchase money
security interests in the promissory notes issued to purchasé the oil and gas assets of the Debtor
to the extent that it is secured by the assets, products and procee(is of the secured assets. These
clainis are expected to be completely satisfied by the sale of these well assets and the surrendering
of the net proceeds ($150,000) to the interest holders. 100% ($16,000) of the Oklahorma wells net
sale-proceeds will go to the Petro Assignee Tiust, Mr. Jerry Fey, trustee, for the economic benefit

of the inferest holders, For the California wells, 78% of the net proceeds will go into the Petro

|| Assignee Trust (which may be renamed) which will have its membership expanded to provide for

the iriterests of these well investors; also. 22% (842,000} of the proceeds would be due Wilson,
however, the entirety-of this amount is less than the settlement claim by the Debtor against him

and will be retained by the Debior. These amounts will retire the claims of this class in full. It

- should be noted that no excess unsecured claim is provided for. The Debior takes the position

that the wells are worth what they sell for and any excess claim would only be because of
exaggerations in the reporting of financial results by the sellers at the times the purchase notes
were entered into. 1t is expected that the Class C-3 claimants will gccept the riet sale proceeds as
100% settlenisnt of their secured claims™. The claimants are Sierra West iJIT,_ Sierra West-A
UTT, Pac West UIT, Pac West -2 UIT, Golden West UIT, Sun West UIT, and the Petro Assignee

Trust.

exernption in s¢otion 4 1145(5) or'Rules 144 or 144A, then the individual ATM L1LCs would be respansibie
for compliance with the Securities laws, not the Reorgarized Debtor.
¥ The original purchasé price of the oil and gas entitiés by the Debior was based upon fraudulent disclosures by
the selling entitics (not, however, the investors in those entities). The differénce in the purchasé prices of the
asssts.compared fo what the Debtor was able to sell them for reflects and is evidence of the fraudulent
cversiatement of value: The entities themselves have not asked for an unsecured deficiency, and the Debtor
assutties that the investors will look to the entities in which they invested for any redress for frandulent or
othérwise improper solicitations. The Debtor would object to the allowance of an unsecured deficiency under
the circumstances. B ) ,
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Unclassified Claims

Administrative Claims

Claims entitled to priority under §507(a)(1) of the Bankruptcy Cede arc not classified
under the Plan, and the Code requires them to be provided special treatment. Such claims are

those arising during the pendency of the Chapter 11 case. Traditionally, such claims would

|} include the fees and costs of professionals (lawyers and accotintants) representing the Debtor and

any-creditors' committee; fees of the United States Trustee for overseeing the case on behalf of
the government, and claims by parties who provide goods and services during the case.

Because the normal operating expenses will be paid from revenues gererated by the
operating properties, the Debtor believes that there will be only minimal claims for goods and
services during the case. The Debtor cannot predict.at this time the total aniount of fées that will
be iiicurred for the services of professionals, but the Debtor believes that such claims will not

exceed $160,000. Of this amount, $48,000 in legal fees have been incurred to file and attempt to

| | bring to settlérient the dispute with Wilson and Morris, and $112,000 is for projected total basic

legal expenses associated with the reorganization. Ifallowed, as is expected, an additional
$37,000 in adininistrative claims would also-be added to this total derived from prior work of the
Debtor’s formier legal counsel, Brooks and Raub.

On January 22, 1999, the Debtor asked the court for authority to issue between $134,444
and $500,000 in Certificates of Indebtedness from its existing shareholders and investors which
was.detiied by the Court.

Priority Tax Claims

Certain governmental claims for taxes and customs duties which existed prior to

commencement of the case are entitled to priority under §507(a)(8) of the Code. These claims

1| are not classified under a plan of reorganization; and they are entitled to special treatment. The

Debtor believes that such claims consist only of certain property tax claims in the aggregate
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amount of approximately $12,000.

The above not-with-standing, in particular, the Debtor plans that no claim be allowed for
additional personal property taxes for Santa Clara County as those taxes are already paid in full.
The Santa Clara County pérsonal property assets were sold by-the receiver for approximately
$320,000. Personal property taxes were paid on these assets at a valuation of approximately
$720,000 for 1995, 1996 and -1'9'97 at the full rate of 1.045%. The Santa Clara County tax office
coriterids that these assets (gym equipment, furniture, fixtures and leasehold improvemints) rea.lly
had a value of $2,000,000 and at g personal propérty tax rate of 1% an additionial $60,000 is

owed which the Debtor vigorously denies, The Debtor has met with the county and explained

'that although pre-receivership depreciation schedules are not available, the Bebtor’s audited

financials, equipment appraisals, and asset sale information (which were provided to the county)
indicate the taxes were paid correctly and perhaps even a $12,000 rebate is due to the Debtor.
Lacking depreci'aﬁon schedules, Santa Clara County has incorrectly included goadwill, customer

lists, and below market rents as personal property arid otherwise inflated the values beyonid the

credible. The Debtor will object to this claim usless it is withidrawn or at least reduced to a level

that the Debtor would aceeépt in view of all of the circumstances..

Priority Claims _

Class B-1 (Employee Clsiims): Class B-1 consists of unsecured Allowed Claims entifled
to priority pursuant to §507(a)(3) or (4) of the Code. These include unsecured claims for (i)
wages and salaries of the kind specified in Section §507(a)(3) of the Bankruptcy Codg, including

claims for vacation, severance, and sick leave pay, and (ii) contributions to emplovee benefit plans

- arising from services rendered within six mionths prior to commencement of the Chapter 11 case.

The Debtor believes that such claiins total approximately $9,000.

Class B-2 (Member Claims): Class B-2 congsists of unsecured Allowed Claims entitled
to priority pursuant to §507(a)(6) of the Code. Such claims would include claims, up to.a
maxirmum of $1,950 each, held by purchasers of athletic club memberships whose memberships

the Debtor was unable to honor.
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At the time of its closufe, the Diebtor owed approximately $4,000 in unearned membership
deposits to approximately 15 members. The Debtor has been informed that the vast majority of
membership deposits are being honored by the purchaser of the largest of the Debtor's clubs.
Other ¢lubs have been closed. The Debtor believes that many of the pre-paid memberships in the
closed clubs will be honored by the purchaser of the largest club or through cooperative use
agreements with competitors' athletic clubs in the area.

However, the Debtor cannot dé‘_cemﬁne with accuracy at this time how many members
miay have claims for dishonored pre-paid memberships. Based on the Debtor's investigation, it
estinates that sach claims will not total inore than $6,000.

General Unsecuired Claims (Class C)

Class € corisists of unsecured Allowed Claims which are neither priority claims included in
Class B-1 or Class B-2 nor unclassified administrative or govemmental priority claims. This class
i_nclude:s the vast majority of unsecured claims, consisting primarily of the commissions or finder
fees for the Debtor's previous and pending acquisitions, and the claims of trade creditors from the
Debtot's prior business. The Debtor estimates (for pu@ows of this Disclosure Statement) that
contingent commissions and contingent finder fees total approximately $1,700,000 and that trade
claims will total approximately $1.9 milfion.* Any Allowed Claim held by Heller which exceeds
the value of the Bedbro Notes will be included in Class C. Based on the settlement with Heller
that is being drafted, Hellef's unsecuréd claim would be appréxim‘ately $250,000 , which will be
used int this presentation. The unsecured portion of any Allowed Claim by ATM Nevada,
estimated at $2,060,000 , will be included in Class C.

Heller was also seeking to recover the entire amount of its §1.2 million original lean

amount from the Debtor's President, who had guaranteed the loan, without any credit for the

“ Commissions and finder’s fees include primarily certain fees eamed on acquisition of the oil and pas and

ATM businesses; as well as commissions relating o the transaction under negotiation for the lilinois
goquisition. Some of these commissions may be disputed or are contingent claims, st of which depend on the
consumimation and the-terms of the acquisition and the final vilue of the assets ackpiired. For commissions on
asset purchases, the shares to settlé the claim will be scaled back proportionately to the book vahie of the assets
actuaily purchased compared to the book value bargained for.
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estimated recovery fromi the Debtor's assets. In December 1997, Mr. Billingsley filed personal
bankruptcy under Chapter 7 of the Code on account of his guarantee, and Heller has filed a non-

|| dischargability action against him in his personal case. To the extent that the President is required

to- make payments to Heller, he could assert a claim for indemnity against the Debtor pursuant to

' an indemmification provision in the Debtor’s bylaws. To the extent an indeminification claim would

be allowed, it would be included in Class C and, if large, would have commensurably large
niegative impact on the success of the Debtor’s plans and financial viability. However, it appears
thiat these concerns are virtually moot, because the resolution of the dispute with Heller that
includes a release of Mr. Billingsley for his actions on behalf of the Debtor has been agreed upon.
The settlement between Mr. Billingsley, Heller and the Debtor has been reached i1 concept and is
being reduced to writing. The ]jethr will seek approval of the settlement prior to confirmation
of the Plan. 'In this Disclesure Statement, o estimated amount is included for the Debior’s
president’s cortingent indemnity claim. [See “Class 7 (Heller)."]
Estiniated Amourts of Cia.im‘s

The Debtor is unable to predict the sum of all claims which might be filed in the Chapter

11 case but estindates that the sum of all Allowed Clainis will be as follows:

- Secired claims
' Heller First Capital (Class A-1) $635,000
ATM Nevada 310,060
Oil Well Interests [SOLD] 11,285,000

Administrative Claims

Professional fees, etc. ) 197,000
Governmental Claims 12,000
42 DEBTOR’S SIXTH AMENDED
DISCLOSURE STATEMENT



N B - NV S N TC R\

-] ~¥ [ v T S S <

19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26

Priority claims

Employee Claims-(Class B-1) 9,000
Member Claims {(Class B-2) 6,000
Unsecured claims (Class €) 4.610,000*

TOTAL (Estimated) _ $17,064,000

DESCRIPTION OF EQUITY SECURITY INTERESTS

|| Quistanding Preferred sind Commiox Stock

Class D-1 (Preferred Stock): Class D-1 consists of the interest based on the Debtor's

| outstanding preferred stock: 13,333 shares held by a former general partner of 2 predecessor of
| the Debtor and the Debtor's former Chief Operating Officer, Mr. Joe Gigantino.

Class D-2 (Common Stock): Class D-2 consists-of the interests based on the Debtor's

outstanding commoi stock. All holders of comimon stock on the record date will be afforded the

11 same treatment. There are 2,209,242 shares of common stock outstanding, held of record by

 approximately 320 persons and entities. 800,000 of these shares are restricted, and consists of

the interest in 300,000 restricted shiares sold under Banksuptey Court approval but with no specisl
exemption to Gib McCord and resold to Ernie Williams in a private transaction. Consideration

was $80,000 cash. 1,449,242 of the shares legally trade-on the National Association of Securities

‘Dealers' bulletin board under the trading symbol "M¥IT" (“MFITQ” during the pendency of this

<¢asé). However, the sharés are not fisted on aiy sécurities exchiange or quoted in the National
Market System. [See "Market for the Debtor's Securities" under Means for Implementation of
the Plan | The stock is not registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission, and the
Debtor is not subject to the reporting requirements under the Securities and Exchange Act of
1934, [See also "1996 Stock Offering" under History of the Debtor's Prior Business. ]

The record date for voting and receiving distributions under the Plan is the date of

4l Because of the contifigent nature of over $1,000,000 of the unsecured claims, it is estimated that the finat
allowed claims in Class € will be $4,610,000. Total unsecured claiins before contingent climination are
$5,710,000
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approval of the Adequacy of this Disclostire Statement, or such other date which is shown on the

Notice of Heating on Confirmation. {See Voting on the Plan ]

Warrants to Acquire Common Stock
From time to time, before the beginning of this case, the Debtor issued options and

.| warrants to acquire commot stock. The currently outstanding classes of options and warrants

are identified in the following table:

Plan . Exercise Numiber of Shares Number of
Class Price Subject to Options Option Holders
Class D-3 $1.00 165,040 2
Class D=4 $4.00 274,283 76
Class D-5 $6.00 52,691 17
Class D-6 $10.00 294,084 _31
Totals 186,098 126

IREATMENT OF CLAEMS AND INTERESTS

Thee times for payinerits and distributions with respect to claims are genierally measured
from the Effective Diate of the Plan. The Effective Date will be the date on which the Debtor files
the Amended Articles. [see "Effective Date/Filing of Amended Articles of Incorporation® under
Means for Implementation of the Plan.] The Plan requires the Amended Articles to.be filed after

the assets are sold but within 120 days after Confirmiation.

‘Secured Claimy

Heller Finantial Corp; (Class A-1)
The Plan provides for the Debtor to assign the Bedbro Notes to Heller in full satisfaction

‘of its secured Allowed Claim in Class A-1 which the Debtor contends is the principal payments

received and retained by Heller plus the outstanding principal balance owirig on the Effective
Date. All payments which Heller will have received on the Bedbro Notes before the Effective
Date will be applied to the total prepetition claim. To the extent that Heller has an Allowed Claim

against the Debtor in eéxcess of the principal balance of the Bedbro Notes on the Effective Date,

4 DEBTOR'S SIXTH AMENDED
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such claim will be unsecured claims and included in Class C (Unsecured Claims). Any taxes due,
if any, on the interest-portion of the note payments already received by Helier are the
responsibility of Heller.

Nevada ATM: (Class A-2)

The Plan provides for the Debtor to issue 3,100,000 restricted shafes to ATM Nevada in
full satisfaction of its secured -All.ow.ed Claim in Class A-2 which the Debtor contends is
$310,000. To the extent that ATM Nevada has an Allowed Claim against the Debtor in exgess of
$310,000., such cldim, estimated at $2,060,000 , will b an unsecured clais and included in
Class C (Unsecured Claims).

Ol Well Interests; (Class A-3)

The Plan provides for the Debtor to complete the sale of the California and Oklahoma oil
and gas interests and return the net proceeds to the economic interest holders in full satisfaction of
their secured claims. The portion due Wilson will retained by the Debtor in pariial satisfiction of

his settlement with the Debtor. No unseéured claim is provided for.

| Unglassified Claims

Adminisirative Claims
Traditional Administrative Claims
The Plan provides for administrative Allowed claims to be paid on the Effective Date
unless the holder of such a claim agrees to different treatment. 7

Election for Administrative Claimants

The Plan contains a mechanism for holders of administrative claims to eléct to recerve
New Equity Securities in lieu of cash on accourit their claims. Holders of administrative claimis
who ¢lect such treatment will receive New Equity Sectirities in satisfaction of their Allowed
Claims. Each claimant will receive (i) four shares of New Common Stock for each dollar of'its
Allowed Claim, and (i) four Warrants: one Seties A Warrant, one Series B Warrant, one Series C
Watrant, and one Series D Warrant. Each Warrant will permit the Certificate Holders to puschass

four shares of the Debtor's common stock for each dollar of their Allowed Claims. In other
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words, each electing creditor will be entitled to teceive up to twenty shares of common stock for
each dollar of its Allowed Claim, consisting of four shares of New Common Stock and up.to
sixteen additional shares, if purchased upon exercise of Warrants. To make this partial or
complete election, the holder must notify the Debtor in writing of its election prior to the earlier
of (a) ninety days after the Effective Date or (b) the holder's receipt of Cash on account of such

portion of their claim.

Priority Tax Claims.

The Debtor estimates that the only priority tax clainis consist of personal property tax

claims in the aggregate amount of approximately $12,000. If such estimate is substantially

| correct, then the Debtor projects that it will have sufficient cash to pay such claims in full on the

Effective Date. Accordingly, the Plan provides for payment of all priority tax claims in full on the

| Effective Date if the total of such claims are $22,000 or Tess. However, if it should turn eut that

priority tax Allowed Claims exceeds 322,000, then the Plan provides for the claims (plus intetest
at the rate provided in §6621 of the Intérnal Revenue Code), to be paid inl quarterly installments
of $5,000 each, commencing three months afier the Effective Date and continuing uritil the earlier
of full satisfaction of such Allowed Claims or three years after thie Effectivé Date. Any principal
or interést not paid at the end of three years will be immediately due and p&?able.

Priority Employee and Member Claims; (Class B-1 and Class B-2)

The holders of Allowed Claimns in Class B-1 (eniployee wage and benefit claims) and
holders of Allowed Claims in Class B-2 (member i;laims) will ieceive Cash in the amount of such
claimis on the Effective Date. Classes B-1 and B-2 arc impaired under the Plan.

As with administrative claifs, the Plan provides for each holdér in Class B-1 and Class
B-1to elect to receive New Equity Securities; in this case, one share of New Common Stock for
each dollar of claims as well as onie Series A Warrant and one Series D Warrant, each to purchase
a like number of shares of commion stock. To make this complete or partial election, the holder
must notify the Debtor in writing of its election prior to the earlier of (a) ninety days after the

Effective Date or (b) the holder's receipt of Cash on account of such portion of their claim.
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Unsecured Claims; (Class C)
Each holder of Aflowed Claims in Class C will receive one share of New Common Stock

ofi account of each dollar of such claims and one Series B Warrant and one Series D Warrant
each entitling t'hevholder to purchase a like number of shares of the Debtor's common stock. Class
C is impaired under the Plan. ' '
Equity Security Interests
Qutstanding Shares
Clags D-1 (Preferred Stock): The holder of the Debtor's existing Preferred Stock will

réceive (2) 13,333 shares of New Commori Stock, whick is equal to-the number of shares of
preferted stock he currently holds, plits (b) one Series C Warrant and one Series D Warrant, each

entitling: him to purchase a like number of shares of the Debtor's common stock. His preferred

| stock will be canceled on the Effective Date. Class -1 is impaired under the Plan®

Class D-2 (Comiron Stock): Each of the Debtor's existing shareholders will retain its
shares of the Debtor's common stock and will receive one Series D Warrant entitling such holder
to purchase a tumber of additional shares of the Debtor's commion stock equal to twice® the
number of shares held by such holder on the Record Date. tSee *Determination of Record Date

for Voting of Common Stock" under Voting on the Plan.] Class D-2 is impaired under the Plan.

42 Impairmient is 4 term of ant ised in the Bankruptey Code to refer to any change, ¢ither posilive or negative, in

the legal, equitable or contractual rights of the holder of & claim or interest.

* When the individual investors in the Unit Fvestment Trusts purchased: by the Debitor voted fo be acquired by
the Debtor, they understood and it was planned that electric generation systems would be insialled at several
gas well sites. Becanse the field engineering group that would work with: the Debtor to accomplish these
projects has been sued by the Bebtor in Bankruptcy Court, it was decided that the degree of cooperation
tequired for successful project implementation would not be possible. ‘The installtion of power systems: will
ot be undertaken, To compensate the irivestors for the slightly diminished circumstances, it was decided that
one extra Series D Warrant (the most out of the money and least valuable Warranit) would be issued with each
share, which slightly incréases what is to be received by the investors over what was submitied in the original
Plan filed in August 1998. This move is felt to bring the overall value received back in line with what the
investors voled on and equals the value they were expected to receive under the August 1998 Plan. To-then
keep the entire Plan in equilable balance, one additional of the least valusble Series D Warrants was also
added pro-fata to each of the other Warrant recipients (i.s. otlier than the invéstors) beyond what was
contemplated in the August 1998 Plan, as previously filed. The result is judged 10'be of eqial and equitable
wvalue for all parties under this ¢urrent Plan.
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Existing Options and Warrants

The Plan provides for the holders of existing options and warrants to receive new
‘Warrants in exchange for such existing options-and warrants, Each holder will receive one Series
D Warrant and one matching Warrant, each to purchase the same number of shares as the holder
coulld purchase with their existing options and warrants. The exercise periods wil generally be
shortened from the lengthier option periods the holders are now entitled to. The exefcise prices

for the matching Warrants also will be different, as shown on the following table:

Plan Existing New New Maximum

Class Exercisé Price Warranit Series Exercise Price
Class D-3 $1.00 Series A $1.00
Class D4 $4.00 Series B $3.00
Class D-5 $6.00 Series C $5.00
Class D-6 $10.00 Series D $7.00

MEANS FOR IMPLEMENTATION OF THE PLAN
Summary

The Plan is to be implemerited by issuance of certaini New Equity Securities in exchange

for claims™ and interests*’ of the Deébtor's creditors and sharcholders, as well as paymenit of those

| claims which must be-paid in cash. All disputes with the Debtor are sufficienily resolved and, to

# Warrants will e isstied directly to the éiitities (e.g. ATM LLCs ) that will akso hold restricted shares of the
Debtor, hot to theirinvestors, N6 New Equity Securities will be issicd o, for exaniple, the shareholders-in
ATM comparniés who are not direct shareholders and who hold merely a beneficial interest or shares in the
entities which executed the Purchiase Agreements with Main Streef and which now hold the shares issued to
sefile secured claim against Main Sireet's assets.
The Plan is niow, in simplified form, the issuing of shares and watrants to satisfy unsecured clainis and the
issuing of warraiits only as an adjustment for the impairinent of equity interest holders. T¢ is inaccurate to
charadterize the Plin implementation as the merger of a public shell with a privately held corporations since
54% of the equivalent stock to-be issued will hiave occurred (some stock will be issued but hield for initial
safekeeping) under 1145 but contractually limited to the equivalent of normal staie and federal securitics
regulations without any bankruptcy exemption. (See also footnote page 5) The Plan now, 1o the greatest exient,
only setiles wnsecured claims and makes 2 token adjustment 1o equity interest holders . As part of the Plan. no
merger will ocour; nio new entity will be formed, no new shares will be issued to existing shareholders
(although they will réceive Warrants bécause of their impairment). The ATM corpordtions will, at leasi for
ghort period of time, have soie continuéd responsibility for their own Habilities, 1axes, invesior
communication and distribution, and limited other issiles. Since August 10, 1998, the Debtor has ceased to be
a shell corporation.  Since that date, the Debtor had an operating business with reveniies, expenses and profit.
48 DEBTOR’S SIXTH AMENDED
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the Debtor’s knowledge, all pai'tie_s with an economic interest in the case, and the Debtor, if an
affirmative vote is obtained, are prepared to immediately implement the Plan.
Description of New Equity Securities

The New Equity Securities to:be issued under the Plan consist of newly issued New
Common Stock and certain Warran.ts. Generally, such shares and warrants would be freely
tradable, however no trading will be allowed in these shares until the Debtor is audited and fully
reporting under the SEC securities reporting system, probably in lFebru-azy 2000. On

Confirmation, it is estimated that the New Common Stock and previously issued stock

[ (approximately 11,000,000% in total shares) would have.a forced liquidation value of $0.02

(approximately $260,000*"). Since January 1999, the Debtor’s common stock has generally
traded close to $0.18 bid and $0.32 asked. Each Warrant will entitle its holder to purchiase shares
of the Debtor's commion stock, and all Warrants expire sixteen months after Confirmation, unless
such date is extended by the Debtor for any particular series. Each series of Warrants has a
different exercise pﬁce. The holders of Warrants will be entitled to purchase the Debtor's

common stock at the purchase prices stated in such Warrants, as shown in the following table:

Series ; Exercige Price
Series A $1.00
Series B $3.00
Series C 85.00
Series D $7.00

The Debtor will have thie right; under the Plan, to redeei all or part of the Warranis in any
particular series if the closing bid price for the common stock is at least $1.00. or at least 100%

higher than the exercise price for that series on the last trading day before the Debtor gives notice

6 This approximate 11,000,000 share figure includes approximately 1,400,000 previously issued, outstanding
treely tradable shares, 3,000,000 restricted shares issued to retire the secured portion of the ATM purchase
notes, 800,000 shares issued under barkruptcy court approval in a stock sale motion and 4,800,000 to satisfy
unsecured claims and 1,000,000 shares for management,

" If:all of the assets of the Reorganized Debtor were soid just before Confirmation if is estimated that $260,000
would be generated afier claims, If those funds were. distributed pro rata to ail of the shareholders at that time,
then each shareholder wonld receive approximately $0.02324 per share for each share that they held at that
time. This $260,000 liquidation estimate is based on 1) the ATMSs contain $200,000 cash, and 2) the 50
ATM machines are warth approximately $2,200 each i pface ($7,000 to. $8,000 new) or $110,000 in total 3)
$120,000 in operating cash , and 4) $170,000 in administrative claims. . .
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of its desire to redeem Warrants. The Debtor must give a minimum of 30 days notice of its intent
to redeem Warrants by issuing a press release and sending written notice by first class mail to the
last known address of the Warrant holder. Warrant holders may exercise their Warrants at any

time before the close of the specified redemption date. The redemption price will be $0.10 per

| share in cash, and unexercised Warrants fnay be redeemed by the Debtor or its designee. Any

unexercised warrants not redeerned will be reset to the next higher Warrant level at the end of the

.| { notice period. Series notice periods of the four Warrants types may overlap which could limit the

1| hiolder’s time to exercise at the niext Warrant level. The Debtor intends (but is niot required) to

sequentially reset the Series A, B, and C Warrants when it has the option to redeein to give
holders the maximur opportunity to exercise. Aftér the noficé petiod for the Series D Warrants
expires, the Debtor intefids to allow designees to redeem and exeércise the Series D Wartants; if
done, the Debtor will send the $.10 per Watrant proceeds to the holders when the entire class has
been redeemed. Even after the Series D Wairant notice period has expired, the holders may stilt

exercise their Series D Warrants until all of the Series D Warrants have beén redeemied by the

Debtor or its designees.

After the Effective Date, the Debtor may reser all of the outstanding Warrants in one or
fhore Seties to a lower exercise price™. The Warrants may not be reset to a higher exercise price.
Becauge of this reset provision, and to have maximum flexibility to facilitate a follow-on merger,

if a reverse stock split oceurs, it wilt be applied to the numbér of outstanding shares but not affect

the number or price of outstanding Warrants. The more normally encountered, forward splits are

gnaffected by this procedure.*

*®  For example, to optimize capitalizition the exercise price of the Series A, B, C and D Warrants could be réset
downward from $1, $3, $5 and $7 pés share 10.50.50, $0.50, $1 and $2.27 per share, respectively. The
outstanding Warrants as a class may be reset once or repeatedly from time to time to any downward adjusted.
exercise price that the management of the Debtor-calculates as financially optimal. Alréady exercised
Warrants will be unaffected by such adjustment. The Warrants may not be adjusted upward, nor readjusted
upward once the strike price-has been lowered,

*  Forexample, if a hiolder has 300 shates and 300 Series B Warrants at a §3.00 per shate exercise price and a
2:3 réverse split is anncuniced, then, afier the reverse split, the holder would own 2006 shares and 300 Series B
Warranits at $3.00 per share, However, int the casé of a normal 27) forward splii, the same original holder
would end up with 600 sharcs and 600 Series B Warrants at 4 $1.50 per share exercise price.
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Description of Restricied ATM Shares
The Plan ¢alls for the issuance of restricted stock, not under any barkruptey exemption, to

settle the secured claims from the purchase notes the Debtor owed to the ATM entities from
which it purchased the ATMs in Angust 1998. These shares are-issued arid must be held by the
ATM entities (not the investors) for a period of one year. The Debtor wiil take those measures,
that in its sole judgment, are necessary to ensure that any transfer prior to the first anniversary
cahriot oceur without prior approval of Debtor’s counsel ds being tn complete accord with all
securities laws requirements, The Debtor will also take those steps necessary to ensure that the
investor’s interests are fully protected. It should be noted that Earl Gurnack is taking over as

President of the five ATM LLCs that the Debtor purchased the assets from.

Retirement of Notes

The Plan calls for the issuance of restricted stock to settle and retire the ATM notes and

surrendeting of the net cash proceeds of sale to settle and retire the Oklahioina and Califotria well

| notes

An overview of the notes te be settled and the aliocation of cash or sharés in setilement is

detailed in the immediately following two tables:
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Note Holder

Sierra West UIT

| Sierra West -A UIT

Pac West UIT

Pac West - 2 UIT
‘Golden West UIT
| Sun West UIT

Petro Assignee Trust

ATM of Névada, LLC
ATM ~ 1 of Nevada, LLC
ATM - 1A of Nevada, LL.C
ATM -2 of Nevada, LLC

|ATM -2A of Nevada, LLC

ATM -3 of Nevada, LLC

Fotal Restricted Shares™

Fotal Cash

NOTES TO BE RETIRED

Note Amiount

$1,290,000
$1,290,000
$155,600
$155,000
$3,300,000
$825,000
$4,271,000
$474,ooo‘
$474,000
$474,000
$189,600
$474,000

$ 284,400

813,655,000

$CASH or Shares to Retire Notes.

$45,000
$45,000
$14,000
$14,000
$82,000

$5,000
$18,000
520,000
620,000
620,000
248,000
620,000
372,060

3,100,000
$223,000

% The consolidation of ATM - 2 aad ATM - 3 of Nevada LLC has beent approved. All ATM -2 and ATM =3
amounts will redound to ATM - 3 of Nevada, L.L.C which the Debtor will own. 100% interest in.

*  Additionzlly, for esch three restricted shires. plarined to be issued to the ATM entities shown in this table, an
additional two shatres and four warrants will be issued oni account of their related unsecured claims.
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ALLOCATION OF PROCEEDS AND SHARES

Total Cash

Mota Hokder # Shares Investor $ Investor §$ Sh
$2,700,000 $61,000
Sierra West UIT
. Sterra West -A UIT
i $1,500,000 $25,000
Pac West UIT ‘
Pac West - 2 UIT
3,965,000 72,000
Golden West UIT 3 ¥
$1,839,434 $5,000
Sun West UIT !
: $2,880,096 $18,000
| Petro Assignee Trast™
ATM of Nevada, LLC*
3,160,000  $2,370,000 4,945,000
ATM -1 of Nevada, LLC
ATM - 1A of Nevada, LLC
ATM - 2 of Nevada, LLC
ATM - 2A of Nevada, L1.C
ATM -3 of Nevada, LLC
$15,224,530 $181,000

Overhead § Sk

$29,000

§3,000

$10,000

$o0

$0

215,000

$42,000

%2 The Debtor expects to hold an approximate’ 45% interest in-the Oklahoma wells (Petro). ‘The § investment
and investor and overhead shares are calculated above assusing the Debior’s final interest is 45%,
*  The number of shares for ATM of Nevada inclades bothi the restricted and unrestricted shares on account of

thetr secured and unsecured claims, respectively.
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The net effect of the above described issue of stock as part of the Plan is that the majority

of the total shares te be issued (6 million of 11 million) under 1145 are issiied without any

avoidance of the securities registration law restrictions what- so-ever. The contractual restriction

and one year holding period mirrors Section 5 of the Securities Act of 1933, This parailel

compliance for the majerity of shares, which was an earlier expressed concemn of the Court, now

should be ameliorated.

In simpliﬁed form, every investor in an economic property who invested $1.00 can be

expected to receive under the Plan the following:

NORMALIZED INVESTOR CASH PROCEEDS, SHARES AND WARRANTS
( per $1.00 Invested )

55

] Net Cash Shares Warrants Equivalent
Note Holder Proceeds Shares™
. $0.023
Sierra West UTT
3 i $0.023
Sierra West -A UIT
$0.017
Pac West UIT
$0.017
Pac West - 2 UIT
) . $0.018
Golden West UIT
. N st $0.003
Sun West UIT
i o $0.006
Petro Assignee Trust
5% The warrants as a whole are much less valuable than shares of stock. The higher priced a warrant is, the

lower is its value, The initial strike price for the Series A, B, C & Drwarrants is $1, $3, $5 and 87,
respectively. At those prices, with the Debtor stock trading at $0.18; it is estimated that 4 scrigs A watrant is
worfth 12% of one share, Series B = 5%, Series C = 3% and a series D warrant is equivalent (0 2 % of one.
share of stock. Using those figures 2 true relative estimate of what vahug, in égitivalent shares, edch group is
receiving can be catculated and compared.
The Sun West investors get to retain 100% of their investment in Sun West becaust the Debior is- not
exercising its option to acquire those assets. The net affect is that for zero investment in the Debtor the Sun
West investors will receive somé small value in the warrants earned. The Debtor considers that the Sui West
option to purchase exténds to the part of it renamed as Cal West. This is subject to discussion, but that
digcussion is moot because the optioti will not be exercised and the small equity value awarded in the option
for an option exchange is deemed fair and proper by the Debtor who must. grant it,
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ATM of Nevada, LLC (ALL})

Effective Date/Filing of Amended Articles of Incorporation

Many of the transactions conteriplated by the Plan become effective on the Effective
Date, as defiried in the Plan. Fhe timing of many events under the Plan is also measured from the
Effective Date. Under the Plan, the Effective Date is on the date on which the Debtor files

Amended Artictes of Incorporation. The Amended Articles must be filed not later than 120 days

after Confirmation of the Plan,

The Amended Articles will contain provisions that authorize sufficient number of shares of

| }eeriiman stock to allow for issuirice of the New Comimon Stock and the shares that would be

issusble on exercise of the Wartants to be issusd imder the Plan™, Additional authorized shares

will be included to allow for common stock to be available for issuance in future transactions.

Issuance of New Equity Securities

On the Effective Date, ATM Nevada will have their purchase notes rétired by thie Debtor

| lin accordance with the Plan, Not later than sixty days thereafter, the Debtor will issue the

| Warrants to the entities holding shsres as they are entitled.”

Tinally, the New Equity Securities issuable to the Debtor's unsecured creditors and equity

holders (Class C and Classes D-1, D-2, -3, D-4, D-5, and I)-6) will concurrently be issued

| withii 60 days after the Effective Date.

Any New Common Stock and proceeds from the redemption of Wartants that are not
deliverable after issuance or receipt and that have not been claimed 90 days after five press
releasés on issuance and the redémption of Warranits have been made, will be-retired into the

Debtor’s treasury. The claim with respect to which the New Equity Scourities was issued shall

|1#  The Debtor’s Amended and Restaied Articles of Incorporation currently authorized the issuanee of up to

40,000;000 shares of common stock and 10,000,000 shares of preferred stock. Curzently, 2,299,242 corimon
shares aiid 13,333 préeferred shares are ouistanding,
5 New Equity Securitiés will be degined issued on the date they are seni by first class mail to the holder's last
known address recorded on the Debtor's books.
55 DEBTOR'S SIXTH AMENDED
BISCLOSURE STATEMENT



o th B W W

O 00 =]

11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26

be deemed withdrawn, and the funds corresponding to the withdrawn claim shall be disbursed
according to the Plan.

Post-Confirmation Control

M. Billingsley, Mr. Williams and Mr. Meyer, all board members in the reorganized

| | Debtor, will €ach hold slightly more than 10% , 8% and 2% , respectively, of the Debtor's

outstanding shares after Confirmation,

The following two tables show the total number of new common shates to be issued
pursuant fo the Plan. The first table shows thé new common shaces to be issued on Confirmation.
The second table assuines all Warrants and options are exercised. Both tables show the percent
of that total number of shares that will be held either on Confirmation orupon fuil exercise by
officers, directors, control persons, insiders and each class of creditors and interest holders
(including holders of unclassified claims). If voting control is-keld by another enfity it is so noted.
The chart assumes that the maximurn shares that can be issued in a given category are issued and

inctudes all claims unless it is éxpécted that said claims will be disallowed. -
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SHARE OWNERSHIP ON CONFIRMATION

CLASS
Secured claims
ATM Nevada
Administrative Claims
Voluntary Conversion
Priority claims

Employee Claims (Class B-1)
Member Claims (Class B-2)

Unsecured claims (Class C)
Regular Unsecured Claims
ATM Nevada Unsecured

Equity Security Triterests

Preferred Stock (Class D-1)

Common Stock: (Class D-2)
Formerly Issued & Trading
Stock Motion (Restricted)

$1 Options (Class D-3)

$4 Options (Class D-4)

$6 Options (Class D-5)

$10 Options (Class D-6)

Other
Employee Stock & Optiens
Conversion of Wilson’s shares
to Warrants in settlement

TOTAL.

Insiders ¢r Control Persons > 1%
C. Billingsiey

B. Mever

E. Williamis

DB. Motris

57

PERCENT SHARES
INTEREST ON
{on Confirmation) CONFIRMATION
2730% 3,100,000
1.76% 200,000

08% 9,000

05% 6,000

22.50% 2,554,002

18.14% 2,060,000

12% 13,333

12.76% 1,449,242

7.05% 800,000

00% 0

00% 0

00% 0

00% 0

10.23% 1,161,800

(1.45%) (165,000)

100.00% 11188377

10.01% 1,120,025

231% 257,915

3.04% 900,000

1.43% 159,541
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SHARE OWNERSHIP IF ALL WARRANTS ARE EXERCISED

CLASS

Secured claims
ATM Nevada

Adrinistrative Claims
Voluntary Conversion
Priority claimg

Employee Claims (Class B-1)
Meériiber Claiths (Class B-2)

Unisecured clatiis (Class C)
Regular Unsecured Claims
_ATM Nevada Unsecured

Equity Secutity Interests

Preférred Stock (Class D-1)

Cofittion Stock {Class D-2)
Formerly Issued & Trading
Stock Motion (Restricted)

$1 Options (Class D-3)

$4 Ogptions (Class D-4)

$6 Options(Class D-5)

$10 Options. (Class D-5)

Othiet
Employee Stock & Options

TOTAL

Insiders or Control Persons > 1%
C. Billingsley

B. Meyer

D. Momis
E. Williams

58

PERCENT FULLY
INTEREST EXERCISED
(with all Warrauts) SHARES

10.28% 3,100,000

332% 1,000,000

09% 27,000

06% 18,000

26.50% 7,995,406

20.49% 6,180,000

13% 39,999

14.41% 4,347,726

7.96% 2,400,000

1.09% 30,680

1.82% 548,566

35% 105,382

1.95% 588,158

11.55% 3,485,400

100.00% 30.165.727

11.34% 3,420,025

2.56% 773,745

159% 478,623

8:95% 2,700,000
DEBTOR’S SIXTH AMENDED
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CLASS LIKE NORMAL

SECURITIES
REGISTRATION
Becured claims
ATM Nevada ‘ 25 12%
| Wdministrative Clais
Voluntary Conversion

Priotity claims

Euiployee Claims (Class B1)
Meniber Claims (Class B-2)

Unsecured claims {(Class C)

Regular Unsecured Claims
ATM Nevada Unsecured

Equity Security Interests
Preferred Stock (Class D-1)
Comimon Stock (Class D-2}
Fermerly Issued & Trading 12.64%
Stock Motion (Restricted) 6.67%
$1 Options (Class D-3)
$4 Options (Class D-4)
$6 Options (Clags D-5)
$10 Options (Class D-6)
Dther
Employee Stock & Options 9.66%
Conversion of Wilson’s shares

TOTAL 54.09%

59

SOURCE OF EQUIVALENT SHARES ON CONFIRMATION
NORMAL SECURITIES RECISTRATION v, BANKRUPTCY EXCEPTION

BANKRUPTCY
EXEMPTION

2.02%

09%
.06%

22.63%
18.26%

12%

A43%
27%
19%
16%
02%
10%

1.35%
16%

DEBTOR’S SIXTH AMENDED
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Section 1129(d) Ansalysis

The Debtor is trying 16 facilitate a reorganization that will bring maximum value to its

creditors and shareholders. As more fully cited in the supplemental memo filed in support of this

 Disclosure Statement, the Debtor notes that it would be a rare ¢ase for the Debtor to be in

violatio_n of securities (or tax) laws by its issuing of shares under an approved Plan.
Numerically, 54% of the Debtor’s outstanding equivalent shares on Coitfirmation of the
Plan will have been issued subject to the contractual equivalent of normal securities registration
laws with full application of section. 5 of the Securities Act of 1933. Of the 46% of equivalent
shares™ that are issued subject to the bankruptcy exemption, 41% is for unsecured claims,
standard administrative claims and Court approved seitlement. To meet the 1129(d) hurdle, the

Debtor eliminated its earlier planiied Diebtor Certificite motior (and coriversion) and is issuing

restricted stock undér the Plan to settle the ATM purchase notes, It is relinquishing its well assets

which reduced the number of shares and warrants issued by more than half. This has changed the

thix of equivalent equities issued from 12% under securities laws - and 88% under bankruptey

| exemption (per the Third Amended Disclosure Statemerit), to 56% unider securitiés laws ard 44%
- under bankruptcy exemption. The Debtor has addressed the 1129(d) concerns of the Court by

| eliminiating the raising of motiey aid eliminating the issuing of large blocks of freely tradablé

shares, and generally confining the application of the Bankruptcy exemption to the setiling of

standard claims and adjusting for impairments.

% The Debtor is issuing a mix of four classes-of warrants and common stock. Counting only the common stock
uriderstates the issance and counting all the warrants as exercised greatly overstates the issuance. To make
an-apples 10 apples cotipatison all the securities weie converted 10 “quivaleni shargs.” Both réstricted and
freely tradable shares were countéd one for one to their niamber. The warrants, hiowevet, are worth much less
than the shares and this is especially so for ihe higher priced warrants. The Debtor’s common stock now can
be sold for $0.18. The exercise or strike price for the Series A, B, C and D warrants {long term stock options}
are respectively $1, $3, $5 and 87 per share. At those strike prices, and given the current price of the Debtor’s
steck it is estimated that each series A warrant is worth 12% of one share of common, series B is worth 5% of
orie share, scries C is worth 3% and series D is worth 2% of one share of comimon. (¢.g. 2 hypothetical
reasonable investor would accept 9 series A warrants as a fair trade for orie shidre of common). To compiete the
equivalent share analysis all warrants: t6 be issued were converied to equivalént shares using the percentiges
outlined and in that fashion a normalized comparisen wis conducted and is presented in the wablé.
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Section 1141(d)(3} Analysis

The Debtor intends, in this revised Plan, to fully address the SEC’s conicerns under
Section 1141(d)(3). Those SEC concerns were that only a company with physical operations is
appropriate to be reorganized, and that a shell compary that merges with a private firm without
SEC review is harmful and should not be allowed.

To address the first SEC concérn under Section 1 1'41((1)(5) the Debtor notes it hz;s an
operating business (the ATM business) with revenues, expenses and profit.  Of the busiriesses

ownied by the Debtor, it was the least tainted by investor abuse from prior to the Debtor’s

invelvement afid Hias the cleanest financial records. This will be the inifial business atound which

' the Reorganized Debtor will expand.

Second, the Reorganized Debtor will not engage in any otherwise ie‘gal,i but so called
reverse or shell mergers for a period of three years from this date without the approval of the SEC
of this Coutt, Specifically the Debtor will not merge w1th {a 100% dcquisition) or even acquire
any more than 20% of any private entity unless the economic interest holders of that entity, post
merger, will hold less than 30% of the outstanding common and preferred stock of the
Reorganized Debtor. This three year prohibition limits any large private acquisition and

effectively blocks, by definition, the possibility of a shell or reverse merger.

The Reorganizéd :Del:;tor will riot have to file another chapter 11 petition in the Trarais
future, nor will it have to be liquidated shortly after confirmation of the Plan. The Reorganized
Debtor will have cash reserves (about $IS0,006) at confirmation, efough to provide about-one
year’s expenses without aiiy increasé in cash flow. During that time, the Reorganized Debtor will

seek out and evaluate the many business opportunitiés that come available every day. The onie

|| vear could be extended by many years by management deferring sa]a:y and refrenching in a home

office. These “fall back™ positions aré mentioned to point out that the Reorganized Debtor will
not be in jeopardy of promptly failing to reorganize, not that the Debtor anticipates that it will
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have difficulty in successfully réorganizing to the benefit of the holders.
Treatment of Disputed Claims,

At the time of Distributions under the Plan, any Dispited Claims or Disputed Interests will
be provisionally treated as Allowed Claims or Allowed Interests. Unliguidated or contingent
claims or interests will be estimated for the same purpose. However, such treatment will not be
final or deemed binding on any party. |

The portion of a Cash Distiibution that would be payable on account of such clainis and
interests will be held by the Debtor in an insured deposit accoint pending resolution of the

dispute. The Debtor will also hold in reserve shares of its unissued common stock equal to eithet

the New Commion Stock that would be issuable to the holder of 2 Disputed Claim or Disputed

Ihterest or the shares issuable on exercise of a Warrant issiable to-the holder of a Disputed Claim

or Disputed Interest. To. preserve its right of exercise on any Warrants proc¢éeding from a claim

1| dispute, disputed claimants and disputed interest holders must forward funds to the Debtor equal

10 the exercise price of subject Warrants prior to the redemption date if a notice of redemptioft is

atmounced of before said Watrants expire. Forwarded funds will be held in an insured deposit

| 2ceount and shares will be held in reserve until resohition of the dispute is final

The Plan provides that Disputed Claiis anid Dispirted Interests may be resolved by eithier
{a) agreement between the holder and the objseting party or (b} & Final Order.

Once a Disputed Claim or Disputed Interest is finally resolved, the Debtor will distribute
to the holder the Cash or New Equity Securities to which the holder is determiried to bé entitled.

Any portion to which the holder is not entitled will b released to the Debtor:

MARKET FOR NEW EQUITY SECURITIES

The Debtor estimates that there are approximately 300 beneficial holders of its commion
steck and that there are an addifional 200 investors who may eventually receive restricted shares
and New Equity Securities by virfue of their interest in the ATM entities that owned the

purchased assets if said entities, including after holdiiig the reéstrictéd stock for one year, choose
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to reallocate shares to owners in some fashion™. Recent market makers in the stock were
National Capital, L L.C., Paragon Capital Corporationi, W.M V. Frankel & Company, Inc.,
Sharpe Capital, Inc., and Hill; Thonipson, Magid & Co.

The current transfer agent for the common stock is MC Transfer (transfer agent #23368),
a proprietorship owned by Mr, Billingsley's brother. After the Effective Date, the Debtor intends
to engage American Stock Transfer or a similar national transfer agent to h}mdle the hoped-for
inérease in trading in the common stock. l

The Debtor also believes that the business and future acquisitions (coupled with the
issirance of the additional shares and Warrants to ¢reditors, shareholders, and the entitiés which
owried the ATM properties recently acquired) will result in an sctive trading market, especially
after one year, that will create value and liquidity for all constituencies and generate a recovery for
creditors. The Debtor’s belief is based on historic observation of its own stock and that of
similarly sized OTCBB companies during various phases of their busitiess activity. An active
tradiing mdrket is, of coursé, rélative. The Reorganized Debtor will still be a siall OTCBB
company, but. it will be larger than it was pre-petition and any trading whatsoever is more active
than the private investnient held by the 700 investors who: cannot trade at all, Today, thiough
virtually any broker, the Diebtor’s stock can now be purchased by any interested buyer or sold by
any interested seller on any trading day. That liquidity, the ability to buy or sell, afforded by the
real time availability of quotes by NASD market makers, is generally considered to improve the
value of the holdings. Something that can be sold at anytime has more value than that same thing

if it cannot easily be tiansferred. Also, wheén the number of shareholders iicreases from 400 to

% Throughout this document, if aity reference is iade to investors réciving shiaes or taking action with shares
received, then the referénce to their ownership presumes that preceding thieir action there was a legal
reallocation fromi the entities ihat beld the claims against the Debtor to thém. The LLC will be the entity that
will be sent the restricted shares directly, and, after twelve months, if those uniis then wish to dividend shares
out or dissotve, as this would seem to be a reasonable business action, then that is their decision to make, After
Confirmation. the Débtor intends to take reasonable cate 10 put into place safeguards, as much as are permitted
under securities and contract law and the commercial code, to eénsure that the shares that are anticipated 16 go
to the investors do indesd eventually go to those investors. The specific forin. of trust, escrow or other
mechanism that will be used as a safegnard will be discussed with irivestor and eritity representatives but is
undetermined at this time, )

63 DEBTOR'’S SIXTH AMENDED
DISCLOSURE STATEMENT



- W N

o0 =X o W

700 or more by the issuing of the additional shares under the Plan and the maturing of the
restricted stock in twelvé months, it is believed that the activity in the stock will also incréase as
more persons follow the stock they will be owners in. Some of the shares will be issued to
creditors who may chose to sell some or all of their shares, now or later. Any sale wilt ultimately
result in & check being issued to the creditor by their brokerage finm. In this manneér, the creditor
will make some recovery on their claim which is by definition better than the complete loss they
-would otherwise suffer were this of a similar Plan not to be confirmed.
To further promote liquidity for creditors and. shareholders, the Debtor intends to

oceasionally be a net purchaser® of the Debtor’s corifiion stock out of the market®!. Generally,
there are two way's for a company to return some cash from operations to- shareholders: it can

issue dividends or repurchase shares. Issuing dividends is intuitive, but 2 more tax efficient wiy

|| to refurn excess cash to shareholders is through a stock repurchase program. In that fashion,

shareholders who have held their shares for a sufficiently long period are usually only taxed on the
finds they receive on the sale of stock 1o the company (indivectly, through thie stock market via a
regular broker) at the capital gains tax rate. Further; in this fashion, only the persons interested in
receivang their cash at that timie are cashed out and subjected 1o a taxable event. Othet investors

whe hold their shares for many years will pay no tax on their investment during this eritire period,

| as is the case with any stock that is held. By bé'mg- a buyer of the company stock through fegular

brokerage channels, the Recrganized Debtor is increasing the pool of buyers which makes it easier
for creditors and interest holders whe will get shares to sell them whén they wish to. Other

investors can let their investmient continue, tax free, until they too, are ready or need 1o seli,

% In any corporate stock purchase program a corapany can buy af a slightly bétier price if its inténtions to buy or
sell are not entirely comnninicated 16 the market makers who may move the price slightly against the company
if thiey see the company is active and kniow what the company iniends. By being a net buyer, thal is making
pethaps three large buys and.one small salé, the market may riot always be ertaiti which way the company
intends to go, and a more competitive price may thus be obtained,

¢ The Reorganized Debior interids to channél some of its finds back o investors by repurchasing some of its
common stock: Any such prograin will wut be done on a direct basis with shareholders, rather it will be
accomplished by placing orders through riormal bokerage charnels and buyinig out of the market, making the

process avdilable to all parties holding shares. Any such program will be conducted anly in full complisnce
with any and all relevant securities laws and regulations.
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The Debtor intends to be immediately active in promoting small follow-on mergers and
acquisitions (M&A) to strengthen the Reorganized Debtor and improve the value of the
Reorganized Debtor’s common stock in these public markets. (However, no large pri\}ate merger
ot any shell or reverse merger with a private firm will be pemiitted for three years). Through
small acquisitions the Debtor hopes to generate maximuim retutns to its creditors and shareholders
| who are being issued New Equity Securities under the-Plan. The management of the Debtor has
been primarily involved in M&A activities for the last fifteen years. The Reorganizea Debtor will

continue this focus and will, for exampls, continue to receive M&A related publications such as

ui‘sj;t_ion News, Exploration aud Land (oil), Petroleur Listing Service and Red Herrifg,
Currenitly, in addition to these sources, the Debtor, usually under its dba Mentor Capital; is
contacted on approximately two hundred unsolicited prospeétive acquisitions dr substantial
investments each year. Lastly, the Debtor researches investment literature and pub‘licatibn-s to
identify companies and CEOs whe fit well with the Debtor’s financial goals and capabilities. When
a likely target is identified, the Reorganized Debtor will séek a friendly introduction through third

parties, hopefully mset in person ard discuss-the firiancial, operating and other needs of the

| cortipany and principals. Through its normal deal flow and by maintaining this other cormpany

focus, the Diebtor has been able to execute, on average, orie dicquisition each six moriths for the
last fifteen years. The Debtor intends to again be active in the M&A arena as soon as if exits from
its reorganization. '

7 The Débtor, and any public company, ¢an increase the price of their shm"es in four geréeral
ways: i} increase the value of the company by itproving operations, i) increase the value of the
company by acquiring more profitable operations, 1ii) increase the proportional value of the
company by selling under-performing assets, iv) obtain favorable publicity 1o increase awdreness
of the stock: The Reorganized Debtor will emphasize the first thiee of theése methods. The
Debtor is also aware of the practical necessity of a investor relations program and will make

regular press releases and do a minimum amount ir this last area. Generally, the Debtor prefers

and plans to rely on annual and quarterly reports, 10Ks and 10Qs, and press releases to ¢onvey
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inférmation to its pblic shareholders. The philesophy of the Debtor is that if the company grows
and value is there, then the share price will follow. The short term approach of excessive stock
promotion will be avoided.

On January 4, 199’9, the Securities and Exchange Comnission (SEC) approved
amiéndments to the National Association of Srecuﬁties Dealers, Iiic. (NASD), Rule;‘; 6530 and 6540
to limit quotations on the OTC Bulletin Board (OTCBB) to the securities of companiss thaf
report their current finanefal information to the SEC. Based on its discussions with the NASD
representative, the Reorganized Debtor projects that it will now need to start reporting its
information to the SEC by February 2000, although such rules during the phase in period were
described by the NASD representative as not yet beitig “cast in stone”. Under the previous
controlling rules, given the number-of shareholders dnd assets of the Digbtor, it was driticipated
that the Reorganized Debtor would need to begin full reports to the SEC in April 2000, The two
month acceleration.of the initiation of financial reporting from April 2000 to February 2000 is not
expected to be more than a yeat end inconvenience to the Reorgarizad Debtor.,

THE DEBTOR CANNOT, OF COURSE, ASSURE THAT A VIABLE TRADING
MARKET WILL CONTINUE FOR THE SECURITIES TO BE ISSUED TO

CHEDITORS AND SHAREHOLDERS UNDER THE PLAN OR THAT THE
ASSETS BEING ACQUIRED WILI,-GENERATE SIGNIFICANT VALUE FOR
THE REORGANIZED DEBTOR'S SHAREHOLDERS.

ISSUANCE AND TRANSFER OF NEW EQUITY SECURITIES
Pursuast to the exeinption contained in §1145 of the Bankruptcy Code, the New Equity
Securities being issued to the holders of claims and interests under this Plan will not have to be
registered with the Securities & Exchange Commission or registered or qualified with any state or

local securities regulator; norwill any securities issued on exercise of the Warrants issued to such

| persons under the Plan. (The 3,100,000 restricted shares to be issued to retire the ATM

purchase notes are not subject to this exemption and will remain restricted for one year).
Simildrly, the issuance of such securities will be exempt from any federal, state or local laws

fequiring the licensing of an issuer; underwritér or dealer in securities. The exemption from
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Fegistiation or qualification, however, will not apply to shares issued to persons who fit within
§1145's definition of an underwriter.

In addition, pursuant to §1145, any New Equity Secbrities whose issuance is exempt will

i be deemed to have been issued in a public offering within the meaning of federal and state

securities laws: Accordifigly, any N;aw Equity Securities which qualify for the §1145 exemption
may be freely traded in the public market, "

New Equity Securities issued in connnection with the Plan l-)ut not issued to the holders of
| claims or interests will still qualify for the protection of §1145. Such shares will, however, be
cohtractually restrictad and as "restricted securities" be subject to the same significant restrictions

on tiansfer as normally encountered for restricted shares under federal and state securities laws.

THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION HAS NOT
APPROVED OR DISAPPROVED THIS DISCLOSURE STATEMENT,

OR DETERMINED IF IT IS TRUTHFUL OR COMPLETE.

The Plan prohibits sale or other transfer of shares of New Commion Stock (not shares

issued upon exercise of Warrants) without the prior written consent of the Debtor for éighteen

months following the Effective Date™, even though the shares may be transferable under

| securities laws. This festriction is imposed to permit the Debtor's business and the market for its

stock to mature before large nambers of shares are attempted to be sold, and to erisure that the
general investing public is on an equal-footing and has the same opp6ttunity to dccess the
comprehensive information in. this Disclosure Statement which will be provided to all claimants
arid interest holders. Accordingly, the Reorganized Debtor, after its Plan is Confirmed, and before
the trading restriction is removed from any New Comtuion Stock; will voluntarily submit the entire
Disclosure Statement as & current information report on form 8K to the Securities and Excharige

Commission (SEC) to be posted on their EDGAR automated information system. In this fashion,

% Thé restriction on transfer will survive atty merger that iay occur 4dnd apply 16 the succéssor stock controlled

by the successor board if that meérger evenl were to gochr. , ]
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any interested party or their broket will be able, for no cost, to dial up anid read this Disclosure
Statement, of to order a copy of it to read, before making his or her decision to buy or sell the
Reorganized Debtor’s publicly traded shares. To the Debtor’s knowledge, the SEC accepts all
8K information submitted to it, however, if there is some delay or restrictions on the posting, the

Reorganized Debtor will alternatively, post the éntire Disclosure Statement over one of the

| financial wire services like PRNewswire or in some similar fashion. This alternative newswire

|| posting would also result in this Disclosure Statement being available to all interested ;ﬂm

cost. Additionally, the Reorganized Debtor intends to be audited and fully reporting

| SEC’s securitiés reporting systen: (e.g. iséuinfg 10Ks, 10Qs, 8ks, etc.) by February 2000,

Onge the Disclosure St#tem.e'nt is postéd for public access, the Debtor is audited and
réporting, an’& only a’ﬁer these are 21l complete, wilt the Reorganized Debtor begii to authorize
the transfer agent to remove the restrictive legend that prevents the public sale of the Débtor’s
New Common Stock. From the date forward, each calendar month following the Effective Date,
the Reorganized Debtor may (but is ot ebligated to) authorize the transfer of ten percent (10%)

or sotmie lesser percentage or lesser fixed amount of thie New Commion Stock subject to this

restriction which is held by a person as of the beginning of such month, if the person delivers the

certificate evidending siich shares to the Debtor with a written request for remaval of the
restriction. Once authorized, normal stock transfer procedures and fees (commonly $10 per
certificate genérated), as specified by the transfer agent, would then apply.

For example, of a creditor receives 1,000 shares of New Common Stock undér the Plan
and Series B and D) Warrants for another 2,000 shares, the creditor could exercise the Warrants
and sell those shares immediately. In addition, if the creditor seit his or her New Commion Stock
certificate to the Debtor and a request to sell shares, the Debtor might authorize the creditor to
sell up to 100 shares by directing the transfer agent to issue the creditor a certificate for 100

shares without legerid and a certificate containing the original legend for the remaining 900

®  The Reorgatiized Debtor may hot authorize the transfer of any greater amiount of the restricted Néw Common
Stock past 10% per month, )
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The next month, the creditor could repeat the process and, if it desired, the Debtor might
authorize sale of up to 90 shares. At the end of 18 months, the creditor could sell any-shares he
or she still held,

POST-CONFIRMATION MANAGEMENT

Directors sud Officers

The names, backgrouﬁds, positions, and projected post-Confirmation equity holdings arid

of the officers and directors who will manage the Debtor and its properties after Confirmation are

as follows: .
.. Naige Age Position Post-Confirmation
Share Holdings
Chiester Billingsley 47  Chief Executive Officer 1,10,192 + optiens
_ ~ Member of the Board _

Robert Meyer 56 Secretary, 257,915
Mernber of Board

Gilbert MeCord 45  Chairman of the Board 0
Member of Board

Ernest M Willianis 73 Mietnber of Board 900,000

Stan Shaul 36 Treasurer, 65,340

i Member of Board

Chester Billingsley founded the Debtor in 1994, and has served as its Chairman and Chief

Execitive Officer since such time. He will continue in such offices after Confirmation with

| fesponsibitity for supervision (and replacerient if nécessary) of thie Gperators and firiancial, legal,

and strategic review, [See ngwr‘s. Operations During the Chapter 11 Case ]

In connection with his post-Confirmation employment, Mr. Billingsley will initially receive
1,000,000 shares, 1,000,000 Series D Warrarits, and 1,000,000 Series A Warrants. [See
Compensation of Management and Certain Other Parties ]

Between 1985 and the founding of the Debtor, Mr. Billingsley acquired and started

S In a private transaction Mr. Williims bought 800,000 restricied shares af cost from Mr, McCord who had
purchased them: from the Débtor after receiving ootrt approval to do so.

|9 M Billingstey curiently holds 8,167 shates:of the Debtor's conmon stock, which. he received upon transfer of

his interest in a predecessor eafity to the Debior. As a result of the faifure of the athletic ¢lub business, he
cominenced a case under Chapter 7 of the Code, but the shares were nof transférred o the Chapier 7 trustee.
Approximately ong year ago, Mr. Billingsiey sold the remainder of his sharss, approximately 430,000 shares,
ta a third party in exchange for an agreement to pay a portion-of the Debtor’s expenses inicurred in
consummiating the purchase of asseis and preparing for this case. ) o
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varigus businesses, operating under the names Tech Start and Mentor Capital. Since formation of
the Debtor, Mentor Capital's activities and Tech Start's holdings have been transferred to the
Debtor, and Mentor: Capital has bécome a trade name use'd_ by the Debtor, Prior to forming
Mentor Capital, Mr. Billingsley worked in the Nuclear Energy Division and other Divisions of
General Electric Cerporation. Prior thereto, he worked for private contractors on solar,
geothermal, natural gas, battery, wind and coal projects for the U.S. Department of Energy.

M. Billingsley received a Congressional appdintment'to West Point in 1970 and later
transferred to Harvard University where he received a Master's Degree in Applied Physics. in
1975, He also studied at the Harvard Busiriess Schooal and the Nuclear Engmeenng Depattiment

at Massachusetts Institute of Technology.

Gilbert McCord has been President Qf'hié gwn firm for more than fwenty years. During
that timie fie has built coftipaiiy sales to over $20 million per year. He is the largest investorin the
busingsses being dcquired by the Debtor, having invésted $1.2 Million into these projects..

Ernest M. Williams is Chairmian of the unofficial Investor’s Committee :m& is one of the

largest inivestors in these projects. In 4 long career he has been involved in a tange of businesses

often in the real estate market. He currently is President of his own firm that imporis shipping.

containers of semi-finished wood products from the Far East.

Robert Meyer is the founder, publisher, and editor of Barfer News, and ke is active in
many reciprocal trade orpanizations and is a frequent speaker on the subjects of barter gnd
reciprocal trade. He is a former professional baseball player, having played with the New York
Yankees, Kansas City Athiletics, L.os Angeles Ang’els,; among others, between 1960 and 1971, He
is a member of the Board of Governors of the American Small Business Advisory Courreil.

Stan Shgul has served since 1993 as Presiderr!t of Personal Touch Software, which
develops and suppoits client/server database applications for work flow, business analysis, and
project management af»plications. Clients have included Walt Disney Motion Pictures, Holiywood
Records, and the Los Angeles Rams. Prior to Personal Touch Software, Mr. Shaul served as a

Product Manager for After Hours Software and, prior thereto, Mansfield Systems. He received
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his B:S. in Mathematics/Computer Science from U.C.L.A. in 1986,
Property Management ‘

The ATM Nevada operations will continue to be managed by Nevada ATM, and David '
Mortis will continde to advise on the general operating oversight of the ATMs. Reliance
Corporation, which has extensive oil and gas experience and is affiliated with the géne'ra] partners

of the Investment Trusts, may also advise on many oil and gas issues.

COMPENSATION OF M.ANAGEMENT AND CERTAIN OTHER PARTIES
Directors aud Officers

Chester Billingslev; Upon Confizmation, the Debtor vﬁll enter into a two year
eniployment agreement with Mr. Billingsley for his sétvice as Chief Executive Officer. Under the
agreement, he will receive a base salary of $104,000 per year and a comprehensive benefits
peckage. On the Confirmation he will also be granted 1,000,000 shares and 1,000,000 Series D

Warrants and 1,000,000 Series A Warranits. As further iricentive for his performance, Mr.

‘| Billingsley will receive, depending ujson his success in raising the share price, 1% rising on a

sliding scale to 5% (at $8 per share) of the iicrease of the: Market Capitalization of the Debtor

‘beyond the book value upon . Confirmation.

Other Officers: Mz, Shaul will not receive additional compensation for fiis service as
Treasurer, Mr. Meyer will not regeive additional coriipensation for service as the Debtor's

Secretary, and Mr. McCord will not receive additional compeénsation for service as Chairman of

|| the Board.

Dircetor Fees: Edch member of the Debtor's board of directors will receive a payment of
$250 for each regular or special meeting the member attends.

Property Management

David Morms will receive a fixed fee of 56,000 shares of New Common Stock as his fee
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for two years' service supporting the general management of ATM Nevada,® and Nevada ATM
will continue to receive a fee of 27.5¢ per transaction for maintenance and operation of the ATM

Nevada machines.

INCOME TAX CONSIDERATIONS

Neither the Debtor not its eounsel or accountant expresses dny opinion as to the tax
consequences to. any creditor or equity security holder under this Plan of Reorganization. Both
the Plan and the treatment of individual parties' claims or interests could have significant federal
or state incomig tax consequences.

Any tax due on the interest portion of the Bedbro Note payments already or in the future
recéived and retained by Heller will be the responsibility of Heller.

CREDITORS ARE URGED TO CONSULT THEIR OWN TAX ADVISORS

AS TO THE CONSEQUENCES TO THEM, UNDER FEDERAL AND

APPLICABLE STATE AND LOCAL TAX LAWS, OF THE
CONSUMMATION OF THE PLAN.

LIQUIDATION ANALYSIS
The Debtor believes that, at its root, the analysis of the Debtor’s Plan is straightforward.

Recovery for creditors and shareholders is better than no recovery. Any discussion or speculation
as to how limited or gencrous that recovery might be is much a secondary consideration.
According to the terms of the Acquisition purchase through the issuance of restricted stock, if the
company is liquidated the note purchasé would be rescinded and the note reinstated allowing the
secured parties to reclaim all of the proceeds of the sale of their former assets.

Therefore, the Debtor believes that, if the Debtor were liquidated, holders of unsecured

claims {claims in Classes B-1, B-Z and C) would receive nothing, shireholdets (Class D-2) would

again be left with a shell cofporation

On the other hand, the New Equity Seturities to be issued to creditors will be frecly

% n addition to-the shares he will reosive as compensation, the Debtor believes Mz, Morris will receive 159,541
sharés of New Common Stock in exchange for his claim as a shareholder of ATM Nevada.
72 DEBTOR’'S SIXTH AMENDED
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tradable in the public market. The Debtor believes that the market will establish a value for the
securities based on the combined, going concern value of the Debtor as it proceeds to operate the

ATM business and execute future small acquisitiors as a holding compariy. Because the going

| concern value of the Debtor's assets is greater than the liquidation value, the Debtor beligves that

creditors arxd shareholders will recei—ve more under the Plan than if this case were converted to
one under Chapter 7 of the Code on the Effective Date and the Debior's asx&s were immediately
liquidated. ' '
DISCHARGE AND REVESTING
All.debts of the Debtor that arosé before Confirniation will be discharged in full at the time

| of Confirmation and will no longer be obligations of the Debtor, except for any debts that are

expressly assutnied by the-Debtor in the Plan,

All property of the estate created 1;pon commencesent of the Chapter 11 case will, npon
the Effective Date or payment of all Administrative Expenges; whichever is later, revest in the
Debtor free and élear of all claims, liehs, charges and other interests of creditors ansing prior to
the Filing Date. Liens that will not be effective or enforceable after the Effective Date will
miclude;

()  Heller: The security interest asserted by Heller in any agsets of the Digbtor other

than the Bedbro Notes,

(b}  Orders of Examination: Any liens asserted by parties who, in litigation

commignced gtior to the Filing Dite, obtainied orders of examination under §708.110 or 708.120

| of the California Code of Civil Procedure or otherwise, including The Miner Group, d/b/a

Olympic Graphics Industries, and Value Business Products, Inc.
()  Judpment Licnholder: Any liens asserted by parties who have filed notices of

judgment liens after Heller filed its financing statement, including Re-New Sealers, Inc.

EXECUTORY CONTRACTS
The Plan provides that all of the Debtor’s executory contracts (including unexpired leases,

I DEBTOR’S SIXTH AMENDED
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warrants, options, and any other rights to purchase shares of the Debtors' stock), except those
specifically described in Exhibit A to the Plan or otherwise treated under the Plari, will be rejected
by virtue of the Plan's Confirmation. Such & provision means that only the contracts and leases
listed on Exhibit A to the Plan will be continined after Confirmation, All other contracts and
léases to which the Debtor was a party at the time the case was commenced will be terminatcd.
Parties to contacts or leases with the Debtor which will be terminated under this provision may
become creditors entitled to:file claims against the Debtor, in which case the Debtor may incur
additional debts for unfulfilled obligationis tinder such contracts and lcases, The Debtor will

requiest that a deadline for filing such claims be set. by the Court at the Cotifirmation hearing.

JURISDICTION

Among other provisions, the Plan also provides for continued jurisdiction by the

| Barikniptey Court so that any controvérsies and disputes which arise under the Plan may be

resolved by the Bankruptéy Coutt.
SUMMARY

The Debtor intends to operate the ATM business it kias acquired and expand through smail
acquisitions. (“Shell” mergers are prohibited). The Debtor propeses to complete the sale of the
California and Oklahoma well assets and surrender back the proceeds (less portiors owed to
Debt‘ét from Wilson atid Morris) to an investor trust to settle theése claims in a way that protects
the investors. The Debtor will issue contractually resiricted shares similar to under normal
securities regulations, with'the standard one year holding period, on account of the secured
portion of the ATM purchase note on the same economic terims as restricted shares were recently
authorized by the Court ($0.10 per share). The Debtor will satisfy unsecured claims {including
thie unsecured portion of the ATM claim) by issuing shares and warrants to the holders of these
claims anid existing shareholders will be issued warrants only. These unrestricted securities will be

1ssued under the Bankruptey exemption in USC Section 1145. To ensure there is no opportunity
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for trading abuse, none of these securities will be tradable until the Debtor is audited and fully
reporting under the SEC securitics reporting system, most probably in February 2000. Further, all
unrestricted new sharés are subject to.a 10% of holdings maximum per month sales limitation to
prévent dumping, to maiitain an orderly matket and prevent the possibility of market
manipulation, The Debtor intends that this Disclosure Statement will be filed and posted to

EDGAR, tlie SEC electionic information systein for-investor reporting,

CONCLUSION AND REQUEST FOR ACCEPTANCE

This Disclosure Statémerit was désigned to provide holders of claims or interests entitled
1o vole on the Plan adequate information upon which to base the holder’s degision Whettier to
accept the Plan. However, this Disclosure Statement only sﬁmmaﬁzes the Plan and information
regarding the Debtor's business, Fof this reason, and dug¢ to the financial restraints which limited
the Debtor's ability to research and verify all information provided by third parties, this Disclosure
Statement is not guaranteed to be completely accurate. You are invited to ask questions and
request additional imformation if your desire it.
YOU ARE ENCOURAGED TO DISCUSS THE INFORMATION HEREIN WITH YOUR
LEGAL, TAX, AND FINANCIAL ADVISORS BEFORE DECIDING WHETHER TO
ACCEPT THE PLAN

The Debtor believes the Plan is in your best interests aid requests your acceptarice of the:

Plan after you have completed your review.

Dated: November 24, 1999 Main Street AC, Inic., Debtor

By

Chsster Billingsley,
Chief Executive Officer
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UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT
NORTFHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

Inte: Main Street AC. Iuc. Case No. 98-56803-MM-11

dba  Mentor Capital

fdba Main Street Athletic Clubs, Tnc.. ¢t al . CHAPTER 11

Sudeessor 16 MONTHLY OPERATING REPORT
Tech Start, and Mentor Investors - L LP (GENERAL BUSINESS-CASE)

"SUMMARY OF FINANCTAL STATUS
MONTHENDED: __ Oct:99 FILING DATE: $/2158.0:00 -

1. Debtor inpossession (or trusies) hereby submits this Monihly Operating Report on the Ascrual Basis of accounting (or if chocked hiere
theOffice of the 11.S. Trusieé or the Court has spproved the Cash Basis of Ascounting for the Debtor).
Dollars repoitedin =~ §1 '
End of Current Eud of. Priov Asof Petition

2. AssetStructure Month Moiith Filigg
a. Current Assets (Market Value) . $363549 . 8353131
b.. Total Assefs (Market Value) $1.195.703 $1,243.569 $14.363.267
¢ Current Liabilitics L. 156,137 $144.677
d. Tots] Linbilitics . 817,192,456 $17,180,997 $18246319
3. Swfemeitof Cash Receipts & Disbursenients for Month Cuiveiit Motith 'Prior Manth (Case 1o Date)
w Thm[ Receipts : $21,023 $20,639 ____$asg198
b, Total Disbursements $22361 330.023 $411.493
c. Exsess (Deficiency).of Receipis Over Disbu: its (a--b) : .. (81.239) : ($9.384) $46.705
d. Cash Balimoe Beginning-of Morith $292,398 _..3301,898 ) $24435%
e Cash Ralinoe End of Month (o +4) . $91064 ¢+ $252.39% * 291,663
_ _ Curverit Mainth Prior Mopth {Casé to Diie)
4. Profit/(Lass)from the Statenientof Operations. ($16,098) ($14.7313 (3158,441)
5. Account Receivables {Pre and Post Petition) . $18:540° 36378 i
6. l’ut-l?rﬁtlon Linbilitles $156137 _S144 677
7. PastDue Pust:-Petition Account Payables (over 30 diys) $0 $0
Atthie end.of this reporting notith: Yes No
8., Haveéahy paymcnts been mmisde on/pro-petition debt; other than payments in the normal X )
cOtirge 1o seciired creditors or lessors? (if yes, attach Listmg)
9. Havewuy paymenls been made fo profeasionals? (if yes, aftach listing inclidg date of X
paynicnt, amourit of payient and name of payet)
1. Iftheanswer 8 vés o8 or 9, were all such payinents.approved by the court? X
11. Hav:mypaymcmsbmmadcwnﬁicm insiders, shareholders, relatives? (if yes, X

mhsnngmdndmgdatcofpaymt,ammmtmdmnforpaymmt -and tiaine of payee)

12 s theéstate inisured for replacemment cost of dssets and for general Habiliy? X
13 Arcap]&nmddisclosumsu!ememunﬂc? X .
14,  Wasthere:ay poit-petition borrowing during this reporting period? X
15.  Checkif paid Post-petition taxes _x- US. Trustee Quarterly Fees: _x__; Choek if filing is ourvent for: Post-petition
(Attach cxplanztion, if
post-petition taes ot *Note: A small portiori of the historic cash figures are estimated due 1o
sire . ) )
under past indccurate or non-reporting by principals of the sefling group.

s L/ 26795 "“:&M /
Resporsibte Individual /
Ravised 1/1/98

Fé




STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

{Geners] Business Case)
For the Marth Ending 10/31/99
Cuitent Mosith
Cumulstive Nest Mouth
Actil Forecsst Yartance {Caise to Dute} Eorecast
R Revenues:
513214 $11.20¢ $i.014 1 Cross Sales $181.653 59,700
$0 . 0 2 legin; Bsles Rehims & Allowances 50 . S0
$13.214 $11,200 $2.014 3 NetSeles $181,693 59,700
S0 30 4 less: Cosl of Goods Sold {Schedule 'BY) 30 $0
$13.214 311,200 52,014 5 Gross Profit : ' $I181693 . $9.700
$7,309 $7,309 30 6. hitevest $117,135 $7,809
- 30 30 30 7 Other lncome:: Settlement Paymints $79.721 $0
50 50 30 8 . 2 50 30
_ 80 S0 50 9 30 $0
$31.023 319,000 _32014 10 Total Revenmes $373,549 S17.55%
35,414 $3.016. $398 11 Compensation 1o Owner(sVOfficer(s) $75.397 . $5.53
i S0 _30 . 12 Salanies S0 . 30
50 30 30 13 Commnissions $0 30
80 50 S0 14 Corict Labor [ i 56
s Personal
30 %0 _ 50 1S Propey : %0 . .30
31313 $1,313 S0 16 Réeal Property SIT.730 S1,313
.50 50 S0 17 “Hisurince $0 50.
S0 . 30 50 18 Ma it Foen S0, 50
$0 $0. $0. 19 ""(‘ ati $0 30
. . Engloye ,
$3251 $4,127 _{8876) 20 Payroll Taxes 354718 33,005
30 i - 350 21  Real Property Taxes SO S0
30 $0 30 22  Other Taxes 30 i 50
$0 50 $0_ 23 Other Salling . 0 30
51,027 31300 (3273) 24 Other Administeative 84384 $1.300:
$7.809 37,809 S0 2% Tierést SLI7138 S7.209
S0 50 $0° 26 OtherExpénses: =80 30
80 50 _50_ 27 Pelrowell operiting costs. _SI4137 . $0
£l 50 S0 28 Californiawel) opersting costs. %
36,037 £4.739 $1.298 29 ATM operating cos ¥78377 $4.759
0 'S0 S0 30 o $0. 50
30 .30 .} | 80 30
30 50 50 32 30 $0
‘36 50 507 33 30 30
.80, 50 . 30 34 0 50
£24,871 324269 $602 35  Tutal Eipeiwes $381.767 $23.722
(53,84 (35.260) JSL41T . 36 Sbiotal (33.218} $6.213)
Ttems:
S11499. $15:000 $3,501). 37 Professional Foes $160,076 $15,000
) $0 $0 50 38 Provisions for Rejected E y-Ce $0 o
3 50 $0. . 39 Interest Eamed on Accumulated Cash from $0 _— $0.
[ 0 0 Resulting Chip 11 Caze [} [}
$17.000 $17.000 $ 40 Gain or'(Loss) from Sale of Equip $17,000 $185.000
$750 $730 S0 41 US. Trustee Quarterty Foes $3.3%0 .50
$0 $3,000 (53,000) a4z _Oxher (postage and Isbels) $7.977 33,000
$12.249 513.000 7517 43  Totad Recrpanization Items $171.303 $13.000
($16,098) (822,260 _$6,162 44 NetPruft(Los) Before Federal & State Tates S5y (523213)
j $0_ .50 30 45 Federal & State licome Taxes $920 50
$16098) (322.260) $6.162 46 Nét Profi{Lo=) 158,01 161,788
Ansch an Explanation of Variance to St of Op (Fox van: greaier than +- 10% caly):

3

Reviand 1/ 1798



Current Month

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
(General Business Case) - California Wells [sold 11-4-99 $205,000) (3)

$2.737

Forecast
$1.500

$1.237

50

T

1500

$2,737

$1.500

= .

For the Month Ending 103159

Revenues:

" Gross Sales
lesé: Sales Returns & Allowsnees
Net Sales

fess: Cost of Goods Sold (Schedule B

Cumulstive
{Case 1o Date)

521,756

Next Mounth
Forecast

$21.756

Gross Profit
Interest

Othor Income:  Séttleaieuit Paymicats

21,756

g 18| 18] |2

378,721

3737

$1.500

(St R O

Totl Reweoues
Expetises: _
11 Compensition to Owner(s)yOfficex(s)
12 Sahri

ia

13 Commissions
14 Contract Labor
Reni/Lease:
Persotial

15 Propeity
16 Real Property
17 Ilnsvrance
I8 M Fees

Bislol8(e

23 Othier Seiling
23 Other Administrative
25 Interest

26 Other Exp

$100.477

g

27 Petto woll oporating costs

28 California well operating costs

29 ATM operating costs

30

31

32

$2.737

bl

Blnlalele|ululalsielslole|v]slele

47 Professional Fees

38 Provisions for Rejscted E: -

a7,

$3;900 0

39 Interest Earnied on Accumulated Cash from
Resulting Chp 11 Cdse

40 Gainor (Loss) from Sale of Equipment

41 US. Trustee Quarterly Fees

42

50

5

$2737

51,500

$2,7137

31,500

w lo
ﬂ§g§ssss,ggs

43" Total Reorganization ltems

44. Net Profit (Loss) Before Federal & State Taves
45 Federul & State Income Taxes

45 Net Profit (Loss)

Adtachi an Explanition of Variance to Statcment of Operations (For varianees gréater than +/- 10% only):

$3,900 50
$96.577 . 50

06577 SI185.000

Revised 1/15%



Current Masnith

Actuzl

Forecast

sinarr 367700

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
(General Business Case) - ATM Business (b)

E

$10477. . $9,700

$10,477

$9.700

For the Month Ending 10/31299

{Cuse to Dite)
$147:465

Revenues:

Neéxt Month
Forccast

$9.700

less: Salés Retivrnis & Allowances

Net Sales Si47.465

5700

. less: Cost of Goods Sold {Schedule B

Gross Profit S147.465.

$9.700

Tnterest

Sctdement Paymisins $1.000,

Other. Jocome:

1047 700

OB 00 w3 A b W ke

§143.465

—

Total Revenues

Expesisés:

I} Compeosition to Cwrer(sYOfficer(s)

gggsbgss BIEIMEIAE

gielelele

t2 Salanies

13 Commissicis

£4. Contract Labot

Rent/Lease::
¥ Propérty

16 Real Properiy

17 lnsursdce

18 Managericnt Foes
1§ Depreciati

Teixes:
Einployer
20: Payzoll Taxes

2t Real Property Taxes

22 Other Taxes

2 Otier Selling,

24 Other Administiative

25 Interest

26 Otlier Experises:

8 Califormia well operatiug oS

$6,057 54,759

578377

TRE]

29’ ATMioperating costs
30

k) |

32

33

P L L e

4

T§4759

T

$78.377

$4,159

357 Total Expeumes

36 Subi _$70,088'

34941

Ttems:
37 Profcssional Fees.

|2
Jeele |52

3§ Provisions for Rejecied Exeutory C

39 Inferest Eardied on Accusmulated Gash from

Resuiting Chp 11 Cise
40 Gain-or (Loss) from Sale-of Equipment

41 U.S. Trustoe Quiirterly Foes

42

Alelelsiy

bad
—

o

$4420 s29a1

g

$4,420 52541

$1,479

43 Total Reorganaation [tems

44 Net Profit (Loss) Beéfore Federal & State Tazes $T0.088

45 Federal & State Incomeé Texes.

$2.94]

46 Net Profit (Loss)

$70,088

Atiach an Explanation of Variance fo Statement of Operations (For vatianicss greater thari +/- 10% only):

79

$2.041

Revised 11198



STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

(General Business Case) - Oklahoma Wells [sold 10-4-99 ~$18,000] (c)

) For the Month Ending 103199
Current Month

Actual Forecust Variance
Revenues:
Gross Salés

less: Sales Returns & Aliowances
Net Sales
lesi: Cost of Goods Sakd (Schoduls B)

g
g

Gross Profit

Interest

Othet Income:  Settlement Piyments

Comilative
{Case 'to Date)

$12.472

Next Month

Forecast

$0

$12372

50

$12.472

SO M~ BB R

Total Revenues
Expetmen:
11 Compensation to Crvner(s)Officer(s}

12 Salaries
13 Commi
14 Contract Labir

gig|8le _i8]8|8(gie|8|8(Li8]8

RenVLeéase;
15 Property. .
16  Real Property
17 Tusutaiics
18 Management Fees

88iglele

19 Deprecidtion
Taxes:

Eniployer

20 Payroll Twxes.

2l Real Property Taxas:

22 OthérTaxes

23 Otber Seifing

24 Other Administrative
25 lntérest

26 (tfier Exp

312472

27 Petro well operating costs

S13337

28 Calfore well sperating costs

29 ATM operating costs

30

31

32

33

34

33 Total Expenses

gl2|alelelslelalale|lvls vlklale

wlal
2lg|
<

38 Prowisions for Rejected Executory Contricts
39 Interest Earned-on Accumulaicd Cash from

Regulting Chp 11 Case:
40 Gain or{Loss) from Sale of Equipment
41 U.S, Trasee Quartetly Fees

$17,000 $17.000

42

$14:137

(81,665)

lelal

317,000

43" Total Reorganization Ttems
44 Net Profit (Loss) Before Federal & State Taxes
45 Federal & State Income Taxes

46 Net Profit (Loss)

Bloaleigigle 188lg

Attach an Explanstion of Varianes 1o Statement of Operations (For varidnices greater than'+/- 10% only).

£15,335

515,335

Revised 112198



STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
{General Business Case) - Headquarters (d)

For'the Month Ending 1073159

Current Month
Cuimilative Next Month
Actual Forecast Yarisnce {Caze to Daty) orecast
Revenues: '
20 0 30 1 GrossSales $0 $0
S0 50 0 2 less; Sales Returns & Allowarices $0 30
$0 $0 80 3 Net Sales 0 30
$0 0 50 4 less: Costof Goods Sald . (Schedule'BY) 0 30
30 80 5 Gross Profit 3¢ 30
$7.809 $7.809 $0 6 Intesesi S117.135 $7.809
=4 $0- $0 . 7 Other Income: Seftlemént Paymests 30
) 50 30 8 $0 30
. % 30 %0 9 : - 30 $0
S7.809 $7.309.. S0 10 Tatal Reveniues $117.1335 $7.309
Expenses:
$5.414 55,016 3398 1t  Compensation to Owner(syOfficen(s) $75,297 $5,536
S0, 30 30 12 Salaries 30 S0
50 50 50 13 Commissions 50 30
$0 $0 $0° 14 Contiact Latior 50 $0.
i i Rent/Lease:
Persornial )
$0 50 S0 15 Propenty. $0 $0
$1.313 $1.313 %0 16  Real Property $17.750 S1313
50 $0 $0 17 insuran: 50 30
0 20 $0 1% Management Fees 50 0.
$0 0 30 19 Deprecistion S0 50
) Taxes:
Employer
$3,25) bl (8876) 20 Payrolt Taxes $54.718 $3.005
50 ] %0 21 Real Propeity Taxes $0 $0
50, $0 $0. 22 Other Tawes 50 30
$0. 50 .80 23 OuerSeliing $0 50
S1.097. $1.300 ($273) 24 Oeher Administrative $24.354 $1,300_
$7.809 57,809 C 80 25 Interest $117,135 $7.309
£0. $0 0. 26 Other Expenses: i 50 $6
50 50, $0 27 Péwo well oparating coats. . 5] S0
$0 50 $0° 28 California well opéerating costs [ 50
$0 50 $0 29 ATM operating costs 50 $0
S0 50 $0 30 . $0 30
50 B0 LT 50 50
.50 0. $0 . 32 30, %0
S0 0. _S0 33 50 50
3 . T ] 80 34 i $0, 50,
$18.814 $19,510 {56963 35  Total Expenises C 5289253 $18,963
(3$11,005) (811,701 N $696 36 Subistal A8172.118) (811,154)
? Reorgaiization
Ttems:
$11,499 $15,000 ($3,501) 37 Profesyional Fees $156,176 $15.000
30 $0 S0 3% Provisicns for Rejected Executory Contracts 30 30
50 $0 $0. 39 Interest Farmed on Accumulated Cash from 50 50
Resulting Chp 11 Case
$0 $0 £0 40 Gain ot (Loss) from Sale of Equipment 30, 0
$750 $750 $0_ 41 U.S. Trustee Quarterly Foes $3,250 S0
50 $3.000 000 42 Othes reorg costs $7.977 53,000
§12.249 $15,000 (S3,751) 43 Total Reorganization Iteims "$167,403. $15.000
$23.259) ($26,701) $3.447 44 Net Profit (Loss) Before Federal & State Taxes (5339,521) {826,154)
$0 . $0. €0 45 Federal & State Inconie Tavés . $920
($23.254). (526.701) $3,447 . 46 Net Profit (Loss) 5340441 {326,134y
Attach an Explanation of Variance to Statement of Operations (For varianices greater than +/- 10% only): o
Revised 1/1198
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Attschment
Oit-99

Summary Status #8 (paymients-on pre-petition debt)
) 10-15-99 Heller Capital $7,809.49 — collecting payments from Bedbro Note -

Swomary Statas #11
(Payments to insiders)
2) 10-31.99 C. Billirigs) $500 - Petty Casli Retmbursement
b) 10-1715/28-99 €. Bifingsley $5.414 - Net payroll for the month of September

Virisnce of Statemint of Operations

4) Other réorgirization ltems (50 vs $3,000) reflect mailirigs Btidgeted in October that will be serit i Novemeber

b) Proffesionial fees (SY1,499 vs $15,000) reBect vesobution of mtajor issuey

Revised 1/1/9%
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24
25
27
28
29

Assety

Current Assets

BALANCE SHEET
(General Busingss Case)
For the Month Ended

From Scliedul

Cash and cash equivalents - unrestricted

Casgh and cash equivalents - restricted
Acoounts receivable (net)

Inventory

Prepdid expénses

Professional retainers:

Other: Deposits for phones and Rent

W >

Settlements n_;ceivable
Total Current Assets
Property and Equipment (Market Value)

Real property
Miachinery and equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Office equipment
Leasehold improvements
Vehicles

Other:

" Tahfornia wells interest’

Okighoma wells intérest

CooUgooouUwa

Total Praperty and Equipment

Otber Assets

Loatis to-shareholders
Loans to affiliates
Bedbro Note

ATM site |ocation and membership interests

Total Other Asséts
Total Assets

NOTE: 1) Indicate method and date of valuation: Tentative sales offers and actusl sale amounts

- ATM: 9115/99, Oklahoma Wells; 10/4/99, California Wells 11/4/99

0
i

10/31/99 12:00

arket Value

$287,704

33,360

$18,540°

$0

33650

$50,695

$363:949

0

$100.439

$2.010.

$900

50

S0

$159.405_

30

$262,754

T$560.000

$9.000

$569,000

$1.195,703

Revised 1/1/98



47

49

51

52
53
54
53
56
57
58

59

Liabilities From Schedules

Posi-Petition

Current Liabilities

Salaries and wages
Payroll taxes

Liabilities and Equity
(General Buginess Case)

Real and personal property taxes

Incoms taxes

- Sales yaies
Notes payable (short term)

Accounts payable (tradc)

Reat property lease arrearage
Personal property lease arrearage

Accrued proféssional fees

‘Current portion of long-term post

Other:

Professional Fees owing

Total Current Liabilities

Lang:Term Post-Petition Debt; Net of Current Portion

Total Post-Petition Liabilities

Pre-Petition Liabilities (allowed amount)

Equity (Deficit)

Priority unsecured claims
General un A ol

Total Pre-Petition Liabilities

Tatal Liabilities.

Retajied Earnings/(Deficit) at time of filing
Capital Stock

Additienal paid-if capital
Cumulative profit/(loss) since filing of case

Post:petition contributions/(distributions) or (draws)
Contingent Liability elimination effect on retained earnings

Market value adjustment/approximation on unreported items/settlement

Total Equity (Deficit)

60 Total Liabilities and Equity (Deficit)

oo
-

-pefiticn debt (due within 12 mionths)

- B

50

T $1%6,137

$156,137

$156.137

$14.455 000
527,317
$2,554.002

$17.036.319

$17,192.456

{$1,976,290)
. 30
80,000
(3158 441)
0

~Eesi00
($13,288,021)

{$15,996,754)

31,195,702

Revised 11198



SCHEDULES TO THE BALANCE SHEET
(Geperal Business Case)

Scheduale A
Accounts Recelvable and (Nef) Payable

Accounts Recelvable  Accounts Payable Past Due
Receivables and Payubles Aglisgs [Preand Post Petition]  [Post Petifion]  Post Petition Debt
0430 Days $18.540
31-50 Days
61-90 Days ; 30
91+ Days NN 2 :
Total adcomts recsivable/paysble $18,540 . 3
Allowamice-for-doubtful ascouits S i
Accounts recetvable: (iet) _ $18540
Schedule B
Inventory/Cost of Goods Sold
Tybes and: Amiviint of Inventory(les) Cofof Goods Sold
Tnventory(ies)
Balance at )
End of Monthi Inventory Beginning of Month.
Add- —— e
Reétail/Restaurants - Net purchiase
Product for resale Direct labot B
Bistribotion Freight in
Products forresile Other: . ;
Raw Materials ' '
Worksin-progress Less - -
Fanislied goods Inventory End of Month
Shrinkage . .
Other - Explain $200,561 Personal Use ] ]
Cash in ATM machines
Cost of Goods Sold $0
TOTAL e 5200561 —
Meshed of Tnventory Control Inventory Valuation Methods
Do you have & functioning perpetual invertory system? Indicate by a éheckmark methiod of inventory uséd.
Yes x No
How often do ot lake 4 complete physical inventory? Valuation méthods -
) FEFO cost .
Weekly LIFO cost il
Morithly X Lower of cost or market X
Quarterly Retail method
Semi-anniily Other —
Arinually. Explain
Drite of last physical inrventory was Octobet/Perpetual
Dite of next physical inventory is November/Perpetiial
Revixed 11158
!RE
o



Schedule €

Real Property

Description Cost Market Value

Toral 30 S0

Schedule D
Othér Depreciable Assets
Description Cost Market Value
" Machinery-& Equipment - ‘

50 gwmied ATM miachings $445.000 ...$100:439

ol _ §4a5000 $100435
Furtiiture & Fixtures «

$2,010 $2.010

Total ; 32'!0‘,10 ) 32'!'010'

Office Equipment -
_ $900 $900

Total ; $900 3900
Leasehold Inprovettients

Total 50 50
Vehicles ~

Total $0 30

Revissd 17198
84



Tazes Payable
Federal
Income Tax Withholding
FICA - Employee
FICA. - Employer
Unemploymézt (FUTA}
Income
Other (Attach List)
Total Federal Tazes
State- and Local
Encomie Tax Withbolding
Unempléymiest (UT).
Disability Insurance (D)
Empl. Training Tax (ETT)
Sales
Excise
Real property
Personal property
i .
Other (Attach: List)
Total State & Local Taxes
Total Taxes.

List Total Claims For Fiich Clagsification -
" Secured claitis (a)

Priotity clainisiother thas taxes
General unsecured claims

*J. Allen ($20,000) 7nd 1. Wenger
($150.000) have been removed from
schiedules of general uisecused clitms
because of their regulatory tronbles.
*¥RCMI ($400,000), J. Maida
($400,000) and Shawiiee ($240,000)
are contmgent brokers® fees that arc how
unkikely, so they are excluded froi the
allowed total.

Bank

Acconit Type

Accomit No.

Account Purpose

Balance, End of Mon(k

Total Funds on Fand for alt Accounts

Aging of Posi-Petition Taxes
(A1 of End of the Current Reporting Period)
0-30 Days 3160 Dayy 6190 Days 91+ Davs Total
$0
$0
30
$0
$0
$0
$0 $0 30 30 50
$0_
$0
so .
$0
30
$0
S0
%0
SO
50
$0. . 30 50 $0 $0
$0 0 30 $0 $o
Schedule F
Pre-Petition Liabities ) .
Claimed Allowed
$14,455000  _ $14,455,000
$15.317 £15317
. 312000 $12000
33491002 $2,554,002
- ’ -y
Account 1 Account 2 Account 3 Account 4 Account 5
First Bank AT™M _ Heritape
Checking Checking Checkin
9401970730 Bof A 1114457
General-DIP Machine sccount . Investor Trst
$87,143 $200.561 §3.360
$291.064 )

Aftach caopies of the month end bank statement(s), reconciliation(s), and the check register(s)to the Monthly Operating %

Schedule E

2
+

o

1198



STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(Optional) Incrrase/(Decrense) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

ied For the Month ending 1031/99
Actaal Cumilative
Ciati Flowy From Opersting Activities Current Month (Case Lo Date)
| Cash Received from Sates $13214 $181,339
2 Baluncey o Sartlemaits Colleded y $79.721
3 Inérest Riceived ____ST.E08 $117.137
4 Cash Paid to Supphiers ' .
s Casi Paid for Selling Expenisey
[ Cash Pajd for Administrative Expenises $527 $17.343
Cash'Paid for Renta/leases: .
7 Perscinal Property . . i
8 Rea! Propeity 51,313 $17,750
9 Cash Paid for Iiterest - :
0 Gash Paid for Net Psyroll snd Benefits
‘ " Caishi Paid to Ovenier(syOfficer{s)
1 Salaries $5.414 575299
12 Dravis:
- Expistse Retmbursements. - L $300 i 36361
5 Other : : $300
Cish'Paid for Taxes PaidDeposiiad 16 Tax Acct. ] ]
16 Esiployer Payroll Tax 5251 $54.721
17 Employee Withholdrigs . .
13 Real Propérty Taxes
19 Ot Taxed
20 Casdi Paid for General Exponses
21 ) . - . »
22 Petrv well operations o ; 0 $14.137
23 Califomia well gpéraions ] e . ' 30 50
24, ATMoperstioas 2 : ...36,057 i . 57837
bl Net: Cash Frovided (Used} by Operating Activities before Reorganization Kems $3.961 ) $1i2:609
Cash Flows Fron Reorganlyition Henss
3 Itrest Received o Cash Avciriulsted DuetsChp 11 Case N . .
29 Professioal Fees Faid for Services.in Conmection with Chip 11 Case 30 $I0.500.
30 US. Trustde Quiarterly Fees . 3750 $3.250
31 Onlver Reorganizaticn Cosis 30 $7977
1 Net Caahi Frovided (Used) by Reorgantaation Ttema (3750) . (32,127
33 Net Cash Provided (Used) for Operating Activities and Reorganization Items a1 $30.482
Cash Fiows Frot Investing Activities
34 2l Expenditiives ;
35 Proveedsfroe Silles of Capital Goods diic 1o Clip 11 Case 3,360
16 ) j
37 Net:Cash Provided (Used) by liivesting Activities ; §3.360 . $3:360
Cash Flovws From Financing Activities
38 Wet Borrowings (Fxcept Insiders)
39 Net Borrowings from Shareholders, Partors, oc Other insideis . .
9 Capital Cocfiibitios ] $80,000
41 Principal Paymeits $7.80% ] 5117,137
42 ) ] :
43 Net Cash Provided (Used) by Financing Activities (37,309) {$37.137)
44 Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivaients ($1,.239) $46,705
45 Cashiand Cash Equivilenty at Beginning of Manth . 35192398 $244.939

46 Cash snid Casbi Equivalents at End of Moth $191,064 g#l@’ o

Go
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BALANCE SHEET
(Genéral Business Case)

For the Month Ended Pro Forma

Axsefs
From Schedules
Corrent Assets )

Cash and cash equivalents - unrestricted
Cash and cash-equivalents - réstricted
Accounts receivable (net) A
Inventory B
Prepaid expenses
Othér: Deposits for phones and Rent

Settlements receivable

Total Curient Asséts
Propeérty and Equipment (Market Vialiie)

Machingry and equipment

Furniture and fixtares

Office equipment

Leasehold ithprovements

Vehicles

Other;
California wells interest
Oklahorha wels interest

QooRgooobouon

Fotal Property and Equipment
Otlier Assets

Loans to shareholders

Loans to affiliates

Beddbro Note

ATM site location and membership interesis

Total Other Assety
Total Assets

NOTE: 1) Indicate method and date of valuation: Tentative salés offers and actual sale amourits

- ATM: 9/15/99, Oklahoma Wells: 10/4/99, California Wells 11/4/9%

@)
2

Market Valie

$150,000

$0

$0

$0

$3,650

50

$133,650.

50

~$100,439

$2010
$900

30
50

$0

$103,349

$9.000:

$9,000

$265,999

Reiised 1/198



47
48
49

51

52
33
54
35
56
57
58

59

60

Liabilities and Equity
{General Business Case)

Liabilitics From Schedules
Post-Petition
Current Liabilities

Salaries and wages
Payroll taxes -
Real and personal property taxes
Income taxes 4

© Salés taxes
Notes pevable (short term)
Accounts payable (trade)
Real property least airearage
Personal propétty lease arreatage
Accrued professional fees ' ) )
Cufent'potion of long-ferm post-petition debt (dhue within 12 months)
Professional Fees owing

Totdl Current Liabilitics
Long-Térm Post-Petition Debt; Net of Current Portion
Fotal Post-Petition Liabilities
Pre-Petition Liabilities (allowed amiourit)
Secured clairns

Priority unsecured claims
General unsecured ¢laims.

e o B

Total Pre-Petition: Liabilities
Totat Liabilities
Equity (Deficit)

Retained Eamnings/(Deficit) at time. of filing

Capital Stock

Additional paid-in capital

Cuniulative profit/(loss) since filing of case

Post-petition contributions/(distributions) or (draws)

Contingent liability elimination effect on retained earnings

Market value adjusimént/approximiationt on unireported itéms/séttlerent

Total Equity (Deficit)

Total Liahilities and Equity (Deficit)

S0

50

L <d
E—

30

$265,999

$265.999

Revised 1/1/98



08/31/99 18:23 B775 829 1693 Elforn, Inc. @og1/008
Phong Bill Chegckiist
Main Street
‘ ATM Phone # Localion : Address 1 TR¥ _lphoneCu]
530-541-8458 Ski Run Liguor #2 1950 Lake inhoe Bivd. TRO_GGS_?E Pacific]
530-542-2541 The Bottle Shop Liquor 11350 Lake Tahoe:Blwg. 70338181 Pacific
530-546-7260 King's Beuch Shell 8369 North Lake Bivd. 70338218 Pacific)
530-581-2716 Squaw Valley Lodge. (201 Squaw Peak Rd. 70338281 Patiig|
530-581.4166 Sguaw Valley Com Mkt~ [1600 Squaw Valley Rd. TRO66296{  Peclig
§20-582-5408 JE&L Food Mart 12105 Donner Pass TR325018 Pacific)
T15-322-3248 Silver Spur Liqucr 221 N. Virginia TR323824! Nevada
775-322-5823 Kl Cortez Lounge 235 W. 2nd Street 703382601 Nevada
775-323-4807 Reno Bar ’ 800 W. 5th Stréet 70338261 Navada
775-323-5370/328-0857 {Longneck's/Two Giraffes 200 Lake Sirest TR328863: Nevada
T75-324-0873 The Quest 210'W. Commercial Row 80280345 MNevada|
775-324-1028 Bad Dolly's S35E. 4ih Street 80280340 Nevada
[7—73-32¢8034 Bertha Miranda's-Reno  |336 Mill Strest. - TR327122] Nevada
&327.446’5 _ |Rocca's b 4758 N. Virginia 70338162] . Nevada
775-327-4541 Shooters Bar 434 N. Virginia © 70338240 _Nevadaj
[775-328.-3701 Shenenigan's T W Plumb L TR325931|  Nevads
775-329-7908 Shord Stop 1276 Wetls Ave, TR3I26219] _ Nevada
775-331-3921 Spet Bar 2140 Victorian Lahe 70338200|  Nevada
775-331-4314 Qasls 2100 Victorian Ave 70338753 Nevadaj
7153315179 Bertha Miranda's-Sparks' (2144 Greenbrae _ TR327119]. Nevada
775-337-1876 Contintental Lounge 1855 S, Virginia TRI268211 Nevada
715-345-8045 Cedar Lounge = ; T75~'HM§¥40_ TR327123]  Nevada
[775-348-7018 Midtown- Market 1121 Vesta 80280220  Nevada
775-55-7847 Juicy's 104 E. Glandale Ave. 80280081, Nevada
775-355-D177 Rainbow Markel-Sparks.  [1225 Commerce TR3I26208] Nevada
775-356-1883 Donley's {fish Pub | 12174 Gresnbras Ave, 70338175]  Nevada
775.359-7397 Litke's Midget Market 128 Victorian Ave, 70338241  Nevada
T75-575-5104 1-80 Smoke'Shop =~ 11000 Smoke Shiop __TR328208] Nevada
| 775-586-6333 Mott Canyan ™~ " "[259 Kingsberry Grade . TR326848]  GTE
775-873-8076 Supar Buy Markel 15200 Sun Vallsy Bivd. TR328352] " Nevada
T75-674-0342 Cill of the Wild 5400 Sun Valsy Blvd. 70338678 Navada
775-186-3731 Alrport Plaza 11981 Temninal Way TR3I26568| . Nevada
TT5-786-8865 AZ imternational Foogiand |2745 A, Sutro #3 TR¥26170| . Nevada
hr775-1_l6—947§ Raintow Market:-Réno '1501. Vassar TR323823| Nevada
T15-825:4727 Q's Billlards 2295 5. Virginia . T7033824p] Nevada
775-826-7653 Sunsst Grille 3655 8. Virginia TRIZ58B47 Nevads
-[775-828.6052 Lucha's Hideaway 541 E. Moana Lane 70338150 Nevada
175-82,8-9631 ) Carl's Bar | 310 'S. Virginia 70338292  Nevadal
: : _|Bronce Bitly's 145 Hillcrest #G 80280348| Nevada
: Otto's Bar 102 E. Grove Streat ‘80280347.  Nevada
775-847.9329 Ponderosa . |108.South C (Virg. City) | 80280218; Nevada
| 775-851-0808 Rainbow #6(AM/PM Mini) [7580 Colbart Drive ' TR326212[ Nevada
T15-857-4122 Rocco's . J4B4D E. Mill Street TR3Z7421.  Nevada
775-882-2702 MaDonald's N, Carson 3344 North Carson St, TR325882| Nevada
715-883-2181 Carson City McDonalds ~ |2001 North Carson.St. . 70338819| Nevada
775-887-3582 E! Chamo . ' ]4388 S. Carson Bt TR325018| Nevada
N/A Brickies Tavern 706 W. 2nd Streat 70338458 N/A
N/A Fourth Turn 2285 Kistzke Lané TR327121) NiA
N/A Sports Wesl 1575.8. Virginia St, 70338103 N/A
INnA Cormer Minute Mart 1775 Mill Street 76338182/ N/A
71
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LINDEKEN & ASSOCIATES, LTD.
A Professional Corporation

1025 Ridgeview Drive, Suite 200

Reno, Nevada 89509-6321

(702) 829-0500 FAX 829-1693

Financial Statement for Main Street A C, Inc.

For Month of September 1999

Month
Net Transactions For September 6,112

Gross Transaction Fee Revenue  $11,002.23
Less Transaction Eees 916.80
Liess Machine Loading Fees 1,680.82 -

Less Telephone Company Charges  1,713.47

Less A¢counting and Legal 1,375.00

Less Site Location Agreements 53.50

Less Other Charges 255.00

Net Profit (Loss) $5,007.64
Y2z

Roger L. Lindeken, E.A.

Year To Date
52,251

$96,159.99
7,837.65
14,369.15
17,901.61
12,375.00
2,337.75
3,408.22

$37.,930.61

Tax Crists Representation » Tax Planning and Tax Returns * Bookkeeping
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Main Street-

ion Fees Calculation Worksheet for ATM LLC--
Terminal Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jung Juf Aug Sep
TR323824 (Silver Spur) 63 56 87 o2 108] o4 109 143 125
TR323823 (Rainbow Market) 388 312 403 398 449 apif" 448] 477 528
§0280218 (Ponderosa) 12 &1 79 137 92 197 140 147
70338261 (Reno Bar) 1ag 135 145 182 186 149 192 - 220 168
" I TRa26209 (L80 Simake Shop) 268 185 378 205 318 21 309 ‘353 420
80260349 (Bad Dolly's) 7 66 49 4T o 38
TR326212 (AMIPM < Rané) 18} 296 351 387 415 3% 395 411 330
70338619 {McDonalds) 05| 110 142 124 155 187 125 185 187
B0280845 (Qust) 176 184 191 99 68 7 80 7% 89
70338251 (Squaw V. Lodga) 105) 163 93 66 2 33 44 65 51
Total Approved Transactions 1838 1393 1849 1724} 1997 1723 1523] 2181 2086
Gross Fes ) $3,522.80 | 82,7300 | $3.627.00] $2.664.50 | $2.957.90 | $2/680.03 | § 3,006.50 | #irnns| $3.304.85
Legs Transaction: Feés § 27570 | § 20895 |$ 277.35|$ 25660 |§ 267555 25845)3 28845 [§ 327.45)§ 31dd0)
[Surcharge Splif {185} $3.247.80 | $2,522.05 | $3,349.65. | $2,405:90 | 52,680.75 | $2,421.58 | § 2,718.05 | wiehws] $2.000:45
Servicinig Fees $ 50545 % 3830813 50848 |$ 474105 52748 [§ 473833 52683 | § 509.78|$ sve4d
Page 1
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Main Street1

| Fees Calculation Worksheet for ATM LLG 1
Terminal Jan Feb _Mar April May Jun Jul - Aug Sép. Oct
150280220 {Midiown Market) 57 0 38 69 66. 87 100] 91 85
TRa25864 (Sunset Grifi 92 68 87| 85 87, 82l 108 128 102
TR326218 (24th Si:1 Stop) 150 209 204 86 163 179 169 191 214{
40280091 {Juicy's) 54] . 50 56 77 7t 59 65 64 53
TR326208 {Rainbow Marke) 167 174 179 255 276 268 227( 298 245
TROB6 206 (Styusiw C ) 101 110 96 71 44 30 62 60 36
TR326568 {Airpori Plaza) 359 349 380 466 420 363 34|, 50% 491
TR3Z61704A-Z) 29 23 28 34 48 43 31 42 45]
70238249 (@'s Biliards) 137 120 85[ 124 128| 109 144 122 107
FTR327421{Rocod's ) 52 2 52 68 82 79 g2 o4 a1
| Total Approved | 1208 1133|, . 1215] 1435| _13ss {200 1392 1591 1454
{Gioss Fee. . $2.370.00| _§3.246.00] $2.430.00] . $2,634.13] $2516.70( $2,350:10] $2574.03] $2,906.35] $2,691.38
,L‘ess Tringdction Fees $18120]  $16845]  $18225)  $21525  $207.90]  $1b4.65|  $208.80] _ $238.65  $216:85
Sucharge Spiit $2,188.80] $207755| 3224775 sod1ss8]  $s7r5i|  $an25h| $7,365230 $2667.70| 3247253
|Servicing Fees $332.20]  $30283]  $334.13] $304.63] 838115  $357.23] $382.80)  $437.53] 40133
. ! ! R .
Page 3
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Main Street1A

wed Transaction Feas G Worksheet for ATMLLC 1A

Terminal January | Febiuary March April May June July August Sept Oct
TR325963 (Two Girraffes/Longl 0 8 18, 20 23|, 32 37 43 45
TR325862 (McDonalds) 2221 103 112 175 138 128 142 ‘179 148
TR325016 (EI Chatre) 7 100 89 8 83| 22 87 101 ot}
TR325931 {Shenanigans) 156 166 151 154 129 108 136 143 130
70338753 (Oasis) 8 o 10 20 g 9 14 10 126
70338292 (Carfs Bar) 27 18 47 59 84 61 82 83 75
|TRO65018 (J&L Food Mart) 328 310 308 204 190 168 226 363 282
70338676 (Call of the Wild) a7l - 72 85 86 108 87 116 68 71
TR325017 (The Chiistiana Inn) 188 165 179 145 158 80 61 15 9
70338162(Rosco's 1) 68 51 56 51 48| g 59 48 [
Total Approved T 1159 1013] 1053 1048 948 - 744 1060 1055 983
Giss Fee .. i $2207.00| .$1.974.50] $2,050100! $1,948.50) $1,627.00; $1.424.00] $2,049.00( $2j020.50) $1,892.00
Less Transaction Fees $173.85 $151.95]  S157.95| $152.70| $142.20] . $i11.60! $i59.00) $158.95)  5ia74s
|Surcharge:Splif {1.85) $2,083.15]  $1822:55] $7,802:05] $1,70580] §$1884.00] 51 3i24n] sr.800.00] $1 862250 §7.74455
Servicing Fees $318.73] $278.58]  §285.58] $270,05  $260.70] $204.60] $291.50] $290.43| 827033

Page 4
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Main Street2A

Approved Transaction Fees Calculation Worksheet for ATM LLC 2A

Terminal . January | February | March April May June July August Sept.

TR326211 (Continental Lourige) 16 7 3] 62 8 10 8 9 14
TR327121 (4th Yurm Sport) 201 140 161 100 184 125 123 31 90
TR32719% (Bertha Mirandas) 82 78 50 64 43 4B 41 37| 49
TR326172 (Adobé Bar) 177 1587 148 i1 158 119 184 33 2
70338190 (Lucha's), 55 49] 61 67 7 67 84 79 116|
TRA27422 (Cormier Minute) 154 186] 179 237 180 198 195 238 199,
70338200 (The Spot Bar) 27 21 9 18 E 29 26 23 [}
[TR327420 (Sports West Club) 80 56 66 57 63 61 (A 58 87
70338458 (Brickies Tavern) 65 66 47 45 65 73 61 7t 94
80280346 (Bronco; Billy’s) ] | 18] . 13 28 41 36
Total Approved Ti tior 837 761 737 761 832 il e 626 717
Gross Fee $1,674.00] $1,522.00 $1,474.00] $1,522.00] $1.664.00} $1.482.00] $1,624.00] $1.25200| $1.434.00
L8ss Trahsaction Fees | stosns! $11a1s]  $11055]  si1ads|  $124.800  sii14st  srotsa]  sessol sio7ss
Surcharge Split{1.85) $1,548.45] $1,407.85] $1,363.45] §$1.407.85 $1,530.90] $1,370:85] $1.502.20] $7,156.10 $1,326.45
Servicirig Feds $230.18) $20928| $202.08] $209.08) $228.80| $20378) $223.30; $172.15)  $197.18

Pages
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Main Strest3

ved T tion Fees C: Waorkshiest for ATM LLC 3

T January | Februaty | March April May June July August. | Sept.
TR327122 (Beitha Mirandas) 56 50/ 80 57 163 68 82 69, 70
TR337123 (Cedar Lounge) 46 40 44| 58 59 39 64 56 47|
TR328352 {Supér Buy} 197 100 91 94 115] 102 204] 122 138
70339175 (Donley's) 70 50 58 50 53 56 50 59 80
70338160 (Rocco's 111y 224 171 181 132 90 84 184 81 84
70338219:{Kirigs Shiell). 178] 142 138 105 1p7 131 232 250 189
70338241 (Midget Mkt) 38 60 59 68 77 57 % 89 68
70338240, (Shootérs) 53 54 66! 75 66 47 72 81 62
70338260/ (£l Cortez) 100 72 99 120 137 99 137] 86 128
TR325019(Otto'sY ] i 1 3 27 16 20 27l 13
Total Apbroved Transactions 870 739 816 772 _ 83|  8@9 . 1135 ~ 20| . 857
Gross Fee ) §1,609.00 | $1,862.50.| $1,512:00 | $ 1444.00 | $1,584.50 | § 1,32750 | § 243300 | $ 1.,70550 | § 168000
Less Transsction Fess $ 1305003 11085($ 12240 ($ 11500 |$ 125103 10485 |8 170253 13800 {§ 12855
Siircharge Spilt.(1.85) $1478.50 | §$1,251.65| $1,380.60 | $1,328.20 [ $1,459.40 | $ 1,222.65 | $1962.75 | § 1,667.50 | $ 155145
Servicing Fees $ 230253 20323 [§ 2244018 21230 [% 22035 (5 192.23(§ 31243[§ 25300]% 23568

Page
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®

Main Strest AC, Inc.
LT Profit and l.oss
Janusery thréugh June 1889
Jun -Jun'99
Ordinarty incoma/Bxpanse
Incore ) .
4000 Trarmaction Feé teveriue 62,038.7¢
Total income 62,338776
Cost of Gioods Sold
5000+ | fos oxp 501880
5100 - Terminal Service Fess 8,197.18
5200 - Terming) talephone axpenss 12.907.48
£250 -8t Location agresment 207375
4270 « Foss and Licsnyes §72.00
5301 - Professional fees exp, £.260.00
8500 - Bank charges 1,840.59
Total COGS 39.855,5@
Gious Profit ' 2248318
Expenss )
&800 - Depraciation 87,500.00
5650 - Amortization sxpenie 56,000.00
Totai Epenss 142.500.00
Net Ordinairy Income. ' 120,01882
Net Incoine +120,016.82
T———mamemme
Page 1
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@

Main Street AC, Inc.
8131786 . Balance Shest
As of June 30, 1989
Jun 309,99
ASSETS
Current Assats
Chscking/ Savings .
1000 -DIP Checking stdount _13,708.91
Tots! Checking/Savinge T 1370591
Other Current Asssts.
1200 - Cash in'ATM Machines - 200:000.00
1494 = Undeposited Funds 18,144.80
Totzl Other Current Asscts ' 218,144.88
Total Current-Assets 231,851.59
Fixec Assety o ’
1504 - ATM Maghin ] 500,000.00
1894 - A slated daprncli -§7;500.00
Totsl Fixsd Asgets 412,500.00
Othier Assists
1830 Purchass premium: 1,670,000:00
1994 - Accum Armortization <55,000.00
Tetal Other Asssts 1,815,000,00:
TOTAL ASSETS 2,250,351.5%
——— ]
LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Uabilities:
Currsnt Liabilitias
Accounts Payable k
2000 Accounts Payskle . 470458
Total Accounts Payable 4,704.56
Othar Curtert Lisbilitles

250 Nogis payable
Total Othef Current Liabilites

Yotal Cujrent Lisbillties’ 2,374,704.58
Totil Lisbilittes 2374704 56
Equity

3103 - Dividénds to L. Cerovac ~152.84

3800 - Ratyined Exmings 4,818,849

Net income 120,018,862
Totsl Equity 41538297

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 2,259,351:88
e ei—
Page 1
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 Address: 346 Saialoga Avenug, Suite 201

| Employer Tdentification
Number 770395098

CAMPEAU & THOMAS, A LAW CORPORATION
WAYNE H, THOMAS, #84009 '
KATHRYN M. INFANTE, #64972

55 South Market Street, Suite 1660

San Jose, California’ 95115

Telephone: (408)295-9555

ATTORNEY’S FOR
DEBTOR-IN-POSSESSION

UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

Inre )
Chapter 11
Main Street AC, Inc.,
dba  Mentor Capital, :
fdba Main Strect Afhletic Clubs, Ing., Case No. 98-56803-MM-11
Foxworthy Atbletic Club,
Meridian Athletic Ciub,
Fremont Athletic Club, )
Second Street Athletic Club, and DEBTOR'S THIRD AMENDED
San Thomas Athletic Club, , PLAN OF REORGANIZATION
successor to:
Tech Start, and
Mentor Investors-1, L.P.,

Debtor.

Sdn Jose, California 95129

Main Street AC, Inc., the Debtor herein, proposes this Plan of Reorganization under

Chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code.

ARTICLE I

DEFINITIONS
1.1 Defined Terms: The following defifitions apply in this Plan:

1 DEBTOR'S THIRD AMENDED
MSACPLDGS POGERLTDPGG-6 PLAN OF REORGANIZATION
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"Affiliate" means an entity which is an affiliate of a party in ifiterest within the meaning bf
Section 101(2) of the Bankruptcy Code and every partnership and joint venture in which such entity
-is a general partner or joint ventirer.

"Allowed Claim" or "Allowed Interest" means a claim against, or equity interest in, the
Debtor to the extent that:

A If the claim or interest arose or is deemed to have arisen on or before the
Filing Date; (1) proof of the claim or irterest either is timely filed or is deemed filed under Code .
§1111(a) and (2) the claim or interest either i5 not the subjéct of & fimely filed objectien or is
aijjw‘e‘d by a Final Order; or ‘

B. If the claim arose after the F iling Date and is/not deemed to have drisen on
or before such date, (1) the claim is of s Hnd that can be voluntarily paid from the Débtor's estate
| withiout specific Bankruptey Court approval and is so paid or (2) the claim has been allowed by 2
11 Final Order; and

C. Such claim is not subject to disallowance pursuant to §502(d) of the Code.

‘ "ATM Nevada" means, collectively, those four limited liability coipanies known as ATM of

1 :

? Nevada, LLC; ATM-1 of Nevada, LLC; ATM-1A of Nevada, LLC; and ATM-2A of Nevada, LLC.
, "ATM Members" means those members of ATM-2 of Nevada, LLC, and ATM-3 of Nevada,

1 J LLC, who sold their rembership interests in such companies to the Debtor in exchange for

ll bénefictal interests urider the promissory notes issued to ATM-2 of Nevada, LLC, and ATM.3 of
; } Nevada, LLC, as their répresentatives, ptirsudnt to the applicable Purchase Agreements.
i “Ballot" meanis the form distributed t6 holders of tlaims #nd interests on which is to be
l stated an acceptance or rejection of this Plan.

"Bankniptcy Court" means the United States Bankraptcy Court for the Northern District of
California.

"Bar Dat¢" means the date fixed as the last date for filing proofs of claims.

2 DEBTOR'S THIRD AMENDED
PLAN OF REORGANIZATION



"Bedro Notes" means the two promissory notes remaining: out of four notes iirade by Bédro,
Inic.; in favor of the Debtor which are pledged as collateral for the Debtor's obligations to Heller and
are suirerily hi Heller's possession.

' "B.L.R." means the Bankruptey Local Rules of the Barikruptey Count.

"Cash” means cash and cash equivalents including, but not limited to, checks and other
similar forms of payment or exchange.

"Claims Reserve" riteans the federally insured, interest bearing deposit account to be
established by the Debtor and into which shall be deposited all fiunds of reserved off actourit of
Disputed Claims that will be entitled t6 payment in Cash if they are determined to be Allowed
Clamns,

"Code" means the Bankruptey Code contained in Title 11 of the United States Code.

' "Committee” means the committee of creditors, if any, appointed in {his case pursuant to
i §1102 of the Code.

"Confinnation" means entry of the Coitfirmation Qrder:

"Confirmation Order" means the order of the Bankriptcy Courl confiriing this Plan.

"Debtor” means Main Street AC, Inc. ‘

“Disclosure Statement"* means the disclosire: statement relating to this Plan approved by the
Bankruptey Court pursuant to §1125 of the Code,

"Disputed Claim" meass a claim against the Debtor (a) which has beet included in the

|1 Debtor's schedules s disptited, contingent, or unliquidated, (b) as to which a prouf of fdim is filed

which does riot assert a claim to a fixed, liquidated sum, or (c) to. which an objection has been filed
which neither is the subject of a Final Order nor has been withdrawn.

"Disputed Interest” means an equity Security interest in the Debtor (a) which has been
included in the Debtor's schedules as disputed, contingent, or unliquidated, or () to which an

objection has been filed which neither is the subject of a Final Order nor has been withdrawn.

3 DEBTOR'S THIRD AMENDED
PLAN OF RECGRGANIZATION
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"Distributions” means the payments of Cash and issuance of New Equity Securities to be
distributed hereunder to holders.of Allowed Claims and Allowed Interests,

"Effective Date" means the date on which the Debtor files the amiendment to its articles of

incotporation required by §6.7 hereof.

*Filing Date” mearis the date on which the petition to commence this case is filed.

“Firial Order" means an ordet as to which (a) any appeal or petition for writ of certiorari that

| has been filed has been finaliy determined or dismissed, or (i) the time for appeal has expired and a

notice of appeal has not been filed.

“Heller" means Heller First Capital Corporation.

"Golden West" means Golden West Unit Investment Trust.

"Investment Trusts" medns, collectively, Golden West, Pac West, Sierra West and Stini West,

"Joint Participation Interests" means the undivided joint participation ititerests in the Pétro
Wells.

"New Equity Securities” ineans the New Commion Stock and/or fhe Warrarits to be issued
under this Plan.

“New Common Stock" means the commion stock of the Debtor to be issued pursuant to this

: Plag,

"Pac West" means, collectively, Pac West Unit Investmient Trust and Pac West-2 Unit
Investment Trust .

"Petro Participants” means the former holders of Joint Participation Interests in the Petro
| Wells who have executed agreemerits assigning such interests.to the Petro Trust.

"Petro Trust" means the Petro Assignee Trust, a business trust formed to facilitate the loan
by the Petro Participants to.the Débtor which fortis the basis for the Allowed Claim in Class A-3.

"Petro Wells" means the 6i1 and gas wells located in Pottowatomie County, Oklahoma, and
commonly known as Petro 16-1, Petro 16-2, Petro 16-3, Petro 164, Petro 16-5, and Petro 36-1,

" "Plan" means this Plan of Réorgardization together with any modifications hereto.

4 DEBTOR'S THIRD AMENDED
PLAN OF REORGANIZATION
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"Plan Interest" means interest earned on funds held on deposit in the Claims Reserve.

*Pro Rata" means proportionately so that the ratio of the consideration distributed on
acoount of an Allowed Claim or Allowed Interest-in & class (of, as applicable, group of classes) to
the consideration distributed on accouiit of all Allowed Claims or Allowed Interests in the class (or,
a§ applicable, group of classes) is the same as the ratio of such Allowed Claim or Allowed Interest
to all Allowed Claimis or Allowed Interests in the class(es).

"Purchase Agreement" means one of the Asset Purchase Agreements entered into between
the Debtor and each of Sierra West, Pac West, Golden Wesi, Sun West, the Petro Trust, ATM
Nevada, and the ATM Members:

"Record Date" means the date fixed, by the Bankruptcy Court of other';vise, for identifying

‘| the holders of Allowed Interests based on the Debtor's dutstaniding common stock for purposes of

voting on, and receiving distributions wnder, this Plan. '

"Rules” means the Federal Rules of Bankruptcy Procedure.’

"Series A Warrants” means the Series A Warrants to be issued hereunder granting the holder
the right to acquire common stock of the Debtor at a price of $1.00 per share,

"Series B Warrants” means the Series B Warrants to be issued hereunder granting the holder
the right to acquire common stock of the Debtor at a price £ $3.00 per sharé.

"Series C Warrants" means the Series C Warrants 1o be issued hereunder granting the holder

'the right to acquire comirion stock of the Debtor at a price of $5.00 per share.

“Series D Warrants" means the Series D Warrants te be issued hetetinder granting the holder
the right to acquire cominon stock of the Debtor at 4 price of $7.00 per share.
“Sierra West" mieans, collectively, Sierra West Unit Investment Trust and Sierra West-A
Unit Investment Trust.
"Sun West" mearns the Sun West Unit Investment Trust,
. "Warrant" means, generally, a Series A Warrant, a Series B Warrant, a Series C Warrant, or

a Series D Warrant.

5 DEBRTOR'S THIRD AMENDED
PLAN OF REORGANIZATION



1.2  Undefined Terms: A term used, but not defined, herein but defined in the Code or

the Rules has the meaning giver: to that teimn in the Code or the Rules.

ARTICLE I
CLASSIFICATION OF CLAIMS AND INTERESTS
All claims (except claims,tre;'xted uncier Article ITI pfthis‘ Plan) arid interests are placed in the
following classes.

21 Secired Cliims

Class A-1 (Heller); Class A-1 consists of the Allowed Claitm held by Heller in-the

-amount of the outstanding principal balance of the Bedre Notes on the Effeciive Date,

Class A-2 (ATM Nevada): Class A-2 consists of the $310.000 secored Alloiwed

 Claim held by the six ATM entities that held $2.370.000 purchase money security interests in the

pranissoiy notss issued to purchase the ATM assers of the Debtor to the extent that it is secured by

 the assers. produets and proceeds of the secured assets.

Class A-3 (01l Well Intercsts): Class A-3 consists of the §11.285.000 secured

" Allowed Claim held by the seven entities that held purchase money security interenis ini the

 promissory notes issued to purchase the oil and gas assets of the Debtor to the extent that it is

secured by thie dssets. products and proceeds of the seciired assets,
2.2 Priovity Claims
Class B-1 (Employee €laims): Class B-1 consists of unsecured Allowed Claims.
entitled to priority pursuant to §507¢a)(3) or (4} of the Code.
Class B-2 (Membér Claims): Ciass B-2 consists of unsecured Allowed Claims
entitled to priority pursuant to §507(a)(6) of the Code.
2.3  Class C (Unsecured Claims): Class C consists 6f unsecured Allowed Claims other
than'clatms treated under Anticle 11T aiid claims in Classes B-1 and B-2.

24 Egui urity Interésts

6 DEBTOR'S THIRD AMENDED
PLAN OF REORGANIZATION



Claﬁ; D-1 (Preferred Stock): Class D-1 consists of the Altowed Interest held by the
holder, on the Record Date, of the outstanding shares of the Debtor's preferred stock.

Class D-2 (Common Stock): Class D-2 consists of the Allowed Interests held by
‘thelholdérs, on the Record Date, of the outstanding shares of the Debtor's common stqck.

Class D-3 ($1.00 Option Helders): Cla;s D-3 consists of Allowed Interests based
on =ri'§hts to aequire cotrmon stock of the Debtor at a price of $1.00 per share.

Class D-4 (54,00 Option Holders); Class D-4 consists of Allowed Interests based
om rights to acquire common stock of the Debtor at a price of $4.00 per share.

Class D-5 ($6.00 Option Holders): Cliss D-5 consists of Allowed Interests based
on riéhts to acquire common stock of the Debtor at a price of $6.00 per share.

Class D-6 (510.00 Option Holders): Class D-6 consists of Allowed Interests based

"on rights to aciuire comimon stock of the Debtor at a price 6f $10.00 per share:

ARTICLE 11
TREATMENT OF UNCLASSIFIED CLAIMS
3.1  Treatment of Administrative Claims: Except to the extent that a particular holder
agrees otherwise, the holders of Allowed Claims entitled to priority imder §507(a)(1) of the Code
fadministrative claims, mcliding fees due under 28 U.S,.C,. $1930 and claims under Certificates

issued prior to the Effective Date) shall receive Cash in the amoint of such claittis ori the Effective

‘Date, ' If such a claim has not been allowed on the Effective Date, the holder shall receive such

payment within thirty days after the Debtor receives notice that such claim is an A]lm;ved Claim,
together with interest th&reon_ from the Effective Date at the rate of gight percerit (8%) per atinum.
Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, holders of such Allowed Claims arising from the
provision to the Debtor of goods and services in the ordinary course of business shall receive the

treatment provided for in their agreements with the Debtor, and

7 DEBTOR'S TilIRD AMENDED
PLAN OF REORGANIZATION
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3.2 Election for Administrative Claimants: Holders of Allowed Claims entitled to
priority under §507¢a)(1) of the Code may &lect to recéive shares of New Common Stock in
exchange for all or part of such claims at the rate of four sharés for each dollar of such claims plus
' sixteen Warranits (four each of Series A, B, C and D), each extitlinig such hiolder to purchase an
equivalent number of shares of the Debtor's common stock.

To receive such Nevw Equity Secﬁn'ties, a holder must notify the Debtor in writing of its
partial or complete election prior to the earlier of (2) ninety. days after the Effective Date or (b) the
holdet's receipt of Cash on account of such portion of their claim.

33  Ireatment of Priovity Governmentsl Claims. Except to the extent that

particular holder agrees othierwise, the holders of Allowed Claims entitled to priornity under
| §507(a)(8) of the Code (claims by governmental units) shall receive one of the following treatiments:
(a) Ifthe total of all such Allowed Claims is not greater than $22,000, Cash in

the arhount of such claims on the Effective Date. Ifsuch a ¢claim has not been allowed ot the

|| Effective Date, the liolder shall receive such payment within thirty days after the Debtor receives

netice that such claim is an Allowed Claim, together with intérest thereon from the Effective Date at
thee rate of eight percent (8%) per annum.

(b)  Hthe total of all sich Altowed Claims is greater than 822,000, quarterly Cash

| paymenis in the amount of $5,000 each, including interest payable at the rate provided under §6621
i of the Internal Revenue Code, commencing on the 15th day of the third month which begins after

;| the Effective Date and continuing on the same day of each third month thereafter until the twelfth

i .

; quarter after the Effective Date, at which time all principal and interest on such Allowed Claims shall

ibe due.

8 . DEBTOR'S THIRD AMENDED
PLAN OF REORGANLZATION
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ARTICLE IV
DESIGNATION AND TREATMENT OF UNIMPAIRED CLASSES

4.1  Class A-1 (Heller): On account of'its secured Allowed Claim in Class A, Heller

shall receive a complete assignment of all of the Debtor’s interest in-the Bedro Notes.

ARTICLE V
TREATMENT OF IMPAIRED CLASSES

LR Suitisfaction of Allowed Claims: Holders of Allowed Claims and: Allowed Interests
in the following classes shall receive the Distributions set forth in this Article on account, and in
complete satisfaction, of all such Allowed Claims and Allowed Interests,

5.2 Seciired Claims:

Class A-1 (Heller): Secured claimant (Heller) is unimpaired and has possession of

1 their coltateral. Any residuoal unsatisfied claim amounit by Heller will be included i Class C.

Class A-2 (ATM Nevada): Holders of secured Allowad Claims in Class A-2 will

retelve restricted stock, issued undér normal securities régulations. af the rate of 1en shares for edch
dollar of suich elaim to the extent of their security interest. Any residual unsansfied claim amount by
ATM Nevada will be included i Class C.

Cliss A-3 (Oil Well Inferests): Holders of sectired Allowed Claimsin Class A-3
will receive 100%6 of the net proceeds from the sale of their secured California and Oklahoma well

assets in firdl satisfaction of their claim. No claim amount will be included in Class C,

9 DEBTOR'S THIRD AMENDED
PLAN OF REORGANIZATION



N Py o (38 ]

E B o

33  Priority Claims
Class B-1 {Erzployee Claims): Class B-1 is not imipaired under the Plan. Except to
the extent a particular holder agrees otherwise, holders of Allowed Claims in Class B-1 shall receive
Cash in the amount of such claims on the Effective Date. Ifsuch a claim has not beeti allowed ori
the Effective Date, the holder shal] receive such payment within thirty days after the Debtor receives

niotice that such claim is an Allowed Claim, together with interest thereon from the Effective Dale at

the rate of eight percent (8%) per annum,

Class B-2 (Member Claims): Class B-2 is-not impaired under the Plan. Excepf to

| | the extent a particular holder agrees otherwise, tiolders of Allowed Claims in Class B-2 shall receive

| Cash in the amotint of such claims on the Effective Date. If such a claim has tot been allowed on

the Effective Date, the holder shall receive such payment within thirty days after the Debtor feceives

notice that such claim is an Allowed Claim, together with interest théresn from the Effective Date at

| the rate of eight percent (8%) per antiura,

Election for Priority Claimants: Holders of Allowed Claims entitled to priority

tinder §§507(a)(3),(4) and (6) of the Code may élect to-téceive sliares of New Commion Stock in

exchange for all or part of such claims at the rate of four shares for each dolar of such claims plus
sixteen Warrants (four each of Series A, B, C ard D), each entitling such holder to purchase a fike
number of shares of the Débtor's common stock, provided that such holder notifies the Debtor in

writitig of its partial or complete election prior to the earlier of (2) ninety days afer the Effective

Dite or (b) the holder's receipt of Cash on account of such portion of their claim.

5.4 Class C (General Unsecured Claims): Holders of Aliowed Claims in Class C shiall

| receive one share of New Common Stock on account of each dollar of such claims and-a Series B

Warrant and a Series D Warrant each entitling the holder to purchase & like nuriber of shares of the

Diebtor's common stock.

10 DEBTOR'S THIRD AMENDED
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55  Equity Security Interests
Class D-1 (Preferred Stock): The holder of the Allowed Interest in Class D=1 shall
receive, in exchiange for such interest (a) a number of shares of New Common Stock equal to the
number of shares of preferred stock held by such holder plus (b) Series C Warrants and Series D
Warrants each entitling such holder to purchase z like number of shares of the Debtor's common
stock.
Class D-2 (Comnion Stock): Each holder of an Allowed Interést in Class D-2 shall

retain ifs shares of the Deb'tor‘s'_commcm stock and shall receive Series D. Wariiints entitlitig such

| holder to purchase a nuniber of additional shares of the Debtor's-¢ommon stock equal to twice the

number of shares held by such holder o5 the Record Date,
Class D-3($1.00 Option Holders): Holders of Allowed Interests in Class D-3 shall
receive, in exchange for such interests, Sertes A Warrants and Series D Warrants edch to aequire the:

same number of shares of New Cornmion Stock as they afe entitled to asquite under their existing

| options and/or warrants.

Class D-4 (34.00 Option Holders): Holders of Allowed Interests in Class D4 shall

| receive, in exchange for such intérests, Series B Warrants and Series D Warrants each to acquire -

| the same number of shares of New Common Stock as they:are entitled to scquire under their

existing options and/or warrants.

Class D-5 (36.00 Optioa Holders): Holders of Allowed Interests it Class D-3 shall

‘| receive, in exchange for such interests, Series C Warranits and Series D Wartants each to aequire

| the same number of shares of New Common Stock as they are entitled to acquire under their

existing options and/or warrants.
Class D-6 ($10.00 Option Halders): Holders of Allowed Interests in Class ‘D-6

shall receive, in exchange for such interests, Seties D Warraits to acquire twice the hiumber of

shares of New Common Stock as they are entitled to acquire under their existing options and/or

warrants,

1 DEBTOR'S THIRD AMENDED
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AiZTICLE Vi
MEANS FOR IMPLEMENTATION OF THE PLAN

6.1 Completion of Heller Note Assigiment: On the occurrence of the Effective Date

the assignmém of the Badbro Notes, now in the passession of Heller, will by irrevocably final in full
satisfaction of the secured portion of Heller's secured Allowed Claini.

6.2 Transfer of Net.S'aEe Proceeds from Oil \"_Vell Interests: Prior to the Effective

Diate, the Debtor will deposit the tiet proceeds from the sale of the Oklaioma and California well

11 interests into an investor trust for the pro’ rata economie interest of those nvestors. 22.08% of

these net sale proceeds would be die Wilson or Morris. but will be retained by the Debtor in part,ia}
satisfaciion of their settlement with the Debior.

63  Issuance of Othér Equity Securities: Not later than sixty days after the Effective
Date, the Debtor shall issue the restricted shares to be issued on account of Aliowed Claims in Class
A-Z and New Equity Securities to be issued on dccount of Allowed Claims in Class C and Allowed
Intetests in Classés D-1, D=2, D-3, D-4, D-5, and D-6.

6.4

{a)  Securities Exchanged for Claims and Interests: To the extent provided in
§1145 of the Code; the New Equity Securities. (not the restricted shares issued to ATM Nevada)

-being issuéd to the holders of claims and interests under this Plan, and all securities issuéd in

| exchange therefor or on conversion thereof, shall be exempt from the registration requirements of

the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, arid any state or local laws requiring the registration for

 offet or sale of a security or registration or licensing of an issuer, underwriter or dealér.

{b)  Other New Equity Securities: All other New Equity Securities issued

“hereunder shall be issued only upon compliance with applicable state and federal securities laws.

None of such secutities tay be transferréd by thé recipient thereof unless registered and/or qualified

-under such laws or the recipient provides the Debtor with an opinion of counsel acceptable to the

12 DEBTOR'S THIRD AMENDED
PLAN OF REORGANIZATION



L3, ] HOow B

Y

15
16
17
18

20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27

Debtor that an exemption from the registration or qualification requirements is available to such
' recipient.
: (¢)  Contraciyal Restrictions on Transfer: In addition, without limiting the
generality of the foregoing, all shares of New Common Stock issued under this Plan {not shares
issued upou exercise of Warrants) may not be transferred without the prior written consent of the
Debtof for eighteen months following the Effective Date. Without limiting the generality of the
foregoing, each calendar month following the Effective Date, the Debtor may (bt is not obligated
| to) authorize the transfer of ten percent (10%) or some lesser percentage or lesser fixed amourit of
the New Common Stock subject to this restriction which is held by = person as of the beginning of
such month, if the person delivers the certificate evidencing such shates to the Debter with 4 wiitten
| request for removal of the restriction.
6.5  Terms of Warrants:
(a)  Durgtion of Warrants: All Warrants shall expire on 5:00 p.m., Pacific

Tirme, on the 485th day following Confirmation unless redeerned by the Debtor or exeércised prior
thereto, unléss the expiration date for Warrants held by & particular holder is extended by the Debtor
in writing.
' ’ (b)  Time and Manner of Exercise; Wairrants shall be considered exercised a
; the timme the Debtor actually receives writtén notice of the holder's election to exercise its- Watrants,
| provided that such notice shall be effective only if the Debtor receives full payment 6f the exercise
price in good funds within ten days after receipt of the riotice of election.

| (c)  Redemption of Warrants: The Deébtor shiall have the right to rédéem all or
2 portion of oné or miore series of Warrants on the following terms:

! Redemption Price: The redemption price shall be ten cents (10¢) for
each share purchasable ipon exercise of the Warrants.
(i)  Manner of Redemption: Redemption shall be effected by giving

written notice to the address last known by the debtor for the holder not less than thirty days prior

13 DEBTOR'S THIRD AMENDED
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to the intended rédemptioti date (which date shiall be stated in the notice). Holders of Wmants:may

exercise their Warrants at any time prier to 5:00-p.m., Pacific Time, on the redemption date stated in

| | the Debtor's notice,

(i)  Time of Redemption: The Debtor may redeem Warrants in a
| particular serics only when the closing bid price on the last trading day prior to giving notice of
redemption for the shares receivable upon exercise of the Warrants in that séries is at least $1.00 or
at feast 100% greater than the exercise price for that series of Warrants. '
(iv)  Partial Rédemption: Subjéct to the limitation set forth in the
| preceding subsection, the Debtor may select one or more series of Wacrants for a partial redemption
and miay tedeéin less tha all Warrants in a particular serjes; however, any partial redemption shall
be made Pro Rata among the holders of Warrants of any patticular series.
(v}  Conversion of Unredeemed Warrants: All Warrants as to which
the Debtor issued a notice of its intention to redeem that remain unexcercised and unredecmed after

the redemption date stated in thé notice shall be dutomatically converted to a Warrarnt of the series

' | which hag the next highest exercise price.

6.6  Disputed Claims and Interests
(a}  Reservefor Disputed Claims and Interests: When any Distribution is to

be made to holders of claims entitled to paymient in Cash, the Débtor shall deposit into the Claims
. !"Res’erve any amount that would be distributed to the holder of a Disputed Claim if it ‘were an

:I ir}f‘dlmwc.d Claim. When any Distribution is to be made to holders of claims or interests entitled to
:New Equity Securities, the Debtor shall réservé the niumber of shares that would be distributed to

| the holder of a Disputed Claim or Disputed Interest if it were an Allowed Claim or Allowed Interest
or thie number of sha-res that would be issuable on exercise of a Warrant that would be distributed to
the holder of such a Disputed Claim or Disputéd Interest. Such amoutit shall be retained in the
-Claims Reserve, or the shares shall continue to be reserved, until the allowability of such claim is

i

resolved.

14 DEBTOR'S THIRD AMENDED
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(b)  Determination of Reserve Amount: The amount withheld, or number of
shares reservéd, shall be determined on the basis of (d) the amoiint claimed by the holder in its proof
of claim filed in this case if such proef of claim asserts a fixed, liquidated sum, (b) the amount upon
which the parties to the dispute agree, ot (c) the amount estimated by the Bankruptcy Courr after
notice and an opportunity for a hearing under B.L.R. 9014-1(b).

(¢} Distributions on Disputed Claims and Interests:

()  ARer a Disputed Claim that would be entitled 1o Cash is resolved:
(A)  Tothe extent the Disputed Claini is determined to be an
Allowed Claim after one or more Distributions have been made hereunder, then within 30 days after
the Debtor has notice that sueh claim has become an Aliowed Claim, the Debtor shall distribute

Cash to the holder from the Claims Reserve in an amount equal to (1) the Distribution the holder

| would have received if the claim had been an Allowed Claim at the time such Distributions were 7

made and (2) Plan Interést thereon, accruing from the date each sieh Distribution would have been

| made; and

(B  Funds ini the Claims Reserve not paid to the holder of the

| | elain shall be returied to the Debtor's general account,

(i)  After a Disputed Claim or Disputed Interest entitled to a Distribution

| of New Equity Securities is resolved:

_ {A)  To the extent the Disputed Claim or Disputed Interest is
determined to be an Allowed Claim or Allowed Interest afier one or miore Distributions have been
made hereunder, then within 30 days afier the Debtor has notice thiat such claiin or interest has
become an Allowed Claim or Allowed Interest, the Debtor shall distribute the New Equity Securities
which. the holder is entitled to receive; and

(B)  The common stock resefved on account thereof (and/or

Warrants, as applicable) to which the holder is not entitled shall be distributed Pro Rata to the

|| holders of Allowed Claims or Allowed Interests in the class of which the Disputed Claim or

15 DEBTOR'S THIRD AMENDED
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Disputed Interest is a member if such class is entitled to Pro Rata Distributions from a fixed block of

New Equity Securities; otherwise such reserved shares shall be released from réserve and deemed

| theredfter to be authofized, unissued, and unireserved shares available for issuance as the Debtor

| deemnis appropriate.

6.7  Amendment of Articles of Incorporation: Not later than 120 days after
Confirmation, the Debtor shall ﬁlé amendments to its articles of incorporation which provide for;
(8)  Authorization of sufficient shares of its common stock to permit issuaul-me
of the New Common Stock, the shares issuable on exercise 5ffa.11 Warrants o be issuéd unider this
Plan, arid such additional common stock as the Debtor considers appropriate to have available for
future transactions; and
(b)  Prohibit the issuance of fionvoting sqiity securities.
6.8  Validity of Corporate Actions: Pursuant fo §1400 of the California

Corporations Code; Confirmation shall constitute due authotization required for thefull validity,

- enforceability, and effectiveness of all transactions provided for in this Plar, notwithstariding any

| provisions of the California Gerieral Corporation Law which would otherwise require approval of
such transactions by the Debtor's board of diréctors, shareholders, or otherwise. Corifirmarion
shall constitute authorization for the Debtor's Responsible Individual designated under

B.L.R. 4002-1 to take all actions and execute_ deliver and file all certificates, riotices, and other
documents as he deenis necessary or apptopriate to consummate the transactions pravided for in
this Plan, including certificates of amendment of the Debtor's Articles of Incorporation.

6.9  Selection of Directors: At Confirmation, the following individuals shall be the

l directors of the Debtor;

Chester Billingsley Robert Meyer
Gilbert McCord Ernest Williaths
Stan Shaul

At the first regular teeting of sharebolders following Confirmation, directors shall be

1 elected in accordance with the Debtor's articles of incorporation and bylaws.

16 DEBTOR'S THIRD AMENDED
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ARTICLE VII
DI GE
Except as otherwise provided herein or in the Confirmation Order, Confirmation shall
discharge the Debtor from all debts that arose, or are treated under the Code as if they had arisen, at
any time before Confirmation. The discharge shall be effective as to each debt regardless of whether

a proof of claim therefor is filed or deemed filed, whether the claim is an Allowed Claim, or whether

the holder thereof gccepts the Plan.

ARTICLE VIH
RETENTION, SETTLEMENT. AND WAIVER OF CLAIMS
8.1  Retention and Enforcement of Claims. The Debtor shall retain and may enforce

claims held by it or its estate, inclnding ¢laims arising from the power, under the Code or otherwise,
to avoid and recover transfers:

8.2  Settlement of Obiections to Claims: Ifa party has timely filed an objection to 4

1 claim, the party who filed the objection and the holder of the disputed claim may enter into @ written

settlement agreement to compromisé such claim, which agreement, when filed with the Bankniptcy
Court, will have the force and effect of a Final Order.

83  Stale Checks and Claim Waiver: All checks constituting disbursemerit of
aiounts dae wnder the Plan shall be drawn 50 as to becore automatically void if not cashed or
otherwise negotiated within 90 days after issuance. I any such check becomes void, the claim
with respect to which the check was issied shall be deemed withdrawn, and the funds
corresponding to the withdrawn claim shall be disbursed according to the Plan.

Any New Comrmen Stock and proceeds from the redemption of Warrants that are not
deliverable after issuance or receipt and that have not been claimed 90 days after five press
releases;. on issuance and the redemption of Warrants have been made, will be retired into the
Debtor’s treasury, The claim with respect to which the New Equity Securities was issued shall be

17 DEBTOR'S THIRD AMENDED
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., deemed withdrawn, and the funds corresponding to the withdrawn claim shall be disbursed

according to the Plan,

ARTICLE X

Except for the executory-contracts and unexpired leases described in Exhibit A orin an

| | amendment to Exhibit A which may be filed before Confirmaion, the Debtor hereby rejects all

executory contracts (which include wérrants, options, and other rights to purchasé shares of the
Debtor's stock) and unexpired leases to which it was a party on the Filing Date, On the Effective
Date, the executory contracts and unexpired leases described in such Exhibit A shall be assuimed by

the Debtor.

ARTICLE X
REVESTING
10:1 Revesting of Property: Except as provided in this Plan or in the Confirfuation
Order, on the Effective Date, the Debtor shall be vested with all of the property of its estate free and
clear of all elaims, liens, chiarges and other interests of reditors arising prior to the Filing Date. All
property of the ¢state shall reinain property of the estate within the meaning of §541 of the Code,
and the automatic stay imposed by §362 of the Code shall remuin in force, until the Efféctive Date.

102 Avpidance of Liens: Without limiting the generality of the preceding section, on the

|| Effective Date, the Debtor's property shall be free of any liens in favor of parties who do not hold

secured Allowed Claims within the meaning of §506(z) of the Code, incliding the following:

(a)  Heller: The security interest asserted by Heller in any assets of the Debtor

other than the Bedro Notes,

I8 DEBTOR'S THIRD AMENDED
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(b)  Orders of Examination: Any liens asserted by parties who, in iin‘gatiori
. commenced prior to the Filing Date, obtained 6rd:ers of exarnination of the Debtor under California
CCP §708.110 or 708.120 or otherwise, including:
() The Miner Group, d/b/a 0f)_r1npic Graphics Industries;
(i)  Value Business Products, Inc.

(c) Notices of Judgment Liens: Any liens asserted by parties who filed -
financing statements or notices of judgment liens with the California Secretary of State after the date
on which Heller filed its financing statements, including a notice of judgment hen filed by Re~Ne,w‘
Sealers, Inc.

16.3 Operation of Business: Upon Confirmation, the Debtor shall operate its business
free of any restrictions of the Code, the Rules, or the Bankrupicy Court. '

ARTICLE X1
RETENTION OF JURISDICTION ,
Notwithstanding Confirmation, the Bankruptcy Court shall retain jarisdiction to enforce the

provisions, purposes, and intent 6f this Plan including, without limitation:

A Determination of the allowability of claims and interests;

B. Approval of the assumption, assigiinént, or rejection of any executory contract of
unexpired lease of the Debtor,

C Determination of requests for payment entitled to priority under §507(a)}(1) of the
Bankruptey Code, including compensation of parties entitled thereto,

D, Resolution of controversies and disputes regardifig interpretation of this Plar;

E. Implementation of the provisions of this Plan and entry of orders in aid of
confirmation of this Plan, including, without iinﬁtation, appropriate orders to protect the Debior
from creditor action,

F. Modification of the Plan;
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G. Adjudication of any causes of action, including avoiding powers actions, brought by
the Debtor; and '

H.  Enuy of a final decree closing this case.

ARTICLE X1

REQUEST FOR CONFIRMATION
If necessary, the Debtor requests Confirmation of this Plan pursuant to §1129(b) of the

Code.

Dated: September 30, 1999
Main Street AC, Inc.

By;

Chester Biliingsle
Chief Executi»\c%er
Campeau & Thomas

A Law Corporation,
Attarneys for Debtor-in-Possession

ORIGIRAL SIGNED 8Y
By: N

Wayne Thomias
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EXHIBIT A
EXECUTORY CONTRACTS TO BE ASSUMED BY THE DEBTO!

Lease for premises at 346 Saratoga Avenue, San Jose, California.

Hired Service Provider Contract with Nevada ATM including Service Agreement and
network Fee Licensing Agreemem

Liocation Agreements for the ATM. Nev'ada mitomated tellér machines.

Any other leases, contracts and agreements necessary for the continued operation of the
ATM business avquired pursuant to the Purchase Agreements.

Indemnification Agreement for corporate dgents and all other agreemems memorialized iri
the Corporate Minutes Book not if ¢onflict with the Plan.

‘The Attomey - Client Fee Contract with Campeau & Thomas,
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UNITED STATES
SECURTIEE aND EEXCHANGE CoMMISSION N REPLYIG MLEADE QUOTE
PACIFIC REGIONAL OFFICE
VT Foos

November 19, 1959

BY FACSIMILE (408) 295-5606
ANDU.S. MAIL

Kathryn M. Infante, Esq.

Campesu & Thomas

55 South Market Street, Suite 1660
San Jose, CA 95113

Dear Ms. Infante:

Ay | mertioned during our telephione conversation this #fteinicon, the Commission
staff has reviewed the draft of the Debtor's Memorandivi in Support of Approval of its
Proposed Fifth Aminded Disclosute Statement, which you provided 1 our office on
November 17, 1999, The staff docsnot have any further uestions or cotmiments
regarding the Debtor’s Fifth Ametided Disclosure Statement (“Disclosure Statemsent™) it
this time. However, please note: that this should not be Interpreted as approval of the
Disclosure Statement, of the proposed Debtor’s Third Aménded Plan of Reotganization,
by the Comimission ox its staff,

If you have any questions or comments regarding this matter, pledse feel free to
call me at {323) 965-3860.

Very truly yotrs,

%QMM

Arthur W. Richardzon
Seaior Couiise!



Exhibit 10(a)

EXHIBIT 10a

LONG — TERM LIQUIDITY & FUNDING AGREEMENT
BY
MANAGEMENT CONTRACT & OPTION

$3,200,000

This Long-Term Liquidity and Funding Agreement by Management Contract and Option

(the "Agreement") is entered into this 30th day of April, 2005 (“Effective Date”), by and among
the following parties:

Waste Consolidators, Inc., aka WCI, a Colorado corporation (“Operating Company”),
WCI Management, Inc., an Arizona corporation (“Management Company”),

(Collectively, the two above companies may be referred to as the “WCI
Companies™),

The shareholders of WCI (“OpCo Owners”),
The shareholders of WCI Management, Inc. (“MCo Owners”),

(Collectively, the two above groups may be referred to as the “Owners”),

The management team of WCI Management, Inc. (“Owner / Managers”),

(Collectively, the Owners, Owner / Managers and WCI Companies may be
referred to as the “WCI Parties”),

Main Street AC, Inc., a California corporation (“Main Street”),

(All the above parties together, may be collectively referred to in this Agreement
as the “Parties”).

RECITALS

Main Street’s central business purpose is to provide access to the higher valuations and

greater liquidity that is found in the public markets to the owners of profitable private companies.
The WCI Parties desire to secure those potential public market and other benefits for
themselves. The Parties understand that the public market determines value accurately only over
the long-run and that the benefits of this Agreement will most probably manifest themselves over
a long period of time. Hence, this Agreement is accepted by the Parties as a gradual, long-term,
multi-year program.

Within Main Street, the family of agreements, similar to this Agreement, is referred to as

the “Owners’ Fund” program. Main Street is an operating company and not a mutual fund nor
an investment company.

Long — Term Liquidity & Funding Agreement
for WCI



AGREEMENT STRUCTURE

To secure the long-term benefits hoped for, the Parties are entering into this single,
unified Agreement. For ease of understanding only, the Agreement may be thought of as being
comprised of five primary provisions, as follows:

I.
I1.
1L

IV.

V.

Formation of a Management Company, issuing these new shares to the Owners,
Structuring of a Management Contract for the Management Company,

Structuring of an Employment Contract for the Owner / Managers within the
Management Company,

Providing for a tax-free Exchange to purchase the Owners’ new Management
Company shares with Main Street stock which is repurchased for cash over time,
Providing Main Street with a long-term Option To Purchase the Operating
Company at a probably distant time to be determined by the OpCo Owners.

The body of the Agreement follows along these lines concluding with appropriate
administrative sections.

SUMMARY OF TERMS

As a short, quick reference, the following financial terms of the Agreement are excerpted
and consolidated here. The complete text found in the main body of this Agreement governs and
must be consulted to determine the conditions and details that therein define, limit and materially
impact each of these terms, other terms and the above five provisions.

As

The pro forma Purchase Price of the Management Company is $3,200,000.
i The initial Exchange is a tax-free exchange of stock.

i The stock is repurchased over time targeted to equal the Purchase Price.
iii Exercise of $150 Million in public warrants provides funds for repurchase.
v Purchase funds are released to MCo Owners as increasing percentages of

the Earnings Target are met by the Management Company.
v The Earnings Target is $400,000 per year after-tax.
vi The purchase price multiple for the Management Company is 8x.

The Management Company will be 100% owned by Main Street.

i The standard monthly Accounting Fee is 10% of salary + $500 = $1,500.

ii The Stock Repurchase Allocation (fee) matches and equals any bonus,
dividends or other funds Owners receive above salary and benefits.

The Owner / Managers monthly salary allocation is $10,000 including benefits.
i The Owners / Managers may draw extra bonuses as they wish (see Bii).

The option price for the Operating Company is 8x its Future Earnings calculated
at the time of exercise.

i The OpCo Owners may remain as shareholders, directors and officers of
the Operating Company until after option Exercise.
ii The Option To Purchase is generally exercised upon Owner’s request.
Long — Term Liquidity & Funding Agreement
for WCI



Now THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration the receipt and sufficiency of which
are hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows:

TABLE OF ARTICLES & SECTIONS

ARTICLET - MANAGEMENT COMPANY FORMATION

Section 1.0

Section 1.1

Section 1.2

Section 1.3

ARTICLE I -
Section 2.1
Section 2.2
Section 2.3
Section 2.4
Section 2.5
Section 2.6
Section 2.7

Section 2.8

Initial Reorganization

1.0.1 Basic Resale

1.0.2 Miscellaneous Matters

Formation of a Management Company

1.1.1 OpCo Shareholders

Distribution of Management Company Shares
1.2.1 MCo Shareholders

Management Company Assets

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

Management Contract Reference
Management Contract Creation and Initial & Future Assignments
Duties of Contract Holder
Limitation to Duties
Indemnification of Contract Holder
Term
Management Fees
2.7.1 Owner / Managers Salary & Benefits Coverage
2.7.1.1 Recurring Fee Elimination Upon Death, etc.
2.7.2  Public Company Administration and Accounting Coverage
2.7.3 Owner / Managers Controlled Bonus & Matching Coverage
2.7.3.1 General Use of Bonus & Matching Funds
2.73.2 Loans by Owner / Managers
2.7.4 Direct Payments and Fees
2.74.1  Payments All Inclusive
2.74.2  In Advance as Recurring Management Fee
2.7.43  After the Fact as Incentive Management Fee
2.7.5 Timing & Late Fees
Reporting and Verification
2.8.1 Confidentiality and Limited Scope
2.8.2 Financial Statements
2.8.3 Tax Returns
2.8.4 Board Information
2.8.5 Shareholder Information
2.8.6 Original Bank Statements and Checks
2.8.7 List of Direct Payments
2.8.8 Explanation of Payment
2.8.9 Site Visits

Long — Term Liquidity & Funding Agreement
for WCI



ARTICLE III -
Section 3.1
Section 3.2
Section 3.3
Section 3.4
Section 3.5

Section 3.6
ARTICLE IV -
Section 4.1

Section 4.2
Section 4.3

PROFESSIONAL EMPLOYMENT CONTRACT
Employment Contract Reference
Participants
Duties
Limitation to Duties
Compensation
3.5.1 100% of Management Fee Pool May Be Paid Out
3.5.2 Flexible Benefit Selection
3.5.3 Split Amongst Individual Owner / Managers
3.5.4 Consulting or Extended Benefits
Term

EXCHANGE OF SHARES
The Exchange
4.1.1 Exchange of Certificates
4.1.2 Owner / Managers Authority for Owners
Earnings Multiple
Earnings Target
4.3.1 Adjusted After-Tax Earnings
4.3.1.1 Adjusted Earnings
4.3.1.2 Effective Tax Rate
4.3.1.3 Net Present Value Discount Factor
4.3.2 Definition of Achievement
4.3.3 Earnings Evaluation Period

Section 4.4  Current Main Street Repurchase Program

Section 4.5
Section 4.6
Section 4.7
Section 4.8

Section 4.9

Section 4.10
Section 4.11
Section 4.12
Section 4.13

4.4.1 100% of Matching Funds Used to Buy-Back Public Stock

4.4.2 100% of Warrant Funds Used to Buy-Back Owners’ Stock

4.4.3 Performance Earned Percentage is Qualified for Buy-Back
4.43.1 Transfer Restrictions Apply to Public Market Sales
4.43.2 Transfer Restrictions are Comprehensive
4.4.3.3 Release of 10% Reserve

4.4.4 Repurchase at $8 per Share at Owner’s Choice

4.4.5 Monthly Pro Rata Repurchases

4.4.6 Provision for Limited Buyout of Only Some Owners

Current Repurchase Program Subject to Modification by Board

IRA Coordination Available

Existing Loans to Owners

No Significant Changes to Balance Sheet

4.8.1 Recent Cash Payments to Owners

4.8.2 Access to Records

Requirement for Universal Business Inclusion in Sale

Further Assurances

Securities Law Matters

Closing

Offer and Refundable Deposits Paid

4.13.1 Refund if Agreement Consummated
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4.13.2 Refund if Agreement Not Executed by Owners
4.13.2 Refund at (2x) if Agreement Not Executed by Main Street

ARTICLEV - OPTION TO PURCHASE

Section 5.1
Section 5.2
Section 5.3

Section 5.4
Section 5.5
Section 5.6

Section 5.7
Section 5.8
Section 5.9

Section 5.10
Section 5.11
Section 5.12
Section 5.13
Section 5.14
Section 5.15
Section 5.16
Section 5.17

ARTICLE VI -
Section 6.1
Section 6.2
Section 6.3

Section 6.5
Section 6.4

Section 6.5
Section 6.6
Section 6.7

ATTACHMENTS

Purchase Option Reference

Idealized Scenario

Standard Scenario is at ( 8 ) Years’ Future Earnings

5.3.1 One Year Notice by Owners
53.1.1 Notice Upon Death or Disability

5.3.2 Agreement as to Projected Earnings for Stock Purchase
5.3.2.1 Participation in Future Stock Repurchase Programs

5.3.3 Agreement as to Terms and Conditions

Exercise by Main Street

Optional Payout of Earnings for (8) Years

Optional Sale or Spin-off

5.6.1 Sale if Unauditable, No Agreement Reached or So Elected

Partial Buyout of One of Several Owners

Mathematical Calculation for Overlapping Provisions

Partial Purchase for ( 6x ) for Fraud

5.9.1 Immediate Walk Away by Owner at a 25% Discount at ( 6x)

Main Street Elected Sale Possible at a 25% Premium at ( 10x)

Treatment of Loans

Adjustment for Today’s Liabilities

Allocation of Enforcement Costs

Potential Rollback of Fees Just Prior to Exercise

Purchase is All-Inclusive

Non-Compete Clause

OpCo Shares and Owners’ Rights Not Transferable After the Close

OTHER MATTERS

Representations and Warranties of the Owners
Covenants and Acknowledgements

Conditions Precedent to Closing

6.3.1 Completion of Attachments

6.3.2 Execution of Documents

6.3.3 Main Street Board Approval

6.3.4 Exchange of Shares

Publicity

Termination

6.4.1 Effect of Termination

6.4.2 Return of Deposit and Double Deposit Return
Survival and Indemnification

Miscellaneous Provisions

Notices
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ARTICLE I
MANAGEMENT COMPANY FORMATION

Section 1.0  Initial Reorganization. In November 2003, Main Street purchased
100% of the WCI operating company from the OpCo Owners for 125,000 shares of Main Street
restricted common stock, with the additional right to buy the associated management company
later. Since that time, the Owners’ Fund has evolved and now completes the same type of
purchases, but in reverse order. Thus, currently, for any given new company, Main Street seeks
to purchase the management company first, followed by the purchase of the operating company
some years later. Similarly reversing the order of purchase would have advantages for both the
WCI Parties and for Main Street. To secure such benefits, the Parties are entering into this
Agreement. As a preliminary step, the basic November 2003, purchase will be zeroed out by a
resale with any miscellaneous payments trued up. This will be accomplished in the following
manner:

1.0.1 Basic Resale. Upon execution of this Agreement, the OpCo

Owners will buy back, and Main Street will sell back, 100% of the outstanding WCI shares in
exchange for the 125,000 Main Street shares originally paid.

1.0.2 Miscellaneous Matters. Prior to the execution of this
Agreement, WCI will pay the outstanding administrative assessment from the November 2003
agreement, (approximately $7,000) owed to Main Street. Concurrent with the execution of this
Agreement, WCI will enter into a note payable to Main Street equal to the cumulative matching
administrative assessment due under the November 2003 agreement (approximately $22,500). ‘
The note is at Attachment 1.0.2. The various terms of the note are, 7.8% accruing interest, but
with abated payment until Kyle D. Thomas has some portion of his Main Street Purchase Shares
first repurchased under the restricted stock repurchase program. The first payment will be due
on the note on the first 10" of the month following thirty-days after said initial repurchase for
Kyle D. Thomas is made. Starting with that first payment, the note will be amortized in a total
of twelve following equal monthly payments of principal and interest, continuing at 7.8%
interest, compounded and paid monthly. This recapture of historic fees will not count toward
any other Management Fees owed at the then future time under other provisions of the ‘
Agreement. Once due, payments are subject to the general timing and late payment provisions
of 2.7.5. i

Section 1.1  Formation of a Management Company.  With the assistance of Main
Street, the Operating Company has caused to be formed the “Management Company” in a fortﬁ
that is acceptable to Main Street. The articles of incorporation, board minutes and other similar
corporate records for the Management Company are found at Attachment 1.1(a). Initially, the
Management Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Operating Company. Basic

corporate information for the Operating Company is at Attachment 1.1(b)

1.1.1  OpCo Shareholders. A list of all of the OpCo Owners
containing their name, address, telephone number(s), e-mail, their percentage or numeric share
holdings, and their affirmation of accredited investor status is at Attachment 1.1.1.
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Section 1.2 Distribution of Management Company shares. The Operating
Company will execute a tax-free distribution under Section 351 of the Internal Revenue Code to
place the share ownership of the Management Company into the hands of the MCo Owners. The
“Management Company Shares™ thus issued, represent 100% of the outstanding and issued
shares of the Management Company. The reorganization plan for the Management Company
formation, to be filed with associated company tax returns, is at Attachment 1.2.

1.2.1 MCo Shareholders A list of all of the MCo Owners containing
their name, address, telephone number(s), e-mail, their percentage or numeric share holdings,
their affirmation of accredited investor status and any other information as may be reasonably
requested by Main Street is at Attachment 1.2.1.

Section 1.3 Management Company Assets.  The minimum initial assets of the
Management Company are the Management Contract (defined in Article IT) and Option To
Purchase (defined in Article V). Unless otherwise stated here, the initial liabilities are zero. A
listing of initial assets and liabilities of the Management Company are detailed herein at
Attachment 1.3.

ARTICLE Il
MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

Section 2.1 Management Contract Reference. ~ To improve the conceptual
understanding of this article of the Agreement, the provisions under Article I may be referred to
together herein as the “Management Contract™.

Section 2.2 Management Contract Creation and Initial & Future Assignments.
Co-incident with the creation of the Management Company, this Management Contract was
created and assigned as an intangible asset of the Management Company. All rights, duties and
obligations of the Management Company with respect to the Management Contract apply and
inure equally to its successors and assigns.

Section 2.3  Duties of Contract Holder.  As the initial holder of the Management
Contract, the Management Company has the responsibility to perform the duties of general
manager of the Operating Company. This means the Management Company has responsibility
for the day-to-day management of the Operating Company, its sales, marketing, operations and
accounting. In addition to having primary responsibility for performance in these tactical
management areas, the Management Company will provide consulting to the Operating
Company with regard to the more strategic issues of corporate finance, legal, strategy, vision and
culture.

Section 2.4  Limitation to Duties. Any item that is or should properly be brought
before the board of directors of the Operating Company is beyond the scope of responsibility
granted by and required under the Management Contract. The Management Contract confers a
non-officer-like role. The overall and executive direction of the Operating Company, including
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corporate finance, legal, strategy, vision and culture, will continue to vest with, and be controlled
by, the OpCo Owners through the directors and officers they select.

Section 2.5  Indemnification of Contract Holder. ~The management team of the
Management Company will be the Owner / Managers. Some Owner / Managers will
simultaneously be directors, officers and/or major shareholders of the Operating Company. This
dual role ineffectuates the normal executive function of directors, officers and shareholders
acting as an onsite check over the management team to prevent negligent, damaging or illegal,
civil or criminal acts. The WCI Parties believe they have operated in a fine fashion without a
double-check on themselves, in the past. They feel the addition of appropriate crosschecks by the
Management Company on the management team to ensure proper behavior is unneeded and
counterproductive. Instead, the WCI Parties affirm that they will take responsibility and ensure
proper behavior and acts by the Owner / Managers. To substantively take responsibility for their
actions, the WCI Parties agree to defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Management
Company and Main Street because of any action taken by, or under the direction of, the Owner /
Managers under the Management Contract or for any events of the WCI Companies prior to the
Close.

Section 2.6 Term.  The Parties agree that the benefits of the Owners” Fund
program in general, and the Agreement in particular, are long-term. To fully realize the mutual
benefit of the Agreement, the Management Contract is exclusive and non-cancelable. The
Management Contract may be terminated only by: i) mutual written consent of the Parties, or ii)
exercise of the long-term Option To Purchase the Operating Company as defined and detailed in
Article V.

Section 2.7 Management Fees. In consideration for performance of the duties
outlined in Section 2.3, the Operating Company will pay the Management Company the various
“Management Fees” defined in the following subsections, in the amounts and according to the
terms indicated. In general, up to $10,000 will go through the Management Company to Owners
each month on a non-cumulative, month-by-month basis. $1,500 will go to Main Street and any
overage will be split 50% - 50%. The $1,500 monthly payment is mandatory. Paying the
$10,000 Recurring Management Fee and any extra Incentive Management Fee for Owners is at
the discretion of the Owner / Managers. However, if any Incentive Management Fee is paid, or
imputed because of Direct Payments already paid to Owners under 2.7.4.3, then the matching
Stock Repurchase Allocation, that, if after Management Company purchase, would go to Main
Street, is also a mandatory payment.

2.7.1 Owner / Managers Salary & Benefits Coverage. At the Close' and
each month on the 10", the Operating Company may remit, on a non-cumulative, use it or lose it,
month-by-month basis, a “Recurring Management Fee” of up to $10,000 to the Management
Company.

2.7.1.1 Recurring Fee Elimination Upon Death, etc.  The
Recurring Management Fee is specific to the designated Owner / Managers and will be
eliminated if they are unavailable to provide full-time management services. If there are
more than one Owner / Managers, then the Recurring Management Fee allocable to only
one Owner / Manager (as detailed in Attachment 3.5) may be eliminated. The specific

! The Recurring Management Fee due at the Close is a mandatory payment.
Long — Term Liquidity & Funding Agreement
8 for WCI



events that trigger an elimination of an individual Owner / Manager’s associated
Recurring Management Fee are his i) death, ii) disability, iii) cumulative fraud or
conversion against the WCI Companies in excess of $10,000 , iv) working hours
devoted to management of the WCI Companies averaging less than 20 hours per week
for any consecutive 12 week period, (v) working hours are spent for any amount of time
working on any other business interest that the Owner / Manager has an equity interest in,
or vi) working hours are spent working for any other entity from which any compensation
is received by the Owner / Manager, or vii) written consent.

2.7.2 Public Company Administration and Accounting Coverage.
At the Close, and, in addition, each month on the 10™ the Operating Company will remit an
“Accounting Fee” of $1,500 to the Management Company. The $1,500 Accounting Fee is fixed
and does not change even if the Recurring Management Fee is later reduced according to the
provisions of 2.7.1.1.

2.7.3  Owner / Managers Controlled Bonus & Matching Coverage.
Each month, at the option of the Owner / Managers, the Operating Company may remit an
optional “Incentive Management Fee” and matching “Stock Repurchase Allocation”, in any
matching amounts they so designate, to the Management Company. Notwithstanding the general
freedom of financial action, the Owner / Managers may not make expenditures or take action of
any kind that would cause the Operating Company to be in violation of debt covenants, or to be
categorized, or be forecast to be categorized, as insolvent under the Uniform Commercial Code
or applicable law, or under other insolvency guidelines for the Operating Company that Main
Street may from time to time specify. In determining if the insolvency threshold has been
crossed, the effect of expected concurrent Stock Repurchase Allocation shall be included in any
calculation.
273.1 General Use of Bonus & Matching Funds. In
general, the Incentive Management Fee is used to pay benefits, salary and bonus for the
Owner / Managers in the current month or future months. Similarly, the Stock
Repurchase Allocation is earmarked to repurchase Main Street stock in the current month
or future months. The later may only happen, when, if and after, Main Street completes
the purchase of the Management Company. However, if so completed, the repurchase of
Main Street shares may be of restricted shares under the restricted share repurchase
program, or public shares out of the market. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the
Management Company reserves the right, in its sole judgment, to apply its funds for any
legal business purpose.

2.7.32 Loans by Owner / Managers. To best control cash
flow. or for other reasons, the Owner / Managers are allowed to pay all of a Stock
Repurchase Allocation in cash, yet, to then pay, but immediately loan back, the Incentive
Management Fee (or some portion) in a new loan owed to designated Owners from the
Operating Company. Other new loans from Owners will be assumed to indicate the
Recurring Management Fee previously taken was too large. Repayment of such loans
will be considered an Incentive Management Fee payment under 2.7.3, or upon sale or
similar event, will increase Today’s Liabilities under Section 5.12, unless specifically
excepted by Main Street’s in its sole judgment. Generally, Main Street will not except
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loans made to bolster operating cash flows, but may except loans made for expansion,
especially if funds are from proceeds of stock repurchase or from outside sources. After
the Close, if any loan is made by any of the Parties to any of the WCI Companies, the
loan will be unsecured, 7.8% accruing interest, calculated and accrued monthly. Accrued
interest and principal are paid on sale of the Operating Company according to the various
methods described under Section 5.11.

2.7.4 Direct Payments and Fees. In as much as is possible, all
payments that directly, indirectly or even peripherally benefit the Owners will be channeled
through the Management Company. This may not always be possible. For example, interest
earned but not paid, dividends from the Operating Company, salary for an individual Owners’
family member, odd payments not appropriate for a public company, or emergency payments
may all, at some time or the other, need to be paid directly from the Operating Company. All
such payments made from the Operating Company for some benefit to any of the Owners are
defined as “Direct Payments”. Direct Payments will be included in the Management Fee
calculations as follows:

2.7.4.1 Payments All Inclusive. It is the intent of the Parties
that any accrual or payment (without double counting) made to any Owner be included
in the calculation of Management Fees. If somewhat outside of the norm, these will often
be Direct Payments. They include, for example, Owners’ new loans, payback of principal
or interest on pre-existing loans, real estate leases, royalties, retirement, medical
reimbursements, wife’s salary, loan for son’s college, expense reimbursement, car
allowance, gas allowance, per diem, vacation or sick leave accrual, credit card rebates on
company purchases, severance payment or accrual, company credit card use, life
insurance and dental premiums. In general, anything is allowed, but all things must be
counted, when they become the first of, an obligation of, or a payment by, the WCI
Companies.

2742  In Advance as Recurring Management Fee. When

Direct Payments are disclosed by the WCI Parties to the Management Company in the
course of the normal and timely monthly reporting for the month incurred, then they may
be included and count towards the Recurring Management Fee calculation under 2.7.1.
In order to be so included, the Direct Payments must be accepted by the Management
Company. Also, the total for the subject month’s Recurring Management Fee may not
exceed $10,000 per month on a non-cumulative, use it or lose it, month-by-month basis.

2743 After the Fact as Incentive Management Fee. When
Direct Payments do not qualify for inclusion under the Recurring Management Fee
calculation in 2.7.4.2, then they will be added to, and treated as, an additional payment to
Owners’ and be included in the Incentive Management Fee calculation under 2.7.3.

> If the Management Company incurs or pays for expenses directly, that it deems are because of or for the benefit of
the Operating Company (e.g. response to lawsuit, forensic CPA cost or in an emergency), then those expenses will
be calculated into the Management Fee formula as if an equal payment was made directly to Owners. These
expenses will be referred to as “OpCo Expenditures™ and their Management Fee treatment will indirectly result in an
equal and offsetting payment back to the Management Company covering or reimbursing the expense.
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2.7.5 Timing & Late Fees. Mandatory payments are due on the 10"
day of the month following the subject month during which the payment to the Owners occurred,
and late 10 days later, at the 20" day. Late payments bear a penalty of 10% of the amount due
and start to incur additional interest of 1% per month on the outstanding balance commencing
after the 30" day. Non-mandatory payments are due on the 10™ day following the subject
month and bear no penalty, if late. However, non-mandatory payments received after the 30"
day from the close of a subject month will be counted as a payment toward a later month just

preceding the receipt of payment.

Section 2.8  Reporting and Verification. ~ The payment splitting nature of the
Agreement presents such an inherent conflict of interest for the Owner / Managers that any
ongoing operation under the Agreement would not be acceptable to auditors, financial
professionals and public shareholders without regular verification. Additionally, it is believed,
the payments to Owners will be accelerated if some limited financial or newsworthy information
on the various or collective Operating Companies is reported to the public market. To facilitate
these twin goals, any of the WCI Parties will provide any specific financial information in a
timely way when requested by the Management Company. Additionally, the Owner / Managers
will keep the Management Company apprised of any Material financial, operating, managerial or
legal event or circumstance of the Operating Company3 . On an on-going basis, the Owner /
Managers will provide the Management Company with the following categories of information
in the manner specified. All information will only be used by the Management Company to
promote the goals stated here and otherwise will be kept confidentially, unless consented to by
the Owner / Managers.

2.8.1 Confidentiality and Limited Scope. If involved because of
purchase of the Management Company, Main Street’s purpose for receiving information is only
to protect and promote its narrow interests. Main Street may review in a cursory fashion, or
may not even review, some reports if it feels its interests are not then at risk. Receipt, or even
review, of reports from the Operating Company does not indicate Main Street acceptance or
approval of any action, activity or circumstance represented. This is all to say that, Main Street
is not responsible nor interested at all in control, but just in seeing to it that its interests are
always being treated fairly.

2.8.2 Financial Statements. When financial statements for the
Operating Company are prepared for the Owner / Managers, then a copy will be included in a
“Monthly Accounting Package” that transmits the monthly Management Fee check(s) and other
financial information by the 10" of the month. The intent is that no new financial information be
generated, but rather, that only an extra copy of already existing reports be forwarded.

2.8.3 Tax Returns. When federal or state tax returns are sent in for the
Operating Company, an extra copy will be included in the next Monthly Accounting Package.

3 The Operating Company will inform the Management Company in advance before consummating agreements or
taking action that will commit the Operating Company to Material assets sales, long-term compensation or related
party transactions.
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2.8.4 Board Information. The Management Company will have
observer status on the Operating Company board of director meetings. This means that, if the
Management Company so desires, they may observe, telephonically or in person, any meeting of
the Operating Company board of directors or its committees. All notices that go to any
Operating Company director will be sent directly to a designated the Management Company
representative, if time requires, or will be included in the Monthly Accounting Package, if not
time-sensitive. A copy of all minutes, resolutions, management discussion and other
information, that is supplied to directors or included in the corporate minutes book, will be
forwarded in the Monthly Accounting Package to the Management Company.

2.8.5 Shareholder Information. The Management Company will have
observer status on the Operating Company shareholder meetings. This means that if the
Management Company so desires, they may observe telephonically or in person to any meeting
of shareholders of the Operating Company. All notices that go to any Operating Company
shareholder will be sent directly to a designated Management Company representative, if time
requires, or be included in the Monthly Accounting Package, if not time-sensitive. A copy of all
minutes, resolutions, management discussion and other information, that is supplied to
shareholders or included in the corporate minutes book, will be forwarded in the Monthly
Accounting Package to the Management Company.

2.8.6  Original Bank Statements and Checks. Each month, after the
Operating Company accountants have reviewed the bank statements, they will forward original
bank or other financial institution statements and cancelled checks to the Management Company
in the Monthly Accounting Package. This will usually mean a two-month delay (e.g. May
checks forwarded in July, or October checks forwarded in December). The Management
Company will return the originals on a monthly basis. If there is more than one bank account,
then original statements for each account must be provided.

2.8.7 List of Direct Payments. As discussed in 2.7.4, on occasion,
some Direct Payments will unavoidably have to be made to Owners. Each month, in the Monthly
Accounting Package, there will be a straightforward listing of Direct Payments to any of the
Owners. Such list will include, for each payment or accrual: i) name, ii) date, iii) amount, iv)
check number or journal voucher number, v) description or purpose, and vi) additional
explanatory comments, if needed. Because of the inherent conflict of interest, cash impact and
easy appearance of impropriety, all persons involved should be briefed to be very precise in the
reporting of these amounts. The allocation rules from 2.7.4 will be very strictly adhered to. This
list of direct payments is the main disclosure device for such Direct Payments.

2.8.9  Explanation of Payment. If not paid by separate check, the
Monthly Accounting Package should also contain, on the Management Fee check, or separately,
a description of the breakdown and allocation of amounts paid. The ongoing balance of funds
from the collection of Management Fee payments less disbursements is known as the
“Management Fee Pool”.

2.8.9 Site Visits. The Management Company will have the right to
inspect the books and records of the Operating Company, and make copies of same, at any time.
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Even for well-run companies, with owners of sterling character, these visits will occasionally and
randomly be made. The Management Company views such visits as not only investagatory and
prophylactic, but also as a way to promote and provide a real sense of confidence in the investing
public that ultimately provides the source of funding for all owners. When asked, “How do you
know owners aren’t taking money out the back door?” the Management Company can answer
that, not only do we deal with owners of good character, we also randomly visit sites and inspect
their books. The key task of the site visit is to verify that payments to Owners are as stated. The
confidentiality and limitation of scope to Main Street and Management Company interests,
defined in 2.8.1, apply. The visits will be done on a no-notice or short-notice basis. A
Management Company representative will show up at the door of the Operating Company to see
the books in a bank examiner-like fashion. It is in the Management Company’s best interest to
keep such visits as non-disruptive as is possible. The Operating Company will supply a
reasonable workspace and access to records and computer systems. The representative will also
have access to Operating Company employees, if requested. Reasonable support for the visit
will be supplied by the Owner / Managers.

ARTICLE LI
PROFESSIONAL EMPLOYMENT CONTRACT

Section 3.1 Employment Contract Reference. ~ To improve the conceptual
understanding of this article of the Agreement, the provisions under Article 111 may be referred to
together herein as the “Employment Contract™.

Section 3.2  Participants. This Employment Contract is entered into between the
Management Company and the following individuals, who collectively are the initial Owner /
Managers:

Kyle D. Thomas

Although the Employment Contract herein may now or later cover more than one individual, the
provisions continue to apply to the remaining individuals should one or more of the Owner /
Managers retire earlier than another, die or become disabled, or for any reason withdraw or be
terminated from the Employment Contract while other Owner / Managers remain employed.

Section 3.3 Duties. The Owner / Managers have the responsibility to perform the
duties of general manager of the Operating Company. This means the Owner / Managers have
responsibility for the day-to-day management of the Operating Company, its sales, marketing,
operations and accounting. In addition to having primary responsibility for performance in these
tactical management areas, the Owner / Managers will provide consulting to the Operating
Company with regard to the more strategic issues of corporate finance, legal, strategy, vision and
culture. Within this broad scope, the Owner / Managers will follow the direction of the officers
and directors of the Operating Company who maintain overriding control of the Operating
Company.

Section 3.4 Limitation to Duties. Any item that is or should properly be brought
before the board of directors of the Operating Company is beyond the scope of responsibility
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granted by and required under the Employment Contract. The Employment Contract covers
non-officer-like actions. The overall and executive direction of the Operating Company,
including corporate finance, legal, strategy, vision and culture, will continue to vest with, and be
controlled by, the OpCo Owners through the directors and officers they select.

Section 3.5 Compensation. In consideration for the performance of the duties
outlined in Section 3.3, the Owner / Managers will receive compensation from the Management
Company as detailed in Attachment 3.5. The compensation is incentive driven. It is limited and
controlled in magnitude by the OpCo Owners as, through the officers and directors they select,
they direct additional non-mandatory payments into the Management Fee Pool. The Management
Fee Pool is the net balance of Management Fee deposits less reserves and disbursements as
calculated by the Management Company in their best business judgment. The monthly Recurring
Management Fee paid into the Management Fee Pool by the Operating Company is targeted at
$10,000 per month. Additional Incentive Management Fee payments of any amount, in
compliance with matching formulas, may also be paid into the Management Fee Pool each
month from the Operating Company.

3.5.1 100% of Management Fee Pool May Be Paid Out. It is
expected that, over time, 100% of all monies in the Management Fee Pool will be paid out.
Unless otherwise provided for herein, the balance the funds in the Management Fee Pool prior to
the 1% day of a subject month are available for payout in recurring paychecks on the 6™ and 21"
of that subject month’. The initial twice per month payment for each of the Owner / Managers is
detailed at Attachment 3.5. Alternatively, the funds are available for benefits or other
compensation selected on a similar schedule. Instead of paying out all funds immediately, funds
paid in earlier may be held and paid out gradually over the months as long as such payments
remain consistent with applicable law. All costs of every type that are associated with the
compensation for the Owner / Managers will be charged off or allocated against funds in the
Management Fee Pool.

3.5.2 Flexible Benefit Selection. Over time, it is expected that there
will be an expanding menu of benefits available for selection by the Owner / Managers. To the
limit of funds left and available in the Management Fee Pool, Owner / Managers may add
benefits in a cafeteria plan fashion, as they are available. The initial benefits to be paid through
the Management Company to the Owner / Managers are detailed at Attachment 3.5.

3.5.3 Split Amongst Individual Owner / Managers. If there are two
or more Owner / Managers, the Management Fee Pool will be administered as if each individual
Owner / Manager had a separate management fee pool. The allocation of funds between these
sub-accounts will be initially set by the Owners and is detailed at Attachment 3.5. Subsequent

* Funds in the Management Fee Pool may, at the Management Company’s sole discretion, be applied, if due, first,
and then in order to, penalties, interest, Accounting Fees, Stock Repurchase Allocations, and Owner / Manager
compensation under the Employment Contract.
5 In the Management Company’s sole judgment, reserves may be set and compensation may be adjusted to ensure
that compensation is in compliance with prevailing labor laws, such as minimum wage, workman’s compensation
and others, as may from time-to-time apply.
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changes between individuals are generally not allowed. Subsequent changes between sub-
accounts require the consent of the Management Company.

3.5.4 Consulting or Extended Benefits. If, at the end of the
Employment Contract for one or all Owner / Managers, additional funds remain in their
Management Fee Pool, then those funds, at the Owner / Manager’s option, may be paid out in
one final payment, in consulting fees over time (if agreed to by the Management Company), or
paid out in the form of extended benefits. In addition to any other non-compete provisions
provided for elsewhere in this Agreement, the Owner / Managers agree not to compete with the
business of the Operating Company during the period of time when they are receiving extended
benefits or extended consulting fees.

Section 3.6 Term. The Employment Contract is a long-term agreement and is
non-cancelable except by written consent of the Owner / Managers and the Management
Company, upon termination of the Management Contract, or upon Exercise of the Option to
Purchase under Article V.

ARTICLE IV
EXCHANGE OF SHARES

Section 4.1 The Exchange.  The MCo Owners wish to sell and Main Street wishes
to purchase 100% interest in the Management Company. To accomplish this objective, the
Parties agree to the “Exchange” outlined here, which is structured to qualify as a tax-free
exchange under Section 368 of the Internal Revenue Code. The MCo Owners agree to transfer
to Main Street, at the Close, as defined in Section 4.12, the Management Company Shares which
represent one hundred percent (100%) of the shares of common stock, no par value, of the
Management Company, consisting of the number of shares shown opposite their names, or
derived by percentage calculation, on or from Attachment 1.2.1. Main Street will issue “Main
Street Purchase Shares” equal to that number of shares of voting capital stock, no par value per
share, of Main Street having a total pro forma or target value of $3,200,000 , which is defined as
the “Purchase Price”. The total number of Main Street Purchase Shares to be issued shall be
determined by dividing the Purchase Price by the Applicable Value Per Share Of Main Street
Capital Stock. The “Applicable Value Per Share Of Main Street Capital Stock” shall be $8.00
per share. However, no fractional Main Street Purchase Shares shall be issued pursuant to the
Exchange and, in lieu thereof, the fractional Main Street Purchase Share to be issued will be
rounded up to the next whole share. In accordance with Section 4.2, the number of Main Street
Purchase Shares so calculated is 400,000 shares.

4.1.1 Exchange of Certificates. At the Close, subject to the transfer
and performance requirements later set forth in this article, (i) Main Street shall deliver or direct
the transfer agent to cause to be delivered to each of the MCo Owners a certificate or certificates
representing the number of whole Main Street Purchase Shares for which the Management
Company Shares owned by each of the MCo Owners shall have been exchanged and (ii)
concurrently therewith, the MCo Owners shall deliver or cause to be delivered to Main Street
certificates evidencing the ownership of the Management Company Shares, in each case
accompanied by one or more stock powers duly executed in blank or duly executed instruments

Long — Term Liquidity & Funding Agreement
- for WCI
5



the then current actual Main Street combined state and federal tax rate, the then current
actual Operating Company combined state and federal tax rate, or 35%.

43.13  Net Present Value Discount Factor. The Exchange
allows for the Owners to meet the Earnings Target in a future rolling four fiscal quarter
time period. In the market in general, stocks may often grow at an average 12% per year
rate and that percentage is used under the Exchange as a general NPV discount rate. If the
initial Earnings Evaluation Period is the normal case of the rolling year starting at the
beginning of the very next calendar quarter from the Close and running over the next four
quarters, then, that associated Net Present Value Factor is 100%, which has no effect.
The “Net Present Value or NPV Factor” for the quarter-by-quarter rolling four fiscal
quarter Earning Evaluation Periods past then, increases at 3% for each fiscal quarter
extension, compounded. This means that if the rolling fiscal period being considered to
see if the Earnings Target Is Met is pushed out by three months, then the NPV Factor
applied to that annual period would be 103%. In other words, if the Earnings Target were
100, then, over the four fiscal quarters that commence just after three (3) months from
signing, the earnings would need to be 103 to qualify so that the Earnings Target Is Met.
The NPV Factor for the next annual Earnings Evaluation Period, starting three months
later, would be 106.09%.

4.3.2 Definition of Achievement. Certain financial events are
proportional, dependant or triggered upon the Owners meeting increasing percentages of, or all
of. the declared Earnings Target. The “Earnings Target Is Met”, or, in accordance with and by
Main Street proportional calculation along similar lines, a certain Main Street declared
percentage of the Earnings Target Is Met, if:

(i) the Adjusted After-Tax Earnings during the initial Earnings Evaluation
Period, as defined in 4.3.3 are greater than the Earnings Target, or

(i) after the end of any quarter subsequent to the initial Earnings
Evaluation Period, the Owners present financial reports or other evidence to Main Street
indicating that the Adjusted After-Tax Earnings have exceeded the annual Earnings Target
during four preceding contiguous calendar quarters after adjusting for a Net Present Value Factor
as provided for in 4.3.1.3. Based on the request and evidence provided, if Main Street judges
that the Adjusted After-Tax Earnings exceed the Earnings Target, or some percentage thereof, as
adjusted for NPV, then Main Street may declare that the Earnings Target Is Met, or
proportionally, that some percentage has been met. Such declaration shall not be unreasonably
withheld, or

(iii) at any time, the Owners present financial reports or other evidence to
Main Street that overwhelmingly support the fact that the Adjusted After-Tax Earnings, in the
then current annual period, will, with great certainty, go on to exceed the Earnings Target, or
some percentage thereof, as adjusted for NPV, and based on the request and evidence provided,
if Main Street judges that the Adjusted After-Tax Earnings are in the process of exceeding the
Earnings Target, or some percentage thereof, as adjusted, then Main Street, in its sole judgment,
may declare that the Earnings Target Is Met, or, proportionally some percentage has been met’.
Such declaration by Main Street may be withheld for any reason related or unrelated to this
Section, at Main Street’s discretion.

9 If the Owners schedule $51,667 in Stock Repurchase Allocations, $310,000 in stock could be transferable.
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4.3.3 Earnings Evaluation Period.  To comply with accounting, tax
and securities reporting requirements the Management Company fiscal year will be aligned with
that of Main Street, which is on the typical calendar year equaling fiscal year schedule.
Adjusted After-Tax Earnings will be continually compared to the Earnings Target during
successive Earnings Evaluation Periods. Each “Earnings Evaluation Period” is the quarter-by-
quarter year of four contiguous calendar quarters being examined to determine if the Earnings
Target Is Met. Unless specified otherwise here, the initial “Earnings Evaluation Period” is
defined as the first quarter-by-quarter rolling fiscal year following the Close. The initial Earnings
Evaluation Period for the Management Company is specified as April 1, 2006 to March 31,
2007.

Section 4.4  Current Main Street Repurchase Program. The Main Street board of
directors has determined that it is in the best interests of its shareholders to have in place an
aggressive stock repurchase program.  This is consistent with Main Street’s core corporate
purpose of providing liquidity for otherwise private business owners through the public markets.
As stockholders, after the Close, the Owners will enjoy the rights of any other shareholder with
regard to the repurchase of their restricted Main Street Purchase Shares by Main Street and the
potential benefits of reselling shares on the open market when an aggressive stock repurchase
plan is in place. Notwithstanding discussion elsewhere in this section, the stock repurchase plan
is subject to the overriding constraint that overall corporate overhead, taxes and other needs and
financial health must be maintained. Main Street explicitly reserves the right to expend funds for
any legal purpose in its sole judgment. But, in as much as is possible, the repurchase program
and attendant liquidity are a core focus of the business. The current stock repurchase program is
two-fold:

4.4.1 100% of Matching Funds Used to Buy-Back Public Stock.
100% of the net funds that come in from Operating Companies in the form of matching Stock
Repurchase Allocations are used to buy-back Main Street stock out of the public market. All
other things being equal, this should cause a rise in the Main Street stock price. In its sole
business judgment, Main Street may redirect these market repurchases toward the repurchase of
restricted shares, if, for example, the market price exceeds the restricted share repurchase price.

4.4.2 100% of Warrant Funds Used to Buy-Back Owners’ Stock.
The Main Street capital structure, including $1, $3, $5 & $7 warrants that would generate
approximately $130,000,000 to $170,000,000 on exercise, is detailed at Attachment 4.4.2. If the
Main Street share price rises above those Main Street warrant exercise price points, that rise will
make it in the economic best interests of the warrant holders to exercise those warrants at a
profit. Also, the warrants each become callable at $1.00 per share above their strike price. If the
current warrant holders do not then exercise their warrants, those warrants may be called away
by Main Street and assigned to other parties for immediate exercise. In this fashion, it is
expected that, if the stock price so rises, then funds from the exercise of warrants will be
generated. 100% of the net funds that come in through the exercise of warrants will be
earmarked to repurchase restricted shares of Main Street that are presented from Holders and
transferable. “Holders” include the MCo Owners who hold Main Street Purchase Shares, the
similar owners from other companies that are likewise participating in the Owners’ Fund, and
other holders of restricted shares. Transferable restricted shares will be targeted for repurchase
from the Holders of those restricted shares at a rate of $8 per share.
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4.4.3 Performance Earned Percentage is Qualified for Buy-Back. In
order to qualify for the current and separate Main Street restricted stock repurchase program, a
Holder’s stock need only be restricted and transferable. All Main Street Purchase Shares will be
restricted. Once the Earnings Target Is Met, all Main Street Purchase Shares will be transferable.
Until the Earnings Target Is Met, a common percentage for each MCo Owner’s restricted shares,
referred to as the Performance Earned Percentage, is transferable and qualified for buy-back
under the restricted share repurchase program.  The “Performance Earned Percentage™ is
determined by a formula that is proportional to the Earnings Target with a 10% Reserve phased
in over the first 20% and released at 100%. The 10% Reserve is to encourage Owners to make
accurate projections for their Earnings Target which otherwise would be best to project at infinite
profitability. The Performance Earned Percentage is proportional and piecewise smooth, rather
than stepped, but in tabular form the percentage of a MCo Owner’s restricted shares that will be
transferable compared to the percentage of the Earnings Target that is thus far met, is as follows:

Percent of Earnings Target Reached: 0%  10% 20% 30% 40%...90% 99% 100%
Performance Earned Percentage: 0% 5% 10% 20% 30%...80% 89% 100%

4.43.1 Transfer Restrictions Apply to Public Market Sales. In
the same manner that restricted share repurchases are limited to the Performance Earned
Percentage, so to are sales of Main Street Purchase Shares in the public markets limited.
Thus, if the Main Street share price on the public market were $12 per share, the Holder
would clearly be better off selling through a stockbroker at $12, than in selling back to
Main Street at $8.  After the typical Section 144 stock restrictions expire, usually after
twelve months from issuance, this public market sale is generally allowed and
encouraged. However, the total percentage of an MCo Owner’s Main Street Purchase
Shares that are transferable, so that they may be sold publicly, is still limited to the
Percentage Earned Percentage.

4.432 Transfer Restrictions are Comprehensive. Before and
until the Earnings Target Is Met the Main Street Purchase Shares may not be transferred
or encumbered without the prior written consent of Main Street. The Main Street
Purchase Shares may not be put into street name without the prior written consent of
Main Street. The transfer restriction is in Main Street’s absolute discretion and release of
this restriction will not generally be granted except as provided under 4.4.3, upon death,
divorce settlement or for other intra-family adjustments. The legend on the share
certificate will be extremely restrictive and, among other restrictions, indicate that the
particular share certificates are subject to unilateral cancellation by Main Street if certain
performance requirements are not met. If any cashless assignments are ever given for
such events as the settlement of an estate or as directed by Court order, then the new
assignee will be bound by the same restrictive covenants on transfer as the Owners. In
effect, the assignee will become a substitute MCo Owner with regard to the Main Street
Purchase Shares held.
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4433 Release of 10% Reserve.  The 10% limitation on
transfer that is phased in over the first 20% of the Performance Earned Percentage is
referred to as the “Reserve”. The Reserve is automatically released and the remaining
10% of Main Street Purchase Shares are transferable when the Earnings Target Is Met.
One-half of the Reserve (e.g. 5%)'° may be released from transfer restriction by Main
Street when or upon:

i) the Exercise of the Option to Purchase,

ii) the Adjusted After-Tax Earnings are less than any previous peak earnings for
the next three consecutive years,

iii) the Owner / Managers inform Main Street in writing that the Adjusted After-
Tax Earnings are not growing and the MCo Owners wish to collectively
exercise a release of the Reserve under 4.4.3.3 i, or

iv) an individual MCo Owner informs Main Street in writing that they believe
the Adjusted After-Tax Earnings are not growing and that the individual
MCo Owner wishes to individually exercise a release of their Reserve under
4433 iv.

In order to effect the release of 50% of the Reserve, the Untransferable Shares must be
surrendered to Main Street and cancelled. The “Untransferable Shares” are that
percentage of Main Street Purchase Shares in excess of the Performance Earned
Percentage plus one-half of the Reserve. Once the first of any of the events i — iv
occurs, the applicable Performance Earned Percentage, for the individual or collectively,
will be frozen. In consideration for the availability of early release of one-half of the
Reserve, even if the percentage of the Earnings Target earned later increases, the
Performance Earned Percentage will not be increased and the Untransferable Shares may
not later be made transferable nor be presented for repurchase nor otherwise sold. If the
Untransferable Shares are not surrendered after a reasonable time, or if Main Street is
unable to contact a particular MCo Owner subject to the surrender, then Main Street is
authorized to cancel out the Untransferable Shares on its books and records and direct the
transfer agent to record the cancellation on the stock transfer records, also.

4.4.4 Repurchase at $8 per Share at Owner’s Choice.  If the Main
Street shares are trading above $8 per share, the Holders are not required to sell their Main Street
Purchase Shares through the restricted share repurchase program. That program is completely
voluntary.  In fact, no Holder is ever required to sell any shares; they may observe and do
nothing. For example, if any Holder wishes to wait until capital gains treatment applies before
selling, if it would be tax advantageous to defer, or if for any reason a Holder wishes to defer
sale at $8 per share at any time, then he need merely not present his shares for pro rata
repurchase for any particular calendar month.  To participate in the restricted share repurchase
program, any Holder should send his restricted shares to Main Street with a written request, in

1 Usually, the Reserve will be already 10% of the total when a release event occurs. In theory, the Reserve could be

less that 10% if less than 20% of the Earnings Target Is Met. In that case, on release, one-half of the lesser

percentage held back from transfer would then become transferable. For example, if 16% of the Earnings Target Is

Met, then the Reserve would be 8% , and, on release, an additional 4% of the Main Street Purchase Shares would
then be transferable.
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forms provided by Main Street or separately, to include some specified number or all of those
shares in the repurchase program on a one-time or repeated basis. If participation on a repeated
basis is indicated, then any residual shares will be automatically included in the next month’s
repurchase program until Main Street is notified in writing otherwise. Transfer agent and other
third party fees will be paid by the Holder. To minimize fees and expenses, repurchases will
done on a ledger basis and a new residual stock certificate will not be repeatedly reissued to the
Holder unless specifically requested.

4.4.5 Monthly Pro Rata Repurchases. Restricted transferable shares
presented for purchase by the beginning of any calendar month by an individual Holder will be
repurchased on a pro rata basis to the total amount of restricted transferable shares similarly
presented by all Holders.  Restricted share repurchases will be calculated on a monthly basis
and are targeted to be made by the fifteenth of the following month, or as soon as is reasonably
practical after the receipt of funds for that purpose. However, in this area, Main Street may
exercise its sole judgment in efficiently and effectively administering the repurchases process.
This includes actions such as the grouping of months or the accumulation of funds earmarked for
repurchase and the accelerated payoff of small residual Holders.

4.4.6 Provision for Limited Buyout of Only Some Owners. By
separate agreement amongst themselves, groups of individual MCo Owners associated with one
business are allowed under the Exchange and may choose to weight, accelerate or otherwise
more quickly repurchase and retire the Main Street Purchase Shares for only one or a small
number of their particular multi-person ownership group (e.g. Between parent and children the
parent may be paid off first, or between retiring and active partner the retiring partner may be
paid off first). To focus the repurchase amounts on the restricted shares of one individual
Holder, the Main Street Purchase Shares of the consolidating group should be presented together.
Accompanying the shares should be a statement, executed by all participating Holders, indicating
that all repurchases for the group are to be allocated first to some limited number of individual
Holders in the group for all of those MCo Owners’ restricted shares, or up to some maximum
repurchase amount. If the allocating Holders in the combined group want their individual
monthly repurchases to be reapplied to their own account and restart after the single or limited
number of individuals have had their shares repurchased, then that should also be indicated.
Owners should note that by taking this approach, the Performance Earned Percentage is
recalculated as if the group were one individual Holder.  As a result, the residual or non-
accelerated Holders bear increased risk of not having their shares repurchased before the
Earnings Target Is Met or even never having their shares repurchased because of a reason that
otherwise would only partially restrict funding or limit their individual repurchase.
Participation under the provisions of 4.3.3 requires the consent of Main Street which may be
unreasonably withheld in its sole discretion.

Section 4.5  Current Repurchase Program Subject to Modification by Board.
The current Main Street share and restricted share repurchase program described in Section 4.4
may be modified in total by action of the board of directors of Main Street. Any modification
would not be selectively applied to this Agreement nor to any particular agreement, as the
repurchase program is a voluntary action of Main Street, directed by the board, and available to
all shareholders and Holders when applicable. Main Street believes that continuing to operate

Long — Term Liquidity & Funding Agreement
21 for WCI



the voluntary share repurchase and restricted stock repurchase program is strongly in the best
interests of its shareholders. Nonetheless, Main Street reserves the right to adjust, significantly
modify in every way, or even terminate the entire share repurchase or restricted stock repurchase
program, in Main Street’s sole discretion.

Section 4.6 IRA Coordination Available.  Generally, all shares issued in a tax-free
exchange must be treated equally, and shares deposited to an IRA must be non-cancelable. In
the Exchange, all shares are issued in a tax-free exchange, then, if the Earnings Target is not met,
a portion may be cancelled. Outside of a tax-deferred vehicle, issuing shares in steps would
often generate a series of taxable events. This is not an issue within an IRA or other tax deferred
accounts. To ensure equal treatment, if an Owner so elects, shares may be held in escrow until
the individual Owner directs that certain issues with regard to IRA treatment for certain shares
have been cleared with the IRA custodian. In the meantime, repurchases will continue in the
normal fashion and cash or share deposits into an IRA will continue as quickly as is possible
until all custodian issues are cleared. This coordinating approach will exactly follow the
Performance Earned Percentage from 4.4.3, and other aspects of the Exchange.

MCo Owners should note that they must consult with their own tax advisor with regard to the
IRA coordination under Section 4.6. The tax law and tax-deferred accounts are complex and
individual. For an individual MCo Owner and his particular account, the description under
Section 4.6 may not apply at all. If the individual MCo Owner or Main Street determines that it
is advantageous to discontinue coordination under this provision, then they may do so. In that
case, the Main Street Purchase Shares will be construed, supplemented, issued or reissued in the
normal fashion. This may result in significant negative tax consequences for the affected Parties
who shall have no recourse against any of the other Parties.

Section 4.7 Existing Loans to Owners.  The Parties agree that as of the Close there
are no prior existing outstanding loans, accruals, liabilities, contingent liabilities or other monies
due to Owners or related parties from the WCI Companies except those specifically delineated
in Attachment 4.7 and specifically accepted by Main Street. Unless specifically excepted in
writing by Main Street, any liabilities so accepted will automatically be converted, by act of the
Close of this Agreement, to a new loan that is unsecured, with 7.8% accruing interest, calculated
and accrued monthly. Accrued interest and principal are to be paid on sale of the Operating
Company according to the various methods described under Article V. All undisclosed Owner
liabilities that are later discovered are agreed between the Parties and the Operating Company to
have been previously exchanged for equity and were already appropriately reflected in the equity
of the Operating Company prior to the Close, and as such, are already reflected in the total and
individual equity interest delineated in Attachments 1.1.1 and 1.2.1.

Section 4.8  No Significant Changes to Balance Sheet. The intent under this
Agreement is for the theoretical “Combined Balance Sheet” of the WCI Companies, taken
together, to remain relatively unchanged as the transition from private company to participant in
a public group of companies through the Owners’ Fund is made. The “Recent Balance Sheet”
and initial position for Operating Company is the March 31, 2005, balance sheet provided by the
Owners with the Offer and that is found at Attachment 4.8(a). If it is ascertained just after the
Close that the Combined Balance Sheet has been significantly and Materially depleted since the
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Recent Balance Sheet, except as disclosed by Owners and accepted by Main Street on
Attachment 4.8(b), especially because of significant cash reductions prior to sale, or if
intentionally depleted in excess of $10,000 in any way, then that is defined as an additional cause
to trigger the Option To Purchase at a 25% discount under Section 5.9.

4.8.1 Recent Cash Payments to Owners. Except as disclosed by
Owners and accepted by Main Street in Attachment 4.8.1, since March 31, 2005, and through to
the Close, any enrichment of Owners or related parties in excess of $10,000, per month, on a
month-to-month basis, that later, under similar calculation, would have been classified as Direct
Payments, will be classified as a Direct Payment under 2.7.4.3. This excess will be calculated as
an additional Incentive Management Fee paid in a month of Main Street’s sole choosing
generating a matching Stock Repurchase Allocation in that chosen month.

4.8.2 Access to Records. The WCI Parties agree to permit Main
Street accountants, auditors and their representatives, to have access to, and to examine and
make copies of, all books and records of the WCI Companies that are related to verifying there
are no balance sheet depletions nor recent payments to Owners that are not accepted by Main
Street.

Section 4.9  Requirement for Universal Business Inclusion in Sale. At the typical
size of operation for the group of businesses contemplated by Main Street to be brought in as
part of the Owners’ Fund, it is believed that the full-time contribution of the Owner / Managers is
critical. Similarly, if not all business assets are included in a transaction, it is the opinion of Main
Street that soon the best opportunities, growth and reward seem to gravitate to the portion not
included, while leaving all the risk behind. In order to get the full benefit of the Owners’
contribution, all of the business related assets of the Owner / Managers must be and are
purchased. Great benefit is lost if a business joins the Owners’ Fund but an Owner continues to
own the associated real estate, or to sell one business but continue to run a related or even
unrelated business. The Owners certify that 100% of their business related assets, holdings,
interests and businesses are included as assets of the Operating Company, that the Management
Contract and Option to Purchase encompass all such businesses for the consideration given at the
Close, and are thus subject to the Agreement, except as listed in Attachment 4.9. The Owner /
Managers understand and affirm that future business ideas, opportunities and new ventures are
corporate opportunities, will be the property of the WCI Companies, and will not be converted
or taken for themselves individually.

Section 4.10 Further Assurances. At the Close and from time to time thereafter, the
Owners shall execute such additional instruments and take such other action as Main Street may
request in order more effectively to sell, transfer and assign the Management Company Shares to
Main Street and to confirm Main Street's title thereto; and Main Street shall execute such
additional instruments and take such other action as Owners may request in order more
effectively to sell, transfer and assign the Main Street Purchase Shares to MCo Owners and to
confirm MCo Owners’ title thereto. Upon mutual consent of the Owner / Managers and Main
Street, the Parties further agree to allow post-Close modification of the non-economic terms of
the Agreement if necessary to comply with securities, tax or audit requirements.
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Section 4.11 Securities Law Matters. The Main Street Purchase Shares have not been
registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or any applicable state securities laws,
but will be issued pursuant to Regulation D promulgated under the 1933 Act. Main Street’s
obligation to issue, and Main Street’s obligation to deliver, the Main Street Purchase Shares upon
consummation of the Exchange is contingent upon the receipt of assurances satisfactory to Main
Street that each of the MCo Owners is an "Accredited Investor" as such term is defined by the
rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission under the 1933 Act, or that Main Street will
otherwise be able to stay in compliance with all applicable securities laws. The Main Street
Purchase Shares will be subject to restrictions on transfer by virtue of applicable securities laws,
and certificates representing such shares shall bear an appropriate legend to the effect that such
shares are subject to such restrictions and the additional restrictions enumerated under 4.4.3. The
Owners shall provide certain representations to Main Street as to such matters under an
“Investment Agreement” in the form appended hereto at Attachment 4.11.

Section 4.12 Closing. The “Close” of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement
shall be held (i) at the principal offices of Thoits, Love, Hershberger & McLean, 245 Lytton
Avenue, Suite 300, Palo Alto, California, at 10 a.m., on the fifth (5th) business day after the last
to be fulfilled or waived of the conditions set forth in Section 6.3 shall be fulfilled or waived in
accordance with this Agreement, provided that such “Closing Date” shall not be later than April
30, 2006, or (ii) at such other place, time or date as agreed upon in writing by Main Street and
the Owners. The Parties agree that, if the transactions contemplated by this Agreement do not
Close on or before April 30, 2006, there will be no legally binding or enforceable contract
between the Parties pertaining to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, and neither
this Agreement, nor any related agreement, shall create any rights or obligations for or on the
part of any Party to this Agreement other than the return of the Deposit as detailed in Section
4.13 following.

Section 4.13 Offer and Refundable Deposits Paid.  Prior to the initiation of the
preparation of the drafting of this Agreement the WCI Parties submitted an “Offer”,
(Attachment 4.13) to Main Street and paid a $6,000 “Deposit” to Main Street to defray
administrative costs. This is a true deposit and will be refunded to the payer under one of the
three scenarios following.:"'

4.13.1 Refund if Agreement Consummated. After the Close, Main
Street will refund the Deposit to the payer from the first of the last $1,000,000 of the total
warrant funds expected to be received by Main Street upon exercise. Funds from this last
$1,000,000 will also be utilized to refund other similar deposits. In making these refunds,
monies will be refunded on a first paid, first refunded basis. As of April 30, 2005, the Deposit
for $6,000 would be the second deposit made out of five similar deposits accepted for $95,402 in
total, and expected to be finally refunded under this sub-section. The initial act of the paying the
refund will not be considered a Management Fee payment.

' The Deposit calculation generally equals $5.000 plus 1/ 10™ of 1% of the initial Purchase Price as calculated on
the Offer document. 1/10" of 1% is $1.000 for each $1 Million of the Purchase Price.
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4.13.2 Refund if Agreement Not Executed by Owners.  If the WCI
Parties fail to complete or execute the Agreement along the lines outlined in Offer, then the
Deposit will likewise be refunded in the manner outlined in 4.13.1.

4.13.3 Refund at (2x) if Agreement Not Executed by Main Street.

If Main Street fails or refuses to execute the Agreement (which is subject to Main Street board
approval) along the lines of the Offer then the Deposit must be remitted to the payer promptly
from one-half of the net proceeds of the first warrants to be exercised after the failure to execute
an Agreement by Main Street is communicated to the WCI Parties. This refund will be paid net
30 days from the receipt of funds, to the payer, on a first Owner to pay a deposit being the first
refunded basis, if applicable. As of April 30, 2005, Main Street has not, and does not
contemplate or foresee rejecting any of its current agreements. If the Agreement is complete in
every regard, otherwise executed, submitted to the Main Street board of directors and only then
rejected, in addition to a Deposit refund under this paragraph, an additional “Breakup Fee” equal
to the Deposit must be paid to WCI The Break-up Fee and Deposit will be paid as if the Deposit
were twice as large as was actually paid.

ARTICLE V
OPTION TO PURCHASE

Section 5.1  Purchase Option Reference. To improve the conceptual understanding
of this article of the Agreement, the provisions under Article V may be referred to together
herein as the Option To Purchase. The “Option To Purchase” is the option for the Management
Company to buy the Operating Company, at some time in the future, as described herein. Again
for ease of understanding, it is assumed in this article that the Exchange has already occurred and
that Main Street is the new owner of the Management Company rights under the Option To
Purchase. Thus, instead of referring to the rights of the Management Company, the Option to
Purchase will more clearly refer to the rights of Main Street (that it is receiving by buying the
Management Company).

Section 5.2  Idealized Scenario. The ideal and hoped for scenario for the Parties with
regard to the exercise of the Option To Purchase is that some many years in the future the Owner
/ Managers decide they are ready to transition away from the business. About a year in advance
they start discussions with Main Street in this regard. During the year, the Parties work-up and
agree as to what the projected Future Earnings are expected to be over the following eight years.
Based on those projections, the Parties apply a 7.8% discount rate and issue those eight years’
Future Earnings in advance to the OpCo Owners in a tax-free exchange for Main Street shares.
Main Street repurchases some of that stock through the stock buyback program that may be
active at that time, the OpCo Owners later sell some of the stock at a higher price on the public
market paying a low capital gains rate for taxes, and some of the stock the OpCo Owners choose
to hold and watch appreciate tax-free for many years.

The Option To Purchase attempts to provide a structure that allows for the possibility of
delivering on this ideal. Importantly, it also defines the agreed upon avenues that the Parties will
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follow in the probability that the situation will be changed in the future, that the Parties will not
agree on some major items, and that some major problems will arise. Notwithstanding the
idealized scenario above, the complete definitive description of the Option To Purchase follows
in the rest of this article.

Section 5.3 Standard Scenario is at ( 8) Years’ Future Earnings. In the baseline or
normal scenario, the overall process of exercising the Option To Purchase involves Notice by
Owners, Exercise by Main Street, determining Price by projection of Future Earnings, agreeing
to miscellaneous terms of the Purchase, and the Purchase. “Future Earnings” are defined as the
product of the Adjusted Earnings under the definition from sub-paragraph item 4.3.1.1 (i) but
assuming the Recurring Management Fee is zero, this amount less the 50% that would be due the
Management Company, with that residual all multiplied by the Effective Tax Rate from4.3.1.2.

5.3.1 One Year Notice by Owners. In the «Standard Scenario”, at
some time after the Close, and this may be 5, 10, 20 or more years later, the Owners decide they
wish to transition away from the business. When they are certain, the Owner / Managers will
provide written “Notice” to Main Street that they wish to initiate the Option To Purchase. This
Notice initiates a one-year process during which the Parties will prepare for the Exercise of the
Option To Purchase leading to the sale of the Operating Company to Main Street. After the
Notice, but before the Exercise, there is no discernable change to the day-to-day or strategic
management of the Operating Company, nor any change in fees or payments. The Notice
accomplishes five things: 1) it alerts Main Street to bring in new executive management within a
year, ii) the Owner / Managers know that the longest they need to remain on the job is a
maximum of one more year, iii) Main Street may Exercise the Option To Purchase and take over
control as soon as any time after the Notice, iv) the Exercise must occur no later than one year
after the Notice, and v) the Parties have up to one year to prepare paperwork for the Exercise.

5811 Notice Upon Death or Disability. When Main
Street first becomes aware of the death or disability of an Owner / Manager, that
awareness has the same effect as receipt of written Notice under 5.3.1. In the case of
disability, the disability must be of a nature that substantially interferes with performance
as contemplated under the Employment Contract. Main Street will confirm in writing to
appropriate representatives of the Parties the events that have triggered the de facto
Notice and will, as much as is possible, apprise them of Main Street’s immediate plans
with regard to the Option To Purchase and relevant timing. If the death or disability is of
one of several Owner / Managers, then that will start the process to buyout that one
Owner / Manager as provided under Section 5.7.

53.2 Agreement as to Projected Earnings for Stock Purchase. It
is advantageous for the Parties to be able to execute the Purchase of the Operating Company as a
tax-free exchange of stock. Generally, for the Owners, no taxes would be due on sale and only
capital gains taxes would be paid as shares were eventually sold. For Main Street, an all stock
Purchase conserves cash for later acquisitions, stock buy-backs and other corporate purposes.
The first step to arrive at an all-stock purchase price is agreement on projected Future Earnings
over the eight years following the Purchase.  After the Notice, but before the Purchase, the
Owner / Managers and Main Street will come to agreement as to the projected Future Earnings
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eight year period. Each payment will be based on the results of the immediately preceding
complete or partial fiscal year. For example, if on July 27th, 2011, the Owner / Managers give
Notice with a Purchase consummated as of October 1st, 2011, then the first Purchase payment
will be made to the OpCo Owners on or before March 31st, 2012, and at would equal the Future
Earnings for the fourth quarter of 2011. Under a hypothetical eight-year buyout period with
original ownership unchanged, seven additional consecutive annual payments would also be
made on or before each following March 31st anniversary date and reflecting the Future
Earnings during those respective seven fiscal years. A final stub period payment would then be
made on or before March 31st, 2020, equal to the Future Earnings of the Operating Company
during first three fiscal quarters of 2019. If those numbers are not available as of March 3 1™ in
any year, then 80% of Main Street’s best estimate of that total amount due will be paid on or
before March 31st and the residual 20%, as adjusted and reported, will be remitted to the OpCo
Owners within ten (10) days of its later reporting. If for any reason under this Section the
required payment of any specified amounts in cash would cause the Operating Company to be in
violation of debt covenants, other pre-Purchase agreements or solvency criteria as similarly
defined under 2.7.3, then as much of the Purchase payment as is necessary to correct that
violation will be made in Main Street restricted common stock calculated at $8 per share, the
then current restricted stock program repurchase price, or the average closing price of Main
Street shares during the calendar month preceding the Purchase, whichever share price is the
greater price per share. The share payment will be entered as a loan from Main Street to the
Operating Company and treated as an accruing interest loan, converting to a ten (10) year, 7.8%
interest, unsecured, quarterly payment loan, as applicable and provided under 2.7.3.2 and Section
Sl

Section 5.6  Optional Sale or Spin-off.  One corporate function of Main Street is to
serve as an incubator to allow private companies to grow and then be spun-off as stand-alone
public companies. ~ Additionally, good companies always have opportunities to be purchased by
third parties.  Prior to Notice, by mutual consent of the Owner / Managers and Main Street, a
spin-off or sale of the WCI Companies may be authorized and proceed. To execute such a sale
or spin-off, in as much as is possible, the Operating Company and the Management Company
will merge (or the Management Company rights will be acquired by the Operating Company).
The mechanism and form of combination of the Operating Company and Management Company
will depend upon the quality of the financials, third party desires, and other future events. The
combination may be by merger, acquisition, triangular merger or other similar means arranged at
that time. In the sale or spin-off of the merged WCI Companies, if there have been no partial
repurchases, one-half of the shares issued or consideration given will go to the OpCo Owners
and one-half will go to the MCo Owners, which at that time is expected to be Main Street".
Although the transaction requires mutual consent, once consent is given, Main Street will take
the lead role in coordinating this possible sale or spin-off. For such an optional sale or spin-off,
mutual approval of the final sale or reorganization is required. The expenses on account of any
such sale or spin-off effort will be bourn by the Operating Company.

' If any sale or spin-off closes before the end of the initial Earnings Evaluation Period, then the Adjusted After-Tax
Earnings for the less than one year period from the Close to the close of the sale or spin-off will be annualized by
calculation by Main Street. That annualized number will then be used to calculate the Performance Earned
Percentage and 50% release of Reserve.
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5.6.1 Sale if Unauditable, No Agreement Reached or So Elected.
After Notice and Exercise, but before the Purchase, if Main Street determines that the financials
of the Operating Company are not auditable, or that there are other reasons that make it
undesirable, in Main Street’s sole judgment, to spin-off the combined WCI Companies, or for
Main Street to merge with or acquire the Operating Company, then Main Street may proceed
without further approvals to sell the WCI Companies. To proceed, Main Street will inform the
Owner / Managers in writing of the “Intent To Sell”. Once the notice of Intent To Sell has been
transmitted, matching Incentive Management Fees and Stock Repurchase Allocations may be
made and released, at the discretion of Main Street. Main Street may not, but any of the WCI
Parties may, make an arms length offer to purchase the WCI Companies. Main Street will
continue to operate the WCI Companies under the control granted by the Exercise and subject
to the general fee splitting nature of the Management Contract, until a sale is completed under
Section 5.6

Section 5.7  Partial Buyout of One of Several Owners. Automatically, upon the
death or substantial disability of one out of several Owner / Managers, that Owner / Manager’s
interest in the Operating Company will be repurchased by the Operating Company. The buyout
will follow the rules outlined in Section 5.5 on a proportional basis. ~ That is, if an individual
Owner / Manager holds 30% of the shares of the Operating Company, then upon death or
disability, his interest will be repurchased by payment of 30% of Future Earnings of the
Operating Company, for eight years, as more specifically detailed in Section 5.5. To facilitate
retirement or other personal choices, with written consent of the remaining Owner / Managers
and Main Street, which may be withheld for any reason, any individual Owner / Manager may be
authorized to have his ownership in the Operating Company repurchased according to and
proportionally to the method outlined in Section 5.5.

Section 5.8  Mathematical Calculation for Overlapping Provisions. Especially over
long time periods, it is expected that some buyout or payment actions may overlap or be
superceded by subsequent actions. For example, the early buyout of one Owner / Manager under
Section 5.7 may be in the 3 of 8 years of payout when the Operating Company is purchased
under the standard scenario of Section 5.3 as a tax-free exchange for 8x. In that case, the other
Owner / Managers would get 8x for their portion and the early buyout Owner / Manager would
get 5x for his remaining portion. Similar proportional adjustments would also be made for a
later sale or spin-off following a partial repurchase. For a complete repurchase under Section
5.5, proportional adjustment would also be made for all Owner / Managers if a sale or spin-off
occurred prior to the eighth year of the buyout. Partial buyout will also have a proportional
effect of the ratio of the Incentive Management Fee to the Share Repurchase Allocation. If the
original ratio is 1: 1, and then half of the Owner / Managers are bought out, then the ratio will
be recalculated at "2 : 1.

Section 5.9 Partial Purchase for ( 6x ) for Fraud. If any Owner / Manager by fraud,
conversion, malfeasance, breach of fiduciary duty, related party action, violation of this
Agreement, or other means deprives the WCI Companies or Main Street of cumulatively more
than $10.000, or causes or directs such loss, then, that event shall have the effect of Notice.
Following this effective Notice, at Main Street’s sole option, that Owner / Manager’s interest in
the Operating Company may be repurchased for six years Future Earnings, which becomes the
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Price in the partial Purchase. In this regard, the provisions under Section 5.5 will be followed,
except at a 25% discount. If followed by a subsequent sale or spin-off, the residual will be
calculated as if two years of Future Earnings had already been paid on the first day. Throughout
this Option To Purchase, wherever eight years of Future Earnings are used in calculation, those
figures and calculations will be similarly discounted to six years. After first discovering such
items in excess of $10,000, Main Street has 90 calendar days to declare its election under
Section 5.9 by mailing written notice to the Parties. Once declared, the presumption is that the
$10,000 item is valid, although the Owner / Manager may challenge the determination in a Court
of competent authority. If the challenge is successful, the sole recourse is extending the buyout
to eight years (which is considered the fair price) with the losing party paying the prevailing
parties legal fees. In addition to these previous partial remedies, any defrauded amounts or
Material negative impact to the Operating Company or Main Street will be appropriately
calculated or estimated by Main Street and considered as an Incentive Management Fee paid to
the Owner / Manager. This, in turn, will generate a corresponding Share Repurchase Allocation
due with appropriate penalties and interest from the time of the $10,000 event. The election
under this section is in addition to any other legal recourse that may be available to any of the
Parties.

59.1 Immediate Walk Away by Owner at a 25% Discount at ( 6x )-
At any time, any Owner / Manager may elect to start an immediate buyout of his individual
ownership of the Operating Company at a Price of six years Future Earnings under the procedure
of Section 5.9 by mailing written notice of such to the Parties. If (circumstances of death or
disability definitively excepted) the Notice period offered under 5.3.1 is less than one year, the
Owner / Manager stops working for the benefit of the WCI Companies, or the Owner /
Managers working hours devoted to management of the WCI Companies averages less than 20
hours per week for any consecutive 12 week period, then any of those events will have the effect
of Notice under Section 5.9, except that the conversion of funds is not considered. Under this
paragraph, serious illness will also be a mitigating factor that Main Street will weigh in regard to
diminished working hours devoted to the business. After any of the circumstances of effective
Notice described in this paragraph, Main Street may, in its sole discretion, decline to accept the
effective Notice by communicating same to the involved Owner / Manager.

Section 5.10 Main Street Elected Sale Possible at a 25% Premium at ( 10x ).
Absent cause under Section 5.9, or Owner / Manager Notice under Section 5.1, Main Street
may not initiate the buy-out of an individual Owner / Manager. Additionally, such unilateral
action is contrary to Main Street’s general mission. However, there are times when concluding
the relationship is a corporate necessity. So, notwithstanding the foregoing in this article, upon
written notice to the Parties, Main Street may initiate the buy-out of any individual Owner /
Manager by paying that individual Owner / Manager a 25% premium.  Specifically, Main
Street’s written notice of its election under Section 5.10 will serve as Notice and Exercise. The
Price paid the Owner / Manager is according to the procedure found in Section 5.5, but at or for
10 years Future Earnings. Throughout this Option To Purchase, wherever eight years of Future
Earnings are used in calculation, those figures and calculations will be similarly increased to ten
years.
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Section 5.11 Treatment of Loans. All pre-existing loans from Owners and new
loans from any of the Parties during the term of the Agreement are converted and carried as
unsecured, 7.8% monthly compounded and accruing interest, general obligations of the
Operating Company'*. At the time of the Purchase, the principal and accumulated interest from
all such loans will be amortized and termed out in new loans with repayment in 40 equal
quarterly compounded payments of principal and interest at 7.8%, with the first payment due
ninety-days after the Purchase. The note will be an unsecured general obligation of the
Operating Company.  Payments will be applied first to interest and then to principal.
Notwithstanding the general requirement for quarterly payment, payment may not be made if it
would cause the Operating Company to be in violation of debt covenants, or to be categorized, or
be forecast to be categorized, as insolvent under the Uniform Commercial Code or applicable
law, or under other insolvency guidelines for the Operating Company that Main Street may from
time to time specify. Such missed payments will be moved to the end of the loan term in
successive quarterly payments. However, if regular or partial quarterly payment is made on any
such loan, then proportional payments will be made on all such loans. The loans continue to
follow the 10 year amortization schedule unchanged in the event of a spin-off. In the event ofa
subsequent sale to a third-party, such loans must be paid off, without the prior written consent of
the affected Parties.

Section 5.12 Adjustment for Today’s Liabilities. ~Given two otherwise identical
companies, if one has more liabilities than the other, it is worth less. Main Street, in this
Agreement, does not adjust consideration down for Today’s Liabilities until much later, at the
Purchase. “Today’s Liabilities” are defined as the total liabilities that are on, or should have
been on, the Operating Company balance sheet on the Closing Date of this Agreement. Today’s
Liabilities are not increased over time to account for inflation, imputed interest, or adjusted if
those accounts increase or decrease over the years. In general, to adjust for Today’s Liabilities,
the original Price (assuming Today’s Liabilities are zero) is reduced by an amount equal to
Today’s Liabilities, and that reduced Price supercedes the original Price calculated in preceding
sections under this Option To Purchase. Specifically: 1) If completing a single tax-free exchange
for stock under 5.3.2. then the original Price is reduced by an amount equal to Today’s
Liabilities. ii) If eight annual payments equal to the Future Earnings are to be made under
Section 5.5, then each annual payment will be reduced by 1/8" of Today’s Liabilities, and will
be carried forward cumulatively if the result would otherwise be negative for any single year.
iii) If there is a sale to third parties under Section 5.6, then an original effective Price will be
calculated equal to one-half of the sum of the third party cash purchase price]5 plus Today’s
Liabilities. The original effective Price will then be reduced by an amount equal to Today’s
Liabilities with the remainder going to Main Street. iv) If there is a spin-off under Section 5.6,
then a pro forma calculation will be performed by Main Street to determine an effective Price
similar to the projected Future Earnings methodology from 5.3.2. The method of Item (iii)
preceding will then be followed to calculate the percentage ownership of the Owners. The

14 Notwithstanding the general requirement to have all loans be 7.8% accruing interest loans, specific bridge loans
from the Partics with an identified take-out will be allowed and excepted from normal treatment by Main Street.
Those loans must identify a specific take-out and refinancing mechanism and be 7.8% accruing interest until the
take-out. When the loan is refinanced, the principal is not considered a Direct Payment to Owners, however, the
interest is. If the refinance falls through, then the bridge loan is converted to the standard long-term accruing 7.8%
interest loan to start to be paid at the Purchase or paid off upon a subsequent sale to third parties.
15 The cash purchase price is the amount paid above assumption and payoff of liabilities.
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adjustment laid out in this section will be calculated by Main Street and will apply to all
Purchase scenarios for calculation of the Price throughout this article except in the case of
Today’s Liabilities being zero.

Section 5.13  Allocation of Enforcement Costs. If Main Street incurs costs or pays
for expenses directly to enforce provisions of this Agreement, including reasonable attorneys
fees and costs, then those expenses will be calculated into the Management Fee formula as if an
equal payment was made directly to Owners. This will indirectly result in an equal and
offsetting payment back to Main Street covering or reimbursing the expense. If the Management
Contract has been terminated and this mechanism is not available, then a similar and equal
reduction from the next payments to be received by Owners under the Purchase will made to
effect an equal and matching economic result.

Section 5.14  Potential Rollback of Fees Just Prior to Exercise. Main Street may
declare a cancellation and roll-back of any Incentive Management Fee payment together with the
associated and matching Share Repurchase Allocation that was made during the 90 day period
prior to Exercise. This roll-back right expires thirty days after Exercise.

Section 5.15  Purchase is All-Inclusive. Except as delineated in Attachment 4.9, the
Option To Purchase the Operating Company is all-inclusive. The Purchase includes all business
opportunities, rights, tangible and intangible assets. No property, intellectual property, vendor
or customer lists, processes or other things related to or involved with the operation of, owned at
any time by, the Operating Company will be retained by the Owners.

Section 5.16 Non-Compete Clause. During the term of the Management Contract,
and during and until one year after any payment under the Agreement or under the restricted
stock repurchase program is paid to an individual Owner / Manager, that Owner / Manager
agrees to not compete with the business of the Operating Company. If the Operating Company
is sold to third parties or spun off, then the Owner / Managers agree not to compete for an
additional four years from the close of that sale or spin-off.

Section 5.17 OpCo Shares and Owners’ Rights Not Transferable After the Close.
Main Street is entering into this long-term Agreement with the Owners to provide them with the
opportunity for access to the liquidity of the public markets. The character of the people Main
Street does business with is very important, and especially so in this sort of mutually dependant
arrangement. Because of this approach, the Agreement is specific to the current Owners and the
rights and privileges under the Agreement are not transferable without the prior written consent
of Main Street. That approval will normally be withheld and may be withheld in Main Street’s
sole discretion.  Additionally, Main Street wishes, as much as is possible, to be the exclusive
equity funding source for the Operating Company. A portion of the mutual benefit and
consideration is based and depends upon that exclusive arrangement. Thus, after the Close, the
Operating Company may not issue additional shares, and the Owners may not sell or transfer any
Operating Company shares without the prior written consent of Main Street. Such consent will
often be withheld and may be withheld in Main Street’s sole discretion.
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ARTICLE VI
OTHER MATTERS

Throughout this Agreement, when disclosure is called for, such disclosure shall be in
writing if the disclosure does not either affirm a requested positive disclosure, deny a requested
negative disclosure or have the effect of an answer of “none” or “not applicable”. A copy of
such written disclosure, where not elsewhere called for, is at Attachment 6.0.

Section 6.1  Representations and Warranties of the Owners.  With regard to the
WCI Companies, or as indicated, each of the Owners hereby jointly and severally represents
and warrants to Main Street as follows:

The Owners are the legal and beneficial owners of the number shares represented in the
Agreement, free and clear of all liens, equities, encumbrances and claims of every kind.

WCI is a corporation duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the
laws of the State of Colorado.

WCI does not have any direct or indirect subsidiaries and is not a party to any joint
ventures.

Financial statements provided are true and correct, complete and accurate. The last three
(3) years financial statements, quarterly or monthly financial for the most recent partial year, plus
financial statements as of the Close are at Attachment 6.1(a).

Real estate owned by the WCI Parties, related to WCI Companies, has been disclosed.

Pending or suspected environmental issues and violations have been disclosed.

There are no Material adverse changes to the business since the recent balance sheet date
that have not been disclosed.

The business does not have any major liability of a financial nature not disclosed

There are no pending major law suits not disclosed.

All taxes have been filed and if due, paid. The last three (3) years tax returns for WCI
are at Attachment 6.1(b).

There are no alleged violations of safety, employment, ERISA, or labor laws, not
disclosed.

At Attachment 6.1(c) is a copy of the latest available statement from each and every
bank or similar account maintained by WCI or WCI Management, Inc.

All of the WCI shares previously issued were issued in full compliance with all federal
and state securities laws and regulations.

The minute books of WCI is complete and a copy will be provided to Main Street, if later
requested.

The WCI Companies, except as disclosed, (i) have not directly or indirectly dealt with
any broker or finder in connection with this transaction, and (i) have not incurred and will not
incur any obligation for any broker's or finder's fee or commission in connection with the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

To Owners’ knowledge, nothing would prevent the transactions contemplated by this
Agreement from qualifying as a tax-free exchange of stock .

Related party transactions have been disclosed.

As used in this Agreement, “Material” means an occurrence or matter that causes a
financial impact or liability of Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000) or more.
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Each of the Owners has the power, legal right and authority to enter into and deliver this
Agreement and the other agreements, instruments and documents contemplated by this
Agreement and to carry out the transactions contemplated hereby. This Agreement, when
executed and delivered, will have been duly authorized and will constitute a valid and binding
obligation of the Owners, enforceable in accordance with its terms.

No representation or warranty made by the Owners in this Agreement or any Attachment,
contains any untrue statement of a Material fact, or omits any Material fact, the omission of
which would be misleading.

Section 6.2 Covenants and Acknowledgements. Each of the Parties shall cooperate
with the other Parties in all reasonable respects, and shall take all other steps necessary to carry
out and consummate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement at the earliest practicable
time.

From the date of this Agreement until the Close, WCI will refrain from licensing, selling
or otherwise disposing of any asset, property oOr intellectual property rights; making any
individual disbursements, commitments or purchases in excess of Ten Thousand Dollars
($10,000) to any related party; changing any compensation or rate of compensation payable to
any officer, director or employee other than in the ordinary course, or declaring or making any
dividends or other distributions to the Owners, except as disclosed prior to the Close.

From the date of this Agreement until the Close, the Owners shall cause WCI not to issue
any long term debt or additional securities of any kind or warrants or options to purchase any of
such securities, except as disclosed prior to the Close.

The Parties shall use reasonable efforts to meet the requirements of Regulation D
promulgated under the 1933 Act in order to accomplish the issuance of Main Street Purchase
Shares to the Owners.

The Parties shall use their best efforts to cause the Exchange to qualify as a tax-free
exchange of stock.

The Parties acknowledge that Main Street stock has been inactive or at most reported as
trading in the “Pink Sheets” at very low volume just prior to the Effective Date. The closing
price of the Main Street shares in the week prior to the Effective Date as reported on
PinkSheets.com was, effectively $0.00 per share.

Prior to the Close, the Owners shall cause the respective boards of directors of WCI and
WCI Management, Inc. to each approve and adopt this Agreement in accordance with each of
the WCI Companies articles of incorporation and bylaws and provide a copy of said approvals
at Attachments 6.2 (a) & 6.2 (b).

Section 6.3  Conditions Precedent to Closing. The obligation of each of the Parties
to consummate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement is subject to the fulfillment on
or prior to the Close of each of the following conditions:

6.3.1 Completion of Attachments. All of the required Attachments
are provided, complete and give a true account, or, if appropriate, are marked “Not Applicable™ .
“None” or “Waived by Main Street”. The representations made in those Attachments and the
representations and warranties of the Owners set forth in Section 6.1 of this Agreement shall be
true and correct in all respects at and as of the respective dates set forth with respect to each, as
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of the date of this Agreement and at and as of the Closing Date as if each such representation and
warranty was given on and as of the Closing Date.

6.3.2 Execution of Documents. Execution of this Agreement and
associated attachments when indicated, including the “General Release” at Attachment 6.3.2, by
all designated signatory Parties is a condition precedent to the Close. This Agreement and
attachments may be executed simultaneously in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument.
Signatures transmitted by facsimile shall be treated as original signatures when transmitted to the
other Party or Parties to this Agreement or their respective legal counsel. Execution shall
become effective when such facsimile(s) is delivered; provided that any Party transmitting a
signature by facsimile shall deliver to Main Street the original signature(s) within seven )
business days of delivery of the facsimile.

6.3.3 Main Street Board Approval. After the completion of actions
outlined in 6.3.1 & 6.3.2, but precedent to the Close, will be the approval and adoption of this
Agreement by the board of directors of Main Street in accordance with the articles of
incorporation and bylaws of Main Street. Such approval may be withheld at the discretion of the
board of directors.

6.3.4 Exchange of Shares. At the Close there will be an exchange of
certificates as detailed in 4.1.1.

Section 6.5  Publicity.  The Owners shall not cause or authorize any press release or
any public statement with respect to this Agreement and the transactions contemplated by this
Agreement without the prior written approval of Main Street. Main Street shall not cause or
authorize any press release or any public statement with respect to this Agreement and the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement without the prior approval of Owners until after
Close. However, subsequent to the Offer, it is permitted for Main Street to announce the general
operations, scope, financial magnitude and state of residence of the business making the Offer,
without revealing the identity of WCI or the Owners.

Section 6.4 Termination. This Agreement may be terminated by the Owner / Managers
or Main Street if any condition provided in Section 6.3 has not been satisfied or waived on or
before the Close. The Agreement will automatically terminate if the transactions contemplated
by this Agreement are not fully and legally consummated by April 30, 2006.

6.4.1 Effect of Termination. In the event of a termination of this
Agreement pursuant to Section 6.4 each Party shall pay the costs and expenses incurred by it in
connection with this Agreement and no Party (or any of their respective officers, directors,
partners or shareholders) shall be liable to any other Party for any costs, expenses, damage or
loss of anticipated profits hereunder.

6.42 Return of Deposit and Double Deposit Return. If the
Agreement is terminated under the terms of Section 6.4 by the Owners, or automatically
terminated on April 30, 2006, then the regular return of Deposit procedure specified in 4.13.2
will be triggered and executed. If the Agreement is terminated under the terms of Section 6.4 by
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Main Street. then the early return of Deposit procedure under 4.13.3 will be triggered and
executed. If the Agreement is otherwise complete, executed and submitted to the Main Street
board of directors for approval, but not approved, then in addition to the early return of Deposit
procedure under 4.13.3, Main Street will remit an additional Breakup Fee to the Operating

Company equal to Deposit as also provided under 4. 33 *

Section 6.5  Survival and Indemnification. The representations and warranties, and
covenants of the Parties set forth in this Agreement shall survive the Close and remain operative
and in full force and effect until the first anniversary of the Closing Date. Each of the Owners
jointly and severally shall indemnify and hold Main Street, its successors and assigns, harmless,
against and in respect of any losses, liabilities, damages, deficiencies, diminution of value,
attorneys' fees or related expenses resulting from any misrepresentation, inaccuracy or breach of
any representation, warranty or covenant made by the Owners in this Agreement or in any of the
Attachments.

Section 6.6 Miscellaneous Provisions. The Parties agree to bear their respective legal,
accounting and other expenses in connection with the preparation and consummation of this
Agreement.

The subject headings of the articles, sections, paragraphs and subparagraphs of this
Agreement are included for purposes of convenience only, and shall not affect the construction
or interpretation of any of their respective provisions.

This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the Parties pertaining to its
subject matter and supersedes all prior and contemporaneous agreements, including without
limitation the Offer.

Where any consent or waiver of Main Street is required or requested hereunder, Chester
Billingsley, President of Main Street, or any successor, shall be the authorized person to provide
any such consent or waiver. Where any consent or waiver of the WCI Parties is required or
requested hereunder, Kyle D. Thomas, shall be the authorized person to provide any such
consent or waiver.

At any time and from time to time after the Closing, each Party will execute such
additional instruments and take such actions as may be reasonably requested by the other Party
to confirm or perfect title to any property transferred hereunder or otherwise to carry out the
intent and purposes of this Agreement.

This Agreement shall be binding on, and shall inure to the benefit of, the Parties and their
respective heirs, legal representatives, successors and assigns; provided, however, that any
assignment by any of the WCI Parties of its respective rights under this Agreement without
written consent of the Main Street shall be void.

No action taken pursuant to or related to this Agreement, including without limitation any
investigation by or on behalf of any Party, shall be deemed to constitute a waiver by that Party.

This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the
State of California, excluding its choice of law rules.

In the event of any dispute arising under or in connection with this Agreement, or any
related agreements, the Parties shall attempt in good faith to agree upon their rights with respect
to such dispute. If the Parties so agree, a memorandum setting forth such agreement shall be

1 If the Agreement is consummated, the Deposit is also returned under the regular return of Deposit procedure
under 4.13.1.
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prepared and signed by the Parties. If no such agreement can be reached after good faith
negotiation, any Party may demand arbitration of the matter, in which case, the dispute shall be
submitted to final and binding arbitration before an arbitrator of the American Arbitration
Association. such arbitration to be conducted in Santa Clara County, California, or, at Main
Street’s sole option, in San Diego County, California, in accordance with the rules of that body
governing commercial disputes. Judgment on the award rendered by the arbitrator may be
entered in any court having jurisdiction thereof. This provision shall supersede any conflicting
or inconsistent provision in any agreement contemplated by or related to this Agreement.

In the event a Party brings any legal action or submits any claim or controversy to
arbitration with respect to this Agreement, the prevailing Party, in addition to any other remedies
available to it, shall be entitled to recover reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs from the non-
prevailing Party, regardless of whether such action, claim or controversy is prosecuted or
arbitrated to completion.

Section 6.7 Notices. All notices, requests, demands and other communications under
this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given on the date of
service if served personally on the Party (including, without limitation, service by overnight
courier service) to whom notice is to be given, or on the third day after mailing if mailed to the
Party to whom notice is to be given, by first class mail, registered or certified, postage prepaid, at
the address set forth below, or on the date of service if delivered by facsimile to the facsimile
number set forth below, which facsimile is confirmed within three days by deposit of a copy of
such notice in first class mail, registered or certified, postage prepaid at the address set forth
below. Any Party may change its address for purposes of this Section by giving the other Parties
written notice of the new address in the manner set forth.

If to Main Street: Copy to

Main Street AC, Inc. Thoits, Love, Hershberger & McLean
P.O. Box 1709 245 Lytton Avenue, Suite 300
Ramona, California 92065 Palo Alto, California 94301

Fax No.: (760) 788 — 2525 Fax No.: (650) 325-5572

Attn: Chester Billingsley, President Attention: Wayne H. Thomas , Esquire
If to the Owners: Copy to:

Kyle D. Thomas Phillip S. DeCaro

881 North Forest Court 665 Vista Grande Drive

Chandler, AZ 85226 Colorado Springs, CO 80906

Fax No.: (480) 897-3602

Long — Term Liquidity & Funding Agreement
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties to this Agreement have duly executed it as of the date

set forth above.
Main Street gg, Inc. _ M
By: : 2

Chester Billingsley, President

Waste Consolidators, Inc. aka WCI

By: /\”% /7 - 71[4\’\/110

Kyl_éﬁ). Thomas, Chairman & CEO

WCI Management, Inc.

By: /\ ‘//7 7%%/

Kyl%ﬁ. Thomas, President

As an Individual

Yy )/
By: A J/ "C N //

Kylegﬁ. Thomas, Individually

Main Street AC, Inc.
Confirming Board of Directors’ Approval

By:

; P
“Chester Billingsley, Director

Long - Term Liquidity & Funding Agreement
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Exhibit 10(b) WCI Addendum

ADDENDUM — OcCT 28, 2007

August 24, 2007, the Mentor Capital shareholders voted 84% in favor of instituting a
1,000 to 1 reverse split. This reduces the outstanding Purchase Shares of the WCI Parties from
approximately 400,000 to 400. This complicates the interpretation and calculation of the stock
repurchase program at $8 per share for the WCI Owners. Also, preliminary calculations of the
WCI Adjusted After-Tax Earnings places the Performance Earned Percentage at approximately
2%. Under strict interpretation of the Agreement, all the shares from the 50% Financial
Company could be 100% repurchased for less than $72,000. Finally, Kyle Thomas has asked to
review the possibility of increasing his salary as President as sales grow. This mix of factors
could lead to litigation if unresolved.

To address the dilemmas represented by these issues and avoid the costs of unnecessary
litigation, the Parties agree that the Agreement will be modified, consistent with section 2.10, as

follows:

i) The WCI Parties will be designated to redeem 3,200,000 warrants from Mentor
Capital’s 28,000,000 warrants to the extent those become available following
failure of timely exercise by the current warrant holders. This designation does not
require any further demonstration of increased After-Tax Earnings by WCI.

ii) All the WCT Parties permanently withdraw from the Mentor Capital restricted share
repurchase program, as under section 2.4.4, to the extent that payment by check has
not already been delivered.

1ii) The $6,000 deposit under section 2.13 will be applied as a payment on account
effective September 2007.

iv) The maximum owner controlled monthly salary and benefits under 3.6 will be

modified from $12,500 per month to the greater of $12,500 or the M/B (Million in
salary per Billion in revenue) salary calculation. Such that:

M/B = $1,000,000 x | 2((e®evemed=9 1 13

In sum, the above formula says that if the annual revenues are $1.0 Billion the
salary should be $1.0 Million. And, from that point, if the revenue increases or
deceases by a factor of ten, then the salary and benefits will increase or decrease by
a factor of two.

Mentor Capital will calculate the new salary limits each year from data linked to
and included in the federal tax return. Such figures for the preceding year will
apply for twelve months from April 1* of the following year .

Kyle/Thomas for the,WCI Parties

KA
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Irrevocable Proxy to Vote Shares

By Executing this Irrevocable Proxy, the below members of the WCI Parties (as defined in the
Liquidity Agreement of May 31, 2005) appoint Chet Billingsley as a permanent proxy to vote
any and all shares of Mentor Capital that we would be entitled to vote if personally present, in
his discretion and in his best judgment, on all corporate matters. This proxy is permanent, may
not ever be revoked, and applies to all shares owned or that we come to own in the future.

The parties granting the proxy are:

WCI, Inc
Waste Consolidators, Inc
Kyle Thomas (individually)

Plus, existing or future companies or partnerships formed by any of the above parties, and
dependant family members.

Executed for the above

By: Kyle Thomas, as President for each organization above, and as an individual

/(//4'6 fO\ wy [ 16107
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ATTACHMENT - 1.0.2

Note Payable for $39, 500

Following and attached to this page is a copy of the Note Payable of WCI payable to Main
Street.

PROMMISSORY NOTE

For fair and reasonable value received, the sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged,
Waste Consolidators, Inc. agrees to pay to the order of Main Street AC, Inc. thirty-nine
thousand five hundred dollars and no cents. ( $39,5000 ) effective this 31st day of May, 2005.

This promise to pay will accrue interest at a rate of 7.8% per annum, calculated and
compounded monthly from the Effective Date. No payments are due or to be paid on this
promissory note until after Kyle D. Thomas has received payment for the first of his Main
Street Purchase Shares that are repurchased by Main Street, otherwise sold or upon Exercise of
the Option To Purchase. The first payment due on the Note will be paid to Main Street on the
first 10" of the month following more than thirty days after the first of the preceding events to
occur. Each 10" of the month thereafter, for a total of twelve monthly payments, another
payment will be due. The twelve monthly payments (of approximately $2,200) will be made in
twelve equal amounts, fully amortizing the outstanding principal and interest.

The Note will be a unsecured general obligation of Waste Consolidators, Inc. Payments are
considered late 10 days after they are due, at the 20" day of the month. Late payments bear a
penalty of 10% of the amount due and start to incur additional interest of 1% per month on the
outstanding balance commencing after the 30® day.

Where applicable, the other general provisions of the Agreement apply to and govern the Note.

Waste Consolidators, Inc.

. /1 J ﬁ /; // j
By; /&//é ANt

Kyle D). Thomas, CEO
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Interest Schedule

$39,500.00 @ 7.8% - Coumpounded Monthly
May 31, 2005 - Waste Consolidators, Inc.

7.8%
121007 $31047
Total
2008 SCHEDULE
Date Int
110108 $311.94
2110008 $313.97
310108 $316.01
4/10/08 $318.06
510008 $320.13
6/10/08 $322.21
7110108 §324.31
810008 $326.41
9/10/08 $328.54
10/10/08 $299.50
11/10/08 $270.28
12/10/08 $240.86

$47,990.88

Payment

(84,795.49)
(84,795.49)
(84,795.49)
(84,795.49)

Apro forma**

$8,490.88 <<2007 total

Cumulative Due
$48,302.82
$48,616.79
$48,932.80
$49,250.86
$49,570.99
$49,893.20
$50,217 51
$50,543.92
$46,076.97
$41,580.98
§37,055.76
$32,501.14

Payments applied first to interest, then to principal

Principal

$39,500.00
$39,500.00
$39,500.00
$39,500.00
$39,500.00
$39,500.00
$39,500.00
$39,500.00
$39,500.00
§39,500.00
$39,500.00
$39,500.00

Accumulated
Interest
$8,802.82
$9,116.79
$9,432.80
$9,750.86
$10,070.99
$10,393.20
$10,717.51
$11,043.92
$6,576.97
$2,080.98
-$2,444.24
-$6,998.86

Prommissory Note of May 31, 2005 for $39,500 at 7.8% due in 12 equal payments due on
the first 10th more than 30 days after shares trade at $4 for 30 non-contiguous days

2009 SCHEDULE

Date Int
11009 $211.26
21009 $21263
109 $18284
41109 $152.86
51109 $12268
6/1109 9231
M09 96174
8109 830.97
911109 $0.00
10/41/09 $0.00
111109 $0.00
12111109 $0.00

Payment
(34795.49)
(34,795.49)
(84,795.49)
($4,795.49)
(34795.49)
($4,795.49)
(34.795.49)
($4,795.49)

Cumulative Due
$32,712.40
$26,129.54
$23516.89
$18,874.26
$14,201.45

§9,498.27
$4,764.52
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

Payments applied first to interest, then to principal

Principal

$39,500.00
$39,500.00
$39,500.00
$39,500.00
$39,500.00
$39,500.00
$39,500.00
§39,500.00
§$39,500.00
$39,500.00
$39,500.00
$39,500.00

Accumulated
Interest
-$6,787.60
-§11,370.46
-$15,983.11
-$20,625.74
-§25,298.55
-$30,001.73
-§34,735.48
-§39,500.00
-$39,500.00
-$39,500.00
-$39,500.00
-$39,500.00

Qtr
Int In

§311.94
862591
$941.92
$318.06
$638.19
$960.41
$324.31
$650.72
$979.26
§299.50
$569.78
$810.64

Qtr
Int Inc

$211.26
$423.89
$606.73
$162.86
$27554
$367.85
$61.74
$92.71
$92.71
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

YD
Intin
$311.94
$625.91
$941.92 <<< 15t Qtr
$1,259.98
$1,580.11
$1,902.32 <<< 2nd Qtr
$2,226.63
$2,553.04
$2,881.58 <<<3rd Qtr
§3,181.08
$3451.36
$3692.22 <<< 2008

YTD
IntIn¢
$211.26
$423.89
$606.73 <<< 1t Qtr
$759.59
$882.27
$974.58 <<< 2nd Qtr
$1,036.32
$1,067.29
$1,067.29 <<<3rd Qtr
$1,067.29
$1,067.29
$1,067.29 <<< 2008



Exhibit 10(c)WCI Addendum and Promissory Note

ADDENDUM -SEPTEMBER 13, 2011

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, the May 31, 2005, Liquidity Agreement is

clarified and modified by the Parties as follows:

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

7)

By

Upon mutual review, the Parties agree that the total historic amount owed by the
W Parties to Mentor Capital, Inc. (MNTR) is $380,000 as of September 12, 2011.

Waste Consolidators, Inc. (WCI will prepay all other fees and 50% profit sharing
due under the Liquidity Agreement in one series of payments of $35,000 per month
for a period of twenty months beginning January 1, 2010 and extending to August 1
2011. After this total of $700,000 is paid or accrued in a promissory note under
this Addendum, no further ongoing fees will be due other than as specified in this
Addendum.

’

The combination of the historic $380,000 owed and $700,000 prepaid amounts will
be evidenced in a combined $1,080,000 Promissory Note, payable on demand with a
maximum twenty-year term, single payment on maturity, bearing an interest rate of
0.42%. Interest is calculated, compounded and due to be paid in cash or negotiable
funds each September 13" . If no principal amounts are otherwise paid off on the
Note the annual interest is $4,536. 00.

The Parties define the first interest payment for 2010 and 2011 to date to be
$9,072.00. Deposit of this amount to MNTR Bank of America account number
122 000 661 - 00508 16939 makes effective this Addendum transaction.

W1 or its designees may pay off the Note in whole or in part in cash at anytime
with no pre-payment penalties.

Upon demand, maturity or a change of control of W{I or MNTR, the Note is due
within 30 days of the specified event. Under previous calculations of provisions of
the Liquidity Agreement, MNTR has the right to buy the remaining 50% financial
interest in W(i for $72,000, which would be a change of control under this
Addendum.

Upon demand for payment or if there is a change of control, then Wi or its
designees may receive credit, for up to the remaining pay off of the Note only, of
$0.45 for each warrant currently held by its related parties and returned back to
MNTR for other designees to redeem. If MNTR declares its intent to exercises its
right to purchase the remaining 50% financial interest in WCI for $72,000 , then W(i
may top that declaration by 10% to $79,200 and buy-out MNTR's 50% interest by
both adding the new $79,200 to the existing Note and retiring the entire increased
$1,159,200 Note within 30 days. The $0.45 per warrant credit is extended to
include the $79,200 increase.

wie Thamas for the W Parties Chester Billingsley for Mentor Capital, Inc.
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PROMISSORY NOTE

For fair and reasonable value received, the sufficiency of which is hereby
acknowledged, Waste Consolidators, Inc. agrees to pay to the order of Mentor
Capital, Inc. One Million Eighty Thousand Dollars and No Cents ( $1,080,000 )
effective this 13* day of September, 2011.

This promise to pay will accrue interest at a rate of 0.42% per annum,
calculated and compounded annually each September 13™ anniversary of the
execution of this Promissory Note.

The Promissory Note is payable on demand with a maximum maturity of
twenty (20) years. Interest is payable annually when it accrues each September 13*
on the anniversary of the execution of this document. The first interest payment of
$9,072 is for agreed upon and already incurred interest and is due upon the
signing of this Note. The next payment will be due on September 13, 2012, for
interest accrued since September 13, 2011.

The Note will be an unsecured general obligation of Waste Consolidators,
Inc. Payments are considered late 10 days after they are due. Late payments bear
a penalty of 1% of the amount due and start to incur additional interest at 1% per
month on the outstanding overdue balance commencing after the 30" day.

Where applicable, the other general provisions of the Liquidity Agreement
and its Addendums apply to and govern the Note.

Waste Consolidators, Inc.

w L) T

Kyle [g'l‘homas, CEO




Exhibit 10(d)

WCI Addendum

ADDENDUM -MAy 14, 2014

(EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2014)

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, the May 31, 2005, Liquidity Agreement

including its September 11, 2011 Addendum is clarified and modified by the Parties as
follows:

D

2)

3)

4)

5)

Upon mutual review, the Parties agree to increase the percentage ownership of
Mentor Capital, Inc. (MNTR) in Waste Consolidators, Inc. (WCI) from 50% to 51%.

The valuation given WCI for this purchase is $2.5 Million. For the additional 1%
MNTR has sent a check in good funds to WCI for $25,000 in full payment, which has
been accepted by WCI. Deposit of said check will make effective this transaction.

The terms of the September 11, 2011 Addendum are unmodified. Because of that
previous 2011 Addendum the net change to ongoing cash flows, payments
distributions and other disbursements is equal to the change when 1% of WCI is
purchased on a standalone basis. MNTR will ensure that for tax, SEC reporting and
other financial purposes, this change is properly reflected for WCI and for MNTR

By mutual consent and through professional consultation, the Parties will work to
ensure tax reporting and payment is properly reflected.

The Parties have been anticipating this change since late 2013 and the agreed upon
date of the effectiveness of the purchase is January 1, 2014.

Approved by:

Kyle Thomas, CEO, for the WCI Parties Chet Billingsley, CEO, Mentor Capital, Inc.
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INDEMNIFICATION AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT, is made and entered into this 29th day of
July, 1994, between MAIN STREET ATHLETIC CLUBS, INC., a California
corporation ("Corporation'), and Chester Billingsley ('"Director").

WITNESSETH THAT:

WHEREAS, Director, a member of the Board of Directors of
the Corporation, performs a valuable service in such capacity for
Corporation; and

WHEREAS, the Articles of Incorporation of the Corporation
authorize and permit contracts between Corporation and the members
of its Board of Directors providing for indemnification, among
other things, of such directors; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with the authorization as provided
by the California General Corporation Law, as amended ('"Code"),
Corporation may purchase and maintain a policy or policies of
Directors and Officers Liability Insurance ("D & O Insurance"),
covering certain liabilities which may be incurred by its directors
and officers in the performance as directors of Corporation; and

WHEREAS, as a result of recent developments affecting the
terms, scope and availability of D & O Insurance there exists
general uncertainty as to the extent of protection afforded members
of the Board of Directors by such D & O Insurance and by statutory
and bylaw indemnification provisions; and

WHEREAS, in order to induce Director to serve or continue
to serve as the case may be, as a member of the Board of Directors
of Corporation, Corporation has determined that it is in its best
interests to enter into this contract with Director;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of Director’s continued
service as a director after the date hereof, the parties hereto
agree as follows:

1 Indemnity of Director. Corporation hereby agrees to
hold harmless and indemnify Director to the full extent authorized

by the provisions of the Code, as it may be amended from time to
time.

2 Additional Indemnity. Subject only to the
limitations set forth in Section 3 hereof, Corporation hereby
further agrees to hold harmless and indemnify Director:
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: (a) against any and all expenses (including attorneys’
fees), judgments, fines and amounts pald in settlement actually and
reasonably incurred by Director in connection with any threatened,
pending or completed action, suit or proceeding, whether civil,
criminal, administrative or investigative (including an action by
or in the right of Corporation) to which Director is, was or at any
time becomes a party, or is reasonably thought to be threatened to
be made a party, by reason of the fact that Director is, was or at
any time becomes a director, officer, employee or agent of
Corporation, or is or was serving or at any time serves at the
request of Corporation as a director, officer, employee or agent of
another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other
enterprise; and

(b) otherwise to the fullest extent as may be provided
to Director by Corporation under the non-exclusive provisions of
the Articles of Incorporation of Corporation and the Code.

. Limitations on Additional Indemnity.

(a) No indemnity pursuant to Section 2 hereof shall be
paid by Corporation for any of the following:

(1) to the extent the aggregate of losses to be
indemnified exceeds the sum of (A) such losses for which the
Director is indemnified pursuant to Section 1 hereof and (B) any
settlement pursuant to any D & O Insurance purchased and maintained
by Corporation;

(ii) in respect to remuneration paid to Director if
it shall be determined by a final judgment without right of appeal,
or other final adjudication that such remuneration was in violation
of law;

(iil) on account of any suit in which Jjudgment is
rendered against Director for an accounting of profits made from
the purchase or sale by Director of securities of Corporation
pursuant to the provisions of Section 16(b) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 and amendments thereto or similar provisions
of any federal, state or local statutory law;

(iv) on account of Director’s acts or omissions that
involve intentional misconduct or a knowing and culpable violation
of law;

(v) on account of any proceeding (other than a
proceeding referred to in Section 8(b) hereof) initiated by the
Director unless such proceeding was authorized by the uninterested
directors of the Corporation; or

(vi) if a final decision without right of appeal by
a Court having jurisdiction in the matter shall determine that such
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indemnification is not lawful;

(b) In addition to those limitations set forth above in
paragraph (a) of this Section 3, no indemnity pursuant to Section
2 hereof in an action by or in the right of Corporation shall be
paid by Corporation for any of the following:

(1) on account of acts or omissions that Director
believed or believes to be contrary to the best interests of the
Corporation or its shareholders or that involve the absence of good
faith on the part of Director;

(ii1) with respect to any transaction from which
Director derived an improper personal benefit;

(iii) on account of acts or omissions that show a
reckless disregard for Director’s duties to the corporation or its
shareholders in circumstances 1in which Director was aware, or
should have been aware, in the ordinary course of performing a
Director’s duties, of a risk of serious injury to Corporation or
its shareholders;

(iv) on account of acts or omissions that
constitute an unexcused pattern of inattention that amounts to an
abdication of Director’s duties to the Corporation or its
shareholders;

(v) to the extent prohibited by Section 310 of
the California Corporations Code, entitled "Contracts in Which
Director Has Material Financial Interest;"

(vi) to the extent prohibited by Section 316 of
the California Corporations Code, entitled "Corporate Actions
Subjecting Directors To Joint And Several Liability" (generally
for prohibited distributions, loans and guarantees);

(vii) in respect of any claim, issue or matter as
to which Director shall have been adjudged to be liable to
Corporation in the performance of Director’s duties to
Corporation and its shareholders, unless and only to the extent
that the court in which such proceeding is or was pending shall
determine upon application that, in view of all the circumstances
of the case, Director is fairly and reasonably entitled to
indemnity for expenses and then only to the extent that such
court shall determine;

(viii) of amounts paid in settling or otherwise
disposing of a pending action without court approval; and

(ix) of expenses incurred in defending a pending
action which is settled or otherwise disposed of without court
approval.



4. Contribution. If the indemnificaticn provided in
Sections 1 and 2 is unavailable and may not be paid to Director
for any reason other than those set forth in Section 3 (excluding
subsections 3(b) (viii) and (ix)), then in respect of any
threatened, pending or completed action, sult or proceeding in
which Corporation is jointly liable with Director (or would be if
joined in such action, suit or proceeding), Corporation shall
contribute to the amount of expenses (including attorneys’ fees),
judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement actually and
reasonably incurred and paid or payable by Director in such
proportion as is appropriate to reflect (i) the relative benefits
received by Corporation on the one hand and Director on the other
hand from the transaction from which such action, suit or
proceeding arose, and (ii) the relative fault of Corporation on
the one hand and of Director on the other in connection with the
events which resulted in such expenses, judgments, fines or
settlement amounts, as well as any other relevant equitable
considerations. The relative fault of Corporation on the one
hand and of Director on the other shall be determined by
reference to, among other things, the parties’ relative intent,
knowledge, access to information and opportunity to correct or
prevent the circumstances resulting in such expenses, judgments,
fines or settlement amounts. Corporation agrees that it would
not be just and equitable if contribution pursuant to this
Section 4 were determined by pro rata allocation or any other
method of allocation which does not take account of the foregoing
equitable considerations.

Sre Continuation of Obligations. All agreements and
obligations of Corporation contained herein shall continue during
the period Director is a director, officer, employee or agent of
Corporation (or is or was serving at the request of Corporation
as a director, officer, employee or agent of another corporation,
partnership, Jjoint venture, trust or other enterprise) and shall
continue thereafter so long as Director shall be subject to any
possible claim or threatened, pending or completed action, suit
or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or
investigative, by reason of the fact that Director was a director
of Corporation or serving in any other capacity referred to
herein.

6. Notification and Defense of Claim. Promptly after
receipt by Director of notice of the commencement of any action,
suit or proceeding, Director will, if a claim in respect thereof
is to be made against Corporation under this Agreement, notify
Corporation of the commencement thereof; but the omission so to
notify Corporation will not relieve it from any liability which
it may have to Director otherwise than under this Agreement.

With respect to any such action, suit or proceeding as to which
Director notifies Corporation of the commencement thereof:




(a) Corporation will be entitled to participate
therein at its own expense;

(b) Except as otherwise provided below, to the extent
that it may wish, Corporation jointly with any other indemnifying
party similarly notified will be entitled to assume the defense
thereof, with counsel satisfactory to Director. After notice
from Corporation to Director of its election so as to assume the
defense thereof, Corporation will not be liable to Director under
this Agreement for any legal or other expenses subsequently
incurred by Director in connection with the defense thereof other
than reasonable costs of investigation or as otherwise provided
below. Director shall have the right to employ its counsel in
such action, suit or proceeding but the fees and expenses of such
counsel incurred after notice from Corporation of its assumption
of the defense thereof shall be at the expense of Director unless
(1) the employment of counsel by Director has been authorized by
Corporation, (ii) Director shall have reasonably concluded that
there may be a conflict of interest between Corporation and
Director in the conduct of the defense of such action or (iii)
Corporation shall not in fact have employed counsel to assume the
defense of such action, in each of which case the fees and
expenses of counsel shall be at the expense of Corporation.
Corporation shall not be entitled to assume the defense of any
action, suit or proceeding brought by or on behalf of
Corporation, which is against or involves Director, or as to
which Director shall have made the conclusion provided for in
(ii) above; and

(c) Corporation shall not be liable to indemnify
Director under this Agreement for any amounts paid in settlement
of any action or claim effected without its written consent.
Corporation shall not settle any action or claim in any manner
which would impose any penalty or limitation on Director without
Director’s written consent. Neither Corporation nor Director
will unreasonably withhold its consent to any proposed
settlement.

7w Advancement and Repayment of Expenses.

(a) In the event that Director employs his own counsel
pursuant to Section 6(b) (i) through (iii) above, Corporation
shall advance to Director, prior to any final disposition of any
threatened or pending action, suit or proceeding, whether civil,
criminal, administrative or investigative, any and all reasonable
expenses (including legal fees and expenses) incurred in
investigating or defending any such action, suit or proceeding
within ten (10) days after receiving copies of invoices presented
to Director for such expenses.

(b) Director agrees that Director will reimburse
Corporation for all reasonable expenses paid by Corporation in
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defending any civil or criminal action, suit or proceeding
against Director in the event and only to the extent it shall be
ultimately determined by a final judicial decision (from which
there is no right of appeal) that Director is not entitled, under
applicable law, the Bylaws, this Agreement or otherwise, to be

indemnified by Corporation for such expenses.
8. Enforcement.

(a) Corporation expressly confirms and agrees that it
has entered into this Agreement and assumed the obligations
imposed on Corporation hereby in order to induce Director to
become or continue as a director of Corporation, and acknowledges
that Director is relying upon this Agreement in continuing in
such capacity.

(b) In the event Director is required to bring any
action to enforce rights or to collect moneys due under this
Agreement and is successful in such action, Corporation shall
reimburse Director for all of Director’s reasonable fees and
expenses in bringing and pursuing such action.

9. Separability. Each of the provisions of this
Agreement 1s a separate and distinct agreement and independent of
the others, so that if any provision hereof shall be held to be
invalid or unenforceable for any reason, such invalidity or
unenforceability shall not affect the validity or enforceability
of the other provisions hereof.

10. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be
interpreted and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State
of california.

11. Binding Effect. This Agreement shall be binding
upon Director and upon Corporation, its successors and assigns,
and shall inure to the benefit of Director, his heirs, personal
representatives and assigns and to the benefit of Corporation,
its successors and assigns.

12. Amendment and Termination. No amendment,
modification, termination or cancellation of this Agreement shall
be effective unless in writing signed by both parties hereto.




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed
this Agreement on and as of the day and year first above written.

MAIN STREET ATHLETIC CLUBS, INC.,
a California corporation

By: X ¥

—

Paul David Marotta,
Incorporator

Address: 1901 South Bascom Avenue
Suite 1440
San Jose, CA 95008

{ . S (" s
\\ !\ — —1\7 ~1 y X j’
\, A 4 e i

By:

Chester Billingsley
Director

Address: 1901 South Bascom Avenue

Suite 1440
San Jose, CA 95008

c:\wp\main\indemn.cb




EXHIBIT 11

Statement re computation of per share earnings

Mentor Capital, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Computation of Earnings Per Share

Three Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2014 2013
Net loss attributable to controlling interest $ (186,066) $ (57,747)
Basic weighted average shares outstanding 14,492,602 6,650,277
Diluted weighted average shares outstanding 14,492,602 6,650,277
Basic net income per share $ (0.013) $ (0.009)
Diluted net income per share $ (0.013) $ (0.009)
Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2014 2013
Net loss attributable to controlling interest $ (11,268) $ (181,183)
Basic weighted average shares outstanding 12,539,342 5,504,325
Diluted weighted average shares outstanding 12,539,342 5,504,325
Basic net income per share $ (0.001) $ (0.033)
Diluted net income per share $ (0.001) $ (0.033)
Year Ended December 31,
2014 2013
Net loss $ (258,784) $ (236,711)
Basic weighted average shares outstanding 5,741,161 3,326,285
Diluted weighted average shares outstanding 5,741,161 3,326,285
Basic net income per share $ (0.045) $ (0.071)
Diluted net income per share $ (0.045) $ (0.071)




EXHIBIT 21
Mentor Capital, Inc. Subsidiaries

December 31,2013 and 2012

At December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Company had the following subsidiary:

Waste Consolidators, Inc. — incorporated in the state of Colorado
5869 S. Kyrene Road, Suite #1
Tempe, AZ 85283

Waste Consolidators, Inc. (WCI) is a legacy investment in which Mentor had a 50% ownership at December 31, 2013 and 2012. This
was accounted for in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles under the equity method. Based on guidelines of ASC
323 Mentor Capital did not exercise significant influence over operating and financial policies of WCI. In addition, WCI did not
qualify for consolidation as a variable interest entity under the guidelines of ASC 810-10. See description in Item 2 of Form 10.

September 30, 2014

At September 30, 2014, the Company had the following subsidiaries:

Waste Consolidators, Inc. — incorporated in the state of Colorado
5869 S. Kyrene Road, Suite #1
Tempe, AZ 85283

Effective January 1, 2014, Mentor purchased an additional 1% interest in WCI for $25,000 which resulted in a 51% ownership in
WCI. In addition, Mentor became involved in the financial reporting for WCI and is believed to have significant influence in 2014.
At December 31, 2013, Mentor’s investment in WCI was recorded under the equity method. In accordance with Accounting
Standard Codification 810-10, Consolidation — Overall, on January 1, 2014 Mentor remeasured its previously held equity interest at
the acquisition-date fair value and recognized the resulting gain on investment in subsidiary, see Note 14. WCI is a legacy
investment that is included in the consolidated financial statements for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2014 and is
reported as an investment under the equity method at December 31, 2013 and the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013.

MicroCannaBiz, LLC — organized in the state of Florida.

204 37™ Avenue North, Suite 401
St. Petersburg, FL 33704

On February 18, 2014, the Company signed an agreement to purchase a 51% interest in MicroCannaBiz (“MCB”), a development
stage company, for $200,000. MCB provides cannabis and marijuana related private companies, investors and microcap issuers with
information resources including client company specific publications, directories, and continuing education courses. MCB began
operations in June 2014 and is not material to the financial statements.



